AT Registered number:
' 04098226

CARDPOINT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

AT

A22 13/12/2022 #26
COMPANIES HOUSE

TUESDAY



CARDPOINT LIMITED

CONTENTS

Sfrategic—re;;ort i

Directors' report

" Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and Financial

Statements

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Cardpoint Limited

Profit and loss account and other comprehensive Income

Balance sheet

-

s T ot
Statement of changes in equity “

Notes to the financial statemerits - “~ -

Page

14

7-9
10

11
12

13-20



CARDPOINT LIMITED

'« "-STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The directors’ present their Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 as follows:
BUSINESS REVIEW

The company'’s principal activity is that of an intermediate holding company of a group engaged in the operation
of an estate of independent automated teller machines (“ATM’s”) in the United Kingdom.

The company made a profit of £nil for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. The entity acts as a holding
company and entity mainly derives its income through investments and subsidiary undertakings. The net assets
_ of the Company, as at 31 December 2021, was £91.6m (2020: £91.6m) and remained unchanged in the year.

On 25 January 2021, NCR Corporation, a global enterprise technology provider for the financial, retail and
hospitality industries, entered into a definitive agreement to acquire all of the outstanding shares of the
Cardtronics group for $39 per share in an all cash transaction. The transaction completed on 21 June 2021 and
cleared regulatory approval on 10 August 2021. The ultimate parent company is now NCR Corporation, for more
details see the note 7 Controlling Party. -

Section 172 Statement

In accordance with the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 and the resulting amendments
made to section 172 of the Companies Act, the Company presents the additional required disclostures below on
pages 24.

Stakeholder Engagement

Although the Company operates as an intermediate holding company within the NCR Corporation group of
companies, our board of directors (the "Board") recognizes the importance of fulfiling the Company’s
responsibilities commensurate with its role. Until 9 August 2021, the ultimate parent undertaking was Cardtronics
plc, Subsequently the ultimate parent company is NCR Corporation (see note 7 Controlling Party).

As a holding company, Cardpoint Limited holds direct and: indirect investments in certain subsidiaries and
provides intercompany financing via intercompany notes. The Company is also a recipient of such financing and
a counterparty in various intercompany transactions.



CARDPOINT LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Our Investors

+

Why they matter to us

e

" | shareholders.’

Our investors include our parent company, Cardtronics Holdings LLC, a direct subsidiary
holding company, which is the ultimate parent (see note 7 Controlling Party) of a group of
companies that provide convenient automated consumer financial services through a
network of automated teller machines and'multi-function financial services kiosks
(collectively referred to as “ATMs”). Our immediate parent and the investors in the Group
are important to us because continued access to capital is of vital importance to the long-
term success of our subsidiary businesses. Through the Group’s engagement activities
with investors, it seeks to communicate its strategic objectives and provide insights into key
elements of its business. The Group creates value for its shareholders by generating strong
and sustainable results. It also seeks input on key governance and sustainability matters
from its shareholder base and places great value on the opinions and feepback from our

+

What matters to them

4

| Group investors are concemed with a broad range of issues including, but not-limited to,

Group financial and operational performance and condition, strategic execution, investment
plans, code of conduct, and capital allocation. Key points commonly raised or discussed
with Group shareholders in stewardship discussions include executive compensation,
govemance matters, board composition, and the board’s role in strategy, risk management,
and human capital management. Our immediate parent operates as a holding'company
within the Group and matters of Group investors are also relevant to our direct investor.

| Type of éngagement '

Régular corporate governance activities involving representatives of.our direct investor,
Cardtronics Holdings LLC.

How the Board engages

The ultimate parent company (see note 7 Controlling Party) engages with investors through
regular corporate govemance activities. These activities may invoive representatives from
Cardtronics UK Limited Board and that its direct investor Cardpoint Limited.

The Board of Cardpoint also serves Group investors by functioning in a managerial capacity
on behalf of the Group and engaging with investors in this capacity.

How they influence the

Board’s decision making.

.

P

~| The opinions of Group investors ‘are taken into account in shaping Group strategy,

remuneration policy, and capital structure. Active engagement with Group shareholders
and the feedback received is evaluated by the Group to evolve and improve governance
and long-term value creation. This on-going evaluation effects the activities of holding
companies like Cardpoint and its immediate parent Cardtronics Holdings LLC.

Lt & te

Our Investees

Why they matter to us Our investees consist of other holding companies, payroll entities and operating entities.
For these entities, access to capital is of vital importance as they play their respective roles
and facilitate the business activities of the Group.

What matters to them Access to the capital necessary to fulfill their roles as holding, payroll or operating entities.

Type of engagement

Direct communication with our investees.

How the Board engages

Frequent communication with investee board members and management who are also
employees of the Group.

Coordination of investments, distributions and other transactions with these related parties.

How they influence the
Board’s decision making

Investee capital requirements are considered by the Board in its decision making on behalf
of the entity. The Board consists of Directors who are employees of the group who consider
the needs of the Group including the Investees.
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(hauPSTRATEGIC REPORT: (continued)

rSOS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31'DECEMBER 2021

Our Intercompany
Counterparties
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Our intercompany counterparties!consist of other-holding'companies’or finance entities.
These entities both provide and receive financing to/from the entity. For these entities, the
delivery, of debt financing is of vital importance as they finance the activities of the Group.

What matters to them: i, ti)e
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Group Employees

Why they matter to us
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Atthough Cardpoint has no employees, its subsidiaries employ personnel in multiple
countries. Having people who bring a diverse range of talents ‘and perspectives'~who feel
pride in the Group and are engaged in their roles - is fundamental to the long-term success
of the Group's-business.! The Board 'of our. ultimate parent (see note 7, ControllingiParty)
places great value on .ensuring the leadership of the,Group creates, a -positive,tinclusive,
and diverse \ work envrronment for,its employees in which ali have the opportunrty to realize
therr potentlal as mdlvrduals and teams The, Board of the Group belleves it takes an active
rnterest m ensunng all employees ‘Understand. and feel connected to the purpose-dnven
mission as well'as the vision and values 'of the organization. < For these réasons. 'Group
employees matter to the Board of Cardpoint.

What matters to them

Group employees are concemed with opportunities for personal development and career
progression; a culture of communication, collaboration and trust; compensation and
benefits; the ability to make a difference within the NCR Group and in the communities it
serves; knowing their voice is heard; ensuring everyone is treated fa|r1y, and feeling
alignment between personal and company values.

Type of engagement

Annual employee engagement survey

Communication through multimedia channels for sharing information281v60 ¥
Group CEO videos, memos, briefings and presentations of strategy 'and’ business
performance updates

Leadership town hall meetings and email updates < 30 1cgraneC £ (3
Meetings with recognized trade unions and elected workplace representatives

How the Board engages

Discussions on talent development and succession planning
Group compensation committees work to align pay and performance
Meetings with senior leaders across the organization

How they influence the
Board’s decision making

The Cardpoint Board decision making is influenced by what matters to Group Employees
to the extent that the Cardpoint Board functions as Group management or must take action
on behalf of Cardpoint in order for it to function in its capacity as a holding company and
facilitate what matters to employees.




CARDPOINT LIMITED

. STRATEGIC REPORT,(continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The key risks faced by the Company are aligned- with the ultimate parent company of the Group (see note 7
Controlling Party). For more details of these risks and how they are managed please refer to the strategic report
in the annual report and accounts for NCR Corporation, the ultimate parent company at the balance sheet date.

As experienced during the year, economic conditions can deteriorate as a result of a number of factors such as
the COVID-19 pandemic. Economic headwinds can negatively affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition. In response to the pandemic the Company acted swiftly to hibernate ATMs, minimise ongoing
costs and ensure sufficient cash is accessible to maintain business operations. Staff were transitioned to remote
working where appropriate and all business functions operated as needed during this period of abnormality.
Senior Management regularly review the situation at both a regional and global level and adjust plans as
appropriate.

In 2022 the direct effects of the COVID-19 pandemic have reduced. The Iong term effect of COVID-19 has been
" areduction in cash dispense volumes, and the business has right-sized accordingly. Towards the end of 2022,
the business has experienced increasing interest costs on.vault cash facilities. Interest costs ‘are expected to rise
further in 2023, in response to increasing central bank base rates. The company has considered all opportunities
to mitigate these effects as far as possible.

| RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The ultimate parent company (see note 7 Controlling Party), operates a formalised Enterprise Risk Management
(‘ERM") program that seeks to identify the major-risks group faces. The risks are prioritised, assigned to a
~ member of the respective management team who develops mitigation plans, monitors the risk activity, and is

responsible for implementation of the mitigation plan, if necessary. The risks, plans, and activities are monitored
by the group management team and the group Board of Dlrectors ona regular basis.

" This report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf.

Director

Date: 13 December 2022
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The directors present their.report and the financial statements for.the year.ended.31,December,2021 —
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The resuit for the year, after taxation, amounted to £nil (2020: £nil). L
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The dlrectors believe that should financial support be requiredifrom the; uitimate:parent:company.i(see’note 7
Controlling Party) that the support would be provuded ,Therefore directors are confident that the company will
have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities'as' they ‘fall ‘due for at Ieast 12 ‘onths from the' dateé of the

approved financial statements (Note 2.3). .ip Luig bug sddsnoesy vir 6l 56 aie5 bne ansrmeciui 9dem o
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M Terry (resigned 9" June 2022)
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Under section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG LLP will

therefore continue in office.

This report was approved by the board on 13 December 2022 and signed on its behalf.
W Davies
Director

- Registered office:
9th Floor
Merchant Square,
London,

England
W2 1BQ
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STATEMENT OF DlRECT&RS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN'RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND THE

- —FINANCIAL-STATEMENTS —
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The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statementsjin® accordance w1th‘app11cable

law and regulations.

UG e A hattaganns, anitev fasily s i
Company law requires the directors to prepare ﬁnancral statements for each financial year. Uhder that law they have elected

to prepare the financial statements in accordance wrth UK accountlng s[tandlards and applicable l‘a'w (UK Gener'ally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosire Framework.” > 1 S@i U0 L1l LAy Of: (i

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these

Y s}osfinancial statements,:the directors are required to: iLps1 9l Hoagus Isanend blueds 150 svated soioant a1T
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e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; {€.3 2'0W) &terreisiz ISDNENT DLYOIGAR

e state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;
. . L. s s g 2T el M o s ot R vt Y, el
e assess the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern;
and (S80S acul, 2 baagizel) voal M
e use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to l|qu1date the Company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so. (SE0C - rul, ™t bjevungn) enbrostenl 3

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explam the Company s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the' Company and enabié 'them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsrble for such mtemal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are frée' from 'material n misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. AUTIGUA
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CARDPOINT LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CARDPOINT LIMITED
o o ) : . R L .

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Cardpoint Limited (“the Company™) for the year ended 31 December 2021

which comprise the Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity and related notes, including the accounting policies in
note 2.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of its result for the year then
. ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, mcludmg FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework;, and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law.
Our responmbnlmes are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the
Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

"The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company’s financial position means that this is
realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its
ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going
concemn period”).

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company’s business model and
analysed how those risks might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operatlons over the going
concern period. .

Our conclusions based on this work:

e  we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparanon of the financial statements
is appropriate;

e we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty related to
events or conditions that, md1v1dually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ablhty to continue
as a going concemn for the going concern period.. !

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were miade, the above conclusions are not a guarantee
that the Company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatements due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could indicate
an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included

® Enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Compaﬂy’s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged
fraud.

® Reading Board minutes. . | '
m Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of
fraud throughout the audit.




CARDPOINT LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CARDPOINT LIMITED (Continued)

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatements due to fraud (Continued)

As required by auditing standards we perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in
particular the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries and the risk of bias in
accounting estimates and judgements. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition due
to the non-complex nature of the transactions.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

In’ determining the audit procedures, we took into account the results of our evaluation and testing of the operating
effectiveness of some of the Company-wide fraud risk management controls.

We performed procedures including:

m Identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries
to supporting documentation. These included those posted to unusual account combinations and other unusual
journal characteristics.

m Evaluated the business purpose of significant unusual transactions.
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement related to compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements from our general commercial and sector experlence through discussion with the directors (as required by auditing
; standards). . _ .

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications’of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

The Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial reporting
legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation, and taxation legislation and we assessed
the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the ‘related financial statement items.

" Whilst the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations, we did not identify any others where the consequences
of non-compliance alone could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect ﬁ'aud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material
misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance
with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing
standards would identify it. '

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect
material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-
comphance with all laws and regulations.

Stratgglc report and directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the ﬁnanclal statements does
not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our
financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements
or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CARDPOINT LIMITED (Continued)

Strategic report and directors’ report (Continued)
e we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

e in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements;
and ’ e e

o  in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

ru

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

) St e Ctatr v
e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

‘e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit., . - - .-

We have nothing to report in these respects.

1 d - .- s LR ¢ - -3 .
Directors’ responsibilities ' - o K
As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 6, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern;
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the financial statements. A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at

www.fre.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

KA QD uvna

Kelly Dunn (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Botanic House

100 Hill Road

Cambridge

CB2 1AR

Date: 13 December 2022




CARDPOINT LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ; ..
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

P TP SO

: ' 2021 2020

Note £000 £000

Income ﬁom inve'stments - -
Result before taxation ' A : - ’ -
Tax on resuit . o ’ o v_. -
Result for the financial year . . - . -

Total comprehensive income for the year ' _ . =

There were no recognised gains and losses for 2021 or 2020 other than those included in the profit and loss
account and other comprehensive income. , v

The notes on pages 13 to 20 form part of these financial statements.
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CARDPOINT-LIMITED 3

{

YTIUO3 Vil 29BALANCE SHEET3TAT2

1$0S AZEMIAS'AT 31.DECEMBER 2021 03

ig107

ieps

906023
Fixed assets

aved, 8
Investments
Current liabilitigg‘ _
a9

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one

year

Net current liabilities
Tere

Total assets

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital

Profit and loss account

Shareholder’s funds

onn titond 15142 2021 ' 2020
"inuyo2ok 280 Notels? - £000 £000
0503 0003
IAWA s8¢ . : _
‘ 4 147,822 . 0808 vise147,8221

159y ad) 16t Jiyas R

- e ———— ————

897 8% vn8.2 . 0S0S 18¢lm202Q FE 3A
5 (56,250) . - (56,250)

) 1sav arlt 1rd e
. (56,250) (56,250)

get.e8 | NNgA ' 1803 15dininas(d ME3A
A& =rgl‘_._i—zz

2inerpsiaie snhbatazens o 1isg ot 58 of EF erpsa Ao eaton edT

6 . 5,804 5,804
85,768 - 85,768
—91,572 — 91572

’

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on

13 December 2022.

VYoo,

W Davies
Director

The notes on pages 13 to 20 form part of these financial statements.

Company number: 04098226
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CARDPOINT LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Share
capital
£000
5,804

At 1 January 2020 .
Result for the year )
At 31 December 2020 5,804
Result for the year ‘ }
At 31 December 2021 . __ 5804

The notes on pages 13 to 20 form part of these financial statements.

Profit and Total
loss account equity
£000 £000

85,768 91,572
85,768 91,572
—85,768 91,572

12
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aTvE| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
PSS FOR'THE.YEAR'ENDED'31' DECEMBER 2021
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[

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (henailnos) 83ICHLI08 DUITUUOIOA N

Cardpoint Limited (the "Company") is a company incorporated and domiciled'in‘the’UK:{The address of
its registered office is 9th Floor, 5§ Merchant Square, Paddington, London, England, W2 1BQ
2eueed alsurebs g5 ynscen1od sdt s} noitaioegxe MdLRt ey S SVvBn 2101987 2 &7
2. 95ACCOUNTING POLICIES Ul 10859256t ant} 10t 29r i21X9 IG6rcHe uga M sua inor of
gized mae00 priog orli no heisgen Neet syel elnevsiniF lednnnt
2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements
Isicngnatt ady 1808 1aams.aU 1E is es maS 82% Yo zaiihdel 3nsmua ten pnldnstarliniod
n} 1shizThese financial! statements \were' prepared: under. the  historical costiconvention unless otherwise
specified within these accounting policies and in:accordance with:Financial.Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework ("FRS 101").
mec edinorn S Jesa, 16 10 boneq e 101 2iesanal woll fesd baigqaig avsd Liotanb el
ic 1nucinspreparing:these: financial{ statements,! the. Company. applies:the:recognition, measurement and
pnibnildisclosure requirements of international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of
26 291lithe Companies'Act 2006 (*Adopted.IFRSs")::butimakes amendments where necessary in order to
comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure
exemptions has been taken.
fon z2ensineduz quong el bne aoiziomnl A0 no inebnagsh o 2i2%3¢501 szonT
}S0T w:These financial’ statements have cbeenyprepared runder. the - historical ;cost:convention unless
shivorcotherwise specified .within thesetaccounting:policiesiand inraccordance .with:Financial Reporting
sese nStandard101:'Reduced Disclosure Framework'and the Companies-Act 20065 it
sdt yd Gaievod benen erl 10! a1sb 1eade sonsIET &1t 15 sud Hnuons ot Yo msmvsqa‘r
's,2.2 "Financiallreporting standard 101:- reduced disclosure exemptions 2icsosnct
Five hiwgoue e 1arll viossheo o ed ned @) tem apheiviIc A28 210091 b o hog 4u;
an gve The company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptlons under.FRS 101:

. the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosurés 20 <' 110255
of zbrn? tasiol ‘e‘_rqqtgrpmgn.t.s of paragrapgs 9?-_9_9 of lFRS 13 Falr Valuue ‘I\gle‘ajuujgmgnt

¢ a:ghesrt irthe requirement.in: paragraph 138! of [AS 1»{Presentat|on of,Financial . Statements' to present
zine melolz 1 comparative information-in-respect of. g 2inamisie  lsorerit a1 Yo levinas
- paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1; 2T MeGNo BTN D
. the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 16, 38A, 38B, 38C, 38D, 40A, 40B, 40C, 40D,
111 and 134;136 of.IAS,1.Presentation of Financial Statements , natovws1f 5.9
arwt s 10t weli'@er rw vwrerre mealonr Slewian .w.\.'-u;-- € By 1vd E . -
. the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash F lows

RN WLy ~-
o fedf 2nmi ‘the requrrementé of paragraph 17 and 18A of 1AS 24’ Related Party Drsclosures

sl no T"rqm! ST R Dl SVES JEN 1.US 1S3 i 09003 182y 9f 07 VDS
. the requirements in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related -party transactions

entered into between two or more members of a group, provided that any subsrdrary which is
a party to the transaction is wholly owned by such a member

) the requirements of paragraphs 134(d)-134(f) and, 135(c)-135(e) of IAS 36_Impairment of
Assets. esnzibizdue m .marntuevrl 2.5

sSUlev [l RGHTUM™MID yns 10t 1C 2ivog « 27! 1202 16 Lels1? 16 28-8.0°'¢du2 M etrarfuzeval

Lt . , 13
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£137.2;CARDPOINT.LIMITED

Lo~ R - .. e e e _
27:NOTES TO .THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
recs FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31:DECEMBER 2021
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) AU ANAGENT IARINU3Y T
to 27:2.3,5,Going concern ;..isirtol has botd ANP0oM IBIMED § & (& \,nr,..n.oo' wilfy 0ela ) Inioqo e

DT W hnaignE oobeod poipmbosS ssupa uortms 11 3 secls i o eoilto bestaipar ai
The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources

to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and:consequently; these
financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.
ehnamuiaie Isiananl 3o noilssaag o eizsd 5.8
Notwithstanding net current liabilities of £56.25m as at 31 December 2021 the financial
ze Wby zeting statements have been prepared on a going.concern:basis which the directors consider to
i 31 bisbar:2 piube appropriate for.the. followmg|reasons 2aio10g 0Niinuoas 2237 ninbw baflipoga
ot ?rﬁ") dHowems S swg2nia2l baoubsH
The directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period of at least 12 months from
Lz sz santhe dateof approvaliof.these financial statements which:indicate that.taking account of
to anerretuengy sreasonably :possible. downsides, theicompany :willthave sufficient funds,: through:funding
o3 18t1o n: yis2asfrom.its ultimate parent:company..(see:note hkControlling‘Party) .to: meet;its‘liabilities as
wmoival 137 ¢they fall due forthat period:ad fuo ta2 a5 bris @038 124 asinsgins D dtiw dgrino
nEue? poed eln ooliqrrexe
Those forecasts are dependent on NCR Corporation, and its group subsidiaries, not
gzslng nonnavncseeking repayment of the -amounts .currently.owed to.themswhichiat:31-December 2021
crehcass isio7eramounted to £56.25m: NCR:Corporation-has indicated its intention:to, continue to provide
financial‘support-as:is: needed 'by: the .company::and(that:it: does *not intend:to seek
repayment of the amounts due at the balance sheet date, for the period covered by the
forecasts. As:withiany company!placing: reliance:on:other :group:entities ifor. financial
support, the directors acknowledge that there can be no certalnty that this support will
POt 29 continuéaltiough? t the dateof approval 'of these’ financial statements"they have no
reason to believe that it will not do SO. i~ jem™ ¥ 2 A7 10 areir Niupa e .

paga’ ooig\d vall £ 2951 09 F B anasanren 10 alnacr s ine

Consequently the dlrectors are conf dent that'the company /' will‘have' sufﬁcuent funds to

nagsw 0 A=l continue-toiméét itssliabilities “as’ they fall‘dueifor.at:least 112'months from the*date of
approval of the financial statements and therefore. have prepared the financial statements

on a going concern basis. F 2R 10 (is)@ ¥ Agige i8a
TOM O08 I0% als Q38 Naf R8E ASE A Nl \c, At P""-ﬂpbh 5V, SIRSCINILST Sl s
Y MR A I A R L R s
2.4 Newstandards!intérpretations and amendments effective = ' 08 11
Swer ) aesd e 1vemat2is ¥ 24100 F ac patigngy Y v

..Jhere. are .no amendmentsto accountmg standards, , or IFRIC interpretations that are

L&

effective for the year ended 31°December 2021 ‘that have had a material impact on the
2nciesens ¢NBCompany220'02ln of Beredival@ yosQ buislaf AL 241 ni 2nsmonn ) el v

g ol api2di. an isnd badivern g w10 218dMsm e 1o 0wl aeeL1ad 2im b asing
SIMAN £ 04z vd DAY Codw & OO BN Arl of W ©
e

I e amusaml U3 28] Y6 75 A0 o 08 s (RIS eigeipsisg WO ainamesipe; eni »
25 Investments m ‘subsidiaries ’ £ ' air 2ad

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for any diminution in value.

~
-
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r$98 FOR . THE-YEAR'ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) (beuaidnud) 22DLI0T DATAUOIA 8
2.6 Financial instruments aolislerncn vangytua rpigiod 8.8

The Company recognises financial instruments?when!itobecomes ’arparty.¢to the contractual
arrangements of the instrument. Financial instruments are de-recognised when they are discharged
or when the contractual terms‘expire.” The! Company's ‘accounting ‘policies ‘insrespect of financial
instruments transactions are explained below:
223i1Ei50 bns cnoitosenstT
. Financial assets
2pisddxe feqe 3n! pay \anslLd Isnouanut sat oINt EIEEREY 6 ERONIEEML.Y YINSILG NRIS16T
The Company classifies all of its financial assets as loans' and receivables.is ¢ 2.6

DiB1 eSS 8L Gans and feceivables 2Muli VSIBAC T vieovwd apoiat boe botag dass i
313D erl} 12 6'61 AuNBNI9 9l pvdu Calserst 816 1200 L0 o1ad 18 J3wes. . 2Msa yitenomn-nold
sgnenaxs sl gril'gans'and réceivablés aré hoh:defivative financial assets with fixed or.determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They arise principally through the provision of goods and services
to customers (e.g. trade receivables), but also incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset.
st moft bne enThey are'initially recognised at fair valie plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their
agisct i tsleirgequisition or issue; and'are subsequently carried ‘at'amortised cost using the effective interest rate
1s01e v banssb method Zlessprovision for impairment® 179M21612 01t 13 DOUIN 30591 16 £9:0M ML
e3nboert wolt 1e30 pralvup 26 amioo i svene daymod
Impairment provisions are recognised when there is objective evidence (such as significant financial
difficulties on the part of the counterparty or default or significant delay in payment) that the Company
will be unable to collect all of the amounts due under the terms receivable;!the amount of such a
provision being the difference between the net carrying amount and the present value of the future
B 121U 1qe0Xs Srgypacted (cash fiows associated’ withthe ‘impaired freceivable.” For trade receivables, which are
ermoont aviznertsreported net,2such- provisions are‘fecordéd in‘a separateTallowancelaccount with the loss being
0 SLod Svigffracoghised within administrative ‘expenses’in the Profit and loss account./On:confirmation that the
trade receivable will not be collected, the gross carrying value of the asset is written off against the
associated provision. .
roed oved tortt awei bns 2151 x8! 10 Teed 5 N0 PelAlLuo 8D & SEED %S SrQur ot enT
\18aN00 ot MEinancial liabilities 6" fooriz 20nsI8a 874 vA besdar v dsvdnsladue 0 t 3 Eno
2MCATN E352N90 BEB £.95.2450
The Company classifies all of its financial liabilities as liabilities at amortised cost.

At amortised cost ENNICHIE GUSIG INICgeIa Mot notdgmax3 0.8

BG313 0! SMO Financial liabilities at amortised cost including bank'borrowings ‘are initially recoghised at fair value
fairtw rOURIOqICnetof ahy transaction'costs directly attributable to the issue of the instrumentSuch interest bearing
sesnT 8BOLOE Afabilities are ‘Subsequently’ méasured ‘at ‘amortised’ cost’using the effective’interest rate method,
fon Bis onwisheRyhich'ensiires”that any interest éxpense over the period:to repayment 'is at‘a constant rate on the

balance of the liability carried into the Balance Sheet. : q461Q 2h juode

2.7 Dividends
Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a liability at that date to the extent

that they are appropriately authorised and are no longer at the discretion of the Company. Unpaid
dividends that do not meet these criteria are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

5y ' 15
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2712:NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL- STATEMENTS
+sn7 FOR;THE YEAR:ENDED;31 DECEMBER 2021

-t

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) {hotalinos) 2JIIDT DUTAVCIZA N
2.8 Foreign currency translation dnsmusders sionsmd .8

1sutg . o Functional and presentation currency;n iivnsni esunpodn yregmad edT
2924210 218 Yot ISV U820 L2 3D p1T ZITSTUIEN teas i Inpmutant anit i e nNsmanIETs
e 3561 V6 1eg=The Company's functional and-presentational currency,is GBP.:yinos =1 06ty 0
WECHS 3 OB HTKE €15 200na0N Y nLmuTan
Transactions and balances
2ianas inisne rd3
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions..z, inonamt 2 40 s 2sdizesic vngmod onT
At each period end foreign currency monetary items  are -translatedusing, the closing rate.
Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date
ier Linemysg <!of the transaction and non-monetary,items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange
z30ivisa brs sborate whenfair,value was determined. czn yaiT faxmiae 9vilos s i bate ,p 1on 18
10g38 VSIBrar it A 1 22qyd v B0 S 200N 0 06 ILd (s2luVienm SDBY G 8 cisiniil” of
warlt o1 elosi-dirForeigni exchange ;gains .and:losses -resulting from, the, settlement; of; transactions and from the
s 0 t2s1atn’ oy ctranslation, at,period-end-exchange:rates of monetary: assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the Statement of Cpmprqhensive),lr]cqmg except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges.
a3t Jreabapiz 26 HoU2) 20n2bivd oL L0 2 18 NSV BS2INg0.r21 818 2n0rivog Indntisarmt
ganaro D edi 1) Sasmyey At valob 1azading2 10 fusiob 10 \ngreinu 5o et ls hiso s} 1o pediudihb
5 foue 13 tr2.9nTaxations 13007 2rmet on) tabinu sub ruoma et 1o 85 joeilno of oldanu 9G ity
syt ot Yo duley 1709810 SRT LU UG IR Oru NED 1A ot raswied Sunenattit 208 Do 1o 40N
316 roiity 2oucTax is recognised in the Profit and Loss account.and Other Comprehensive, Income, except that a
gwad ¢! &7, charge:attributable to-an item of income:and.expense recognised as other.comprehensive income
on 187 ~eeemfior toyan item recognised; directly.in equity,is also- recognised;in; other, comprehensive income or
ar! tanisgs o . directly in.equity;respectively. yiso 2200 il halaalion sd Jon liw sidaviscn e
nuizivoirg b teigutss
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date in the countries,where the Company
operates and generates income.

1200 Lastome je sodnder 15 rruitasil bsicrenil ali vy e 2atiezeld viasgried an i
2.10 Exemption from preparing group accounts jeus ssodioms 1A

silev - £} % bezrThe company is exempt by virtue of s401.0f the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare
prnase jes-1ni <group financial statements..Group accounts are prepared and;published by NCR Corporation, which
boritzn et lewis incorporated.in the USA.with:the-address of 864-Spring Street,NW, Atlanta;GA 30308. These

ard no atst e 2financial statements;present information about the.Company-as @n;i_n,q‘iyid_ti_'a_li.yrjgertaking and not
about its group. Lt 2 e £ S et o hamsa e wl ol 10 soneiny

shasb i W8
aiRd 9rit 3, 3100 AT VTR v eE DEEAR0. ) PO e Shed rsds a2k d 00 Ik DIBQu N aLnd

pisaal! yiea ned ey Yo nodetoaib 5o ik t2pnc 9 oo une bezhotius Vaahgiigys 03 ve! st
SINDINE Ll IEIDNBrY 2ot oY 89101 e8f 1 bennah ok ELEhID 28 30 4371 N O 160! #BREGIV'Y
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FSOSFOR THE -YEAR'ENDED 31. DECEMBER 2021

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) {Douptitrioss 230110 DIAITULOI0A B
211 Impairment A | {Saunimoa) Yosrisgend S

'G!8b Financiallinstruments:! 2shicai tsusqmi-4hatd 2l tazes Inuneil ¢ oM vonskivd

The company recognises loss allowances for.ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised
9ub 12€cost:Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
AGAMCY SRIECLS.MISS 10 Y\NSGnao aar vd 30n6vhE 10 nso! § o prutnanias sdT 0
SEgrioastianes on bluow
ModR2in 3¢ 081 When ‘determining whether the credit risk of a financial'asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the company considers reasonable and supportable
gaitlucithb istsiinformation that is'relevant and available without undue cost or effort” This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the company's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking.information.insz2e:&

2207 8% i:The'company assumes that the ‘credit risk on'a financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 180 days past due. sieaag ot 10 foucmiB Crynss

2ldsnce697 01 cThe company.considers'a financial'asset to be in default when: pnia 1169 220ip o T :
«lc21eriithe borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company.in full, withou
recourse by the company to actions such as realising security (If any is held); or
238228 Isionanit “evenesH Tle-the financial asset is-more than:180 days;past dueyyxs \rsamos ad ™
sl nhw OMOD ©F 00 r 2el.ifds Kiemsunelna ¢t osidur ed M2 bluno Pa-nodnw sin j=dd
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over.the expected life of a
financial instrument

. _12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the
MOITANI12 months after the reporting’date’ (or’a shorter period if the expected life of the:instrument is less
than 12 months). “ YHATR AN

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
918 230:02 40 sidwhich the Group is exposed.to credit riskn:1ruoass ¢ pisgrnos st 1o nousolqys el nl
bns ziezzs o Wauoms prinTIes ent fuGos =ACHOMLREE bNB zsismias winemsgbuy] ovsm Of penuEe
2noiiGrnuezs beiiMeasurement of ECLs 2'T 2emu02 Yorllo mor ineaqas vilbsst fon o 184 zenivtnd
ethuast isUIsA Insvaist s af hewsbizrod o8 s 2eeloc) 1aro bas gorunagre lsobnlcrt nn boesa ik
ariognn 15 110 b<ECLs are a'probability-weighted estimate of credit losses> Credit losses are measured as the
1 bsaivan 2 atarrpresent value of all cash shortfalls (i.ethe difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
2338fte nniaivar S accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company.expects to receive)!
prlinuoaos 183itng yne o3 841 16N} 1sbiarcs fon ob et AT aeoiteq el hes tusmed i
+ECLs are discounted ‘at the effective interest rate of the financial'assets s mnsr :phin

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred. '

81 T



CARDPOINT LIMITED

-, "NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) L T
2.11 Impairment (continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
o] Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer, . .
o) A breach of contract such as a default or being more than 180 days past due;
o

The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company
would not consider otherwise,

. 0 - - Itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
~on [N or S . ) . .
) - The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

P}esentation of allowance for ECL in the Balance Sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. ‘ B

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

The company expects no significant recovery from the amoUnt written-off. However, financial assets
that are written-off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
' company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

3. 'JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING ACCbUNTING POLICIES AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY .

. . - - 1 . .
In the application of the company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the Directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods. The directors do not consider that there are any critical accounting
judgements that'must.be applied nor are there any key sources of estimation uncertainty.

18
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165Y ano aldliv sidsyeg 2inuoms :2R0TIA3A0 2

A

4. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Investments in

IMNUN oS .
0003 G002 subsidiary
companies
£000

-~

’

02833  COSTAND NET BOOK VALUE eprrishabr auo1p of Bub AMNUoMA

QWL . _At 1"Ja'hi:ary 2021 and 31 December 2021 —_—
—147,822
bnsmab no sidayeqst 2. sonsisd Guanaiai odT

zpoasisd Qahssa 12819M-a0 s :‘gnbish-«b W GUJOTR Of Dawo ginioma
DIRECT SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS T

The following were subsidiary undertakings of the Company:

JATIRAD FRAHE

2

VNN Name Class of | Holding | Principal | Registered office address

0003 0003 shares activity
Cardtronics UK Ordinary . 100% | ATM gth Floor.s;5+ Merchant ; Square,5iLondon,
Limited operations | England, W2 1BQ
Omnicash Limited | Ordinary 100% Dormant Cardtronics UK Limited; Sth Floor;5 Merchant

Square, London, England, W2 1BQ

®ORA LI R ‘A6 A0 0219 etz v (O -G08, TS0 Bt
INDIRECT SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

< . T e o g 86 03 1o 9wz bm.fhﬂ e

The following were indirect subsidiary undertakings of the Company
Name Class of Holding Principal
shares activity
i braimoc,mCardpomt GmbH 2 110rdinary; 23in0100%7) 2! gATMs:ond toyevs Kommarkt 2-3 754290 Trier Germany
bafinU 80821 o0 ,nalonimiW COb anw@ 0s0f? elhvigingOpPerations; ;5% taistaipen cnwhﬂ ASU sl

batsicqooni vasemos 8 _nig 20inmtingl) ew panietebiy fnaisa atgmit, sl 1 €0OS anyd. GS Hinl sz
Da’; Q{fq\: meew,Wave ATM'i o ‘a rdinar SR Su /r bl M [Installation of .~ b 9th, Floor 5 Meroha'ntJSquareaLondon
: - ey e 3 Yy

w1? 3 vioLe¥ig s ayd
P Installations Limite = wvviY - England
U ortt o t/ISANGKONS Li v-,gmc« 5 rans10g100 AN 2) {Hbimﬁu NS ngland, W21t vinevpscdud

{ Is1oneny 107 2! SI(. bahinti 8CEOC AD sihagtia WK 12 pg2 Ae7D 18 99810 bsalzinon 5 nnivesd
21 a..'xam-zsxe SAsnsnt szsrt vishdozn O OF uop F=sllsma pns teopsl adt 120S Tadinanadl € pnibna
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CARDPOINT LIMITED

‘NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

7.

CREDITORS: amounts payable within one year S Coe

2021 2020
£000 £000
Amounts due to group undertakings » L. . 56,250 56,250

ST A 56,250 _- 56,250

The intergroup balance is repayable on demand.
Amounts owed to group undertakings are non-interest bearing balances.

SHARE CAPITAL s '

) - . : AT L 2021 2020

£000 £000
Shares classified as equity C
Aliotted, called up and fully paid
116,071,836~ Ordinary shares of £0.05 each 5804 5804
" ’ il 4 ! ‘: ' . ) ! T

1- Deferred share of £0.05 each = -
CONTROLLING PARTY. . R U R A : 4

- - R

* 11 The company’s immediate parent undertaking is Cardtronics Hblding LLC, a company incorporated in

the USA, having registered office at 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, De 19808, United
States. Until 20 June 2021, the ultimate parent undertaking was Cardtronics plc, a company incorporated
'in the UK, having a registered office at Building 4 9th Floor 5§ Merchant Square, London, England, W2 1BQ.
Subsequently the ultimate parent company is NCR Corporation, a company incorporated in the US,
having a registered office at 864 Spring St NW, Atlanta, GA 30308, United States. For financial year

ending 31 December 2021, the largest and smallest group to consolidate these financial statements is
NCR Corporation.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No subsequent events.
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washmgton, D.C. 20549

- " FORM10-K

(Mark One)
¥i] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR lS(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal’ year ended December 31, 2021

or .

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR lS(d) OF TI{E. SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
o]

For the transition period from to

Comrmnission File Number: 001-00395

@NCR

' NCR CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)-

N
" Maryland S : _ 31-0387920
(State or other jurisdiction of K : . (L.R:S. Employer
incorporation or organization) E Identification No.)
864 Spring Street NW
“ Atlanta, GA 30308

(Addreés of principal executive offices) (Zip Cnde)
Reglstrant S telephone numher, including area code (937) 445- 1936
Securities reglstered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: . ) ‘ .

_ Title of each class o Trading Symbol(s) . " Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share ) ) NCR New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes No o
Indicate by che_'ck mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes 0 No

* - Indicate by check mark whether the reglstraht (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or'15(d) of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was requnred to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filihg
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes (4 No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submll(ed electronically every Interacnve Data File required to be submmed pursuant to Rule 405 of
Regulatlon S-T (§ 232.405 of this chap(er) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such flles).
Yes @ No o )

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant isa large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelérated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an
emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated fller ” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth
_company” in Rule le 2 of the Exchange Act. :



Large accelerated filer @ ° _ T Accelerated filer.0

Non-accelerated filer o : -Smaller reporting company O

. o " Emerging growth company O

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the reglstrant has elected not to use the extended transition perlod for complying with
any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed a report on and attestation to its management s assessment of the effectlveness of its
internal control over financial reporting under Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act (15 U.S.C. 7262(b)) by the reg]stered public accounting firm that
prepared or 1ssued its audit report. Yes [d No o

Indicate by check mark whe[her the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2, of the Act). Yes 0 No @

The aggregate market value of voting and non- voung common equity held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of as of June 30 2021 the last
business day of NCR Corporation’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter was approximately $6.0 billion.

As of February 11, 2022, there were approximately 135.9 million shares of common stock issued and outstanding.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Eorm 10-K contains “forward- -looking statements" wuhm (he meaning of Section 27A of the Secunues Act of 1933, as amended,
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
“-of 1995 (the “Act”). Forward-looking statements use words such as “expect,” “anticipate,” “outlook,” “intend,” “plan,” “confident,” “believe,” “will,”
“should,” “wauld,” “potential,” “positioning,” “proposed,” “ob]ecuve * “could,” “may,” and words of similar ‘meaning, as well as other words or
expressions referencing future events, conditions or circumstances. We intend these forward- -looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions
for forward-looking statements contained in the Act. Statements that describe or relate to NCR’s plans, goals, inténtions, strategies, or financial outlook,
and statements that do not relate to historical or current fact, are examples of forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements in this Annual
Report include statements regarding: the Company’s business and financial strategy; the Company’s future plans relating to its workforce talent and
diversity, equity and inclusion initiatives; the Company’s plans and ability to manage its business through the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of the
pandemic; expectations regarding cost and non-price revenue synergies; expectations regarding our cash flow generation, cash reserve, liquidity, financial
_flexibility and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our employee base; expectations regardmg our ability to capitalize on market opportunities; Company
revenue and financial growth expectations; and -expectations regarding our continued focus on our long-term fundamentals, including, but, not limited to;
execution of NCR's recurring revenue strategy and accelerated growth lncludmg its transformation to a software platform and payments company focusing -
on as-a-service offers and its aspirational five-year goals for 2026 (which include annual recurring revenue of 80 percent, annual non-GAAP earnings per
share growth of 15 percent, and annual non-GAAP free cash flow of $1 billion). Forward-looking statements are based on our current beliefs, expectations
and assumptions, which may not prove to be accurate, and involve a number of known and unknown risks and uncertainties, many of which are out of our
control. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance, and there are a number of important factors that could cause actual outcomes
and results to differ materially from the results contemplated by such forward-looking statements, including those factors listed in Item 1A “Risk Factors”
and Item 7 “Management's Discussion and Analysns of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” of this Annual Report on Form 10- K 1nc1ud1ng
factors relatmg to:

. Strategy and - -Technology: transforming our busmess model; development and lntroducuon of new solutions; competition in the technology
' industry; integration of acquisitions and management of alliance activities; our mulnnanonal operations; and our strategic review announced on
February 8, 2022
* Business Operatmns domestic and global economic and credit conditions; risks and uncertainties from the payments-related business and
industry; disruptions in our data center hosting and public cloud facilities; retention and attraction of key employees; defects, errors, installation
difficulties or development delays; failure of third- -party suppliers; the impact of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemlc environmental exposures
from historical and ongoing manufacturing activities; and-climate change
- » 'Data Privacy & Security: impact of data protection, cybersecurity and data privacy 1nclud1ng any related issues
"= Finance and Accounting: our level of indebtedness; the terms governing our indebtedness; incurrence of additional debt or snmllar liabilities or
obligations; access or renewal of financing sources; our cash flow sufficiency to service our indebtedness; interest rate risks; the terms governing
our trade receivables facility; the impact of certain changes.in_control relating to acceleration of our indebtedness, our obligations under other
financing arrangements, or required repurchase of our senior unsecured notes; and any lowering or withdrawal of the raungs assigned to our debt
securities by rating agencies; our pension liabilities; and write down of the value of certain significant assets
* Lawand Compliance: protection of our intellectual property; changes to our tax rates and additional income tax liabilities; uncertainties regarding
regulations, lawsuits and other related matters; and changes to cryptocurrency regulations
* Governance: impact of the terms of our'Series A Convertible Preferred (“Series A”) Stock relating to voting power, share dilution and market
price of our common stock; rights, preferences and privileges of Series A stockholders compared to the rights of our common stockholders; and
actions or proposals from stockho]ders that do'not align with our busmess strategles or the lnteresls of ‘our other stockholders -

Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of lhe date on which it is made. The Company does not undertake any obhgatwn to publicly update or revise
any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events-or otherwise, excep( as required by law.
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of 15 percent, and annual free cash flow!” of $1 billion in 2026. Additionally, in February 2022, NCR announced that its Board of Directors approved
commencing a comprehensive strategic review, with the assistance of outside advisors, which will evaluate a full range of strategic alternatives available to
NCR to enhance value. for all shareholders. Additional details are mcluded in Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condmon and
Results of Operauons ”

Execution of our business goals and financial strategies is driven by the following key pillars:

*  Focus on.our customers. We encourage our employees to treat every customer as if they are our only customer. If we provide better service and
better quality products than our competitors, it is our belief that our customers will likely buy more from .NCR. We are increasingly becoming
active, strategic advisors to our clients, helping them retool and reinvent their business, and this is reflected in a significant increase in our Net
Promoter Score from 14 in 2018 to 48 in 2021. We believe this focus has or will lead to increased access to higher level customer contacts, earlier
entrance into the sales cycles, and additional opportunities for upselling and cross-selling as a software- and services- led coni'pany.

*  Take care of our employees Our employees are the dlrect face of NCR to our clients. NCR has actlvely worked to increase employee engagement
and satisfaction, as well as to create a culture of performance and innovation focused on software and services.

*  Bring high-quality, innovative products to market. NCR focuses its research and development investments on elevating product quality and
bringing new solutions to market in our key focus areas of digital banking, our next-generation retail architecture, including our NCR Emerald™
cloud-based point of sale product, our Aloha™ Essentials solution bundle, payments and self-service banking solutions. Additionally, we have
placed an increasing priority on improvements in how we go to market with NCR-as-a-Service, as well as how we package and deliver our
solutions as all-in-one bundles designed around a software platform, making it easier for our customers to buy and for our teams to sell.

+  Leverage our brand. We believe NCR has one of the best-known and respected brands in the 1ndustnes we serve. We consider this to be a strong
eompetitive differentiation with SIgnlflcant equity in our worldwide markets.

© With respect 10 our goals of free cash flow and non-GAAP EPS growth, we are not providing a reconciliation (o lhe respective GAAP measure because we are unable to predict with reasonable certainty the reconciling
items that may affect GAAP EPS and Cash flow from operations without ble cffort. For our definition of free cash flow, see the financial condition, liquidity and capital resources section within Part 11, Item 7
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ of this Report. NCR's non-GAAP EPS is determined by excluding, as applicable, pension mark-to-market adjustments, pension
I pension curtail and pension special termination benefits, as well as ather special items, including amortization of acquisition related mlanglbles and wransformation and restructuring activities, from NCR's
GAAP eamings per share. Due to the non-operational nature of these pension and other special items, NCR's management uses this non-GAAP o ing performance. NCR believes this
measure is useful for investors because it provides a more complete understanding of NCR's underlying operational performance, as well as consistency and comparablllty wuh NCR's past reports of financial results.

. Products and Services

We are an enterprise technology prov:der selling a portfolio of dlglta] first software, as-a-service offers, services, payments and hardware. Our offermgs fall .
into the following categories:

Banking .

v

We offer solutions to customers in the financial services industry that power their digital transformation through software, services and hardware to deliver
differentiated experiences for their customers and improve efficiency for the financial institution. NCR's digital banking solutions enable anytime-anywhere
convenience for a financial institution’s consumer and business customers. Our account opening software unifies the sales and_onboarding experience

" across digital, branch and call center channels for mid-market community banks and credit unions. We also-help financial institutions implement their
digital first platform strategy by providing solutions for banking channel services, transaction processing, imaging, and branch services. We-also offer
credit unions, banks, digital banks, Fintechs, stored-value debit card issuers, and other consumer financial services providers access to our Allpoint retail-
based ATM network, providing convenient and surcharge-free cash withdrawal and deposit access to their customers and cardholders. We also provide
branding opportunities for financial institutions on our extensive ATM network, providing a cost-effective way for banks to expand their presence and
customer service and experience. Our managed services and ATM-as-a-Service help banks run their end-to-end ATM channel, including transaction
processing, managlng cash and cash delivery, supplies,.and telecommunications as well ‘as routine and technical mamtenance positioning NCR as .a
strategic partner. We augmen( these solutions by offering a full line of-software, services and hardware.

Retail . . . ) ) .

We offer software-led solutions to customers in the retail industry, leading with digital to connect retail operations end to end to integrate all aspeécts of a
customer’s operations in indoor and outdoor settings from POS, to payments, inventory management, fraud
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and loss prevention applications, loyalty and consumer engagement. These solutions are designed to improve operational efficiency, selling productivity,
customer satisfaction and purchasing decisions; provide secure checkout processes and payment systems; and increase service levels. Solutions include
retail-oriented technologies such as comprehensive API-point of sale retail software platforms and applications, SCO, other hardware terminals and
peripherals, payment processing solutions, consumer engagement solutions like eCommerce and loyalty programs, along with consulting, lmplemenlanon
support and managed servnces to meet our customers' needs. :

‘Hosp:tahty

We offer technology solutions (o customers in the hospltahty mdustry, mcludmg table-service, qmck service and fast casual restaurants of all sizes, that are

- designed to improve operatlonal efficiency, increase customer satisfaction, streamline order and transaction processing and reduce operating costs. Our

. portfolio includes cloud-based and cloud-enabled software applications.for point-of-sale; back office, payment processing, kitchen production, restaurant
management, eCommerce and consumer marketing and loyalty. We also provide hospitality-oriented hardware products such as POS terminals, kitchen
display systems, handheld devices, printers .and peripherals. And finally, we seek to help reduce the complexities of running restaurants through our
services capabilities, including strategic consulting, technology deployment and implementation, support and managed services.

Telecommumcauons & Technology

We offer managed network and infrastructure services to enterprise clients across all industries via direct relaUOnshlps with communications service
providérs and technology manufacturers. Our customers rely on us as a strateglc partner to help them reduce complexity, improve cost efficiency, and
. enable global geographical reach. We deliver expert professional, field, and remote services for modern network technologies including Software-Defined
Wide Area.Networking, Network Functions Virtualization, Wireless Local Area Networks, Optical Networking, and Cloud Computing.

*Target Markets and Distribution Channels -
. NCR provides solutions to customers of valying sizes in the benking, retail, hospitality and T&T industries.

“We provide the technology that helps customers run self-directed banking, which primarily centers around our digital banking and ATM businesses,
including software and services, as well as our Allpoint retail-based and surcharge-free ATM network. Our solutions also serve the retail markets through
convenience banking products for retailers designed to complement their core businesses. Our financial solutions customers are located throughout the
world in both developed and emerging markets. We have historically sold the majonty of our Banking ségment solutlons through a direct sales channel, and
have augmented our presence through distributors and value-added resellers

We provide solutions to the retail and hospitality industries that run the store and run the restaurant including, but not limited to, POS ‘software and
hardware, SCO software and hardware, loyalty software, supply chain and payment solutions. We also provide store virtualization, Internet of Things - ’
(“ToT”), and micro-services platform solutions to modernize store and restaurant IT infrastructure. Our Retail segment customers include all sizes of food,

'drug and mass merchandisers, which includes grocery stores, drug stores, and big box retailers, as well as department and specialty retail stores;”
convenience and fuel retailers across the globe. Our Hospitality segment customers-include quick service, table service and fast casual restaurants, small

and medium size restaurants across independent restaurant operators, emerging and national chains, and large global brands. Our solutions are sold through

a direct sales force and through relationships with value-added resellers, distributors, dealers and other indirect sales channels.

We provide service and suppon for our products. and solutions Lhrough services contracts, wnh our customers. We have also established managed services
“contracts with key customers and continue to pursue additional managed services relationships. We believe that longer term managed services
arrangements can help improve the efficiency and performance of a customer’s business, and also increase the strategic and financial importance of its
relationship with NCR. We also service competing technologies and third-party products. The primary sales channel for our services is our direct sales
teams, which exist across all geographies where we operate around the world. Our.services professionals provide these services directly to'end customers.

.Competition

We face a diverse group of competitors in the banking, retail, hospitality and other industries, including the T&T indusiry, in which we sell our digital-first
portfolio of software, services and hardware. The primary competitive. factors can vary by, geographic area where we operate around the world, but
typically include: value and quality of the solutions or products; total cost of ownership; mdustry knowledge of the vendor; the vendor s ablhty to provide
and suppon a total end-to-end solution; the vendor’s ability to




Table of Contents

integrate new and ex1sung systems; fit of the vendor’s strateglc vision with the customer’s strategic d:recuon and quahty of the vendor’s consulting,
deployment and support services.. -

In the financial industry, our Banking segment faces a variety of competitors offering financial services-and software including, among others; Fidelity
National I'nformation Services, Inc,, Fiserv, Inc., Q2 Holdings, Inc., Temenos AG, Infosys Ltd., Alkami Technology, Inc. and ACI Worldwide, Tnc. In
-addition, we face competition from ATM_ manufacturers including Diebold Nixdorf, Inc., and Hyosung TNS Inc,, and ATM network operators including
Euronet Worldwide, Inc., as well as regional firms across all geographies where we operate around the world. ‘

In the retail and hospitality industries, our Retail and Hospitali(y segments face a variety of combemors across all geographies where we operate around the
world. Our competitors vary by market segment, product, service offering and geographic area, and include Toshiba Tec ‘Corporation, Flooid, Oracle
Corporation, GK Software SE, PAR Technology Corporation, Olo Inc., Aptos, Inc., Lightspeed, Diebold Nixdorf, Inc., Fujitsui Limited, SAP arid HP Inc.,
among others. Tn addition, we face new competitors including Toast Inc., Revel Sys(ems Inc., Square, Inc., and Upserve, Tnc., among others.

The primary services competitors are the cornpames identified above as well as other reglonal and local independent services firms across all _geographies
where we operate around the world. We also face services competition'from global enterprise technology companies including TBM Corporanon and
CompuCom (owned by Variant Equity Advisors) among others as these firms continue to focus on services as a core business strategy. .

Research and Development N
We. remain focused on designing and developing solutions that anucnpate our customers’ changing technologlcal needs as well as consumer preferences.
Our expenses “for research and development were $268 million in 2021, $234 million in 2020, and $259 million in 2019. We anticipate that we will
. continue to have significant research and development expenditures‘in the future in order to provide a continiing flow of innovative, hlgh-quahty products
and services and to help maintain and enhance our competitive position. Information regarding the accounting and costs included in research and
development activities is included in Note 1, “Basis of Presentation and Slgmflcan[ Accounting Policies”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
" Statements in Ttem 8 of -Part 11 of this Report under “Research and Development Costs,” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Patents and 'I\-'adAemarks

NCR seeks patent protection for its innovations (including improvements), ‘associated with its software, services, product, solutions, creations and
developments (including hardware), where such protection is likely to provide, especially strategic value to NCR. NCR owns approximately 1,325 patents
in the United States and numerous other patents in foreign countries. The foreign patents are generally counterparts of NCR’s United States patents. Many
of the patents owned by NCR are licensed to others, and NCR is licensed under certain patents owned by others. As appropriate, NCR looKs to monetize its
"patents to drive additional value from its patent portfolio. NCR'also has numerous patent apphca(lons pendmg in the United States and in forelgn countries.
NCR’s portfolio of patems and patent-applications is of 51gn1f1cam value to NCR.
NCR has registered certain trademarks, including service marks, in the United States and in foreign countries. NCR considers the “NGR” and NCR logo
. marks, as well as its other trademarks (including service marks), to have significant value to NCR. Loss of NCR’s right to use the' NCR trademark could be
material. However, the NCR trademark has been used and owned by NCR for at least 100 years and NCR expects to maintain its nghts in and to'the NCR
trademark for years to come.

Seasonality

Our sales have been hxstoncally seasonal, with lower revenue in the first quarter and higher revenue in the fourth quarter of each year. Such seasonality also
causes our working capital cash flow requirements to vary from quarter to quarter depending on variability in the volume, timing and mix of sales. In
addition, revenue in the third month of each quarter is typically hlgher than in-the first and second months. However, with the transition of our revenue mix
to comprise a hlgher mix of recurring software and services revenue, we expect that our sales will continue to become more linear over time.

Manufacturing and Raw Materials
In most cases, there are a number of vendors providing the services and producing the parts and components that we utilize. However, there are some

services and components that are purchased from single sources due to price, quality, technology or other reasons. In the past, we have been able 1o obtain
an adequate supply of raw materials and components for virtually all materials used
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in the production process. We currently believe we have adequate resources of raw materials and components and that our portfolio of vendors providing
services and producing parts has the resources and facilities to overcome most unforeseen interruptions of supply. As of December 31, 2021, NCR
leverages a network of internal and third-party partner facilities across the globe to manufacture its products in Manaus, BraZII Budapest, Hungary,
'-Chennal India and partner facilities located in Guadala]ara Mexico, Chrhuahua Mexrco and Xiamen, China.

Further information regarding the potentlal impact’ of these relatlonshlps on our busines$ operations, and regardlng sources and availability of raw
materials, is also included in Item 1A of this Report under the caption “Business Operations,” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Product Backlog

Backlog includes orders confirmed for products scheduled to be shipped as well as certain professional and transaction services to be provided. Although
we believe that the orders included in the backlog are firm; we may allow some orders to be canceled by the customer without penalty. Even when penalties
for cancellation are provided for in a customer contract, we may elect to permit-cancellation of orders without penalty where management believes it is in-
our best interests to do so. Further, we have a significant portion of product revenue derived from term-based software license arrangements that include
customer termination rights and services revenue that is recurring or transaction based business, which backlog information has not historically been
measured. Therefore, we do not believe that our backlog, as of any particular date, is necessarily indicative of revenue for any future period. However,
backlog is included as a component of our remaining performance cbligation to the extent we determine that the orders are non-cancelable. Refer to Note 1,-

. “Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies”, of the Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part IT of [hIS Report for
additional information on remaining performance obligations. .

" Risk Management

At the Board of Directors level, NCR has a standing Risk Committée. The Risk Committee assists NCR’s Board of Directors with its oversight of executive
management’s responsibilities to design, implement and maintain an effective enterprise risk ‘management (“ERM”) framework for the Company’s overall
operational, information security, strategic, reputational, technology, environmental, social and governance (“ESG”), and other risks. The Risk Committee
also dssists the Bodrd of Directors with its oversight responsibilities. for matters relating to diversity, equity and inclusion (“DE&T”), environment, health
and safety (“EHS”), susramabrlrty, and the security of our personnel and physical assets. At the management level; .NCR's Office of Risk Management and

~ Chief Risk Officer assist NCR and the Risk Committee in fulfilling its objectives relating to ERM, ESG, third-party risk management (“TPRM”) and
business continuity planning (BCP). The Company’s Chief Risk Officer is responsible for developmg and managing formal ERM, ESG, TPRM and BCP
programs designed to identify, assess and respond to material and emerging risks and opportunities that may-impact the achievement of the Company’s
strategic objectives. NCR has also establlshed an Executive Risk Committee that meets routmely to monitor matenal risks, opportunmes and NCR's
response plans thereto. : : : .

_ESG S - ' ' - . .

At NCR, we remain committed to creating positive change that supports an innovative-and sustainable future in a responsible way. Our NCR business
strategy directly aligns with the ESG priorities that we established in 2020. NCR’s business strategy to change from a hardware-led to a software-and
services-led company offers us a new and different environmental footprint profile. To successfully become a software company, the NCR business strategy
is dependent on customer satisfaction and harnessing our culture of innovation. NCR's focus on customer satisfaction is two-fold: - we intend to represent the
* ESG qualities our customers are looking for; and we intend for our employees to fulfill and answer these expectauons

ESG Oversight. NCR is committed to a strong oversight mechanism of ESG issues. NCR’s Board of Directors has direct oversight of ESG activities
through its-Risk Committee. The Risk' Committee and other Board committees oversee components of ESG, including, business ethics and integrity, data
protection, privacy and security, our people, DE&I, environmental management, product innovation and management, and supplier responsibility.

Business Ethics and Integrity. Our Code of Conduct sets forth standards designed to uphold our values and foster integrity in our relationships with one
another and our valued stakeholders. Our Code of Conduct is available at https://www.ncr.com/company/corporate-governance/code-of-conduct.

All our employees. are required to complete Code of Conduct training during the onboarding period. All employees are required to complete annual
refresher Code of Conduct training. The Code of Conduct training is revised annually, taking into account the prlor year’s complrance matters and the
- Company’s compliance risks.




Table of Contents

Our Ethlcs and Compliance Prograrn is responsnb]e for managing the Company s adherence to (he Code of Condict. Further, our Chief Ethics &
Compliance Officer oversees investigations pertaining to fraud, conflicts of interest; ‘'violations of laws, and other similar matters, and reports on those
activities to one or more Committees of the Board.

Data Protecuon Privacy and Security. At NCR, we are proud of our data protection, cybersecurity, and- prlvacy programs. These initiatives receive
oversight from the Board’s Risk Committee, as well as several members of our execiitive leadership team including-the Chief Operations Officer, General
Counsel, Chief Security Officer, Chief Information Officer, and Chief Technology Officer. NCR’s Chief Information Security Officer and Chief Privacy
Officer are responsible for management of these programs. Additional support is provided by our Chief Ethics & Compliance Officer.

NCR supports appropriate privacy protections for those wnh whom we interact. We foster a culture that values the privacy rlghts of individuals. Under the
direction of NCR’s Chief Privacy Officer, the program offers thought leadership, advice and guidance on privacy practices such as: complying with privacy
laws and regulations; designing solutions with privacy in mind; implementing contracts governing intracompany aciivities; minimizing the collection of
" data; providing meaningful notice and choice; and safeguarding information. The program is supported by privacy attorneys, privacy program managers
within the business, and data protection officers in various locations internationally. Many of these pnvacy professionals have industry recognized privacy
cemflcauons from the International Association of Privacy Professnonals

Under the dlrectlon of NCR’s Chlef Security Officer and Chief Information Security Officer, the G]obal Information Security organization is responSIbIe
for implementing and maintaining an information security program with the goal to pro[ect information technology resources and protect the confidentiality
and integrity of data gathered on our people, partners, customers, and business assets. Also, we employ various information technology and protection
methods designed to promote data. security including firewalls, intrusion prevention systems, denial of service detection, anomaly-based detection, anti-
virus/anti-malware, endpoint encryption and detection and response software, Security Information and Event Management system, -identity management
technology, security analytics, multi-factor authentication and encryption. To further our commitment to data privacy and cybersecurity: NCR maintains the
1SQ 27001 certification for certain NCR locations throughout the United States, Europe, and India; third party audits for PCI- DSS, PA-DSS and SSAE-18
. SOC2 are conducted for certain service offerings; NCR maintains a robust information security awareness and training program pursuant to which
- employees are required to complete training within 30 days of hire, as well as an annual refresher course, and NCR performs regular testing to help ensure
employees can identify email “phishing” attacks; NCR's corporate insurance policies include certain information security risk policies that cover network
security, privacy and cyber events; and we maintain the NCR Privacy Pollcy that can e found at hitps:/www.ncr. com/prlvacy

Our People. At NCR we believe lhat investment in our employees has a positive impact on our employees and our customers. We put that into action with
several employee development and engagement programs, including those described under the caption “Human Capltal Resources” in Ttem 1 of this
Report: : :

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DE&I). NCR believes in the power and value of diversity and strives to build a globally inclusive workplace where all
people are treated fairly. We seek to include everyone, lead with empathy, and make our communities better. We encourage IDEAS (Inclusion, Diversity,
‘Equity, Allyship, and Storytelling) and seek to inspire each other to be our authentic selves. The Board of Directors and its Risk Committee have direct
over5|ght of our DE&I activities, including those described under the caption “Human Capital Resources" in Item 1 of this Report.

Environmental Management We are committed to managing our environmental footprint and protecting the global communities in which we operate. We
strive to minimize the environmental impact of our products and operations while also delivering innovative technologies and solutions designed to support
businesses and consumers in their efforts to operate responsibly. We also recognize the importance of minimizing our environmental footprint through
energy and greenhouse gas (“GHG") management. That is why we continue to report our Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions from our global facilities and
service operations through the CDP (formerly Carbon Disclosure Project). We complete the annual. CDP climate ¢hange quesuonnalre and evaluate our
environmental management progress annually to better understand our areas of opportumty to make a true impact.

Our commitment to environmental management extends into our products and operational footprint. Our Brazil, Hungary, and India facilities maintain the
ISO 14001 certification. The NCR Global Headquarters in Midtown" Atlanta has been awarded two Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design
(“LEED?”) Platinum certifications: 1) Building Design and Construction: Core & Shell and Interior Design; 2) Construction: Commercial Interiors. Our
newest office in Belgrade is also LEED certified. Further, as part of our Cardtronics acquisition, the offices in Houston, Texas, and a major facility in
Frisco, Texas, each use natural light and energy-efficient LED lighting to reduce energy consumptién and are also LEED certified.
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Product Innovation and Management. Delivering solutions and services that provide value to our customers in an environmentally responsible way is
critical to NCR’s ongoing success. As such, we strive to develop, and recycle our products in a responsible way. One example of how we are already doing
this is that certain of our applications, such as Intelligent Deposit and Self-Service Diagnostic Gateway (“SSDG”), enable our SelfServ ATM customers to.
_better handle the increasing volume — cutting down on costs, maintenance, fuel and materials associated with them.

Supplier Responsibility. We believe in creating positive change responsibly, and' our supplier partners play a critical role in bringing that vision to life. We
not only expect high quality products and services from our suppliers, we also expect them to conduct their businesses consistent with our Supplier Code of
Conduct. Our Supplier Code of Conduct, available at https://www.ncr. com/company/suppl|ers/manuals forms and- templates sets forth our expectatlon that
our suppliers will meet ethical standards consistent with NCR'’s Code of Conduct and pohmes

" As part of our overall ERM approach our Third-Party Risk Management (“TPRM") program is deS|gned to ensure proper risk 1denuf|cat|on and oversight
of NCR’s vendors and includes the followmg objectives:

. Perform risk- based segmemauon and prioritization of all exlstmg and new NCR vendors

. Perform sanctions screenings on all vendors and anti-bribery, anti-corruption (“ABAC”) screenings on appllcable vendors

«  Perform extended due diligence on identified high risk vendors to include responsible sourcing, business continuity, information securrty, data
privacy, and other reviews as applicable -

*  Perform Financial RISk Assessment on ldennfled hlgh risk vendors

: Addmonally we lake a rlsk-based approach to supply chain due dlllgence We engage with the majority of our largest suppliers on a quarterly basis to
identify potential risk exposure. As part of our supplier partner onboarding process, supplier partners are required to certify compliance with International
Electrotechnical Commission 62474 standards. NCR requires its supplier partners to maintain compliance with the Restriction of Hazardous Substances
(“RoHS”) Directive, Reglstratlon, Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of Chemicals (“‘REACH”) Regulatlon, and other applicable regulations.

. Human C‘apita‘l Resources

General. NCR views taking care of our people as a critical part of our strategy, especially as we adapt to a changing labor market and workforce with

different values, demographics and needs specific to our business as we continue to shift to a software platform and payments company. We strive to enable

a culture and employment brand that atrracts develops and retains, top talent Our focus rélating to investing in our people and talent in 2021 were aligned
- to three basic areas:

* progressing our journey to'become an employer of choice
* .. improving HR processes and service delivery
*  building a high-performing HR organization

‘Our progress to date includes: . - .

* . Appointed a new Chief Human Resources Officer and built a new human resources leadership team and support model, including to establish new
HR Centers of Excellence to better support-and engage our employees around the world and our workforce of the future
Welcomed over 950 University Hires to NCR,.including both graduates and interns
Launched new NCR.com Careérs Pages
Launched a new Culture Crew, including 80+ Site Engagement Leaders ambassadors and volunteers
Launched a new HR Central platform making it easier for employees to find information and resources
Examined and took actions on competitive pay supporting workforce changes and our. shift to a software platform and payments company,
‘including a targeted global compensation review to drive attraction and retention of talent .
. Improved certain employee benefit programs
* ° Conducted annual employée engagement surveys that yleld an Employee Net Promoter Score (“eNPS") the results of which are reported directly
to the Executive Leadership Team and the Board, leveraged to identify areas of improvement'. .
*  Designed our compensation programs such that the results of our eNPS scores drive a portion of our executives’ annual compensation
*  Provided opportunities for continuous education through NCR University, our online education platform for employees
¢ Supported external development with our tuition assistance program, which supports college and graduate- level educauon programs developing
business-critical skills )
*  Conducted regular" employee performance reviews to manage, engage and reward our employees
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"Our current roadmap for future programs to invest in our people includes:

»  Upskilling talent in software and sales to enable the workforce of the future

* Developing an employee value proposition and brand strategy

* Launching a new Leadership Development Program targeted towards top talent

*  Focusing on internal talent mobility to develop and retain recent hires, including university hires
" Reimagining the onboarding experience to ensure all new hires are set up for success

* Driving employee engagement and improving eNPS at regnonal and site levels

On December 31, 2021, NCR had appr0x1mate1y 38,000 employees worldwide. Given the multinational nature of our busmess we monitor our global
employment faotprint. As of December 31, 2021, our employees by geographic region included approximately: 27% in the Asia Pacific and Japan region;
33% in the Europe, Middle East and Afrlca region; 27% in the Americas, excluding the United States; and 12% in the United States.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DE&I) NCR believes in the power and value of diversity and strives to build a giobally inclusive workplace where all
people are treated fairly. We seek to include everyone, lead with empathy, and make our communmes better We encourage IDEAS (Inclusion, Dlversuy,
Equity, Allyship, : and Storytelhng) and seek to inspire each other to be our authentic selves.

We are proud to have three female directors serv_i'ng on our Board., Additiona]ly, 75% of the Board's committees are chaired by women.
We have been hard at work reviewing our DE&I policies, practices and programs to identify opportunities for new inclusive initiatives.
~ Our progress to date includes:

« Appointed a Vice Presrdent Culture & Emp]oyee Experience to further champion an inclusive workplace culture for all

+ Improved our supplier diversity program that invests in small busmesses as well as minority, women and veteran-owned business enterprlses and
appointed a dedicated supplier diversity leader

«. Continued to provide corporate funding and ‘oversight of our Business Resource Groups to boost engagement and increase opportunities for
professional development and networking

«  Completed a Mentorship Program led by our Black Professronals Forum Business Resource Group designed to-provide professronal gmdance and
career coaching

Our current roadmap for future programs includes:
A
. lnvestmg in the development of dlverse talént through sponsorshlp initiatives and targeted deve]opment
* " Publishing NCR’s diversity data
+  Launching a series of courageous conversations and listening sessions to promote inclusion-
«  Launching a university diversity network to attract, hire, and grow diverse talent
* - Restructuring and redeploying a council focused on global mcluswn with the mission to msprre action that attracts, develops and retams top
.diverse talent and fosters an inclusive work environment . :

Government Regulations

"NCR is stibject to a variety of evolving government laws and regulations, including those related to environmental protection, in the various jurisdictions in
which NCR operates or its products are sold, or where our offerings are used, including, for example, privacy and data protection laws, regulations and
directives, and anti-corruption laws such as the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and United Kingdom Bribery Act.- In addition, though not -
material to our business taken as a whole; certain parts of NCR’s operating segments are subject to industry-specific laws and regulations. For example our
digital banking business is subject to examination by the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council (“FFIEC™); portions of our payments-related
business are subject to or contractually obligated to comply with certain.ant-money’ laundering laws and regulations such as the Bank Secrecy -Act and

* their international counterparts; portions of certain businesses NCR recently acquired are customer-facing and ‘may be subject to certain consumer
protecuon requirements such as oversight by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (“CFPB”) and Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) and similar
state or foreign agencies in the jurisdictions where they operate; and portions of certain businesses NCR recently acquired are sub]ect to a number of
foreign, federal and state licensing requirements including .
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money transmission, money services and virtual currency, which may be subject to régulatory changes in the future in the jurisdictions where they operate.

Although NCR does not currently expect that compliance with government laws and regulations, including environmenta! regulations and those designated
to address climate risk, will have a material effect upon the capital expenditures, cash flow, financial condition, earnings and competitive position of NCR,
its segments or its subsidiaries, it is possible that such compliance could have a material adverse impact on our capital expenditures, cash flow, financial
condition, earnings or competitive position, including, but, not limited to, as NCRs Banking or Paymenis-related businesses grow or change as NCR
continues to implement its business strategy. Further, while NCR-does not currently expect to incur material capital expenditures related to compliance with
such laws and regulations, and while we believe the amounts provided in our Consolidated Financial Statements are adequate in light of the probable and
estimable liabilities in this area, there can: be no assurances that environmental matters will not lead to a material adverse impact on our capital
expenditures, earnings or competitive position. A detailed djscussion of the current estimated impacts of compliance issues relating to environmental
regulations, pamcularly the Fox River, Kalamazoo River and Ebina-matters, is reported in Item 8 of Part II of this Report as part of. Note 10,
i“Commltments and Contingencies”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and is incorporated herein by reference. Further information
regarding the potential impact of compliance with governmental laws and regulauons is also included in Ttem 1A of this Report and is incorporated herein
by reference.
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Information about our Executive Officers -
The Execuuve Ofﬂcers of NCR (as of February 25, 2022) are as follows:

Name -Age Position and Offices Held
Frank R. Manire . 74 Executive Chairman R
Michael D. Hayford . 62 Chief Executive Officer )
Owen J. Sullivan ’ . 64 President and Chief Operating Officer |
Timothy C. Oliver = . ) 53  Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
James M. Bedore - ; . 62 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Adrian Button 49 Executive Vice President, Product and Service Operations
Daniel W. Campbell - 61 Executive Vice President, NCR Global Sales
- Patrice Graves: - 55 Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer
Donald W. Layden, Jr. . . 64 Executive Vice President, President, Payments & Network Head of Strategy and M&A

Beth A. Potter 62 Chief Accountmg Officer

Set forth below is a description of the background of each of the Executive Officers. ‘

Frank R. Martiré is Executive Chairman of NCR, a position he has held since May 2018. Mr. Martite most recently served as Non-Executive Chairman of
Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. (“FIS™), a financial services technology company. From 2015 to 2017, he served as Executive Chairman of FIS
and from 2009 to 2015 was President and Chief Executive Officer of FIS after its acquisition of Metavante Technologies, Inc. (“Metavante”), a bank
technology processing company. Mr. Martire previously served as Chief Executive Officer of Metavante from 2003 to 2009 and President from 2003 to
2008. Prior to that, he was President.and Chief Operating Officer of Call Solutions Inc. from 2001 to 2003 and President and Chief Operating Officer,
Financial Institution Systems and Services Group, of Fiserv, Inc. from 1991 to 2001. Mr. Martire was a member of the Board of Directors of J. Alexander’s
Holdings, Inc. from 2015 to 2021, where he served as Lead Independent Director from 2019 to 2021. Mr. Martiré is a member of the Board of Directors of
Cannae Holdings, Inc., where he serves as Lead Independent Director. Mr. Martire became a director of NCR on May 31, 2018.

Mlchael D. Hayford is Chief Executive Offlcer of NCR, a position he has held since April 2018. Mr. Hayferd was most recently Foundmg Partner of
Motive Partriers, an investment firm focused on technology-enabled companies that power the financial services industry. From 2009 until his retirement in
2013, Mr. Hayford served as the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer at Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. (“FIS”), a financial
services technology company. Prior to joining FIS, Mr. Hayford was with Metavante Technologies, Inc. (“Metavante”), a "bank technology processing
company, from 1992 to 2009. He served as the Chief Operating Officer at Metavante from 2006 to 2009 and as the President from 2008 to 2009. From
2007 to 2009 Mr. Hayford also served on the Board of Directors of Metavante. Mr. Hayford was a member of the Board of Directors and the Audit
Committee of Endurance Tnternational Group Holdings, Inc. from 2013 to 2019, and was a member of the Board of Directors and Chairman of the Audit
Committee of West Bend Mutual Insurance Company from 2007 to 2018. Mr. Hayford became a director of NCR on April 30, 2018

Owen J. Sullivan is Pre51dent and Chlef Operating Officer of NCR. Mr. Sulhvan has served as President of NCR since August 2021 and as Chief Operating
Officer of NCR since July 2018. Mr. Sullivan was most recently an 1ndependem consultant, providing strategic planning, consulting and executive
mentoring, and working with and investing alongside private equity firms and other investor groups. Prior to that, Mr. Sullivan was with ManpowerGroup
Inc. (“ManpowerGroup”), a workforce and talent management solutions company, from 2003 to 2013. At ManpowerGroup, he served as President of the
_Specialty Brands and Experis units from 2010 to 2013 and he served as the Chief Executive Officer of the Right Managément and Jeffersan Wells
International, Inc. subsidiaries from 2004 to 2013 and from 2003 to 2010, respectively. Before joining ManpowerGroup, Mr. Sullivan was with Sullivan
Advisors, LLC, a provider of strategic planning, consylting and executive mentoring for small to medium-sized businesses from 2001 to 2003, Prior to that,
Mr. Sullivan was with Metavante Technologles Inc., a bank technology processing company, from 1993 to 2001, where he served in various management
-roles including as the President of Metavante’s Financial Services Group and Enterprise Solutions Group. Mr. Sullivan served as a member of the Board of
Directors of Johnson Financial Group, Inc., a bank holding company, where hé served as a member of its Wealth Management, Risk and Succession
Comnmittees through 2018. Mr. Sullivan is a member of the Board of Directors of Computer Task Group, Incorporated and serves as a member of its
Compensation and Audit Committees. : :

1
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Tlmothy C. Oliver is Senior Executive Vice Pre51dent and Chief Financial Ofﬂcer of NCR, a position he has held since July 13, 2020."Mr. Oliver most
recently served as Chief Financial Officer of Spring Window Fashions, LLC, a consumer goods company, and a member of the company's leadership team,
since September 2019. In this role he focused on, among other things, aligning the company's business portfolio and growth initiatives with its finance -
stfategy. From 2011 to 2018, he served as President and Chief Financial Officer of the Goldstein Group Inc. (“GGI”), a privately held conglomerate, and its
subsidiary, Alter Trading Corporation (“Alter”), a privately held metal recycler and broker company. Before joining GGI and Alter, he was the Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of MEMC Electronic Materials, Inc., a publicly held technology company (now SunEdison, Inc.), from 2009 to 2011,
and Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Metavante Technologies, Inc., a publicly held bank technology processing company,
from 2007 to 2009. He also previously served as Vice: President and Treasurer of Rockwell Automation, Inc. (“Rockwell Automation”), an industrial
automation and digital transformation .company, from 2005 to 2007. Before joining Rockwell Automation, he was Vice President for Investor Relations and
Financial Planning at Raytheon Company. Mr. Oliver's prior roles included a focus on transforming finance organizations to position companies for growth.
James M. Bedore is Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of NCR, a position he has held since November 2018. Mr. Bedore oversees
the NCR Office of Risk Managemeént, responsible for enterprise risk management, third party risk management and business continuity..Prior to NCR, Mr.
Bedore was an attorney in private practice with Reinhart Boerner Van Deuren s.c. from 1985 to 2018, where he was a Shareholder, member of the firm’s
Board of Directors and Chair of the firm’s Securities Team, advising clients on a variety of corporate matters including mergers and acquisitions, public
securities offerings on behalf of issuers and underwriters, private placements venture capital, bank and other financing arrangements securities
) comphance reporting and disclosure obligations, corporate governance, shareholder rlghts and executive compensation.

Adrian Button is NCR’s Executive Vice President, Product and Service Operarions, a position he has held since June.2020. From February 2018.to June
2020, Mr. Button served as NCR’s Senior Vice President, Hardware -Product Operations. From July 2017 to February 2018, Mr. Button served as NCR’s
" Senior Vice President, Global Operations. Before lie joined NCR, Mr. Button spent 19 years in various management roles with different divisions of
‘General Electric Company (“GE”). Most recently, Mr. Button served from January 2016 to July 2017 as Vice President, Supply Chain, for GE Industrial -
Solutions, with oversight of the division’s supply chain and service operations across 41 global factories. Prior to that Mr. Button served as Vice President,

Turbomachinery, for GE’s Oil & Gas division from January 2014 to December 2016, as General Manager of the Global Operations team for GE s Oll & .

Gas division from March 2011 to December 2013, and in other operations and supply chain roles with GE Aviation.

Daniel W. Campbell is NCR s Executive Vice President, NCR Global Sales a position he has held since February 2018 Previously, from .luly 2015 to

February 2018, Mr. Campbell served as a Senior Vice President and General Manager at Virtustream, Inc. (“Virtustream”), which he joined after it was

acquired'by EMC Corporation (“EMC™)'i in July 2015. With Virtustream, Mr. Campbell led the global sales integration with EMC’s sales organization, built
a global strategic alliances and channels organization, and co- -launched the Virtustream Storage Cloud, an enterprise-class cloud storage platform. Before )

joining Virtustream, from April 1998 to July 2015, Mr. Campbell served in a series of sales and management roles of increasing responsibility at EMC,

. including as Chief Operating Officer, Senior Vice President, Worldwide Sales, Backup and Recovery Systems Divisions, and most recently as Senior Vice
Pre51dent Global Specnalty Sales. Before joining EMC Mr. Campbell served in various sales and ‘management roles with Sperry, Unisys, Motorola and

Wang. - . :

Patrice Graves is Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer of NCR, a position she has held since June 2021. From June 2020 to April ~
2021, she was.the Vice President and ‘HR Leader for the Americas.at'DXC Technology Company (“DXC”), an' IT services company, where she was -
‘instrumental in developing the talent engagement strategy and driving culture change. Prior to that, Ms. Graves was with AECOM Group Inc.
(“AECOM”), an infrastructure; consulting "firm, from November 2015 to June 2020. At AECOM, she served as Executive Vice President, Human
-Resources, from January 2020 to June 2020 and as Senior Vice Prestdent Human Resources, from November 2015 t0 January 2020..Prior to DXC and
AECOM, Ms. Graves served in HR leadershlp roles at Raytheon Company and Allied Signal/Honeywell.

Donald W. Layden, Jr., is Executive Vice President, President, Payments & Network, Head of Strategy and M&A, a position he has held since November
-2021. From June 2020 to October 2021, Mr. Layden served as Senior Advisor to NCR focusing on strategy and corporate development. Previously, Mr.
Layden served as a member of the Board of Directors of Cantaloupe, Inc. (formerly known as USA Technologies, Inc.), a payments and software services
company, from April 2019 to May 2020, where he served as the Chair of the Compliance Committee from April 2019 to November 2019. He also served as
interim Chief Executive Officer of USA Technologies, Inc. from October 2019 to February 2020, as Non-Executive Chairman from November 2019 to
February 2020, and as President and Chief Executive Officer from February 2020 to May 2020. Mr. Layden was a Venture Partner at Baird Venture
Partners from December 2011 to"September 2021. He also was an of-counsel partner of Quarles & Brady LLP, where he practiced corporate law, from
October 2009 to September 2021. Mr. Layden served as-a member of the.Board of Directors of Firstsource Solutlons lented a business process.
. management company publicly traded on the National Stock Exchange of India, from April :
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2006 to March 2019. He also served as an independent.director of Online Resources Corporation, a publicly traded ¢ompany, from May 2010 to March
2013, when the company was sold to ACT Worldwide, Inc. From November 2009 to November 2011, Mr. Layden served as an Adviser of Warburg Pincus

. LLC in the Technology, Media and Telecommunications group. From October 2004 to October 2009, Mr. Layden ‘held various positions at Metavante
Technologies, Inc. (“Metavante"), a bank technology processing company, including as President of the International Group, and as Senior Executive Vice
President of Corporate- Development and Strategy, Corporate Secretary and General Counsel. Prior to that, he served at NuEdge Systems LLC as Chief
Operating Officer from 2000 to 2002 and as President from 2002 to 2004, when the company was purchased by Metavante.

Beth A. Potter IS NCR s Chlef Accountmg Offlcer a position she has held since November 2019. Ms. Potter has also served as the NCR Corporate
Controller since 2011. From March 2007 to 2011 she served as A551stam Controller, and pnor to that she served in varlous other leadershlp roles
suppomng NCR’s fmance organization.

Available Informanon

NCR makes available through its websne at http://investor.ncr.com, free of charge the reports it files with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”), including its Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, definitive proxy statements on Schedule 14A and Current Reports
on Form 8-K, and all amendments to such reports and schedules, as soon as reasonably practicable after thesé reports are electronically filed or furnished to
the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a). or 15(d) of ‘the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). The SEC also maintains a -website
(http://www.sec.gov) that contains the reports, proxy statements and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file or furnish
electronically with the SEC. NCR will furnish, without charge to a security holder upon written request,.the Notice of Meeting and Proxy Statement for the
2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholdérs (the “2022 Proxy Statement”), portions of which are incorporated herein by reference. NCR also will furnish its
Code of Conduct at no cost and any other exhibit at cost. Document requests are available by calling or writing to: '

. NCR—Investor Relations
864 Spring Street NW .

.Atlanta, GA 30308
Phone: 800-255-5627 )
E-Mail: investor.relations@ncr.com . .
Website: http://investor.ncr.com

NCR's website, www.ncr:com, contains a significant amount of information about NCR, including financial and other information for investors. NCR
. encourages investors to visit its website regularly, as information may be'updated and new information may be posted at any time. The contents of NCR's
website are not incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K and shall not be deemed “filed” under the Exchange Act.
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

The risks and uncertainties described below could materially and adversely affect our business,. financial condition, results of operations, could-cause
actual results to differ materially from our expectdtions and projections, and could cause the market value of our stock to decline. You should consider -
these risk factors. when reading the rest of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” and our financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this document. These risk factors may not include all of
the important factors that could affect our business or our .industry or-that could cause our future financial results to differ materially from historic or
.expected results or cause the market prlce of our common stack to ﬂucrua[e or decline.

STRATEGY AND TECHNOLOGY

If we-are unsuccessful in transforming our business model, our operating results ‘could be negatively impacted. In recent years, we have shifted our
business model to become a software- and services-led enterprise provider, focusing on increased software and services revenue, as well as recurring
revenue, to enable NCR to become an as-a-Service company. Activating our strategy to create NCR-as-a-Service.could negatively impact our revenue and
margin as we shift toward increasing recurring revenue. Additionally, this strategy includes the shift away from perpetual license-based products that yield
revenue recognized at an earlier point in time to a term license model to include*a termination for convenience which could also have a negative impact on
our revenue ‘and margin. We expect to continue to spend and may increase our capital expenditures to support our shift to NCR-as-a-Service with the focus
on our strategic growth platforms, which are the offerings with the highest growth potential to accelerate the shift. Our success depends on the return on
investment generated from the capital expenditures and our ablhty to continue to execute these strategies, while improving the Company's cost structure.
Successful execution of our strategy. and the businesses associated with the strateglc growth platforms depends on a number of different factors including,
among others, developing, deploying and supporting the next generation of digital first software and cloud solutions for the industries we serve; rharket
.acceptance of our new and existing software and cloud solutions; successfully expandmg the payment processing market; enabling our sales force to use a
consultative selling model that better incorporates our comprehensive and new solutions; transforming our services performance capabilities and coverage
to improve efficiency, incorporate remote diagnostic and other technologies and align with and support our new solutions; managing professional services
and other costs associated with large solution roll-outs; integrating, and developing and supporting software gained through acquisitions. In addition, we
continue to pursue initiatives to expand our customer base by increasing our use of indirect sales channels, and by developing, marketing and selling
solutions aimed at the small- to medium-business market. It is not yet certain whether these initiatives will yield the anticipated benefits, or whether our
solutions will be compelling and attractive to small- and medium-sized businesses. If we are not successful in growing software and services and expanding
our customer base at the rate that we anticipate, implementing and managing these various initiatives and minimizing any resulting loss in productivity, or
if the costs to complete these initiatives is higher than anticipated, we  may | not meet our growth and gross margin projections or expectations, and operating
results could be negatively impacted. -

If we do not swiftly and'successfu"y develop and introduce new solutions in the competitive, rapidly changing environment in which we do business,
our business results may be impacted. The development process for our solutions requires high levels of innovation from our product development teams
.and suppliers of the components embedded or incorporated in our solutions. We expect to continue to spend and may increase our capital expenditures ‘and
allocate. these expenditures primarily to our strategic growth platforms. In addition, certain of our solutions, including our cloud solutions, may require us
to build, leasé or expand, and maintain, infrastructure (such as hosting centers) to support them. The development process can be lengthy and costly, and
requires us.to commit a significant amount of resources to bring our business solutions to market. In addition, our success may be impacted by safety and
security technology and industry standards. We may not be able to anticipate our-customers’ needs and.technological and industry trends accurately, or to
" complete development of new solutions efficiently. In addition, contract terms, market conditions or customer preferences may affect our ability to limit,
sunset or end-of-life our older products in a timely or cost-effective fashion. If any of these risks materialize, we may be unable to introduce new solutions
into the miarket on a timely basis, if at all, and our business and operatjng results could be impacted. Likewise, we sometimes make assurances to customers
regarding the operability and specifications of new technologies, and our results could be impacted if we are unable to deliver such technologies, or if such
technologies do-not perform as planned. Once we have developed new solutions, if we cannot successfully market and sell those solutions, our business
and operating results could be pegatively lmpacted

If we do not compete effectively within lhe technology industry, we will not be successful. We or)erare in the intensely competitive technology industry.
This industry is characterized by rapidly changing technology, disriiptive technological innovation, evolving industry standards, frequent new product
introductions, price and cost reductions, and increasingly greater commoditization of products making differentiation difficult. Our competitors include
other large companies in the information teéhnology industry, such as Fidelity National Tnformation Services Tnc., Fiserv, Tnc., Temenos AG, Tnfosys Ltd.,

Alkami Technology, Inc., HP Inc., Diebold Nixdorf, Inc., Hyosung TNS Inc., Toshlba Tec Corporation, Oracle Corporatlon Fuptsu Limited, Q2 Holdlngs,' )
Inc. and
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ACI Worldwide, Inc., many of which have more financial and technical resources, or more widespread distribution and market penetration for their
<'platforms and service offerings, than we do. We also compete with companies in specific industry segments, such as entry- -level ATMs, POS solutions and

imaging solutions. In addition, as consumers and customers in the banking, retail and hospitality industry adopt new alternative technologies such as
* cashless and other streamlined payment services and automated shopping solutions, we may face competition from other technology companies,

Our future competitive performance and market position depend-on a number of factors, including our-ability to:* . S

+ execute our NCR-as-a-Service strategy to grow our software and services revenue, as well as our recurring revenue;

*  improve-margin expansion while successfully reacting to competitive prbduct and pricing pressures;

* ‘mitigate increases in labor costs, component parts, freight services and interest rates with price inereases;

» ‘penetrate and meet the changing competitive requirements and deliverables in developmg and emerging markets;

*  retain our existing key customers and add new customer relationships;

* cross-sell additional products and services to our existing customer base;

«  rapidly and continually design, develop and market, or otherwise maintain.and lmroduce innovative soluuons and related products and services for
: our customers that are competitive in the marketplace;

* react on & timely basis to shifts in market demands and technological innovations, including shifts toward the desnre of banks and retailers to

provide digital-first experience to their customers and the use of mobile devices in transactions and payments;

* reduce costs without creating operaung 1neff1c1enc1es or 1mpa1rmg product or service quahty,

+  maintain competitive operating margins; - . '
"+ improve product and service delivery quality; and

«  effectively market and sell all of our diverse solutions.

Our business and operating performance also could.be 1mpac[ed by external competitive pressures, such as consolidation, increasing price erosion and the
entry of new competitors and technologies into our existing product-and geographic markets. Tn addition, our customers sometimes finance our product .
sales through third-party financing companies, and in the case of customer default, these financing companies may be forced to resell this'equipment at
discounted prices, competing with us and impacting our ability to sell incremental units. The impact of these product and pricing pressures could 1nclude
lower customer satisfaction, decreased demand for our solutlons loss of market share and reduction of operating profits. .
If we do not successfu]ly integrate acquisitions or effectively manage o"iance activities, we may not drive future growth. As part of our overall solutions
strategy, we have made, and intend to continue to make, investmeénts in companies, solunons services and technologies, either through acquusmons

_ investments, joint ventures or strategic alliances. These activities allow us to further our company, strategy and provide us access to new technology or

solutions that expand our offerlngs Acqunsmons and alliance activities inherently lnvolve nsks The risks we'may encounter lnclude those associated with:

. dlsrupnon to our business and (he continued successful execution of our company strategy, goals and responsibilities, mc]udmg but not -
limited to the Company’s non-GAAP EPS growth, including mix shift to software and services, increase in recurnng revenue and free cash
flow, as well as the NCR-as-a-Service model, while managing significant transactions;

.» increased capital and research and development expenses and resource allocation; .

» assimilation and integration of different business operations, corporate ‘cultures, personnel infrastructures (such as data centers) and
technologies or solutions acquired or Ilcensed while maintaining quallty, and designing and |mplementlng appropriate risk management
measures; .

« - retention of key employees and talent assaciated w1th the acquired or combmed busmess

»  the incurrence of significant transaction fees and costs;

» the potental for unknown liabilities w1(hm the acquired or combined business that'we may not ‘become aware of untll after the completion of
the acquisition; and

« the possibility of conflict with ]omt venture or alliance panners regarding’ strateglc dlrectlon prioritization of objectives and goals,
governance matters or operations.

There is risk that the integration, new technology or solutions, including but not limited to expanded payment processing and entry into ATM-as-a-Service,
may not perform as anticipated, may take longer than anticipated and may not meet estimated growth projections or expectations, or investment recipients
may not successfully execute their business plans. Further, we may not achieve the projected efficiencies and synergies once we have integrated the
business into our operations, which may.lead to the impairment or write down of assets, and other additional costs not anticipated at the time of acquisition.

In the event that these risks- materlahze we may not be able to fully realize the benefit of our investments, and our operating results could be adversely.
affected.
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Our multinational operations, including in new and emerging markets, expose us to business and legal risks. For the years ended December 31, 2021"
and 2020, the percentage of our revenue from outside of the United States was’ 49% and 51%, respectively, and we expect our percentage of Tevenue
generated outside the United States to continue to be significant. In additiori, we continue to seek to further penetrate existing international markets, and to
identify opportunities to enter into or expand our presence in developing and emeiging markets. While we believe that our geographic diversity may-help to
mitigate some risks associated with geographic concentrations of operations, our ability to sell our soluuons and manufacture mtemauona]ly, lnc]udmg in
new and emerging markets, is sub]ec[ to risks, whlch include, among others:

"« the impact of ongoing and future economic and credit conditions.on the stablhty of national and regional economies and industries wuhln those
economies; _ .

< political condmons and local regulations that could adversely affect demand for our solutions, our ablhty to access -funds and resources, or our
ability-to-sell products in these markets; - .

»  the impact of a downturn in the global economy, or in regional economies, on demand for our products

-+ competitive labor markets and increasing-wages in markets that we operate in;

« _ currency exchange rate fluctuations that could result in lower demand for our products as well as generate currency translation ldsses;
+  limited availability of local currencies to pay vendors, employees and third parties and to distribute funds outside of the country,

. changes to global or regional trade agreements that could limit our ability to sell products in Lhese markets;

+  the imposition of import or export tariffs, taxes, trade policies or 1mport and export controls that could increase the expense of, or limit demand for
© our products;

+  changes to and comphance with a variety of Iaws and regulanons that may increase our cost of domg busmess or otherwise prevent us from
effectively competing 1ntemauonally,

-+  government uncertainty or lrmltatmns on the ablhty to enforce legal rlghts and remedies, including ‘as a result of new, or changes to, laws and
regulations; : :

" =« reduced protection for mtellectual property rights in certain countries;
+ ' implementing and managing systems, procedures and controls to monitor our operations in foreign markets
+ changing competitive requirements and deliverables in-developing and emerging markets;
« longer collection cycles and the financial VIablhry and rellablllty of contracting partners and customers;
+  managing a geographically dispersed workforce, work stoppages and other" labor condmons or issues;
. disruptions in transponatwn and shipping infrastructure; and . . ’ : .

= the impact of civil unrest relating to war and terrorist’ acuvrty on the economy or markets in general or on our ability, or that of our suppllers to.
meet commitments.

In addition, as a result of our revenue generated outside of the United States, the amount of cash and cash equivalents that is held by .our foreign
subsidiaries continues to be significant. After the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, in general we will not be subject io additional United States taxes if cash
and cash equivalents and short-term investments held outside the United States are dlS(l‘Ibu[ed to the United States in the form of dividends or otherwise.
However, we may be subject to forelgn withholding laxes Wthh could, be significant.’

The strategic review may cause disruption.to lhe busmess and may fail to result in increasing the value to our shareholders or in the complenon of any
transaction. On February, 8, 2022, NCR announced that its Board of Diréctors unanimously approved commencing a comprehensive strategic review, with
the assistance of outside advisors, which will evaluate a full range of strategic alternatives available to NCR to enhance value for all shareholders. Those
strategic alternatives could include a dlsposmon of a material business or assets of the Company, a spin-off, merger or sale of the Company, other structural
changes, changes to branding or geographic footprint or other transactions or alternatives. The review may result in near-term disruption to our business '
and employees as we explore certain ‘alternatives. Addmonally, there is no guarantee that the outcome of the strategic review will result in an mcrease in
the share price for our shareholders or in the completion of any transaction. :
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Our business may be negatively affected by domestic and global economic and credit conditions. Our business is sensitive to the strength of domestic and ..
global economic-and credit conditions, particularly as they affect, either directly or indirectly, the financial, retail and hospitality sectors of the economy.
Economic and credit conditions are influenced by a number of factors, including political conditions, consumer confidence, unemployment levels, interest
rates, tax rates, commodity prices and government actions to stimulate economic growth. The imposition or threat of protectionist-trade policies or import
“or export tariffs, global and regional market conditions and spending trends in the financial, retail and hospitality industries, new tax legislation across
multiple jurisdictions, modified or new global or regional trade agreements, uncertainty over further potential changes in Eurozone participation’ and-
fluctuations in oil and commadity prices, among other things, have created a challenglng and unpredictable environment in which to market the products
and services of our various businesses across our different geographies and industries. A negative or unpredictable economic climate could create
_ uncertainty or financial pressures that impact the ability or willingness of our customers to.make capital expendiures, ‘thereby affecting their decision to
purchase or roll out our products or services or, especially with respect to smaller customers, to pay accounts receivable owed to NCR. Additionally, if .
customers respond to a.negative or unpredictable economic climate by consolidation, it could reduce our base of potential customers. Negative or
unpredictable global economic conditions also may have an adversé effect on our customers’ -ability to obtain financing for the purchase of our products
and services from third party flnancmg companies or on the number of payment processing transactions which could negatively lmpac( our operaung
results.

We are subject to certain s:gmf cant nsks and uncertainties from the payments-related business and industry. As a part of our overall strategy related to
our-payments-related business we may be sub]ect to the following risks: e

. The proliferation of payment options and increasingly frictionless methods of payment other than cash, including credit cards, debit cards, stored-value
debit cards, contactless, and mobile payments options, could result in a reduced need for cash in the marketplace and a resulting decline in the usage of our
ATMs. The continued growth in electronic payment methods, such as mobile phorie payments, contactless payments and card only self-service order and
payment terminals could result in d reduced need for cash in the marketplace and ulnmately, a decline in the usage of ATMs. New payment technology,
such as Venmo, Zelle, Square Cash, Facebook Messenger Payments and virtual currencies such as Bitcoin, or other new payment method preferences by
consumers could’ reduce the general population’s need or demand for cash and negatively impact our ATM transactlon volumes in the future

NCR derives a significant portion of its revenues from ATM and financial services transaction fees, which. could be reduced by a decline in the-usage of
ATMs, the ability to charge cardholders fees to use ATMs and the level of transaction fees received, or a decline in the number of ATMs that are operated
by ‘us, whether as a result of changes in consumer spendmg preferences global economic conditions, or otherwise. Additionally, should banks or other
ATM operators decrease or eliminate the fees they charge to users of their ATMs or otherwise offer free access to their networks, such action would make
transactions at our ATMs comparatively more expensive to consumers and could adversely impact transaction volumes and revenue. '

. The majority of the electronic debit networks over which transactions are conducted require sponsorship by a bank, and the loss of any sponsors and/or the
inability to find a replacement may cause disruptions to our operations. In each of the geographic markets, bank sponsorship is required in order to process
transactions over certain networks. Tn all of the markets we serve, ATMs are connected to financial transaction switching networks operated by

'orgamzanons such as Visa and MasterCard. The rules governing these switching networks require any company sending transactions through these
networks to be a bank or a technical service processor that is approved and monitored by a bank. As a resuli, the operation of the ATM network in all of the
markets we serve depends on the ability to secure these “sponsor” arrangements with financial institutions.

Interchange fees may be lowered in some cases at the discretion of the various EFT networks through which transactions are routed, or through potential
regulatory changes, thus reducing future revenues and operating profits. Future changes in interchange rates, some of which we have minimal or no control
over, could have an adverse impact on our operations and cash flows.

Non-compliance with established EFT network rules and regulanons could expose NCR to fmes penames or other liabilities and could negatively impact
results of operations. Additionally, new EFT network rules and regulations could require significant amounts of capital to remain in compliance with such
rules and regulations. Transactions are routed over various EFT networks to obtain authorization for cash disbursements and to provide account.balances.

These networks prlmanly include Star, Pulse, NYCE, Cirrus (MasterCard), and Plus (Visa) in the United States, and LINK in the United Kingdom, among
other networks. EFT networks set the interchange fees that they charge to the financial institutions, as.well as the amounts paid to NCR. Additionally, EFT.
networks, including MasterCard and Visa, establlsh rules and regulations that ATM providers must comply with in order for member cardholders to use
those ATMs ‘Failure to comply with such rules and regulatlons could result in penaties and/or fines, which could negatively |mpact our fmancnal results.
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services-led business. Therefore, our ability to retain our key business leaders and our highly skilled software development, technical, sales, consulting and
other key personnel, including key personnel of acquired businesses, is critical. Maintaining an inclusive culture and work environment is an important
factor in attracting employees and retention. The market for highly skilled workers and leaders i in our industry is extremely competitive, and we may need
to invest significant amounts of cash and equity to attract and retain new employees. We may never realize returns on these investments. Key emp]oyees
may decide to leave NCR for other opportunities or may be unavailable for health or other reasons. Changes of key business leaders could be disruptive to
our business or delay the execution of our strategy, and as a result could cause fluctuation in our stock price. In addition, as our business model evolves, we
may need to attract employees with different skill sets, experience and attributes to support that evolution. If we are unable to retain our key personnel, or
we are unable to attract highly qualified new and replacement employees by offering competitive compensation, secure work environments, and leadership
opportunmes now and in the future, our business and operating results could be negatively impacted.

Deéfects, errors, installation difficulties or development delays could expose us to potential liability, harm our reputation and_negatively impact our
business. Many of our products are sophisticated and complex, and may incorporate third-party hardware and software. Despite testing and quality control,
we cannot be certain that defects or errors will not be found in our products. If our products contain undetected defects or errors, or otherwise fail to meet
our customers’ -expectations, we could face the ldss of customers, liability exposure and additional development costs. If -defects or errors delay product
mstallauon or make it more difficult, we could experience delays-in customer acceptance or if our products require significant amounts of customer
support, it could result in incremental costs to us. In addition, our customers who license and deploy our software may do so in both standard and non-
standard configurations in different environments with different computer platforms, system management software and equipment and networking
configurations, which may increase the likelihood of technical difficulties. Our products may be integrated with other components or software, and, in the )
- event 'that there are defects or errors, it may be difficult to determine the origin of such defects or .errors. Additionally, damage ‘to, or failure or
unavailability of, any significant aspect of our cloud hosting facilities could interrupt the availability of our cloud offerings, which could cause dlsruptmn
for our customers, and, in turn, their customers, and expose us to liability. If any of these risks materialize, they could result in additional costs and
expenses, exposure to liability claims, diversion of technical and other resources to engage in remediation efforts, loss of customers or negative publicity,
each of which could neganvely 1mpact our business and operating results.

If third party suppliers upon which we rely are not able to fulfill our needs', our ability to timely bring our products to market could be affected. There
are a number of vendors providing the services and producing the parts and components that we ‘utilize in or in connection with our products. However,
there are some services and components that are licensed or purchased from single sources due to price, quality, technology, functionality or other reasons.
For example, we depend on transaction processing services from Accenture, computer chips and micfoprocessors from Intel and operating systems from
Microsoft. Certain parts and components used in the manufacturing of our ATMs and the delivery of many of our retail solutions are also supplied by single
sources. In' addition, there are a number of key suppliers for our businesses, that provide us. with critical products for our solutions..If we were unable to
secure the necessary services or maintain current demand, including contract manufacturing, parts, software,’ components or products from a particular
vendor, and we had to find an alternative supplier, our new and existing product shipments and solution deliveries, or the provision of contracted services,
could be delayed impacting our. business and operating results.

We have, from time to time, formed alliances with third parties that have comp]ememary products, software, services and skills. These alliances represent
many different types of relationships, such as outsourcing arrangements to manufacture hardware and subcontract agreements with third parties to perform -
services and provide products and software to our customers in connection with our solutions. For example, we rely on Jabil Inc. to provide contract
manufacturing services for our ATMs and self-service checkout solutions, primarily for our customers in the Americas. We also rely on third parties for
. cash replenishment services for our ATM products. These alliances introduce isks that we cannot control, such as nonperformaice by third parties and
difficulties with or delays in integrating elements.provided by third partles into our solutions. Lack of information technology infrastructure, shortages in
business capjtalization, and manual processes and data integrity issues, particularly with smaller suppliers can also create product time ‘delays, inventory
and invoicing problems, and staging delays, as well as other operating issues. The failure of third parties to provide high-quality products or services that
conform to required specifications or contractual arrangements could impair the delivery of our solutions on a timely basis, create exposure for non-
compliance with our contractual commitments to our customers and impact our business and operating results. Also; some of these third parties have access
-to confidential NCR and customer data, personal data, and sensitive data, the mtegrlty and security of which are of significant importance to the Company..

The coronavirus (“COVID- 19”) pandemic could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. The impacts of
COVID-19, including several emerging variants of COVID-19, have grown throughout the world. The ultimate .scale and scope of the COVID-19
pandemic and the pace and degree of recovery are unknown and are expected to continue to adversely impact our business and financial condition for an '
extended period. The specific impacts of COVID-19 on our
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Company includes, but is not limited to, the following items, each of which could have a material adverse effect on our busmess financial condmon and

results of operations, or otherwise limit our ability to execute our busmess strategy and financial goals.

\

Governmental authorities have implemen(ed numerous measures attempting to contain and mitjgale the effects of the virus, including travel bans and

restrictions, quarantines, shelter in place orders and shutdowns. While we have implemented programs to mitigate the impact of these measures on our

results of operations, there can be no assurance that these programs wrll be successful. There is significant uncertainty regarding such measures and
. potential future measures.

Our Company and many of our suppliers have faced challenges’ w1th workforce safety and availability, labor and wage inflation, a changmg workforce and
componeit availability and supply cost escalations, including materials, labor and freight. Our ability to maintain a safe and cost-effective workforce and
supply chain as COVID-19 and its impacts evolve may continue to adversely affect our Company and our suppliers and distributors.

Our manufacturing and distribution facilities are located in areas that have been affected by the pdndemic and we have taken measures to try to contain it.
 Restrictions on our access to our manufacturing facilities or on our support operations or workforce, or similar limitations for our distributors and suppliers,
- could limit customer demand and/or our capacity to meet customer demand. :
The continued spread of COVID-19 could cause delay, or limit the ability of customers to continue to operate and perform, mcluding in making timely-’
payments-to us, or cause a decrease in customer demand or a slowdown in customer expansion. Local governmental restrictions and public perceptions of
the risks associated with the COVID-19 pandemic have caused, and may continue to cause, consumers to avoid or limit gatherings in public places or
social interactions, which have and could continue to adversely impact the businesses of our customers in the banking, retail and hospitality industries we
serve due to physical store closures, the willingness of our customers to make capital expenditures or pay accounts receivable, the ability of our customers
to obtain financing for the purchase of our solutions, or [he amount of disposable income: available to consumers, which may adversely 1mpact the
. businesses of our customers. . ) . ) ) .

The spread of COVID-IQAhas caused us'to modify our business practices, such as employee work locations and workforce numbers and compensation, and
we may take further actions as may be required by government authorities or that we determine are in the best interests of our employees, customers,
 distributors, suppliers and contractors. Remote talent management and return to work efforts may cause loss of eff1c1ency and negatively lmpact our
company culture and. morale
There is no certainty that measures taken to mitigate the risks posed by the COVID-19 pandemic will be successful, and our ability to perform critical
functions could be harmed. As our Company continues to address such challenges, legal disputes, actions or proceedings related to COVID-19 and its
impacts may arise. The degree to which COVID-19 affects our financial results and operations will depend on future developments, which are highly
uncertain and cannot be predicted, including, but not limited to, the duration and spread of the COVID-19 pandemic or any related emerging variants, their
severity, the actions to contain COVID-19 or treat its impact, the continued distribution and the effectiveness of vaccines and boosters on COVID-19, and
how quickly and to what extent normal economic and operatmg conditions resume or continue to resume as COVID-19 variants impact our economy,

Our historical and ongoing manufacturing activities subject us to.environmental exposures. Our facilities and operations are subject to d wide range of
environmental protection laws, and we have jnvestigatory and remedial activities underway at a number of facilities that we currently own or operate, of
formerly owned or operated, to comply, or to determine compliance, with such laws. In addition; our products are subject to environmental laws in a
number of jurisdictions. Given the unteftainties inherent in such activities, there can be no-assurances that the costs required to comply with applicable
environmental laws will not impact future operating results. We have also been.identified as a potentially responsible party in connection with certain
énvironmental matters, including the Fox River and Kalamazoo River matters, as further described in Note 10, “Commitments and Contingencies”, of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Report; in “Government Regulations” within Item 1 of Part I of this Report;
and in “Environmental and Legal Contingencies” within the “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” section of “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operatlons” lncluded in Item 7 of -Part II of this Report, and we incorporate such disclosures by reference
and make them a part of this discussion of risk factors.

.
Climate change could negatively impact our business long-term. Global climate change may have an increasingly adverse impact on NCR’s business
continuity and our ability to keep our employees safe and .provide for our customers. NCR considers potential risks related to weather as part of its
operations strategy and has business continuity and disaster recovery plans in place. However, they may not adequately protect us from serious disasters
and adverse impacts. In addition, climate change events could have an impact on critical infrastructure in the United States and mlematlonal]y, which has
the’ potentlal to dlsrupt our business, our third-
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party suppllers or the business of our customers and parmers They may also cause us to expenence higher losses attrition and additional costs to maintain
or resume operanons . :

We have operations all over the world and our sites in California, Texas, Florida, and India are particularly vulnerable to climate change éffects. In 2021,
the west coast. of the United States experienced historic wildfires; a winter storm in Texas led to massive power outages; and multiple hurricanes formed
over the gulf coast - all of which caused significant destruction to the affected regions.-We anticipate that similar weather events will continue to bring
significant annual destruction in vulnerable areas. In India, extreme temperatures and increased cyclones’ frequency could interrupt our business continuity
arrangements. The long-term effects of climate change could have sngnlflcant repercussions for the global economy and cause significant financial and
physical damages. .

~

DATA PRIVACY & SECURITY

Data protection, cybersecurity and data privacy issues could negatively impact our business. Our.products and services, including our cloud and hosted
solutions as well as our payments and networking solutions, facilitate financial and other transactions for the customers in the industries we serve. As a.
result, we collect, use, transmit and store certain of the transaction, cryptocurrency, private keys, and personal data of our customers and end-users. We also
have access to transaction and personal data of our customers and their customers through or in the course of servicing our products or third-party products.
Additionally, we collect; use and store personal data of our employees and the personnel of our business partners, such as resellers, suppliers and
contractors, in the ordinary course of business. While we have programs and measures in place designed to protect and safeguard this data, and while we
have implemented access controls designed to limit the risk of unauthorized use or disclosure by employees and contractors, the techniques used to obtain
. unauthorized access to this data are complex and changing, as are the underlying objectives of the attacker, like targeted business disruption, financial
impact, intellectual property theft, political motives, or sophisticated nation-state sponsored and organized cyber-criminal activity, and may be difficult to
detect for long periods of time. An attack, disruption, intrusion, denial of service, theft or other breach, or an inadvertent act by an-employee or contractor,
could result in unauthorized:access to, or disclosure of, this data, resulting in claims, costs and reputational harm that could. negauvely affect our operating
results. We may also detect, or may receive natice from third parties (including governmental agencies) regarding potential vulnerabilities-in our
information technology systems, .our products, or third-party products used in conjunction with our products or our business. In the course of our business
activities, NCR contracts with numerous suppliers, vendors and resellers who may experience a cybersecurity, data protection or privacy issue that could
negatively affect our 6perating results. Even if these potential vulnerabilities do not result'in a data breach, their existence can adversely affect marketplace
confidence and reputation. To the extent such vulnerabilities require remediation, such remedial measures could require significant resources and may not
be implemented before such vulnerabilities are exploited. As the Iandscape evolves, we may also find it necessary to make significant further investments
to protect information and infrastructure. . .
Like most companies, NCR is regularly the subject of attempted cyberattacks, which may involve personal data. To date, the Company is not aware of any
that have. caused adverse consequences material to the Company. Most such attacks are detected and prevented by the Company’s various information
technology and data protections, including but not limited to firewalls, intrusion prevention systems, denial of service detection, anomaly based detection,
anti-virus/anti-malware, endpoint encryption and detection and response software, Security Information and Event Management (“SIEM”) system, identity
management technology, security analytics, multi-factor authentication and encrypnon There can be no assurance that our protecuons will always be. .
successful. .
The Company has established relationships with cybersecurity firms and internal cybersecurity. experts, which it engages in' connection with certain
suspected incidents. The costs arising from those engagements, which depending on the incident may include both investigatory and remedial efforts, have
.-not to date been material to the Company. The Company also regularly undergoes evaluation of .its protections against incidents, including both self- -
assessments and expert third-party assessments, and it regularly enhances those protections, both in response to specific threats and as part of the
" Company’s efforts to stay current with advances in cybersecurity defense. When the Company experiences a confirmed cybersecurity incident it generally
performs root cause analyses and ‘in appropriate instances will implement additional controls based on those analyses. In 2021, Company spending on
cybersecurity efforts represented approximately 10% of its overall IT spend. There can be no assurance that the Company or its cybersecurity consultants
will be able to prevent or remediate all future incidents or-that the cost associated with responding to any such incident will not be significant.
The personal information and other data that we process and store also are subject to data security and data privacy obligations and laws of many
jurisdictions, which are growing in complexity and sophistication as data becomes more enriched and technology and the global data protection landscape
evolves. These laws may conflict with one another, and many of them are subject to frequent modification and differing interpretations. The laws impose a
sngnificant compliance burden and include, for example, the European Union's (“EU”) General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”) the California
Consumer Privacy Act and the Brazilian General
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Data Protection Law. Complying with thése evolving and varying standards could require significant expense and effort, and could require us to change our
business practices or the functionality of our products and services in a manner adverse to our customers and our business. In addition, violations of these,
laws can result in significant fines, penalties, claims by regulators or other third parties, and damage to our brand and business. The GDPR, for.example,
includes fines of up to €20 million or up to 4% of the annual global revenues of the infringer for failure to comply, and grants corrective powers to
supervisory authorities including the .ability to impose a limit on processing of personal data. The laws also cover the transfer of personal, financial and
-business information, including transfers of employee information between us and our subsidiaries, across international borders.

" FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING

Our'level of indebtedness could limit our ﬁnnncral and operating activities and adversely affect our ability to incur additional debt to fund future needs.
At December 31, 2021, we had approximately $5.62 billion of total indebtedness outstanding, which increased substantially from the prior year due to the
acquisition of Cardtronics. At December-31, 2021, we had approximately $894 million of secured revolving ¢redit commitments undrawn and available for
borrowing under our senior secured revolving credit facility. Our current level of indebtedness could: '

* require us to dedicate a substannal portion of our cash flow to the payment of pnnc1pal and interest, thereby reducing the funds available for
operations and future business opportunities;-

+ make it more difficul('for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our outstanding debt, including obligations to repurchase our senior
unsecured notes undér our indentures following the occurrence 6f certain changes in control;

e limit our ability to borrow money or othérwise enter into financing arrangements that would. provrde us with additional capltal if needed for other
purposes, mcludmg working: capital, capital expendltures debt service requirements, acquisitions and general corporate purposes on sansfactory
terms or at all; . :

»  limit our ability to adjust to changing economic, business and comp‘etitive'conditions;

. place us at a competitive dlsadvantage with compeutors who may have less lndebtedness or greater access to fmancmg or access to fmancmg on
preferenna] terms;

+ _make us more vulnerable to an increase in mterest rates, a downturn in our operanng performance or a decline in general economic, business'and -
other conditions; and :

.

+- make us more susceptible to adverse changes in our credit ratings, which could impact our ability to obtain financing in the future and increase the
" cost of such financing.

"To the extent that we are unable to successfully integrate Cardtromcs or achleve the prolec(ed ‘efficiencies and synergies of the acqursmon it may
materially adversely affect our ability to service the indebtedness. If compliance with our obligations under our debt and other financing agreements
materially limits our financial or operating activities, or hinders our.ability to adapt to ‘changing industry conditions, we may lose market share, our revenue
may decline and our operating results may be negatively affected.’

. . . . ,
The terms of the documents governing our indebtedness include. financial and other covenants that could restrict or limit our financial and business
operations. Our credit agreement governing the senior secured facilities and the indentures for our-senior unsecured notes inclulde restrictive covenants that,
subject to certain exceptions and qualifications, restrict or otherwise limit our ability and the ability of our subsidiaries to, among other [hings:

e incur additional indebtedness;

«  createliens on, sell or otherwise disp()se of, our assets; _

«  engage in certain fundamental corporate changes or changes to our business activities;

- make certain. inveslmer]ts or material acquisitions;

«  engage in sale-leaseback or hedging transactions; o

«  repurchase our common stock; pay dividends or make similar distributions on our capital stock;

e repay certain indebtedness; ' .

+  engage in certain affiliate transactions; and
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* enter into agreements that restrict our ability to create liens, pay dividends or make loan repayments.-

The senior secured credit agreement and the indentures for our senior unsecured notes also contain certain affirmative covenants, and the senior secured

credit agreement require us to comply with a leverage ratio that measures our debt relative (o our Consolldated EBITDA (as defined in the senior secured
credit agreement). . .

These covenants and restrictions could affect our ability to operate our business and may limit our ability to react to market condmons or take advantage of
potential business opportunities as they arise. Additionally, our ability to comply with these covenants may be affected by events beyond our control,
including general economic and credit conditions and industry downturns.

If we fail to comply with these covenants and are unable to obtain a waiver or amendment from the applicable debtholders an event of default would result
under the applicable agreements and under other agreements containing related cross-default provisions.

If we fail to complyfwi[h these covenants and are unable to obtain a waiver or amendment from the applicable lenders, an event of default would result
under these agreements and under other agreements containing related cross-default provisions. '

« ‘Upon an event of default under the senior secured credit agreement, the administrative agen[ or the required lenders could, arnong other things,
declare outstanding amounts due and payable, refuse to lend additional amounts to us, or’require us to deposit cash collateral in respect of
outstanding letters of credit. If we were unable to repay or pay the amounts due, the administrative agent or the lenders could, among other things,

. proceed against the collateral granted to them to secure such indebtedness, whlch includes certain of our domestic assets and the equity interests of
certain of our domestic-and foreign subsidiaries.

*  Upon an event of default under the indentures for our senior unsecured notes, the related (rustee or the holders of our senior unsecured notes could

" declare all outstanding amounts immediately due and payable :

Despite our current levels of debt, ‘we may still incur substantially more debt, including secured debt, and similar liabilities, which would increase the
risks described in these risk factors relating to indebtedness. Although the agreements governing our senior secured credit facilities and our senior
unsecured'notes include restrictions on our ability to incur additional debt, those agreements do not prohibit us from incurring additional debt or pursuing
other financing arrangements. As a result, the amount of additional debt and other obligations that we could incur could be substantial. In addition, certain
types of liabilities are not considered “Indebtedness” under our senior secured credit agreement or the indentures governing our senior unsecured notes, and
our senior secured credit agreement and indentures do not impose anylimitation on the amount of liabilities incurred.by our subsidiaries, if any, that are
designated as “unrestricted subsidiaries” under our senior secured credit agreement or indentures, as applicable. Accordingly, to the extent permitted under
our senior secured credit -agreement or indentures, we could incur significant additional debt, liabilities or similar obligations in the future, some of which
could constitute secured debt (such as additional debt under our senior secured credit agreement). In addition, if we form or acquire any subsidiaries in the
future, those subsidiaries also could incur debt or similar Ilabrlmes If new debt or similar llabrhues are added to our current debt levels, the related risks
that we now face could increase. :

We may, from time to time, seek to opportunistically refinance, amend, reprice and/or otherwise replace any of our debt, obtain additional debt financing or
enter into other financing arrangements, reduce or extend our debt, lower our interest payments or the cost of capital available to us-under certain types of.
financing arrangements, or otherwise seek to imprave our financial position or the terms of our debt or other financing agreements. These actions may
include open market debt repurchases, negotiated repurchases, or other repayments, redemptions or retirements of our debt or other financing
arrangements. The amount of debt that may be borrowed or issued, refinanced, and/or repurchased, repaid, redeemed or otherwise retired, if any, will
depend on market conditions, trading levels of our debt, our cash position, compliance with our debt cgvenants and other consrderauons . Any such actions
" could impact our financial condmon or results of operauons

- If we are unable to continue to access or renew financing sources and obtain capital, our ability to maintain and grow our business may be impaired.

- . We use debt and other sources of financing to maintain and grow our business. There can be no assurance that we will be able to renew our senior secured

credit facilities after their current maturity dates on acceptable terms, or at.all, or.that we will be able to obtain additional or replacement financing on
.acceptable terms or at all. The availability of additional financing will depend-on a variety of factors such as market conditions, the general availability of .
credit, our financial position, our results of operations, and the capacity for additional borrowing or other forms of financing under our existing financing
arrangements. If our various financing altematives were to become limited or unavailable, we may be unable to maintain or grow our business and our
operations could be materially adversely affected.
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Our cash flows may not be sufficient to service our indebtedness, and if we are unable to satisfy our obligations under our indebtedness, we may be
required to seek other financing alternatives, which may not be successful. Qur ability to make timely payments of principal and interest on our debt
obligations depends or our ability to generate positive cash flows from operations, which is subject to general economic conditions, competitive pressures
and certain financial, business and other factors, which may include factors beyond our control. If our cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to
make these payments, wé may be required to seek additional financing sources, reduce or delay capital expenditures, sell assets or operations or refinance
our indebtedness. These actions could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Tn'addition, we may not be able
to take any of these actions, and, even if successful, these actions may not permit us to meet our scheduled debt service obligations. Our ability to
restructure or refinance our outstanding indebtedness will depend on, among other things, the condition of the capital markets and our financial condition at
such time. There can be no assurance that we will be able to restructure or refinance any of our indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms or at all. If
we cannot make scheduled payments on our debt, we will be in default and the outstanding principal and interest on our debt could be declared to be due

- and payable, in which case we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation or required to substantlally restructure or alter our business operations or debt
obligations.

Borrowings under our senior secured credit facilities bear interest at a variable rate which subjects us to interest rate risk, which could cause our debt
service obligations or other costs of capital under our senior secured credit facilities to increase significantly. All of our borrowmgs under our senior
secured credit facilities are'priced using variable rates of interest and expose’us to interest rate risk. If interest rates increase, our debt'service abligations on
this variable rate indebtedness would increase even if the'amount borrowed were to remain the same. Although we may enter into interest rate swaps or
similar instruments to reduce interest rate volatility in connection with our variable rate ﬁnancmg arrangemems we cannot provide assurances that we will
be able to do so or that such swaps or instruments will be effective.

The terms governing our trade receivables facility, mcludmg the length of term, financial and other covenants, and obligations to remit collectrons on
the sold receivables could restrict or otherwise limit our financial and business operations. During 2021, we amended our trade receivables facility to

-allow, among other things, one of our wholly-owned bankruptcy remote special purposes entities (an “SPE”) to sell to PNC and other participating
financial institutions an undivided ownership interest in a portion of the trade receivables owned by such SPE, in an amount.not to exceed $300 million at
any point in time. Our trade receivables facility has a term of two years and contains customary termination-events, including termination events that are
based on the performance of the pool of receivables, including the pool's satisfaction of certain financial tests relating to the three-month rolling average
ratios of defaults, delinquencies, dilution and days' sales outstanding. If we fail to renew our trade receivable facility or a termination event occurs and we
are unable to obtain a waiver or amendment from the applicable purchasers, we would be required to continue remitting collections to the purchasers. until
the facrhty was terminated, and we would no longer beneflt from the liquidity provided to us by the ability to sell our receivables. Such a result could
negatively impact the cash that we have available to use in our financial and busiriess operations. A termination, event under the trade receivables facrlrty
would also result in an event of default or a termination event under other agreements containing related cross-default provisions.

Certain changes in control may resuh in an acceleration of our indebtedness or our obligations under other ﬁnancing arrangements, or may require us
to repiirchase our senior unsecured notes or our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. Upon the occurrence of a change in control under the applicable
indenture governing the applicable senior unsecured notes, holders of those notes may require us to repurchase their notes. On any date during the three
" months commeéncing on and immediately following March 16, 2024 and the three months commencing on and immediately following every third
anniversary of such date, holders of our Series-A Convertible Preferred Stock will have the right to require us to repurchase any or all of our outstanding
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. In addition, upon certain change of control events involving the Company, holders of Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock can requlre us, sub]ect to certain excepuuns to repurchase any or all of their Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.

It is possible that we would not have suffrcrent funds at the time that we are required to make any such purchase of notes or Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock (or both). We cannot assure the holders of the senior unsecured notes and. Series A Convertible Preferred Stock that we will have sufficient financial
resources, or will be able to arrange financing, to pay the repurchase price in cash with respect to any such notes or Series A-Convertible Preferred Stock

that holders have requested to be repurchased. upon a change in control or scheduled redemption. Our failure to repurchase the senior unsecured notes of a
' series when required would result in an event of default with respect to such notes which could, in turn, constitute a default under the terms of our other
mdebtedness if any. If we are unable to repurchase all shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock that holders have requested to be purchased, then we
are required to pay-dividends on the shares not repurchased at a rate equal to 8.0% per annum, accruing daily from such. date until the full purchase prlce
plusall accrued dividends, are paid in full in respect of such shares of Senes A Convertible Preferred Stock. ~
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In addition, a change in control (i) may constitute an event of default under our senior secured credit agreement that would permit the lenders to accelerate
the maturity of the borrowings thereunder and/or terminate the commitments under the senior secured revolving credit facility, (ii) may constitute a
termination event under our trade receivables facility that would permit the purchasers to declare the capital they have invested in our receivables to be due
and owing and (iii) may require us to make a similar change inlcontrol offer to holders of our existing senior unsecured notés. '

Certam 1mportant corporate events, such as leveraged recapitalization that would increase the level of our indebtedness, may not constltute a change in
control under the indentures governing our unsecured notes or the terms of our Serles A Convertible Preferred Stock."

A lowering or withdrawal of the ratings assigned to our debt securities by rating agencies may increase our future capital costs and reduce our access
to capital. Any rating assigned to our debt could be lowered or withdrawn entirely by a rating agency if, in that rating agency’s judgment, future
circumstances relating to the basis of the rating, such as adverse changes, so warrant. Any future lowering of our. raungs hkely would make it more difficult .
or more expensive for us to obtain additional debt financing or capital-from other flnancmg arrangements. '

Our pension liabilities could adversely affect our lt'quidity and ﬁnancial condin‘on. At December 31, 2021, our obligation for benefits under our pension
" plans was $2,987 million and our pension plan assets totaled $2,485 million, which resulted in an underfunded pension obligation of $502 million. While
we rebalanced our United States and international plan-assets in order to reduce volatility, made several discretionary contributions to our pension plans and
have, from time to time, completed. de-risking actions, including plan settlements, our remaining underfunded pension obligation continues to require
ongoing cash contributions. Our underfunded pension obltgatton also may be affected by future transfers and settlements relating to our pension plans

In addition, certain of the plan assets remain subject to financial market risk, and our actuarial and other assumptions underlying our expected future benefit
" payments, long-term expected rate of return and future funding expectations for our plans depend dn; among other things, interest rate levels and trends and -
capital. market expectations. Further volatility in the performance of financial markets, changes in any of these actuarial assumptions (including those
described in our “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” section of the “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” included in Ttem 7 of Part 1T of this Report) or changes in regulations regarding funding requirements could require material increases to our
. expected cash contributions to our pension plans in future years. .
We may be required. to write down the value. of certam srgmfu:ant assers, which would adversely affect our operating results. We have a number of
significant dssets on our balance sheet as of December 31, 2021 and the value of these assets can be adversely impacted by factors related to our business
and operating -performance, as well as factors outside of our control. We'recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of ‘assets and liabilities. Our deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowances, totaled approxtmately
$908 million and $1,109 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. ‘We regularly review our deferred tax assets for recoverablllty and establish
a valuation allowance if.it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. 'If we are_unable to generate sufficient
future taxable income, if there is a material change in the actual effective tax rates or if there is a change to the time period within which the underlying
temporary differences become taxable or deductible, then we could be required to increase our valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets, which
could result in a matenal increase in our effective tax rate. : .
NCR has previously recorded valuation allowances related to certain deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty of the ultimate realization of the future
benefits from those assets. The recorded valuation allowances cover deferred tax assets, primarily tax loss carryforwards and foreign tax credits, in tax
jurisdictions where there is uncertainty as to the ultimate realization of those tax losses and credits. If we are unable to generate sufficient future taxable
income of the proper source in the time period within which the temporary differences underlying our deferred tax assets become deductlble or before the
expiration of our loss and credit carryfomards additional valuation allowances could be required in the future.

LAW AND COMPLIANCE )
Our continuing ability to bea leading software- and services-led enterprise provider co_uld be negatively affected if we do not protect our intellectual
property, especially our software. It is critical to our strategy, and the benefits provided by our innovations and technologies, that we are able to protect,
leverage and rely on our intellectual property, mcludlng our intellectual property rights. We protect our 1nnovau0ns and technologles through intellectual
property nghts including patents, copyrtghts trademarks
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’ (lncludlng service marks) and trade secrets. To the extent we are not successful in protectmg our intellectual property, especrally that relate to our software
and services, our busmess could be adverse]y lmpacted e

Many of our offerrngs rely on technologies developed by others and 1f we are unable' to continue to obtaln licenses for such technologres or licenses to
subsmutes for similar technologies, our business could be adversely lmpacted '

From time to time we receive notices and otlier communications from third parties, including our customers, regarding patents and other intellectual
property rights that may pertain ta claims from third parties regarding infringement.of patents and other intellectual property rights. Whether those claims
have merit, they may require significant resources to analyze, address and defend, as appropriate. If an infringement claim is successful and we are required
to. pay damages, or we are unable to license the infringed item or substitute a snml]ar non- |nfr1ng|ng item, on a reasonable basis, our busmess could be
- adversely impacted.

Changes to our tax rates and additional income tax liabilities could impact profitability. We are a-United States based multinational company subject to"
* income taxes in the United States and a significant number of foreign jurisdictions. Our domestic and international tax liabilities are dependent on the
" distribution of our earnings across different jurisdictions, and our provision for income taxes and cash tax liability could be adversely affected if the
distribution of earnings is higher than expected in jurisdictions with higher statutory tax rates.

‘In addition, changes‘ in United States or foreign tax laws and regulations,'which have become more frequent  in recent years, or tax rulings could affect
‘our financial position and results of operations. For example, in light of continuing global fiscal challenges, various levels of government and international
organizations such as the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (“OECD~) and EU are increasingly. focused on tax reform and other

legislative or regulatory action to increase, tax revenue and establish minimum levels of corporate income tax. These tax reform efforts, such as the OECD-
led Base Erosion and Profit Shifting project (“BEPS”), are designed to ensure that corporate entities are taxed on a larger percentage of their earnings.

Although some countries have passed tax laws based on findings from the BEPS project, the final nature, timing and extent of any such tax reforms or-
other leglslauve or regulatory actions is unpredictable, and it is difficult to assess their overall effect. Additionally, tax law changes that could significantly
reduce or limit our ability to utilize our deferred tax assets could.have a material impact on our tax rate and cash tax payments. Any of these potential
changes could increase our effective tax rate, increase cash tax payments and adversely impact our financial results. :

“We are also subject to origoing audits of our income tax returns in various jurisdictions both in the United States and internationally and could be subject to
. additional audits focusing on transfer pricing. While we believe that our tax positions will be sustained, the outcomes of such audits could result in the
assessment of additional taxes, Wthh could adversely impact our cash flows and financial results. ° ’ :

We face uncertainties with regard. to regulations, lawsuits and other related matters. In’ the normal course of business, we are subject to proceedings,
lawsuits, claims and other ‘matters, including, for example,-those that relate to’the environment, health and safety, labor and employment, employee
benefits, import/export compliance, intellectual property, data privacy and security, payments services (such as payment processing and settlement
services), cryptocurrency, product liability, commercial disputes and regulatory compliance, among others. Because such matters are subject to many
uncertainties, their outcomes are not predictable and we must 'make certain estimates and assumptions in our financial statements. While we believe that
amounts provided in our Consolidated Financial Statements with respect to such matters are currently adequate in light of the probable and estimable
liabilities, there can be no assurances that the amounts required to satisfy alleged liabilities from such matters will not impact future operating results.
Additionally, we are subject to diverse and complex laws and regulations, including those relating to corporate governance, public disclosure and reporting,
environmental safety and the discharge of materials into the environment, product-safety, import and export compliance, data privacy and security, antitrust

. and competition, government contracting,- anti-corruption, and labor and human resources, which are rapidly changing and subject to many possible
-changes in the future. Compliance with these laws and regulations, including changes in accounting standards,. taxation requirements, and federal securities
laws among others may create a subs(anual burden on us, and substantially increase costs to our orgamzauon or. could have an impact on our future
operatlng results. -

We expect new environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations that may affect us, our suppliers, and our customers. Climate change regulation in
particular has been the subject of federal regulation in the United States as well as in.other jurisdictions around the world. With the change of Presidential

administration and President Biden’s goals of “80 percent clean electricity and 50 percenl economy-wide carbon emissions reductions by 2030”, a number )

of proposals related to climate change have been introduced by U.S. Congress members. These proposals all seek to address climate change.and range on
topic, from proposed legislation on land- -use, energy, transportation, adaptation and finance. Such laws or regulations could cause us to incur addmonal
_direct costs for comphance as well as increased mdlrect costs resulting from our customers, suppliers, or both incurring additional compliance
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-costs that are passed on to us. In addition, the SEC is expected to mandate climate-related risk dlSClosure in the near future, which may 1mpact or prompt us
to accelerate our climate change mitigating efforts already underway and may impose additional comphance and disclosure costs.

Additionally, domg business on a worldwide basis requlres us and our sub51dlanes to comply with the laws and regulauons of the U.S. government and
various international jurisdictions. For example, our international operations are subject to United States and foreign anti-corruption laws and regulations,
such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”), which generally prohibits U.S. companies or agents acting on behalf of such companies from making
improper payments to foreign officials for. the purpose of obtaining or keeping business. Our international operations are also subject to economic sanction
programs administered by the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”). If we are nqt in compliance with such laws and
regulations, we may be subject to criminal and civil penalties, which may cause harm to our repu[auon and to our brand and could have an adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of -operations.

Changes to cryptocurrency regulations could impact profitability. The regulation of cryptocurrency is still an evolving area both domestically and
internationally, and we expect that we could become subject to additional regulations and licensing requirements, including as a result of the expansion of
our cryptocurrency offerings and the increasing number of jurisdictions in which we provide these’ offerings. The evolving regulatory landscape may
-reqmre us to make product changes, restrict product offerings in certain jurisdictions, or lmplement additional and potentially costly controls. If we fail to
comply with regulations, requnrements or prohibitions applicable to us, we could face.regulatory or other enforcement actions and potential fines and other
consequences.

GOVERNANCE

The issuance of shares of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock reduces the relative voting power of holders of our common stock, and the
conversion and sale of those shares would dilute the ownership of such holders and may adversely affect the market price of our common stock. As of
December 31, 2021, approximately 0.3 million shares of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock were outstanding, representing approxlmately 7% of our
outstanding common stock, including the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock on an as-converted basis. Holders of Series A Convertible Preferred Stack
are entitled to a cumulative dividend at the rate of 5.5% per annum, which was payable quarterly in arrears and payable in-kind for the first sixteen
dividend payments, after which, beginning in the first quarter of 2020, are payable in cash orin-kind at the option of the Company. If we fail to timely
declare and pay a dividend, the dividend rate will increase to 8.0% per annum until such time as all accrued but unpaid dividends have.been paid in full.
As holders of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are éntitled to vo(e on an as-converted basis, together with holders of our common stock on all

matters submitted to a vote of the holders of our common stock, the Series A Convertitile Preferred Stock, and the subsequent issuance of additional shares
" of Series A. Convertible Preferred Stock (hrough the payment of in-kind leldends effectively reduces the relative voting power of the holders of our
common stock. :

In addition, the conversion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock to common stock would dilute the- ownership interest of existing holders of our
common stock, and any sales in the public market of the common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock would
increase the number of shares of our common stock available for pubhc trading; and could adversely affect prevailing market prices of our common stock.

Our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock has rights, preferences and pnwleges that are not held by, and are preferentlal to, the rights of our common

_stockholders, which could adversely affect our liquidity and financial condition, and may result in the interests of the holders of our Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock differing from those of our common stockholders. The holders of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock have the right to
receive a liquidation preference entitling them to be paid out of our assets.available for distribution to stockholders before any payment may be made to
holders of any other class or series of capital stock, an amount equal to the greater of (a) 100% of the liquidation preference thereof plus all accrued
dividends or (b) the amount that such holder would have been entitled to receive upon our liquidation, dissolution and winding up if all outstanding shares
of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock had been converted into common stock immediately prior to such liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

" In addition, dividends on the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock accrue and are cumulative at the rate-of 5.5% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears. If
we fail to timely declare and pay a dividend, the dividend rate will increase to 8.0% per annum until such time as all accrued but unpaid dividends have
been paid in full. The dividends were payable in-kind for-the first sixteen d1v1dend payments, after which, beginning in the first quarter of 2020, dividénds
are payable in cash or in-kind at the optlon of the Company. s ‘
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The holders of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock also have certain redemption rights or put rights, including the right to require us to repurchase all

or any portion of the Séries A Convertible Preferred Stock on any date during the three months commencing on and immediately following March 16, 2024

and the three months commencing on and immediately followmg every third anniversary of such date, at 100% of the liquidation preference thereof plus all

accrued but unpaid dividends, and the right, subject to certairl exceptions, to require us to repurchase all or any portion of the Series A Convertible

Preferred Stock upon certain change of control events at the greater of (a) 100% of the liquidation preference thereof plus all accrued but unpaid dividends
" and (b) the consideration the holders would have received if they had converted their shares of Senes A Convertible Preferred Stock into common stock
" immediately prior to the change of control everit. :

These dividend and share repurchase obligations could ‘impact our liquidity and reduce the amount of cash flows available for working capital, capital
expendltures growth opportunmes acquisitions, and other general corporate purposes. Our obhga(lons to the holders of Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock could also limit our ability to obtain additional financing or increase our. borrowing. costs, which could have an adverse effect on our financial
condition. The preferential rights could also.result i in dlvergent interests between the holders of our Serles A Convertible Preferred Stock and holders of our
common stock :

We could be subject to actions or proposals from stockholders that do not align with our business stralegres or the interests of our olher stockholders.
While we seek to actively engage with stockholders and consider their views on business, strategy, and envrronmenla] social and governance issues,
responding to these stockholders could be costly and time-consuming, disrupt our business and operations, and divert the attention of our Board of
Directors: and senior management. Uncertainties associated with such activities could interfere with our ability to effectively execute our strategic plan,
impact customer retention and long-term growth, and limit our ability to hire and retain personnel. In addition, actions of these stockholders may cause
periods of fluctuation in our stock price based on temporary or speculatlve market perceptions or other factors that do not necessarlly reﬂec( the underlymg
fundamentals and prospects of our business. . .

Item 1B. UNRESOL\{ED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
Item2.. PROPERTIES
As of December 31, 2021, NCR operated 294 facililies consisting*of approximately 6.5 million square feet in'60 countries throughout the world. On a
square footage basis, 10% of these facilities are owned and 90% are leased. Within the total facility portfolio, NCR operates 14 research and development
and manufacturing facilities totaling 1.3 million square feet, 100% of which is leased. The remaining 5.2 million square feet of space includes office, repair,
.and warehousing space and other mlscel]aneous sites, and is 87% leased NCR also owns or leases 7 land parcels totaling 2.8 million square. feet in 3.-
countries. - .
NCR is headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia, USA. Our address at our corporate headquarters is 864 Spring Street Northwest, Atlanta Georgia, 30308, USA.

Item3. LEGAL PROGEED‘INGS

Information regarding legal proceedmgs is mcluded in Item 8 of Part 1I of this Report as part of Note 10, “Commltments and Conungencres" of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements and is incorporated herein by reference .

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applieable.
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PARTII

Item 5. MARI(ET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES:
: OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

NCR common stock is hsted on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) and trades under the symbol “NCR?”. There were approxnmately 73,118 holders
of NCR common stock as of February 11, 2022.

Dividends

Historically NCR has not paid cash dividends and does not anticipéte the payment of cash dividends on NCR common stock in the immediate future. The
declaration of dividends. is restricted’ under our senior- secured credit facility and the terms of the lndentures for our senior unsecured notes, and would be
further subject to the discretion of NCR s Board of Dlrectors

Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the relative investment performance of NCR 'stack, the Standard & Poor’s MidCap 400 Stock Index, Standard & Poor’s 500

Information Technology Sector and. the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index This graph covers the five-year period from December 31, 2016 through
December 31, 2021. .

.Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return
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“$0 - . _ - v
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PurcﬁaSe of Company Common Stock

On October 19, 2016, the Board apprdved a share repurchase program, with no expiration from. lhé date of authorization, for the systematic repurchase of
the Company’s common stock to offset the dilutive effects of the Company’s employee stock purchase plan, equity-awards and in-kind dividends on.the
Company’s Serles A Convertible Preferred Stock. Avallabrllty under this program accrues quarterly based on Lhe average value of dilutive issuances during
the quarter .

" On March 12, 2017, the Board approved a second share repurchase program that provides for the repurchase of up to $300 million of the Company’s
common stock. On July 25, 2018, the Board authorized an incremental $200 million of share repurchases.under this program.

No shares were repurchased under these prugrams during the three months ended December 31, 2021.

-As of December 31, 2021, approximately $153 million was available for repurchases under the March 2017 program, and approximately $660 million was
available for repurchases under the October 2016 dilution offset program. The timing and amount of repurchases under these programs depend upon market
conditions and may be made from time to time in open-market purchases, privately negotiated transactions, accelerated stock repurchase programs, issuer

‘self-[ender offers or otherwise. The repurchases will be made in compliance with appllcable securities laws and may be discontinued at any time.

" The Company occasronally purchases vested restricted stock or exercised stock options at the current market price to cover wrthholdmg taxes. For the (hree
months ended December 31, 2021, 914, 338 shares of vested restricted stock were purchased at an average price of $40.21 per share.

" The Company’s ability to repurchase its'common slock is restrlcted under the Company’s senior secured credll facility and terms of tlie indentures for the

" Company’s senior unsecured notes, which prohibit certain share repurchases, including during the occufrence of an event of default, and establish limits on
the amount that the Company is permitted to use to repurchase shares and make other restricted payments. This amount is calculated using formulas based
generally on 50% of the Company’s consolidated net income for the period beginning in the third quarter of 2012 through the end of the most recently
ended fiscal quarter, subject to certain other ad]ustments and deductions,-with certain prescribed minimums-and its use is subject to customary conditions,
including the absence of an event of default. These formulas are described in greater detail in the Company’s senior secured credit facility and the
indentures for the Company’s senior unsecured notes, each of which is filed with the SEC.
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Item 6. Reserved.

None.
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (“MD&A”)

This section should be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes.'included in Item 8 of Part II of this *
Report. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-looking statements. See “Forward-
Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of this Annual Report for a discussion of the uncertainties, risks and assumptions associated with these
forward-looking statements that could cause future results to differ materially from those reflected in this section.

Our discussion within MDG&A is organized as follows:

*  Overview. This section contains background information on our Company and a summiary of significant themes and events during the year as well
. as strategic initiatives and trends in order to ‘provide context for management’s discussion and analysis of our flnancna] condition and results of
operations. .

Results of operations. This section contains an analysis of our resulis of operations presented in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations by comparing the results for-the year ended December 31, 2021 to the results for the year ended December 31, 2020. On June. 21,
2021, we completed the acquisition of Cardtronics pic (“Card(ronics”) which is included in the Banking segment results. For management's
discussion of our results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2020 in companson with the year ended December 31, 2019, please see
our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 26, 2021. :

» Liquidity and capital resources. This section prowdes an analysis of our cash flows and a discussnon of our ‘contractual obllgatlons at December
31, 2021.

< Critical accounting estimates. This section c‘onta'i_ns a discussion of the accounting policies that we believe are important to our financial condition,
and results of operations and that require judgment and estimates on the part of management in their application. In addition, all of our significant
accounting policies, including critical accounting policies, are summarized in Note 1, “Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies”,

- in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part II of this Report.

OVERVIEW

BUSINESS O.VERVIEW )

NCR is a software- and services-led enterprise technology provider that runs stores, restaurants and self-directed banking for our customers. Our software
platform, which runs in the cloud and includes microservices and APIs that integrate with our customers’ systems, and our’ NCR-as-a-Service solutions
bring together all of the capabilities and competencies of NCR to power the technology to run our customers’ operations. We serve customers in the
" banking, retail, hospitality; and telecommunications and technology (“T&T?”) industries. In this Report, we categorize our operations into the followmg
segments: Banking, Retail, Hospitality, and T&T. Each of our segments derives its revenue in each of the sales theaters in which NCR operates.

Effective January 1, 2022, the Company realigned its reportable segments to correspond with changes to its operating model, management structure and-
organizational responsibilities. The reportable segments effective January 1, 2022 include: Payments & Netwoik; Digital Banking; Self-Service Banking;
Retail; and Hospitality. Additionally, effective January 1, 2022, the expenses related to corporate functions that are not specnfically attnbutable to an
individual reportable segment along wuh any immaterial operating-segment(s) are included in Corporate & Other. ’

NCR is a global company that is headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia NCR’s reputatlon is founded upon over 137 years of providing quality products,
services and solutions to our customers. At the heart of our custgmer and other business relationships is a commitment to acting responsibly, ethically and
with the highest level of |ntegrity This commitment is reflected in NCR’s Code of Conduct, which is available on the Corporate Governance page of our
website.

SIGNIFICANT THEMES AND EVENTS

As more fully discussed in later sections of this MD&A, r.he following were significzim themes and events for 2021.
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. Revenue increased 15% from the prior year due to overall growth across the Banking; Retail and Hospttahty segments
s" Software and services revenue represented 73% of total consolidated revenue
o . Recurring revenue-increased 25% from the prior year and comprised 58% of total consolidated revenue
" Completed acquisition of Cardtronics on June 21, 2021, the world's largest non-bank ATM operator and services provrder and the acqursrtron of
LibertyX on January 5, 2022, a leading cryptocurrency software provider; -
+  Completed varipus financing transactions related to the acqursmon of Cardtronics; redeemed note due in 2025 to reduce mterest expense, and
subsequently reduced leverage; and '
«  Announced aspirational five-year goals for 2026, which mc]ude annual recumng revenue of 80 percent by 2026 annual non-GAAP earmngs per
share (“non-GAAP EPS™)) growth of 15 percent, and annual free cash flow(" of $1 billion in 2026

| M with respeﬁ to our goals of free cash flow and non-GAAP EPS growth, we are not providing a reconciliation to the respective GAAP measure because we are unable to predict with reasunable centainty the reconciling
items that may affect GAAP EPS and Cash flow from ions without ble effort.. For the definition of non-GAAP EPS, see the Our Strategy section within Item 1 of this Report. Far our definition of free cash

flow, see the Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources section later in MD&A.

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES AI_VD TRENDS
In order ] provrde long-term value to all our stakeholders we set complementary business goals and fmancral strategies. NCR is continuing its transmon
to become a software platform and payments company with a shift to a higher level of recurring revenue. Our business goal is to be a leading enterprise
-technology provider that runs stores, restaurants and self-directed banking through our software platform and our NCR-as-a-Service solutions: In late 2018,
we set five-year strategic goals, originally set as 2024 targets. These included to transition our revenue mix so'that 80 percent of ‘our total revenue is
comprised of software and services revenue, 60 percent of our total revenue is comprtsed of recurring revenue, and our adjusted EBITDA margin rate
- increases to 20 percent. Since we were near achieving those goals in late 2021, we established aspirational five-year goals for 2026, which include annual -
recurring reveriue of 80 percent by 2026, annual earnings.per share (non-GAAP EPS) growth of 15 percent, and annual non-GAAP free cash flow of $1
billion in 2026. Execution of our goals and strategy is driven by the following key pillars? (i) focus on our customers; (i) take care of our employees; (iii)
bring high-quality, mnovauve products to market; and (iv) leverage our brand.

As we strive to achieve these aspirational five-year goals, we plan to capitalize on opportunities presented by the acquisitions of Cardtronics and LibertyX
to accelerate-our Payments & Network business as we go to market with a more robust offering in this segment We also plan to-continue to improve our
execution to drive solid returns and to transform our business to-drive a re-rate of our valuation.

On February 8, 2022, NCR announced that its Board of Directors unanimously approved commencing a comprehensive strategic review, with the
assistance of outside advisors, which will evaluate a full range of strategic alternatives available to NCR to enhance value for all shareholders. Those
.strategic alternatives could include a disposition of a material business or assetsof the Company, a spin-off, merger or sale of the Company, other structural
changes, changes to branding or geographrc footprint or other transactions or alternatrves The Board has not set a timetable for the conclusion of its review
of strategic alternatives. NCR does not intend to_comment further on.the strategic review" process unless and until NCR has determined that further
disclosure is beneficial or required by law. Shareholders are advised that there can be no certarnty that the strategic-review will result in a transaction, or if a
transaction is pursued that such a transaction will be completed

Cybersecurity Risk Management

Similar to most companies, NCR and its customers are sub]ect to more frequent and 1ncreasmgly sophlstlcated cybersecunty attacks. The Company
maintains cybersecurity. risk management policies and procedures including disclosure controls, which it regularly evaluates for updates, for handling and
responding to cybersecurity events. These policies and procedures include internal notifications and engagements and, as necessary, cooperation with law
“enforcement. Personnel involved in handling and responding to cybersecurity events periodically undertake tabletop, exercises to simulate an event. Our
internal notification procedures include notifying the applicable Company attorneys, which, depending on the level of severity assignied to the event, may
include direct notice to, among others, the Company’s General Counsel, Ethics & Compliance Officer, and Chief Privacy Officer. Company attorneys

" support efforts to evaluate the materlallty of any incidents, determine whether notice to third parties such as customers or vendors is required, determine
whether any prohlbmon on insider trading is appropriate, and assess whether disclosure to stockholders or governmental filings, including with the SEC,
are required. Our internal notification procedures also include notifying various NCR Information Technology Services managers, subject matter experts in
the Company’s software department and Company leadershlp, depending on the level of severity assigned to the event. -
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For further information on potential risks and uncertainties see Item 1A “Risk Factors.”
IMPACTjS FROM THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

We continue to navigate through the challenging times presented by COVID-19 with a sharp focus on and goal of safeguarding our employees, helping our
customers.and managing impacts on our §upply chain. Despite the unprecedented env1ronment, our teams are executing at a high level and we are
advancmg our strategy.

The COVID-19 pandemic is complex -and continues to evolve, including the latest Omicron variant. While it is difficult to project the long-term impact of
the pandemic, we expect it will negatively impact our business at least in the short-term. The ultimate impact on our overall financial condition and
operating results will depend on the currently unknowable duration and severity of the pandemic, supply chain challenges and cost escalations including
materials, labor and freight, and any additional govefnmental and public actions taken in response. We contihue to evaluate the long-term impact that
COVID-19 may have on our business model. There can be no assurance that the measures we have taken or will take will completely offset the negative
impact of COVID-19. . . .

For further information on the risks hosed_ to our business from the COVID-19 pandemic, refer to Item 1A of this Form 10-K.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Key Strategic Financial Metrics

The fdllowing tables show our key strategic financial metrics for the years ended December 31, the relative percentage that those amounts represent to total
revenue, and the change in those amounts year-over-year. The software and services revenue and recurring revenue metrics below include the results of

* . operations of Cardtronics for the period from the date of acqunsmon June 21, 2021 to December 31, 2021.

Software and services revenue as a percentage of total revenue

.

: . . Percentage of Total Revenue Increase (Decrease)
(in millions) 2021 - -2020 . 2019 2021 2020 | 2019 . 2021v2020 _ 2020v2019 |
Software & Services $.- 5204 $ 4452 $ 4,528 72.7 % 71.7 % 65.5 % 17% (2)%
CHardware : : $ 1,952 § 1,755 $ 2,387 273 % _ 28.3% . 345% . 11% _ (26)%]
Total Revenue’ $ 7,156 $ 6,207 $ 6,915 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 15 %. : (10)%
Recurring revenue as a pércentage of total revenue
. Percentage of Total Revenue 4 . Increase (Decrease)
(in millions) 2021 - 2020 2019 2021 . 2020 2019 L 2021v2020 _ 2020v2019 |
- Recurring revenue (") . $ 4,166 $ 3,338 $ 3,182 58.2 % 53.8 % 46.0 % 25 % 5%
All other products and : N ) > ' B .
services $ 2,990 % 2,869 $ 3,733 - 41.8 % _ 46.2 % 54.0 % K 4% _ © (23)%

Total Revenue 8% 7156 $§ 6207 $§ 6915 100.0 % - 100.0 % . 100.0 % 15% (10)%

M Recurring revenuc includes alt revenue streams from contracts where there is a predictable revcnuc paucm that will occur at regular, lmcrvals with a relatively high degree of certainty, This includes hardware and software
maintenance revenue, cluud revenue, payment processing revenue, and certain professional services arrang as well as term-based sof license that include ination rights.

Net income (loss) from continuing operation and adjusted EBI TDAWas a percentage of total revenue
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Percentage of Total Revenue Increase (Decrease)

(n 8% T 20200 7 2010 7y i 2021 £ /R0 E.C5 1 2020 s g s ¥ 22019 . 2021 v 2020 7,7 2020 v 2019
Total Revenue $ 7,156 $ 6, 207 $ 6915 100 0% 100. 0 % 100 0% 15% - (10)%

Adjusted EBITDA S l244 S 8% 5. 10%E 17.4% 144% . 153% L. 9% . (15)%

"

horei

@ NCR's managemem uses the non-GAAP measure ad;usted EBITDA because .it pruvndes useful mfonnauon to investors as an indicator of strength and performance of the Company's ongoing
) including funding dlsarenonary spending such as capital expendi , strategic acquisiti and other investments. NCR determines adjusied EBITDA based on GAAP net income (loss) from continuing uperauons
atributable to NCR plus interest expense, net; plus income tax expense (benefit); plus depreciation and amortization; plus stock-based compensation expense plus mher income (expense); plus pension mark-to-market .
dj pension setth pension curtail and pension speciat termination benefits and other special items, mcludmg ization of acquisiti ibl m(mclunng charges, among olhers
Refer to (he table helaw for the reconciliations of net income (loss) from continuing operations (GAAP) ta adjusted EBITDA (non-GAAP).

‘In millions
~Net income (loss) from continuing operations (GAAP) AN
* Pension mark-to-market adjustments '
{Transformation and restructuring costs’z B S R
Acquisition-related amortization of lnlanglbles

U\cqmsmon-related (gains) costs s 0 f k3ol 5 ¥ VL BRI NE Y {_’" sy ¥ oS et 4208 L~ (G)W
Internal reorgamzatlon and [P transfer s — (37)
{L08s on debt extinguishment ; » S s 7 Saw ¥ ode Sw o T ‘ﬁ.?:: % o

Interest expense : ' : 238 218 197

{Interest INCOME ; ¥4 wt ; T , St A T S T (8) Er e 1(8) can e a2 (4)
Depreciation and amoruzauon (excludmg acqmsmon -related amoruzauon of mtang1bles) 3 357 275 - 232

{Income tax expense (benefit) 7= "o o€3 o+ ¢ s i '5’%‘"& MG T AR N P T A v' T3, 186 5 b+ (53) e Wi i, (273)]
Stock-based compensation expense. . ) : 154 . ° 108 107

Adjusted EBITDA (Ron-GAAP) [~ 7~ & e, BV - g gk o x?"“'é;{ ¥ L 212447857 75,8964 $ 1,058
Consolidated Results o v -

The followmg table shows ‘our results for the years December 31 the relative percentage that those amounts represent to revenue, and the change in those

* amounts year-over-year. . : ,
Y : : ' i Percenlage of Revenue (" " Increase (Decrease)
{in mrllmnS) U eyt e 20210 e L 0s 20205 F il 2009 e oh €202 WY Ty (2020 05 L £ 2019 3. o000 2021 v 2020 55 5.3 2020 v 2019 o
Product revenue : -8 2, 193 $ 2,005 $ 2,681 306% - 323% . - 388% 9% (25)%
[Service revenue :, 5t % <o~ vr 14,963 0 0 2,°4,202 1 L P s Tt 1612 %7 w0 w18 % Lo bx (1) %)
. Total revenue ' 7,156 6,207 6,915 100.0 % .100.0 % ©100.0 % 15 % (10)%
{Product ross margin . = < - %%y, "t %343 %" 272 L 535 2 %15.6 %% 3 5213, 6 0, %17 20:0 Y a Vs 826 Yo i L i *(49)%)
- Service gross margin 1,550 . . 1,252 1,386 . 31.2 % " 29.8% - 0 327% . 28% - (10)% -
Total gross margin . »%. » + 31,893 V85 £01.524 q‘“L 1,9217% " 426.5 %> (ki 24.6 % oo R D78 %k 24 % T 4 (21)%)
-Selling, general and - \ ) ) .
administrative expenses _'”?1,151 11(,)'69 ? 1, OSé. 16 1% W 17 2 %‘ : 152 % 8 °/1 - ' 2%
0 3 g il e R T w_’ - Ty i Sy S SN ‘q-).“-),“'; ES
Exe;:g;gl; ;ngfd,evfl(ieime?;.&a Fyik 172681 M5 '«*233 B v C359 P f 3 7. % s ’ gt °/ 37,0 bh S5 % dE <210)%
Income from operations 221 $ 611 66% . 3.6 % .88 % 114% - - (64)%
. « t
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{0 The percentage of révenue is calculated for each line item divided by total revenue, except for product gross margin, service gross margin and total gross margin, which are divided by the related component of revenue.

Revenue

. Percentage of Total ilevénue Increase (Decrease)
f(in millions) 2021 . 2020 2019 . 2021 . 2020 - 2019 2021 v 2020 2020v 2019 |
Product revenue '$ 2,193 $ 2005 $ 2,681 30.6 % . 323% 38.8 %. 9% (25)%
Service revenue "~ 4,963 4,202 _ 4,234 69.4 %. 67.7% . 61L2%_ 18 % (1)%]

Total revenue $ 7,156 $ 6,207 $ 6,915 .100.0 % " 100.0 % 100.0 % 15 % (10)%

Product revenue includes our hardware and software llcense revenue streams. Serv:ce revenue includes hardware and software maintenance revenue,
‘implementation $ervices revenue, interchange and surcharge revenue, cloud revenue as well as professional services revenue.

Total revenue increased 15% in 2021 from 2020 driven by an increase in service revenue of 18% and an increase in praducl revenue of 9%. The increase in
services was driven by growth in payments revenue, which includes the results of Cardtronics, and other recurring revenue streams, primarily in cloud and
managed services. The increase in product revenue was due to higher self-checkout and point-of-sale revenue.

Gross Margin ) -

: . . . ) Percentége of Revenue " Increase (Decreas;)
f(inﬁmillio?é) 4 : - 2021 - 2020 N 2019 . 2021 2020 N 2019 2021v2020 - 2020v 2019 " §
Product gross margin $ 343 §$ 272 % 535 - 15.6 % 136% . 200% 26 % (49)%
'Service gross margin - : 1,550- 1,252 1,386 . 31.2% . 29.8%: . 327% 24% - (10)%!

. Total gross margin $ 1,893 $ 1,524 $ 1,921 265% °  246% = 278% 24% . (21)% -

M The percentage of revenue is calculated for each line item divided by the related component of revenue.

Gross margin as a percentage of revenue was 26.5% in 2021 compared to 24.6% in 2020. Gross margin for the year ended Decermiber 31, 2021 included
$33 million related to transformation and restructuring costs and $60 million related to amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets. Gross margin
for the year endeéd December 31, 2020 included $150 million related to transformation and restructuring costs and $22 million related to amortization. of
acquisition-related intangible assets. Excluding these items, gross margin as a percentage of revenue increased from 27.3% to 27.8% due to higher revenue
partially offset by increased component and freight costs due to supply chain challenges. Continted:increases in labor costs as well as component parts,
freight, services, and interest rates could negatively impact our gross margin in future periods.We are working to mitigate the impact of these rising costs
through a varlety of actions, such as increasing the prices of our products and services, pre-purchasing materials, locking in prices in advance or utilizing
alternate sources of materials. However, we may not be completely successful in these efforts and even when we are successful, there may be a time lag
before the impacts of these actions are reflected in our. margins.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

‘Percentage of Total Revenue TIncrease (Decrease)

{(in millions) ' ~ . 2021 2020 N 2019 . 2021 2020 2019 ~2021.v 2020 2020 v2019 |
Selling, general and : - R P
administrative expenses $ L151 §$ 1,069 $ 1,051 16.1 % 17.2 % 152 % 8 % 2%

Se]llng, general, and admlmstranve expenses were $1.151 billion in 2021 up from $1.069 billion in 2020. As a percentage of revenue, selling, general and
administrative expenses were 16.1% in 2021 and 17.2% in 2020. In 2021, selling, general and administrative expenses included $20 million of
_ transformation -costs, $72 million of acquisition-related amortization of intangibles and $84 million of acquisition-related costs. In 2020, selling, general
and administrative expenses included $66 million of transformation and restructuringcosts, $59 million of acquisition-related amortization of intangibles
and $1 million of acquisition-related costs. Excludmg these items, sel]mg, general and administrative expenses decreased as a percentage of revenue from
15.2%
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in 2020 to 13.6% in 2021 primarily due to the increase in revenue and the impact of--expense reduction measures taken entering 2021.
Research and Development Expenses

- Percentage of Total Revenue . Increase (Decrease)

{(in millions) C 2021 - .2020° 2019 2021 . 2020 © 2019 TU2021v2020 . 2020v2019 |
Research and developmem . : . .
expenses $ 268 S 234§ 259 37% 38% 3.7% 15 % (10)%

Research and development expenses were $268 million in 2021, up from $234 million in 2020. As a percentage of revenue, these costs were 3.7% in 2021

and 3.8% in 2020. In 2021, research and development expenses included $1 million of costs related to our transformanon and restructuring initiatives. In’
2020, research and ‘development expenses included $11 million of transformation and restructuring costs. After conSIdermg this .item, research and

development expenses increased sllghtly as a percentage of revenue from 3. 6% in 2020 to 3.7% in 2021 due to an increase in investments related to our.
strategic initiatives. :

Loss pﬁ Extinguishment of Debt

1
Increase (Decrease)

(inmillions), __—~___~ § - - I - 2021 T 2020 2019 - 2021v2020 - 2020v2019 |

Loss on extinguishment of debt . $ - 42 .3 20 % 0 0 — 110 % - 100%

Loss on extinguishment of debt was $42 million in 2021 related to the premium paid for early }edemptibn of $400 million aggregate principal amount of
8.125% senior secured notes due 2025, which includes the write-off of deferred financing fees of $5 million and a. cash redemption premium of $37
million. Refer to Note 5, “Debt Obligations”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion on the financing transactions.

Loss on extinguishment of debt was $20 million in 2020 related to the early extmgmshfnent of the $600 million aggregate principal amount of 5.00%
senior unsecured notes due'in 2022 and the $700 million aggregate principal amount of 6.375% senior unsecured notes due in 2023 The loss included the
write-off of deferred financing fees of $5 million and a cash redemption premlum of $15 mllhon

Interest Expense’

Increase (Decrease)

. {(in millions) I - 2021 2020 2018 2021v2020 2020V 2019 |

Interest expense - : $ 238 $ .. 218 $ 197, 9% 1%

Interest expense was $238 million in 2021 compared to $218 million in 2020. Tnterest expense in all years was primarily related to the Company's senior
unsecured notes and borrowings under the Company's senior secured credit facility. The increase in interest expense in 2021 was related to the increase in
total outstanding debt as a result of the closing of the acquisition of Cardtronics. The higher average outstanding principal balances during 2021 were
partially offset by the lower average interest rates on the Company's senior unsecured notes, interest expense increased in 2021 compared to 2020.

Other Income (Expense), net

Other income (expense), net was income of $90 million in 2021, expense of $42 million in 2020 and expense of $73 million in 2019 wnh the components )
reflected in the followmg table: :
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. A
" In millions ) : i : B 2021 : 2020 2019

fInterest income . . S ] . 8 $ 8. $ ' 5§
Foreign currency fluctuations and forelgn exchange contracts ’ ' (22) T14) (23)
Bank-related fees , 27 (5) < 7))
Employee benefit plans ' ) 131 (31) (82)
{Gain on entity liquidations . : L : — — 37]
Impairment of an equity investment ) . . . — v )

/Bargain purchase gain on acquisition . . . — " 7 : —]
Other, net ’ ) ) — — (3)
Other income (expense), net . . ' 90 $ (42) $ ) (73)]

Employee benefit plans within Other income (expense), net includes the components of pension, postemployment and postretirement expense, other than
service cost. This includes actuarial gains and losses from the annual pension mark-to-market adjustment. In 2021, ‘there was an actuarial gain of $118
million compared to actuarial loss of $34 million in 2020. The actuarial gain in 2021 was primarily due to an increase ‘in discount rates as well as a
favorable impact from an update to the mortality tables. The loss in 2020 was primarily due to a decrease in the discount rates.

In 2021, the increase in bank-related fees was primarily due to $19 mllhon related to certain structuring and commitment fees as a result of the financing
(ransacuons entered into during the flrst quarter of 2021 related to the transactlon with Cardtronics.
Income Taxes

, . Increase (Decrease)
i millions) . N a0 . 2020 . 2019 . 2021v2020 ___ 2020v2019 |

Income tax expense (benefit) - $_ 186 $ B83) $ (273) (451)% T (81)%

Our effective tax rate was 65% in 2021 and 90% in 2020. During 2021, significant matters impacting our fax rate include a $36 million expense from
recording a valuation allowance against interest expense deduction carryforwards in the United States, a $14 million benefit from the deferred tax impact of
a tax law change in the United Kingdom and a $40 million non-cash expense resulting from an internal entity restructuring. During 2020, the tax rate was
impacted by a $48 million benefit resulting from the release of a'valuation allowance agalnst U.S. foreign tax credits and the re-establishment of expected
forelgn tax credit offsets to unrecognized tax benefits.

In the fourth quarter of 2021, the Company recorded $9 million of income tax expense ($4.7 million of which related to multiple prior annual periods)
related to the utilization of foreign tax credits in prior years and an additional valuation allowance required for.interest expense carryforwards recognized in
interim periods during 2021. The Company determined that the adjustments in the fourth quarter of 2021 were not material, quantitatively or qualitatively,
to the impacted annual and interim hnanc1al statements. .

While we are sUbject to numerous federal, state and foreign tax audits, we believe that appropriate reserves exist for issues that might arise from these
audits. Should these audits be settled, the resulting tax effect could impact the tax provision and cash flows in future periods. During 2022, the Company
expects to resolve certain tax matters related to U.S. and forelgn jurisdictions. These resolutions could have a matenal impact on the effectlve tax rate m.
2022. : : .

We regularly review our deferred tax assets for recoverability and establish a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a
deferred tax asset will not be realized. The determination as to whether a deferred tax asset will be realized is made on a jurisdictional basis and is based on
the evaluation of positive and negative evidence. This evidence includes historical taxable income/loss, projected future taxable income, the expected

timing of the reversal of existing temporary dlfferences and lhe implementation of tax planmng strategies.

Loss from Discontinued Operations', net of tax
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. . . . Increase (Decrease)
Lin millions) : ' . 2021 2020 2019 2021v2020  2020v2019 |
‘Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax $ - — 8 (72) % (50) (100)% 44 %

In 2021, income (loss) from discontinued operations was zero, net of tax.

Tn 2020, the loss from dlsconnnued operations was $72 mllhon net of tax, pnmanly related to updates in estimates and assumpnons for the Fox River and .
Kalamazoo River enVIronmental reserves.

Revenue and Adjusted EBITDA by Segment .

The Company -manages and reports its businesses in the following segments: Banking, Retail, Hospitality and T&T. Each of these segments derives its
revenue by selling in the sales theaters in which. NCR operates. Segments are measured for profitability by the Company’s chief operating decision maker

* based on revenue and segment adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as GAAP net income (loss) from continuing operauons attributable to NCR
plus interest expense, net; plus income tax expense (benefit); plus depreciation and amortization; plus stock-based compensation’ expense; plus other -
income (expense); plus pension mark-to-market adjustments, pension settlements, pension curtailments and pension ‘special termination benefits and other
special items, including amortization -of acquisition-related intangibles, restructuring charges, among others. The special items are considered non-
operational so are excluded from the adjusted EBITDA metric utilized by our chief operating decision maker in evaluating segment performance and are
separately delineated to reconcile back to total reported income from operations. Management believes this format is useful to investors because it allows

- analysis and comparability of operating trends. It also includes the same information that is used by NCR management to make decisions regardmg the
segments and to assess our financial performance. :

Corporate and Other reconciles our segment results to adjusted EBITDA, which primarily includes other income (expense) that are managed only on a total
company basis and are, accordingly, reflected only in consolidated results. '

The following table shows our segment revenue and adjustéed EBITDA for the ‘years ended December 31, the relative percentage that those amounts
represent to revenue, .and the change in those amounts year-over-year. The Banking revenue and adjusted EBITDA metrics below include the results of
operations of Cardtronics for the penod from the date of acquisition, June 21; 2021 to December 31, 2021.

) .. . . : Percentage of Revenue " Increase (Decrease)
Gnmillions) 2021 " 20200 - 2019 2021 . 2020 2019 T 2021v2020 . 2020v2019 |
~ Revenue | ) : . : . : . ' : .
[ Banking___ $ . .3730_% 3098 _%_ 3512 52.1 % 49.9 % 50.8 % 20% 2%
Retail : 2,281 2,080 2217 31.9% 33.5% 320% . 10 % ©(8)%
[ Hospitality__ - 848 684 843 11.9% 11.0 % 122 % 24 % (19)%)
T&T 297 345 343 - 4.1 % 5.6 % 5.0% (14)% 1%
{Consolidated Revenue $ 7,156 $ - 6,207° $ 6915 100.0.% 100.0 % 100.0 % 15 % (10)f@}
" IAdjusted EBITDA by segment___ . ] : . l-
. Banking $ 777 $ 546 $ 663 | 20.8% 17.6 % 189% - 2% ° (18)%
[ Retail ‘ 322 255 262 14.1 % 123 % _ 11.8 % 26 % _ %)
Hospiiality . 117 . 73 115 13.8 % 10.7 % 13.6 % 60 % - (37)%
[ T&T- . 40 39 57 - 135% 11.3% 16.6 % 3% (32)%)
Corporate and Other - (12) an (39) - - ,
\Total Adjusted EBITDA $ 1244 S 896 $_ 1058 174 % 14.4 % 153 % 39% . (15)%)

‘M For segment revenue, the percentage of révenue is calculated fur cach line item divided by total revenue. For segment adjusted EBITDA the pcrccnlagc of revenue is calculated for each line item divided by the related
segment revenue amount. R

Segment Revenue -
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Banking revenue increased 20% due to the inclusion of Cardtronics, as well as higher software and services revenue. Retail revenue increased 10% due to
higher point-of-sale and self-checkout solutions revenue. Hospitality revenue increased 24% driven primarily by an increase in point-of-sale solutions
revenue. T&T revenue decreased 14% in 2021 compared to 2020 driven by a decrease in services revenue.

Segment Adjusted EBITDA ~  ~ . - O N
For the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020

»Bankmg, Retail and Hospitality adjusted EBITDA increased in 2021, compared to 2020 primarily driven by higher revenie as well as cost reduction actions .
taken in the prior year. T&T adjusted EBITDA increased i in 2021 compared to 2020 driven by cost reducnon actions taken in the prior year partially offset
by lower revenue.

For the year ended December 31, 2020 cqmpared to the year ended December 31, 2019

Banking, Retail and Hospltallty adjusted EBITDA decreased in 2020 compared to 2019 pnman.ly driven by lower hardware revenue partially offset by cost
saving initiatives implemented in 2020. T&T adjusted EBITDA decreased in 2020 compared to 2019 dnven by an unfavorable mix of revenue partially
offset by the increase in revenue. - . .

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPI_TAL RESOURCES

In the year ended December 31, 2021, net cash provided by operating activities was $1.077 billion and in the year ended December 31, 2020, net cash
provided by operating activities was $641 million. The increase in net cash provided by operating activities was due to higher operating earnings as well as
the agreement entered into during the third quarter of 2021 to sell short term receivables from certain trade accounts to an unaffiliated financial institution
which provided a $300 million benefit to’ operating cash flows. Refer to Note 6, “Trade Recelvables Facility”, in the Notes to Consolidated Fmancral
Statements for more information. .

NCR’s management uses a non-GAAP measure called “free cash flow” to assess the financial performance of the Company. We previously defined free
cash flow, as net cash provided by (used in) operating activities and cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations, less capital expenditures for
property, plant and equipment, less additions to capitalized software, plus discretionary pension contributions and settlements (if any). In 2021, with the
increase in our restricted cash settlement activity and the initial sale of trade accounts receivables under the agreement entered into during the 3rd quarter,
we began defining free cash flow as net cash provided by (used in) operating activities less capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment, less
additions to capitalized software, plus/minus restricted cash settlement activity, plus acquisition-related items, less the impact from the initial sale of trade
accounts receivables under the agreement entered into during the 3rd quarter of 2021, and plus pension contributions and settlements. All periods presented
have been recast to reflect this new definition. We believe free cash flow information is useful for investors because it relates the operating cash flows from
the'Company’s continuing operations to the capital that is spent and to improve business operations. Tn particular, free cash flow indicates the amount of
cash available after capital expenditures for, among other things, investments in the Company’s existing businesses, strategic acquisitions and investments, -
repurchase of NCR stock and repayment of debt obligations. Free cash flow does not represent the residual cash flow available for discretionary
expenditures, since there may be other non-dlscrenonary expenditures that are not deducted from the measure. Free cash flow does not have a uniform
definition under GAAP, and therefore NCR’s definition .of this measure may differ from that of other companies. This non-GAAP measure should not be

consrdered a substitute for, or superior to,icash flows from operanng activities under GAAP.

N ?

The table below reconciles net cash prov1ded by (used in) operating acnvmes the most directly comparable GAAP measure, to NCR’s non-GAAP measure
of free cash flow for the years ended December 31: :
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- . In millions S L 2021 00 2009

iNet cash provided by operating activities ‘ - . B . $1,077___ $641 $634 |
Capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment . (106) 31) - 91) A
fAdditions to capitalized software ’ . - - " - (242) _(232) (238)_]
Restricted cash settlement activity - : . ) . ] (41) — (5) ’
{Transaction costs . - . 55 - = 1
Sale of accounts receivables : ) (300) — —
|Pension contribution : - - . 17 89 - 23 |

Free cash flow (non-GAAP) ’ : S . T 5460 $467 $323.

In 2021, free cash flow decreased slightly from 2020 as a result: of Higher capital ekpendirures for property, plant and equipment related to ATMs to be
deployed, and higher .additions to capitalized software of $10 million, due to an increase in mvestments related to ouf strateglc initiatives. In addition,
" working capital also mcreased pnmarlly due to mventory and the hlgher component ‘costs. :

In 2020, net cash provided by operating activities increased $7 million, which contributed to-a net increase in free cash flow of $144 million in comparison -
to 2019. Additionally, capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment decreased $60 million primarily due to the initiatives implemented earlier in
the year to address the business.impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic. Additions.to capitalized software decreased slightly $6 mrlhon as the Company
.- continued to focus on mvestment in our strategic growth platforms.

Certain financing aEuvmes' and certain other investing activities are riot included in our calculation of free cash flow. Our other investing activities
primarily include business acquisitions, investments, as well as proceeds from the sales of property, plant and equipment. During the year ended December
31, 2021, the payments for business combinations was $2 47 billion, net of cash acqunred mainly for the consideration pald related to the acquisition of
'Cardtromcs completed in 2021.

Our financing acnvmes mclude borrowrngs and repaymems of credit facrlmes and notes. During the year ended December 31, 2021, we issued new senior
unsecured notes for an aggregate principal. amount of $1.2 billion and amended and restated the senior secured credit facility to add an incremental term
loan for $1.505 billion, of which $200 million converted into the revolving credit facility. We paid $53 million of deferred financing fees related to these
. transactions. Additionally, we redeemed all of the $400 million outstanding aggregate principal amount of the Company’s 8.125% senior notes due 2025.
We paid $37 million of early redemption fees related to this transaction. The $300 million trade receivables securitization facility was extinguished as part
of the purchase agreement and the sale agreements. Refer to Note 5, “Debt Obhgauons” and- Note 6, “Trade Receivables Facility”; in the Notes to
Consolidated. Frnancnal Statemems for more information. - :

During the year ended December 31, 2020 we issued new senior unsecured notes for an aggregate pnnc1pa] amount of $1.5 brllron and we pard $21
million of deferred financing fees Telated to these transactions. Additionally, in the year ended December 31, 2020, we redeemed the $600 million
aggregate principal amount 'of 5.000% senior unsecured notes due in 2022 and $700 million aggregate principal amount of 6.375% senior unsecured notes
due in 2023. As a part of our debt extinguishment, we recognized a loss of $20 million, Wthh includes the write-off ‘of deferred financing fees of
$5 mrlhon and a cash redemption premium of $15 million. . . :

_ Financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2021 also included the proceeds from stock employee plans of $44 million and tax withholding

_payments on behalf of employees for stock based awards that vested of $50 million. Financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2020 also
included the redemptlon of the outstanding Series A Convertible Preferred Stock owned by two affiliated shareholders for a total cash consideration of
$144 million, the repurchase of our common stock for $41.million, dividends paid on the Series A preferred stock of $9 million, proceeds from stock
employee.plans of $17 million as well as tax withholding payments on behaif of employees for stock based awards that vested of $28 million.

Long Term Borrowings The senior secured credit facility consists of term loan facilities in an aggregate principal amount of $2.055 billion, of which
$1.94 billion was outstanding as of December 31, 2021. Additionally, the senior-secured credit facility provides for a five-year revolving credit facility with
an aggregate principal amount of $1.3 billion, of which $380 million was outstanding as of December 31, 2021. The revolving credit facility also allows a
portion of the avallablhty to be used for letters of credit, and as of December 31,2021, there were $26 million in letters of credit outstandmg
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As of December 31, 2021, we had outstandmg $1:2 billion in aggregate principal balance of 5.125% senior unsecured notes due in 2029, $500 mllhon in,
. aggregate principal balance of 5.750% senior unsecured notes due-in 2027, $650 million aggregate principal balance of 5.000% senior unsecured nctes due
* in 2028, $500 ‘million in aggregate principal balance of 6.125% senior unsecured notes due in 2029, and $450 million in aggregate principal balance of

5.250% senior unsecured notes due in 2030. . .. .

On August 12, 2021 (the ”Redemptton Date") the Company redeemed all of the outstanding $400 million 8. 125% Notes at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount of the 8.125% Notes plus the excess of (if any) (a) the present value at the- Redemption Date of (i) the redemption price of
8.125% Notes on April 15, 2022, plus (i) all required remaining scheduled interest payments due on the 8.125% Notes through April 15,.2022 (but
excluding accrued and unpaid interest to and excluding the Redemptlon Date), computed using a discount rate equal to the Adjusted Treasury Rate (as -
described in the terms of the indenture relating to the 8.125% Notes), over (b) the principal amount of the 8.125% Notes on the Redemption Date, and
accrued and unpard interest to and excluding the Redemption Date (the “Redempuon Price”).

" On September 30, 2021 NCR amended and restated its existing Receivables Fmancrng Agreement to modlfy certain terms of the Company’ s exlstlng,
revolving trade receivables securitization facility (the “T/R Facility”). As part of the amendment, the Company repaid the outstandmg balances under the
facility and the borrowing capacity under the facility was ehmmated . .

See Note 5, “Debt Obligations”, of the Notes to Consohdated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part 1 of this Report for further information on
the senior secured credit facility (including certain amendments to such facility), the senior unsecured notes, the trade receivables securitization facrhty and
our financing activities in connection with the Cardtronics transaction.

Employee Benefit Plans We expect to make pension, postemploymenit and postretirement plan contributions of approx1mateiy $46 million in 2022. See
Note 9, “Employee Benefit Plans”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part IT of this Report for additional dlscussmn
on our pension, postemployment and postretrrement plans. - ) N

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock In 2015, NCR issued 820,000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. As of December 31, 2021, thére
were approximately 300,000 shares that remained issued and outstanding. Holders of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to a cumulative
‘dividend at the rate of 5.5% per annum, which was payable quarterly in arrears and payable in-kind for the first sixteen dividend payments, after which,
beginning in the first quarter of 2020, are payable in cash or in- kind at the option of the Company. The holders also have certain redemption rights or put
rights, including the right to require us to repurchase all -pr any portion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock on any date during the three months
commencing on and immediately following March 16, 2024 and the three months commencing on and immediately following every third anmversary ‘of.
such date, at 100% of the hqurdanon preference plus all accrued but unpaid dividends.

Additionally, the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock is converuble at the option of the holders at any time into shares of common stock at a conversion
price of $30.00 per share, or a conversion rate of 33.333 shares of common stock per share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. As of December 31,
2021, the maximum number of common shares that could be required to be. issued upon conversion of the outstanding shares of the Series A Convertible
" Preferred Stock was 9.2 million shares which would represent approximately 7% of our outstandmg common stock as of December 31, 2021 mcludmg the
preferred shares on an as-converted basns :

Cash and' Cash Equtvalents Held by Forelgn Subsndlanes Cash and cash equlvalents held by the Company's foreign subsidiaries were $412 million and
'$329 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. As a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of:2017, including the repatriation tax, in general we
will not be subject to additional U.S. taxes if cash and cash ‘equivalents and short-term investments held outside the United States are distributed to the
Umted States in the form of dmdends ar otherwise. However, we may be subject to foreign wnhholdmg taxes, whrch could be significant.

Summary As of December 31, 2021, our cash and cash equivalents totaled $447 mr]]lon and our total debt was $5.62 billion. Our borrowing capacity
under our senior secured credit facility was $894 million at December 31, 2021. Our ability to generate positive cash flows from operations is dependent on

. general economic conditions, the competitive environment in our industry, and is subject to the business and other risk factors described in Item 1A of Part
I of this Report. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flows from operations, or otherwise comply with the terms of our credit facilities, we may be
requrred to seek addmonal financing alternatives.

We believe that we have suffrcrent liquidity based on our current cash posmon cash flows from operations and existing fmanclng to meet our expected
pensron postemployment and postretirement plan contrlbuuons remediation payments related to enwronmental
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matters, debt servu:mg obligations, payments related to transformation initiatives, and our operating requirements for the next twelve’ months and in the ’
long-term (i.e. beyond December 31, 2022) to meet our material cash requirements described below.

Material Cash Requirements from Contractual and Other Obligations In the normal course of business, we enter into various contractual dbligations
- that impact, or could impact, the liquidity: of our operations. The following table and dlscussron outlines our matenal obhgatlons as of December 31, 2021
on an undiscounted basis, with projected cash payments in the years shown:

In millions . o - Total Amounts 2022 | 2023-2024 20252006, Theseatter
Debt obligations : - $__ 56228 57 $ 592 $ - 1,673 % 3,300 |
Interest on debt obligations - : 1,553 239 467 423 424
Estimated environmental hablltty payments - 120 22 ) 35 © 20 - 43 ]
Lease obligations . 651 - 137 159 . 97 . 258
Purchase obligations - . - 1,438 1,405 25 8 —]
Total obligations- ' $ 9,384 $ 1,860 $ 1,278 § 2,221 $ 4,025

For purposes of this table, we used interest rates as of December 31, 2021 to estimate the future interest on debt obligations outstanding as of December 31,
2021 and have assumed no voluntary prepayments of existing debt. See Note 5, “Debt Obligations”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of Part 11 of this Report for addluonal dJsclosure related to our debt obligations and the related interest rate terms.

The estimated environmental Iiability payments included in the table of material cash requirements s_h_own above are related to the Fox River, Kalamazoo
River and Ebina environmental matters. The amounts shown are our expected payments, net of the payment obligations of co-obligors and an estimate for
payments to be received from indemnification parties. For additional information, refer to Note 10, “Commitments-and Contingencies”, of the Notes to
Consolidated Fmanc1al Statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Report.

Our lease obligations are pnmanly for future rental amounts for our world headquarters in Atlanta, Georgia, as well as for certain sales and manufacturlng
facilities in various domestic and 1ntemat10na] locations and leases related tq equipment and vehicles.

Purchase obligations represent committed purchase orders and other contractual commitments for goods or services. The purchase.obligation amounts were
deétermined through information in our procurement systems and payment schedules-for significant contracts. Included in the amounts are committed
payments in relation to'the long-term service agreement with Accenture under which NCR’s transaction processing activitiesand functions are performed.

We have a hablhty related to our uncertain tax positions. Due to the nature of the underlying liabilities and the extended time often needed to resolve -
_income tax uncertainties, we cannot make reliable estimates of the amount or timing of cash payments that may be required to settle these liabilities. For
addttlonal mformauan refer to Note 7, “Income Taxes”, of the Notes to Consohdated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Report.

Our U.S. and international employee benefit plans, which are described in Note 9, “Employee Benefit Plans”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8 of Part 1T of this Report, could require significant future cash payments. In 2021, we:made no discretionary contributions to
our U.S. pension plan. We'do not expect mandatory contributions until 2026 based on current funding requirements and assuming the Company does not '
complete any further actions, including, but not limited to, a further pre-fund or de-risking action. The funded status of NCR’s U.S. pension plan is an
underfunded position of $503 million as of December 31, 2021 compared to an underfunded position of $539 million as of December 31, 2020. Our
international retirement plans were in a funded positiori of $1 million as of December 31, 2021, as compared to an underfunded position of $128 million as
of December 31, 2020. The decrease in our underfunded position is primarily attributable to an increase in discount rates as well as a favorable |mpact ‘from
a mortality update. Contnbutrons to international pension plans are expected to be approxtmately $15 mrlhon in 2022.

We also have product warranties that may affect future cash flows. These items are not included in the table of obligations shown above, but are described
in detail in Note 10, “Commitments and Contingencies”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part IT of this Report.

. Our senior secured credit facility and the indentures for our senior unsecured notes include affirmative and negative coveniants that restrict or limit our
ability to, among other things, incur indebtedness; create liens on assets; engage in certain fundamental corporate
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changes or changes to our business activities; make investments; sell or otherwise dispose of assets; engage in sale-leaseback or hedging transactions; pay.
dividends or make similar distributions; repay other indebtedness; engage in certain affiliate transactions; or enter into agreements that restrict our ability to
create liens, pay dividends or make loan repayments. Our senior secured credit facility also includes financial covenants that require us to maintain:

"« A consolidated leverage ratio_on the last day of aﬁy fiscal quarter, not to exceed (i) in the ¢ase of any fiscal quarter ending on or prior to December
31, 2021, 5.50 to 1.00, (ii) in the case of any fiscal quarter ending on or prior to September 30, 2022, 5.25 to 1.00, and (iii) in the case of any fiscal
"quarter ending on or after December 31, 2022, 4.75 to 1.00. . . o

The Company has the option to elect to increase the maximum permitted leverage rai_io for the periods described in the foregoing clause (iii) by 0.25 in
connection with the consummation of any material acquisition (as defined in the Senior Secured Credit Facility) for three fiscal quarters. ’

,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. In connection ‘with the preparation of these financial statements, we are
required to make assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and the related disclosure
of contingent liabilities. These assumptions, estimates and judgments are based on historical experience and are believed to be reasonable at the time.
However, because future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty, the determination of estimates requires the exercise of judgment. Our
critical accounting policies are those that r'equire assumptions to be made about matters that are highly uncertain. Different estimates could have a material
impact on our financial results. Judgments and uncertainties affecting the application of these policies and estimates may result in materially different .
amounts being reported under different conditions or circumstances. Qur management continually reviews these assumptions, estimates and judgments to
ensure that our financial statements are presented »féirly and are materially correct. o
In many cases, the accounting treatment of a particular transaction is specifically dictated by GAAP and does not require significant management judgment
in its application. There are also areas in which management’s judgment in selecting among available alternatives would not produce a materially different
result. The significant accounting policies and estimates that we believe are the most critical to aid in fully -understanding .and evaluating our reported
financial results are discussed in the paragraphs below. Our senior management has reviewed these critical accounting estimates and related’ disclosures.
with our independent registered public accounting firm and the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors. See Note 1, “Basis of Presentation and
. Significant ‘Accounting Policies”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Ttem 8 of Part 11 of this Report, which contains additional
information regarding our accounting policies and other disclosures required by GAAP. : C ' :
Revenue Recognition We enter into contracts to sell our products and services, which may be sold separately or bundled with other products and services.
As a result, interpretation and judgment are sometimes required to determine the appropriate accounting for these transactions, including: (1) whether.
performance obligations are considered distinct that should be accounted for separately versus together, how the price should be allocated among the -
performance obligations, and when to recognize revenue for each performance obligation; (2) developing an estimate of the stand-alone selling price, or
SSP, of each distinct performance obligation; (3) combining contracts that may impact the allocation of the transaction price between product and services;
"and (4) estimating and accounting for-variable consideration, including rights of return, rebates, expected penalties or other price concessions as a reduction
of the transaction price. . : ’ . ’
Our estimates of SSP for each performance obligation require judgment that considers multiple factors, including, but not limited to, historical discounting
trends for products and services, pricing practices in different geographies and industries, gross margin objectives, and internal costs. Qur estimates for
*, rights of return and rebates are based on historical sales returns and credits, specific criteria outlined in customer contracts or rebate agreements, and other
factors known at the time. Our estimates for expected penaities and other price concessions are based on historical trends and expectations regarding future
occurrence. - .

Changes in judgments with respect to these assumptions and estimates could impact the timing or amount of revenue recognition. Additional information
regarding our revenue recognition policy is included in Note 1, “Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies” in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. . ) ' ' :

Inventory. Valuation We assess the valuation of. our inventory ona periodic basis and make adjustments to the value to properly provide for potential

exposure due to slow-moving, excess, obsolete or unusable inventory. Inventories are written down to net realizable value based on forecasted usage of

part, sales orders, technological absolescence and inventory aging. These factors can be impacted by market conditions, technology changes, changes in )
strategic direction, and customer demand.and require estimates '
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and management Judgmen( that may include elemems that are uncertain. On a quaiterly basis, we review the current net realuable value of mventory and
adjust for any inventory exposure due to age, obsolescence or excess of cost over net realizable value.

Goodwill Goodwill is tested at the reporting unit level for impairment on an annual basis during.the fourth quarter or more frequently if certain events
occur indicating that the carrying value of goodwill may be impaired. A significant amount of judgmént is involved. in determining if an-indicator of
impairment has occurred. Such indicators may include a decline in expected cash flows, 4 significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business
climate, a decnsmn to sell a business, unanticipated competition, or slower growth rates, among others.

. In the evaluation of goodwill for impairment, -we have the option to perform a qualitatiife assessment to determine whether further impairment testing is .
necessary or to perform a quantitative assessment by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill. Under the
qualitative assessment, an entity is not required to calculate the fa'irivalue of a reporting unit unless the entity determines that it is more likely than not that
its fair value is less than its carrying amount. If under the quantitative assessment the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, then the
amount of the impairment loss, if any, is determiried based on the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair vaiue up to the total value of
goodwill assigned to the reporting unit. Fair values of the reporting units are estimated using a weighted methodology considering the output from both the
income and market approaches. The income approach incorporates the use of a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) analysis. A number of significant
assumptions and estimates are involved in the application of the DCF model to forecast operating cash flows, including revenue growth, operating income
margin and discount rate. Several of these assumptions vary among reporting units. The cash flow forecasts are generally based on approved strategic
operating plans. The market approach is performed using the Guideline Public Companies (“GPC”) method which is based on earnings multiple data. We
perform a reconciliation between our market capitalization and our estlmate of the aggregate fair value of the Teporting units, including consideration of a

control premium. ' : :

Valuation of Long-lived Assets and Amortizable Other Intangible Assets We perform impairment tests for our long-lived assets if an event or -
circumstance indicates that the carrying amount of our long-lived assets may not be recoverable. In response to changes in industry and market conditions,

- we may also strategically realign our resources and consider restructuring,. disposing of, or- otherwise exiting businesses. Such activities could result iri

"impairment of our long-lived assets or other intangible assets. We also are subject to the possibility of impairment of long-lived assets arising in the
ordinary course of business. We consider the likelihood of impairment if certain events occur indicating that the carrying value of the long lived assets may
be impaired.and we may recognize impairment if the carrying amount of a long-lived asset or intangible asset is not recoverable from its undiscounted cash
flows. Impairment is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset. We use both the income approach and market
approach to estimate fair value. Our estimates of fair value are subject to a high degree of judgment since they include a long -term forécast of future
operations. Accordmgly, any value ultimately derived from our long-lived assets may differ from our esumale of fair value

We make strategic acquisitions that may have a material impact on our consolidatéd results of operations or financial position. We allacate the purchase
price of acquired businesses to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction at their estimated fair values. The estimates used to determine-
the fair value of long-lived assets, such as intangible assets, can be complex and require significant judgments. We use information available to us to make
fair value determinations and engage mdependent valuation specialists, when necessary, to assist in the fair value determlnatlon of significant acquired
. long-lived assets. The determination of fair value requires estiinates about cash flow forecasts, discount rates, revenue growth’ rates, EBITDA margin,
customer attrition rate, and other future events that are judgmental in nature. While we use our best estimates and assumptions as a part of the purchase
price allocation process, our estimates are inherently uncertain and subject to refinement. As a result, during the measurement period, which may be up to
one year from the acquisition date, we may record adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, with the corresponding offset to goodwill.
Any adjustments subsequent to the measurement period are recorded to our consolidated statements of income. We are also required to estimate the useful
lives of intangible assets to determine the amount of acquisition-related intangible asset amortization expense to record in future periods. Additional
information regarding our acquisitions is included in Note 3, “Business Combinations and Divestitures”,in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Pension, Postretirement and Postemployment Benefits We sponsor domestic and foreign defined benefit pension and postemployment plans as well as
- domestic postretirement plans. As a‘result, we have significant pension, postretirement and postemployment benefit costs, which are developed from
actuarial valuations. Actuarial assumptions attempt to anticipate future events and are used in calculating the expense and liability relating to these plans.
"These factors include assumptions we make about interest rates, expected | investment return on plan assets, involuntary turnover rates, and rates of future.
compensation increases. In addition, our actuarial consultants advise us about subjective factors such as withdrawal rates and martality rates to use in our
valuations. We generally review and update these assumptions on an annual basis at the end of each fiscal year. We are required to consider current market
condmons including changes in interest rates, in makmg these assumptions. The actuarlal assumptions that :
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wﬂhngness of the co- obllgors or mdemmtors to pay. The uncertainties related to the Ebina matter mclude total cost of clean-up subject to approval by local
agencies in Japan.

Our net reserves for the Fox River matter, the Kalamazoo River matter and the Ebina matter, as of December 31, 2021 were approximately $26 million,
$99 million, and $16 million, respectively, as further discussed in Note 10, “Commitments’and Contingencies”, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8 of Part II of this Report. The Company regularly re-evaluates the assumptions used in determmmg the appropriate reserve for these
matters as additional information becomes available and, when warranted makes appropriate adjustments.

Income Taxes We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis
of assets and liabilities. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the enacted tax rates expected to apply in the periods in thCh the
" deferred tax assets or liabilities are anncrpated to, be settled or realized.

We regularly review our deferred tax assets for recoverability and establish a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a
. deferred tax asset will not be realized. The determinatior as to whether a deferred tax asset will be realized is made on a jurisdictional basis and is based on
the evaluation of positive and negative evidence. This evidence includes historical taxable income, projected future taxable income, the expected timing of
the reversal of existing temporary differences and the implementation of tax planning strategies. Projected future taxable income is based on our expected
results and assumptions as to the jurisdiétion in which the income will be earned. The expected timing of the reversals of existing tempotary differences is
based on current tax law and our tax metheds of ' accounting. As aresult of this determination, we had valuation allowances of $368 million as of December
31, 2021 and $341 million as of December 31, 2020, related to certain deferred income tax assets, primarily tax loss carryforwards, in ]urlsdlctlons where
there is uncertainty as to the ultimate realization of a benefit from those tax assets.

" If we are unable to generate sufficient future taxable income, or if there is a material change in the actual effective tax rates or the time period within which
the underlying temporary differences become taxable or deductible, or if the tax laws change unfavorably, then we could be required to .increase our
valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets, resultlng in an increase in 1 our effective tax rate. :

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more Iikely than not that the tax position will be sustained on -
examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the consolidated financial statéments
from suchra position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement. Interest and
penalties: related to uncertain tax positions are recognized as part of the provision for income taxes and are accrued begtnmng in the period that such
lnterest and penaltles would be applicable under relevant tax law until such time that the related tax benefits are recognized.

During 2019 we transferred certain intangible assets, among our wholly-owned subsrdlarles which resulted in the establishment of deferred tax assets of
$274 million. The establishment of deferred tax assets’ from intra- -entity transfers of intangible assets required us to make significant estimates and
- assumptions to determiine the fair. value of such intangible assets. Critical estlmates in valuing the intangible assets include; but are not limited to, internal
revenue and expense forecasts, and discount rates. The sustalnablhty of our future tax benefits is, dependent upon the acceptance of these valuation
estimates and assumptions by the taxing authorities.

. The provision for income taxes may change period-to-period based on non-recurring events, such as the settlement of income tax audits and changes in tax
laws,.as well as recurring factors including the geographic mix of income before taxes, state and local taxes and the effects of various global income tax
- strategies. We maintain certain strategic management and operational activities in overseas subsidiaries and our foreign earnings are taxed at rates that are
generally lower than in the United States. As of December 31, 2021, we did not provide for U.S. federal income taxes or foreign withholding taxes on
approximately $3.5 billion of undistributed earnings of our foréign subsidiaries as such earnings are expected to be reinvested indefinitely. The amount of
unrecogmzed deferred tax liability associated with these indefinitely reinvested earnings is approximately $145 million. '

Refer to Note 7, “Income Taxes”, in the Notes to Consolidated Flnancral Statements in [tem 8 of Part II of this Report for disclosures related to foreign and
domestic pretax income, foreign and domestic income tax (behefit) expense and the effect foreign taxes have on our overall effective tax rate.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

A discussion of recently issued aecounting -pronouncernents is described in Note 1, “Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies”, of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part II of this Report, and we incorporate by reference such discussion in this MD&A.
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Item-7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Market Risk

We are exposed to market risks primarily from changes in foreign’ currency exchange rates and interest rates. It is our policy to manage our foreign

exchange exposure and debt structure in order to manage capital costs, control financial risks and maintain financial flexibility over the long term. In

managing market risks, we employ derivatives according to documented policies and procedures, including -foreign currency contracts and interest rate

swaps. We do not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. - - - ’
+ .

.

Foreign Exchange Risk

. Since a substantial portion of our operations and revenue occur outside the United States, and in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar, our results can be
significantly impacted by changes in foreign currency exchange rates. We have exposure to approximatély 50 functional currenciés and are exposed to
foreign currency exchange risk with respect to our sales, profits and assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar. Although we
use financial instruments to hedge certain foréign currency risks, we are not fully protected against foreign currency fluctuations and our reported results of -
operations could be affected by changes in foreign currency exchange rates. To manage our. exposures and mitigate the impact of currency fluctuations on -
the operations of our foreign subsidiaries, we hedge our main transactional exposures through the use of foreign exchange forward and option contracts.
This is primarily done through the hedging of foreign currency denominated inter-company inventory purchases by-the marketing units and the foreign
currency denominated inputs to our manufacturing units. All of these transactions are forecasted. If these contracts are designated as highly effective cash
flow hedges, the gains or losses are deferred into accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI”).The gains or losses from derivative contracts that are
designated as highly éffective cash flow hedges related to inventory purchases are recorded in cost of products when the inventory is sold to an unrelated
third party. Otherwise, the gains or losses from these contracts are recognized in earnings as exchange rates change. We also use derivatives not designated
as hedging instruments consisting primarily of forward contracts to hedge foreign currency denominated balance sheet exposures. For these derivatives we
recognize gains and losses in the same period as the remeasurement losses and gains of the related foreign cui'rency-denqminated exposures.

We utilize non-exchange traded financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts, that we purchase exclusively from highly
rated financial institutions. We record these ‘contracts on our balance sheet at fair market value based upon market price quotations from the financial
institutions. We do not enter into non-exchange traded contracts that require {the.use of fair value estimation techniques, but if we did, they could have a
material impact on our financial results. ' : ' - ’

For purposes of analyzing potential risk, we.use sensitivity analysis to quantify potential impacts that market rate changes may have on the fair values of
our hedge portfolio related to firmly committed or forecasted transactions. The sensitivity analysis represents the hypothetical changes in value of the hedge
position and does not reflect the related gain or loss on the forecasted underlying transaction. A 10% appreciation or depreciation in the value of the U.S.
Doliar against foreign currencies from the prevailing market rates would have resulted in a corresponding increase or decrease of $20 million as of
December 31, 2021 in the fair value of the hedge portfolio. The Compary expects that any increase or decrease in the fair value of the portfolio would be
substantially offset by increases or decreases in the underlying exposures being hedged. )

The U.S. Dollar was slightly weaker in 2021 compared to 2020 based on comparable weighted averages for our functional currencies. This had a favorable
impact of 1% on 2021 revenue versus 2020 revenue. This excludes the effects of our hedging activities and, therefore, does not reflect the actual impact of
fluctuations in exchange rates on our operating income. .

- Interest Rate Risk .

We are subject. to interest rate risk principally in relation to variable-rate debt. Approximately 59% of our borrowings were on a fixed rate basis as of
December 31, 2021. The increase in pre-tax interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 from a hypothetical 100 basis point increase in variable
interest rates would be approximately $12 million. ' 3

"We utilize interest rate cap agreements to add stability to interest expense and to manage exposure to interest rate movements as part of our interest rate risk
' management strategy. Payments and receipts related to interest rate cap agreements are included in cash flows from operating activities in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash. Flows. )
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As our ATM vault cash rental expense is based on market rates of interest, it is sensitive to changes in'the general level of interest rates in the respective .
countries in'which we operate. We pay a monthly fee on the average outstanding vault cash balances in our ATMs under floating rate formulas based on a.
spread above various interbank offered rates. The increase in vault cash rental expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 from a hypothetical 100 basis
pom[ increase in variable interest rates would be approxnmate]y $44 mllhon excluding the |mpact from outstandlng interest rate cap agreements.

" Concentrations of Credit Risk )
We are potentially subject.to concentrations of credit risk on accounts receivable and financial instruments, such as hedging instruments and cash and cash
equivalents. Credit risk includes the risk of nonperformance by'counterparties. The maximum potential loss may exceed the amount recognized on the
balance sheet. Exposure to credit risk is managed through credit approvals, credit lirits, selecting major international financial institutions as counterparties ‘
‘to hedging transactions and monitoring procedures. Our business often involves large transactions with customers for which we do not require collateral, If
one or more of those customers were to default in its obligations under applicable contractual arrangements, we could be exposed to potentially Slgnlflcant
losses. Moreover, a prolonged downturn in the global economy could have an adverse impact on the ability of our customers to pay their obligations on a
timely basis. We believe that the reserves for potential losses are adequate. As of December 31, 2021, we did not have any mgmﬁcan[ concentration of
credit risk related to financial instruments. :

Index to Financial Statements and Sﬁpplementa_l Data
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Item 8. FINANCIA.I'.,:STATEMENTS' AND SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

Report of Indépendedl Registered Public Acqouriting Firm '

Td the Board of Directors and Stockholders of NCR Corporation

Opinions O;I ghe Fiﬁancial Statements and Internal Contr_al over Financidf _I'erorting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NCR Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2021 and
2020, and the related consolidated statements of operations, of comprehensive income (loss), of stockholders’ equity and of cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2021, including the related notes and financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2)
(collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”).We also have audited the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgamzanons
of the Treadway Commlsswn (COS0). :

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control oveér financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria estabhshed in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the COSO

Basis for Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting,

and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting appearing under Ttem 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and on the Company's

internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securmes laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securmes and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtam reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due 10. error or fraud, and whether effective
“internal control over fmancnal reporting was maintained in all material respects. .
Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to.error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by mianagement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit. of .internal
control over financial reporting iricluded obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also 1ncluded performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstarices. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As described in Management’s Report on Tnternal Control over Financial Reporting, management has excluded Cardtronics plc from its assessment of
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021 because it was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination during
2021. We have also excluded Cardtronics plc: from our audit of internal control over financial reporting. Cardtronics plc is a wholly-owned subsidiary
whose total assets and total revenues excluded from management’s assessment and our audit of 1ntemal control over financial reporting represent
approximately 8% and 9%, respecuvely, of the related consolldated f1nanc1al statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporung ) . .
A comipany’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting -
- and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally-accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dlsposmons of the assets of
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the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in- accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness td future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
comphance with the policies or procedures may deterlorate

Critical Audit Matters

.

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising’ from the current period audit of the consolidated. financial statements that was
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated
financial statements and (ii) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or. complex:judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not
alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below,
provrdmg a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates. :

Acquisition of Cardtronics plc - Valuation of Certain Direct Cu_stomer Relationships and Technology — Software

As described in Notes 1 and 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company completed the acquisition of Cardtronics plc for total purchase

consideration of $2.7 billion on June 21, 2021. The fair value of consideration transferred was allocated to the identifiable intangible assets acquired and

liabilities assumed based upon their estimated fair value which resulted in the recognition of $864 million of intangible assets. Identifiable intangible assets

- primarily consist of direct customer relationships of $373 million and technology — software of $441 million. In determining the fair value, management

utilized various forms of the income, cost, and market approaches depending on the asset. The estimation of fair value required significant judgment related’
to cash flow forecasts, discount rates reflecting the risk inherent in each cash flow stream, competitive trends, market comparables, and other factors. Inputs

were generally determined using historical data supplemented by current and anticipated market conditions, and growth rates. Direct customer relationships

and technology - software were valued using an excess earnings method. Significant assumptions used in the discounted cash flow analysis for (i) direct

customer relationships were the revenue growth rate, customer attrition rate, and discount rate, and (ii) technology - software were the revenue growth rate,

earnings before interest, taxes, deprecmtlon and amortization (“EBITDA”) margins, and discount rate.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the acquisition of Cardtronics plc - valuation of certain direct
customer relationships and technology — software is a critical audit matter.are (i) the significant judgment by management when developing the fair value
estimates of the intangible assets acquired; (ii) the significant auditor judgment, subjectivity, and effort in performing procedures evaluating management’s
estimates of the fair value of the direct customer relationships and technology - software and significant assumptions related to the revenue growth rate,
customer attrition rate, and discount rate used in the valuation of direct customer relationships and the revenue grqwth rate, EBITDA margins,.and discount
rate used in the valuanon of technology - software; and (iii) the audit effort |nvolved the use of professionals with specialized skill and knowledge. -

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overal] opinion on the 'consolidated
financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of certain controls relating to the valuation of the acquired intangible assets,
including controls over management’s valuation of direct customer relationships and technology - software and controls over the development of
51gmf1cant assumptions related to the revenue growth rate, customer attrition rate, and EBITDA margin used in the valuation of direct customer
relationships and the revenue growth rate, EBITDA margins, and discount rate used in the valuation of technology - software. These procedures also
included, among others (i) reading the purchase agreement and (ii) testing management’s process for estimating the fair value of certain direct customer
relationships and technology - software. Testing management’s process included evaluating the appropriateness of the excess earnings method, testing the
completeness and accuracy of data used by management, and evaluating the reasonableness of significarit assumptions used by management related to the
revenue growth rate, customer attrition rate, and- discount rate used in the valuation of the_direct customer relationships and the revenue growth rate,
EBITDA margins, and discount rate used in the valuation of technology - software. Evaluating the reasonableness of management’s significant assumptions
related to the revenue growth rate and customer attrition rate used in the valuation of the direct customer relationships and revenue growth rate and
EBITDA margins used in the valuation of the technology — software involved considering (i) the past performance of the acquired business, (ii) the
consistency with external market and industry'data, and (iii) whether these assumptions were consistent with evidence obtained in other areas of
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the audit. Professmnals with specialized skill and knowledge were used to assist in the evaluauon of the appropriateness of the Company’s excess earnings
method and the reasonableness of the customer attrition rate and dlscount rate significant assumptions. ,

‘\./ .

/s/ PrlcewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Atlanta, Georgia
. February 25, 2022

We have served as the Company’s audiiqr since 1993.
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NCR Corporation . .

Consolidated Statements of Comprehénsive Income (Loss)

For the years ended December 31 (ln mlllmns) . . ' . ’ 2021 -
Net income (l0ss) & . Vasx 87 % 8324y "3 34 ;
Other comprehensive income (loss): .
{Currency translation adjustments ;73" R SRR ORI TR TR
Currency translation adjustments ’ - - C ) (30) 15 (29)

Derivatives | m?@_’n T Oy T T et

\Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives

Less inc mcome tax beneﬁt (expense) . ' ’ - [}

" Prior service benefit
$; Amortization of prior service cost ..
Net gain (loss) arising during the period
TAmortization of actuarial gain (1085) =g, et K, T e
Less income tax benefit (expense)

Other comprehensive income (loss) ™77 =, 7 b a3 RN ;33;'.*-( g T T 3 VR (207 L S e (2) ¢ B 1R (26)]
Total comprehenswe income (loss) - : 78 . (80) - : 538
‘Less comprehenswe mcome attributable to noncontrolhng INGETESIS: = Eorrds %o T "'f?’l v £ & i ‘
Netincome 1 1 -
Ei Currency translation a ad]ustmems e L Ay oy ‘;»‘(}‘ IR B IR " @.-‘ugal R R i A P DN 2F1(3)]
Amounts attributable to noncontrollmg interests . 1 1 (3)

YT o T ; ¥ P
omprehensnve income (loss) attributable to NCR common stockholders” A AT A A 477’ $ 2L (B1)TS K EI g ‘541 |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of. the Consolidated Financial Statements. -

55




Table of Contents

NCR Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December 31 (in millions except per share amounts) : ’ 2021 2020
tAssets : |
Current assets . - ' .
{___Cash and cash’ eqmvalents $ 47 * $ 338]
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $24 and $51 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respecnve]y - oo 959 C,117
I___Inventories : 754 601 }
Restricted cash ’ o - 295 59
| Other current assets . 421 363]
Total current assets ' . - 2,876 2,478
_ iProperty, plant and equipment, net . i . 703 373]
Goodwill o . : © 4,519 2,837
Intangibles, net . 1,316 _ 532
Operating lease assets . : o . . 419 344
PPrepaid pension cost . . - 300 199
Deferred income taxes . ) . 732 965
{Other assets i i 776 _ 686 ]
Total assets - : , ’ : $ 11,641 § 8,414
LLiabilities and stockholders’ equity |
Current liabilities ) - - .
| __Short-term borrowings . . $ 57 % 8}
Accounts payable ' : . ) © : 826 632
[ Payroll and benefits liabilities 389 268
Contract liabilities : ) ’ 516 507
|__ Settlement liabilities i ' . 263 31
" Other current liabilities ' N - : . 757 642
{Total current liabilities < 2,808 2,0881
Long-term debt - : - . ' 5,505 3,270.
{Pension and indemnity, plan liabilities i : 789 851]
Postretirement and postemployment benef:ts ]labI]ItIES . : ) 119 120
(Income tax accruals j 116 102
Operating lease liabilities . . 388 325
" [Other liabilities 383 334]
Total liabilities . ) : 10,108 7,090
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 10) " |
Series A convertible preferred stock: par value $0.01 per share, 3.0 shares authorlzed 0.3 shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively; redempuon amount and liquidation preference
of $276 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respecuvely ] 274 273
'Stockholders’ equity - |
NCR stockholders’ equity .
Preferred stock: par value $0.01 per share, 100.0 shares authorlzed no shares issued and outstanding as
of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively - —
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share, 500.0 shares authorized, 132.2 and 129.1 shares issued and o
" outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 respectively 1 1
|___Paid-in capital . ) * 515 368
Retained earnings . o ' 1,031 950
L__ Accumulated other comprehensive loss - (291) (271)!
Total NCR stockholders’ equity ' : ) : : 1,256 1,048
- INoncontrolling interests in subsidiaries . L 3 _ : 3]
Total stockholders’ equity ' . A : 1,259 ) 1,051 °
fTotal liabilities and stockholders’ equity . - ) $ .. 11,641 § 8,414

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NCR Corporation

) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31 (in mllllons) - . 2021 - ] . 2020 2019
Opera(mg activities - i . . . ’ i
. Net income (loss) ) : $ . 98 $ (78) $ 564
Ifi\gjustmens to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: B - ]
Loss from discontinued operations . ) — 72 50
[ Loss on debt extinguish : : . ; 42 20 =]
Depreciation and amortization . - 517 - 364 333
[ Stock-based compensation exp . : 154 i 108 107_]
Deferred income taxes’ ) L. : . B89 (112) ' (355)
. {__impairment of other assets . 24 45 - 2]
_Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment . ! : — : (1) . (6)
{__Bargain purchase gain on acquisition . - =t @D.. =
Changes in assets and liabilities: : . ) - .
{ - Recejvables . . ) : 215 . ) 420 —(144)]
. ‘Inventories . . : (195) 168 5
{ Current payables and accrued expenses . 255 g © (295)> - | (20)}
" Contract liabilities Co- . (15) R 2. . 31,
C Employee benefit plans . - (147) (51) 59]
Other assets and liabilities : . ' ) - 40 (15) . 8
[Net cash provided by operating activities ) : 1,077 i 641 634
Investing activities ) ) . . ’ ’ . - :
[ Expenditures for property, plant and equipment R " . (106) (31) . 91)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment - ’ . : 1 : 7 1
I Additions to capitalized software ! : (242) (232) (238)]
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (2,473) (25) (203)
[ Purchases of short-term in T ; — - 13) (20) =]
Proceeds from sales of short-term investments . ) : 14 .27 —
[ Other investing activities, net § - (D ; ~(3) 9}
Net cash used in investing activities ) . to . (2,826) (277) . (512)
'Financing activities R . ) . ]
Payments of senior unsecured notes * . . . . (400) T (1,300) (S00)
[~ Payments on term credit facilities - (107) (12) (761)]
. Payments on revolving credit facilities : ’ . . (1,650) (1,998) - (3,216)
‘ Borrowings on term-credit facilities . . . 1,505 4° . 750]
Borrowings on revolving credit facilities . . . 1,756 ) 1,535 ! 3,535
[ ‘Proceeds from issuance of seniot unsecured notes - 1,200 " 1,500 1,000}
" Debt issuance costs and bridge commitment fees . . (53) (21) (32)
{ " Call premium paid on debt-extinguish . (37) (15) —1
Cash dividend pald for Series A Preferred shares d|V|dends . - . (s) - . N )] . —
[[_Repurchase of Series A Preferred shares . — - (144) (302)}
Repurchases of common stock o : — . (41) . (96)
[ Proceeds from employee stock plans_- » 44 17 “16]
Tax withholding payments on behalf of employees : (50) (28) (29)
[ Net'change in client funds obligations 4 12 (15)]
" Principal payments for finance lease obligations : . . . ) \a7n (13) . (4)
™ Purchase of nonconurolling i interest ) . . — — (3)_}
Other financing activities . R : (2) . (1) (4)
iNet cash provided by (used in) financing activities : ) . 2,178 (514) - (61)]
Cash flows fram disc i d operations . . . . .
{ Net cash provided byiused in) discontinued operations - (68) —— (24_)1
_ Efféct of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash L. (18 7 . (6)
Increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalénts and restricted cash 343 (157) - 31)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period ’ 406 : 563 . T 532
LCash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period . $ 749 $ 406 .$ 563 §
‘Supplemental data__ ~ R 1
Cash paid during the year for: . L - .. o . )
- /income taxes - $ . 84_ S 82§ 61}

Tnterest . ) . ’ : s 215§ 196 .$ ) 168

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NCR Staockholders
Common Stock
’ Accumulated Other Noncontrolling.

: Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Interests in
in millions Shares Amount Capital Earnings (Loss) Income Subsidiaries Total
‘December 31, 2018 118 1 34 _$ 606 $ (246) _$ 4 3 399§
Comprehensive income (loss): . ’
[ Netiincome (loss) — — — 564 — 2 566 |

Other comprehensive income (loss) — — — v — (23) (2) (25)
1Total comprehensive income (loss) — — — 564 (23) —— 5411
Employee stock purchase and stock compensation plans 3 — 94 — — — 94 -
iRedemption of Series A preferred stock dividends 9 — 272 67) — — 265—]
Repurchase of Company common stock. 3) — (96) - — — - (96)
[Series A convertible preferred stock dividends — — — (43) o — —(43)]

- Dividends paid to minority shareholder —_ — — —_ — m (1)

[Purchase of redeemable non-controlling interest — — 8 — ) — — 8]
December 31, 2019 127 1 312 8 1,060 $ (269) $ 3 S 1,107,
Comprehensive income (10ss): - 1

Net income (loss) — — — {(79) —_ 1 (78)
E-aiher compreﬁn_sive income ﬂoss) — —_ — — (2) — @)
“Total comprehensive income (loss) — — — (79) (2) (80)
‘Employee stock purchase and stock Compensation plans ] — 97 = — = 971
Deemed dividend from redemption of Series A preferred stock - — L —_ (12) — _ - (12)
CEEJTJEMCompEEy common stock 2 — (4]') — — — (t}_l)J

- Series A convertible preferred stock dividends — — — (19) _ — (19)

‘Dividends paid to minority shareholder . — — —_— — . —_ ) (1)‘)
December 31, 2020 129 1 368 $ 950 '$ (271) § 3 8 1,051
{Comprehensive income (loss): )|

Net income (loss) —_ —_ -— 97 —_ 1 98
[T other comprehensive income (loss) — = — — (20) — (20)]
Total comprehensive income (loss) . — — — - 97 (20) 1 78
Wmmk compensation plans 3 — 128 — — — 128]
Fair value of converted Cardtronics awards attributable to pre-
combination services —_ — 19 - — - — 19
'Seriés A convertible preferred stock dividends = — — (16) — — (16);
Dividends paid to minority shareholder —_ —_ —_ _ —_ m (1)
December 31, 2021 132 1 515 $ 1,031 _§ . (291)_$ 35, 1259]
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Busmess NCR Corporation (“NCR”, the “Company”, “we” or “us”) was originally incorporated in 1884 and is a software- and serwces-led
enterprise technology provider that runs stores, restaurants and self-directed banking for cur customers, whicli includes busmesses of all sizes. Our software
platform, which runs in the cloud and includes microservices and APIs that integrate with our customers’ systems, and our NCR-as-a-Service solutions
bring together all of the capabilities and competencies of NCR to power the technology to run our customers’ operations. Our portfolio includes digital first
software and services offerings for banking, retailers and restaurants, as well as payments processing and networks, multi-vendor connected device

- services, automated teller machines (“ATMs"), self-checkout (“SCO”), paint of sale (“POS”) terminals and other seif-service technologies. We also resell
third-party networking products and provide related service offerings in the telecommunications and technology sector. Our soluuons are de51gned to
support our transition to becomlng a software platform and payments company.

Use of Esnma(es The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”)
requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
" liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and revenue and expenses during the periods reported.

Although our estimates contemplate current and expected future conditions, as applicable, it is reasonably possible that actual conditions could differ from
our expectations, which could materially affect our results of operations and financial position. In particular, a number of estimates have been and will
continue to be affected by the ongoing novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic. The ultimate impact on our overall financial condition and operating
results will depend on the currently unknowable duration and severity of the pandemic, supply chain challenges and cost escalations including materials,
labor-and freight, and any additional governmental and public actions taken in response. As a result, our accounting estimates and assumptions may change
over time as a consequence of the effects of COVID-19. Such changes could result in future impairments of goodwill, intangible assets, long-lived assets,
incremental credit losses on accounts receivable and decreases in the carrying amount of our tax assets.

Subsequent Events The Company evaluated subsequent events r.hrough the date (hat our Consolidated Financial Statefnems were issued. Other than the -
items, discussed below and within the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, no matters were identified that required adjustment of the Consolidated
Financial Statements or additional disclosure. .

Change in reportable segments Effective January 1,.2022, the Company realigned its reportable segments to correspond with changes to its operating
model, management structure and organizational responsibilities. The reportable segments effective January 1, 2022include: Payments & Network; Digital
Banking, Self-Service Banking, Retail, and Hospitality. Addmona]ly, effective January 1, 2022, the Company manages Corporate & Other, which includes.
income and expense that are not spec1f|cally attributable to an individual reportable segment and thus will be ref]ected only in consolidated results, as well
. as our Telecommunications & Technology business, an immaterial operaung segment.

Completed acquisition of LibertyX On January 5, 2022, NCR completed its-acquisition of Moon Inc. dba LibertyX, for which we purchased all outstandmg '
shares for approximately 1.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock and as a result LibertyX will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of NCR in
-the first quarter of 2022. leertyX is a leadmg cryptocurrency software provider. The initial accounting for the business combination is’incomplete as a
result of the timing of the acqu1smon :

Executed interest rate swap contract On 'J_anuary 18, 2022, the Comipany entered into an interest rate swap contract to hedge its exposure on variable
interest rates on vault cash rental obligations. The swap was implemented at a notional value of $250 million and protects the Company against potential
- interest rate fluctuations in line with our interest rate risk management strategy outlined in Note 13, “Derivatives and Hedging Instruments”.

Basis of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NCR and its majority-owned subsidiaries. Long-term investments in
affiliated companies in which NCR owns between 20% and 50%, and Lherefore exercises SIgmflcant influence, but which it does not control, are accounted
for using the equity methad. Investments in which NCR does not exercise significant influence (generally, when NCR has an investment of less than 20%
and no significant influence, such as representation on the investee’s board of directors) are accounted for using the cost method. All'significant
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inter-company transactions and accounts have been eliminated. In addition, the Company is requrred to determine whether it is the primary benef1c1ary of

economic income or losses that may be generated by variable interest entities in which the Company has such an interest. In circumstances where the
Company determined it is the primary beneficiary, consolidation of that entity would be required. For the periods presented no varlable interest entities

have been consolidated.

On Juné 21, 2021, we completed the acquisition of Cardtronics plc (“Cardtronics”). The December 31, 2021 year-to-date results include the operations of
Cardtromcs from June 21, 2021 to December 31, 2021. Refer to Note 3, “Business Combinations and Dlvesnrures" for additional. dlsclosure
Reclassifications Certain pnor-penod amounts have been reclassified in Lhe accompanymg -Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto in order
to conform to the current period presentation.

.

Revenue Recognition The Company records revenue, net of sales tax, when the following five steps have been completed:

» Identification of the cdntract(s) with a customer

+ . -Identification of the performance obligation(s) in the contract

»  Determination of the transaction price )

*  Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
*  Recognition of revenue when, or as, we satisfy performance obligations

The Company records revenue when, or as, performance obligations are satisfied by transferring control of a promlsed good or service to the customer, in
an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to be entitled to in exchange for products and services. The Company evaluates the transfer of control
primarily from the customer’s perspective where the customer has the ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from
that good or service. The Company does not adjust the transactJon price for taxes collected from customers, as those amounts are netted agamst amounts
remitted to government authorities.

NCR enters contracts that mclude multiple drsunct performance obligations, including hardware, software, professional consulting and managed services,
payment processing services, installation services and maintenance support services. A promise to a customer is considered distinct when the product or

service is both capable of being distinct, and distinct in the context of the contract. For these arrangements, the Company allocates the transaction price, at. = -

contract inception, to each distinct performance obligation on a relative standalone selling price basis. The primary method used to estimate standalone
selling price is the price that the'Company charges for that good or service when the Company sells it separately in SImllar circumstances to similar
customers.

For hardware products, control is generally transferred when the customer has the ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the remammg
benefits of the products, which generally coincides with when the customer has assumed title and risk of loss of the goods sold. In certain instances,
customer acceptance is required prior to the passage of title and risk of loss of the delivered products. Insuch cases, revenue is not recogmzed until the
‘customer acceptance is obtained. Delivery, acceptance, and transfer of title and risk of loss generally occur in the same reporting period. NCR's customers
may request that delivery and passage of title and risk of loss occur on a bill and hold basis. For the period ending December 31, 2021 and 2020, the -
Jrevenue recognized from bill and hold transactions was less than 1% of total revenue in both years. Hardware products may also be a performance
obhgatlon when included in an As-a-service package sold with software and services. In instances when hardware is a performance obligation, title is not
transferred to the customer and revenue is recognized in accordance with the lease accounting standard and depending on the térms and conditions included
in the contract may be either sales-type leases or operating leases. Revenue from hardware sales-type leases is recogmzed at the beginning of the lease term

and revenue. from operating leases is recognized on a stralght-hne basis over the term of the contract.
Software products may be sold as perpetual licenses, term- based licenses, cloud-enabled and software as a service (“SaaS") Perpetual license revenue is
recognized at a point in time when control transfers to the customer and is reported within product revenue. Control is typically transferred when the
customer takes possession of, or has access to, the software. Term-based license revenue is recognized at a point in time upon the commencement of the
committed term of the contract, concurrent with the possession of the license, and reported within product revenue. The committed term of the contract is
typically one month to one year due to customer termination rights. If the amount of consideration the Company expects to be paid in exchange for the
licenses depends on customer usage revenue is recognized when the usage occurs.
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Software as a service primarily consists of fees to provide our customers access to our platform and cloud-based applications for a specified contract term.
Revenue from SaaS contracts is recognized as variable consideration directly allocated based on customer. usage or on a ratable basis over the contract term
begmmng on the date that our service is made available to the customer. SaaS is reported as part of our services revenue.

The Company sells some produc( solutions that rnclude a combination -of cloud-enabled and on-premisé term-based software llcenses for a specified
contract term. Significant judgment is required to determine if the products and services represent distinct-promises to the customer or if they should be
combined into-one performance obligation. When they are combined into one performance obligation, revenue is recognized ratably over the contract term
for which the.service is provided.

In addition to Saa$, our services revenue includes professional consulting, payment processing revenue, managed services, installation-and. maintenance
support. Professional consulting primarily consists of software:implementation, integration, customization and optimization services. Revenue from
professional consulting contracts is recognized when the ‘services are completed or customer acceptance of the service is received, if required. For
installation and maintenance, control is transferred as the services are provided or ratably over the service period, or, if applicable,. after customer’
acceptance of the sefvice. For recurring services that we perform over a contract term, we analyze if the services are performed evenly throughout the term
for fixed consideration. If so, we ratably recognize the corresponding consideration over the committed term. Otherwise, we apply the ‘as invoiced’

" practical expedient, for performance obligations satisfied over time, if the amount we may invoice corresponds directly with the value to the customer of

the Company'’s performance to date. This expedient permits us to recognize revenue in the. amount we-invoice the-customer, -

Payment processing revenue includes surcharge and other fees paid by cardholders and/or the cardholder’s financial institutions for the use processing
services. Surcharge revenues are recognized daily as the associated transactions are processed. In addition, relative to ATM transactions, the Company.
typically receives a majority of the interchange fee paid by the cardholder’s financial institution, net of the amount retained by the payment network, and
recognizes the net amount received from the network as revenue. Relative to credit card processing, revenue is comprised of fees charged to the Company's
customers, net of interchange fees and assessments charged by the crédit card associations and payment networks; which are pass through charges collected

" on behalf of the card issuers and payment networks.

Under our managed service agreements, the Company provides various forms of services, including monitoring, cash management, cash delivery, customer
service, on-screen advertising, processing and other services, under one contract- package, The Company typically receives a monthly service fee, fee per
transaction, or fee per service provrded in return for provrdmg the agreed- upon servrces The managed services fees are recognized as the related services
are provided to the customers.

The Company also recognizes revenue related to branding arrangements and providing access to the Company’s surcharge-free network and 'equipment, '
Customers may be charged on a per transaction basis or a fixed monthly fee. Under these arrangements, the Company is providing a series of distinct
services with similar patterns of transfer to the customer. As a result, these arrangements create performance obligations that are satisfied over-time for
which the Company has a right to consideration that corresponds directly with the value of the Company’s performance completed ta date. In conjunction
with these arrangements, the Company recognizes revenue in the amount that it has a right to receive using the ‘as invoiced' practical expedient described

above. Revenues are generally recognized on a ratable basis over the contract term beginning on the date that our service is made available to the customer, - -
. except ‘for transaction-based fee arrangements which are recognized daily as the transactions are processed Any up-front fees associated with these

arrangements are recognized ratably over the life of the arrangement

The nature of our arrangements gives rise to several types of variable consrderanon mcludmg service level agreement credtts stock rotation rights, trade -in
credits and volume-based rebates. At contract inception, we include this variable consideration in our transaction price'when there is a basis to reasonably
estimate the amount of the fee'and it is probable there will not be a significant reversal. These estimates are.generally made using the expected value
method and a portfolio approach, based on historical experience, anticipated performance and our best judgment at the time. These estimates are reassessed
at each reporting date. Because of our confidence in estimating these amounts, they are mcluded in the transactron pnce of our contracts and the associated
remaining performance obligations. . :

Payment terms with our customers are established based on industry and regional practices and generally do not exceed 30 days. We do not typically
include extended payment terms in our contracts with customers. As a. practical expedient, we do not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the
effects of a significant financing component when we expect at contract inception, that the period between our transfer of a promrsed product or service to
a customer and when the customer pays for :
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that product or service will be one year or less. If the period between transfer of the promised product or service and payment is more than one year the
Company analyzes whether a significant financing component is present. If so, the Company ad]usts the total consideration to ‘reftect the significant
financing component. ’

We account for shipping and handling activities related to contracts with customers as costs to fulfill our promise to transfer the associated products, rather
than as a separate performance obligation. Accordingly, we record amounts billed for shipping and handling costs as a component of net product sales, and
classify such costs as a component of cost of. products.

In addition to the standard product warranty, the Company periodically offers extended warranties to its customers in the form of product maintenance
services. For maintenance contracts that have been combined with product contracts under the revenue guidance, the Company defers revenue at an amount
based on the relative standalone selling price allocation, and recognizes the deferred revenue over the service term. For non-combined maintenance
contracts, NCR defers the stated amount of the separately priced service and recognizes the deferred revenue over the service term.

Remaining Performance Obligations Remaining performance obligations represent the transaction price of contracts for which products have not been
delivered or services have not been'performed. As of December 31, 2021, the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to remaining performance
obligations was approximately $3.7 billion. The Company expects to recognize revenue on approximately three-quarters of the remaining performance
obligations over the next 12 months, with the remainder recognized thereafter. The majority of our professional services are expected to be recognized over
the next 12 months, but this is contingent upon a number of factors, including customers needs and schedules.

The Company has made three’elections which affect the value of remaining performance obligations described above We do not disclose remaining
performance obligations for contracts where variable consideration is directly allocated based on usage or when the original expected duration is one year
or less. Additionally, we do not disclose remaining performance obligations for contracts where we recognize revenie from the satisfaction of the
performance obligation in accordance with the rlght to invoice’ practical expedlent

Warranty and Sales Returns Provisions for product warranties and sales returns and allowances are recorded in-the period in which NCR becomes
obligated to honor the related right, which generally is the period in which the related product revenue is recognized. The Company accrues warranty
reserves based upon historical factors such as labor rates, average repair time, travel time, number of service calls per machine and cost of replacement
parts. When a sale is consummated, a warranty. reserve is recorded based upon the estimated cost to provide the service over the warranty period. The
Company accrues sales returns and allowances using percentages of revenue to reflect the Company’s historical average of sales return claims.

Research and Development Costs Research and development costs primarily include payroll and benefit-related costs, contractor fees, facrlmes costs,
infrastructure costs, and administrative expenses directly related to research and development support and are expensed as incurred, except certain software
development costs are capitalized after technological feasibility of the software is established.

Advertising Advertising costs are recognized in selling, general and administrative expenses when incurred.

Stock-based Compensatlon Stock-based compensation represents the costs related to share-based awards granted to employees and non-employee
directors. The Company’s outstanding stock-based compensation awards are classified as equity. The Company measures stock-based compensation cost at

. the grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the award and recognizes the cost over the requisite service period. Forfeitures are recognized as they
occur. See Note 8, “Stock Compensation Plans”, for further information on NCR’s stock-based compensation plans.

Income Taxes Income tax expense is provided based on income before income taxes. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences
between assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting purposes and such amounts recognized for tax purposes. These deferred taxes are
determined based on the enacted tax rates expected to apply in the periods-in which the deferred assets or liabilities are expected to be settled or realized.
NCR records valuation allowances related to its deferred income tax assets when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred income
tax assets will not be reallzed

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on
examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the consolidated financial statements
from such a position are measured based on the largest. benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of. being sustained upon examination by
authorities. Interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions are recognized as part of the provision for i lncome taxes and are accrued begmmng in the
period that

i
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such interest and-penalties would be applicable under relevant tax law and until such time that the yelated tax benefits are recognized.

Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is calculated by dividing net income or loss attributable to NCR, less any dividends (declared or
cumulative undeclared), deemed dividends, accretion or décretion, redemption or mduced convers:on on our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, by the
weighted average number of shares outstandlng durmg the reported period.

In computing diluted EPS, we evaluate and reﬂect the maximum potential dilution, for each issue or series of issues of potential common shares in
sequence from the most dilutive to the least dilutive. We adjust the numerator used in the basic EPS computation, subject to anti-dilution requirements, to
add back the dividends (declared or cumulative undeclared)-applicable to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. Such add-back would also include any*
adjustments to equity in the period to accrete the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock to its redemption price, or recorded upon a redemption or induced
conversion. We adjust the denominator used in the basic EPS computation, subject to anti-dilution requirements, to include the dilution from potenual
shares resultmg from the'issuance of the Series A Canvertible Preferred-Stock, restricted stock units, and stock options.

~ The holders of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, unvested restricted stock units-and stock options do'not have nonforfeitable rights to common stock
dividends or common stock dividend equivalents. Accordingly, the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, unvested restricted-stock units and stock options
do not qualify as participating securities. See Note 8, “Stock Compensation Plans”, for share information on NCR’s stock compensation plans.

The components of basic earnings (loss) per share are as follows:

Year ended December 31

In millionﬁ, except per share amounts . . . i ' 2021 2020 i 2019
Numerator: . N . - , : ) ) j : . J-
Income (loss) from continuing operations N ) $ . 97 $ 7 3 614
'|__Series A convertible preferred stock dividends __° ] . (16) (31) (110){
Net income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to NCR common stockholders . 81 ~ (38) 504
{ Coss from discontinued operations, net of tax __- : : ] ] — . (72) _ - (50)] -
“Net income (loss) attributable to NCR common stockholders $ .81 § (110)" $ 454
Denominator: - . ' ) .- ) ’ :
[ Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding 131.2 128.4 122.1)
Basic earnings (loss) per share: . e ]
. From continuing operations . ‘ $ 062 §$ (0.30) $ . 413
{ _ From discontinued operations . : S S — " (056) (0.41)! .

Total basic earnings (loss) per share . ’ . ) $ 062 $ 0.86) $ . 372
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The components of diluted earnings (loss) per share are as follows:

’ Year ended December 31
In millions, except pe;- share amounts ¢ : . 2021 2020 X . 201!;)
INumerator: # 10, 7 € i e g T s e e e ? e N T R e T e v L S ST R T P ekt e
Income (loss) from continuing operations' . ) C o $ 97 $ (7) $ 614
zi Series A convertible preferred stock dividends . - i+ 7 T e m R RE e e % (16) jon Lwir ©1(31)_ Ve LB o (76)]
Net income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to NCR common stockholders : 81, (38) 538
- Toss from discontnued operations, net of taX 3 i s b F oM T e Y T e o B B (72)h R w2 (50)]
Net income (loss) attributable to NCR common stockholders ; : $ 81 § (110) $ 488
T T T T T e T I DR O o W R ST
Denominator: ; - ¥ . _
R:Basic weighted average number of shares outsGanding - aar T o s E T ; ) e oz 31284 % 7% 12271
Dilutive effect of as-if Series A Convertible Preferred Stock — : — © 195
L. Dilutive effect of stock options and restricted Stock GnitsT = T T ol T e 7.8 ‘B B aitam—— O 5 3.6
Weighted average diluted shares : 139.0 128.4 - 145.2
KR A R P R R AR RN R Y T A Y

. Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
E ' From CONUNUING OPETations {7 41 /2% oz’ w o o Vod or.fyos

B e S 0S8 T8 (G305 5]
From discontinued operations C —_ (0.56) "~ (0.35)
ST IR (S S T TII0.58 8 W (0.86) . 8, S - 3,36

For 2021, the weighted average outstanding shares of common stock were not adjusted by 9.2 million for the as-if converted Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock because the effect would be anti-dilutive. Additionally, for 2021, weighted average restricted stock units and stock options of 4.7 million were
excluded from the diluted share count because their effect would have been anti-dilutive.

. , ~

For 2020, due to the net loss attributable to NCR common stockholders, potential common shares that would cause dilution, such as Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, restricted stock units and stock options, were excluded from the diluted share count because their effect would have been'anti-dilutive. The
weighted average outstanding shares of common'stock were not adjusted by 9.1 million for the as-if converted Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
because the effect would have. been anti-dilutive. Refer to Note 12, “Series A Convertible Preferred Stock”, for additional discussion related to the
transaction impacting the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. Additionally, for 2020, weighted average restricted stock units and stock options of 11.2
million were excluded from the diluted share count because their effect would have been anti-dilutive. ? .
. ) . ) .

For 2019, it is more dilutive to assyme- the portion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock that was redeemed was not converted to 'common stock.
Therefore, weighted average outstanding shares of common stock were not adjusted by 5.7 million for the as-if converted Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock that was redeemed because the effect’ would have been anti-dilutive. Refer to Note 12, “Series A Convertible Preferred Stock”, for additional
discussion related to the transaction impacting the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. Additionally, for 2019, weighted average restricted stock units and
stock options of 4.3 million were excluded from the diluted share count because their effect would have beén aniti-dilutive.
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash All short-term, highly liquid investments having original maturities of three months or less, including time
deposits, are considered to be cash equivalents. The Company has restricted cash on deposit with a bank as collateral for letters of credit, funds held for
clients as well as cash included in settlement processing assets. '

' ’

The reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows is as follows:
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In millions ' . ’ . ’ Balance Sheet Location . December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 -
_ 1 Cashand cash equivalents i - i Cash and cash equivalents - $ . 447 _$ . 338_58 509 |
Long term restricted cash : " Other assets - 7 9 .. 7
{_"Funds held for client - S Restricted cash ) : 48 - 44 _32}

Cash included in settlement processing assets ‘Restricted cash - 247 15 . 15
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash . .. - $ . 749 § 406§ . 563 |

ATM Cash Management Program The acquired Cardtronics business includes the operation of ATMs under Company-owned ATM placements,

~ merchant-owned ATM placements, and managed services. The Company relies on arrangements with various banks to provide the cash that it uses to fill its
Company-owned, and in some cases merchant-owned and managed services ATMs. The Company refers to such cash as “vault cash”. The Company pays a
monthly rental fee based on the average outstanding vault cash balance, as well as fees related to the bundling and preparation of such cash prior to it being
loaded in the ATMs. At all times, beneficial ownership of.the cash is retained by the vault cash providers and the Company has no right or access to the
cash except for the ATMs that are serviced by the Gompany's wholly-owned cash-in-transit operations in the United Kingdom. While the United Kingdom
cash-in-transit operations have physical access to the cash loaded in the ATMs, beneficial ownership of that cash remains with the vault cash provider at all
times. The Company's vault cash'arrangements expire at various times through December 2025. Based on the foregoing, the ATM vault cash, and the

- related obligations, are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements. The average outstanding vault cash balance in the Company's ATMs for the
year, ended December 31, 2021 was approximately $4.4 b].lllon

Accounts Receivable, net Accounts receivable, net includes amounts billed and currently due from customers as well as amounts unbilled that typically
result from sales under contracts where revenue recognized exceeds the amount billed to the customer and where the Company has an unconditional right
to consideration. The amounts due are stated at their net estimated realizable value. :

Allowance for Credit Losses on Accounts Receivable Allowances for credu losses on accounts rece1vable are recognized when reasonable and
supportable forecasts affect the expected collectablhty This requires us to make our best estimate of the current expecled losses inherent in our accounts
receivable at each balance sheet date. These estimates require consideration of historical loss experience, adjusted for current conditions, forward looking
indicators, trends in ‘customer payment frequency and judgments about the probable effects of relevant observable data, including present and future
economic conditions and the fmanc1al health of specnﬁc customers and market sectors. This pollcy is applied conmstently among all of our operating
segments. : . L .

Qur allowance-for credit losses as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 was $24 million and $51 million, respectively. We continue to evaluate .
our reserves in light of the age and quality of our outstanding accounts receivable, risks to specific industries or countries, as well as the COVID-19 '
pandemic, and adjust the reserves accordingly. For the years ending, December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, our allowance for credit losses charged to
expense was $2 million and $33 million, respectively. We increased our allowance for credit losses for the year ended December 31, 2020 by $10 million
based upon forecasts that reflected increased economic uncertainty resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic. The Company recorded $29 million and
'$26 million of write-offs against the reserve for the years ending December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or et realizable value, using the average cost method. Cost includes materials, labor and
manufacturing overhead related to the purchase and production of inventories. Service parts are included in inventories and include reworkable and non-
reworkable service parts. The Company regularly reviews inventory quantities on hand, future purchase commitments with suppllers and the estimated
. utility of inventory. If the review indicates a reduction in utility below carrying value, inventory is reduced to a new cost basis. Excess and obsolete write-
offs are established based on forecasted usage, orders, technological obsolescence and inventory aging.

Contract Assets and Liabilities Contract assets include unbilled amounts where the right to payment is not solely subject to the passage of time. Amounts® -
may not exceed their net realizable value. Contract Iiabilities consist of advance payments, billings in excess of revenue recognized and deferred revenue.

Our contract assets and liabilities are reported in a net position on a contract- by-contract basis at the end of each repomng period. If the net positionisa .

contract asset, the current pomon is included in Other current assets and the non-current portion is
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included in Other assets in the Consolidated -Balance Sheet. If the net position is a contract liability, the current portion is included in Contract liabilities
and the non-current portion is included in Other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. . .
The following table presents the net contract asset and contract liability balances:

’ ) Location in'the Consolidated Balance '
In millions | Sheet December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Current portion of contract liabilities L Contract liabilities - $ 516 $ . 507§
80

Non-current portion of contract liabilities - ) : Other liabilities ; $ 69 $

Duringbthe twelve months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recognized‘ $447 million and $407 million, respectively, in revenue that was
included in contract liabilities as of December 31, 2020 and 2018, respectively. : .

Deferred Commissions Our incremental costs of obtaining a contract, which consist of certain sales commissions, primarily for our SaaS revenue, are
deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of expected benefit. We determiined the period of expected benefit by taking into
consideration customer contracts, the estimated life of the customer relationship, including renewals when the renewal commission is not commensurate
with the initial commission, the expected life of the ‘underlying technology and other factors. We classify.deferfed commissions as current or non-current -
based on the timing of when we expect to recbgnize the expense. The current and non-current portions of deferred commissions are included in Other
current assets and Other assets, respectively, in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Amortization of deferred commissions is included in Selling, general and
administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. ’ '

" Set-up Fees and Costs Fees for the design, configuration, implementation and installation rel'ated to the software applications that are provided as a service
are recognized over the contract term, which is generally 5 years. The related costs incurred that are determined to be incremental and recoverable contract-
specific costs are deferred and amortized over the period of benefit, which is generally 7 years. : o

Settlement Processing Assets and Obligations Funds settlement refers to the process of transferring funds for sales and credits between card issuers and
merchants and, for ATM transactions, between card issuers and merchants or financial institutions. Depending on the type of transaction, either the credit
card interchange system or the debit network is used to transfer the information and funds in either direction between the sponsoririg bank and card issuing:
bank to complete the link between merchants or financial institutions and card issuers. In certain of our processing arrangements, merchant funding occurs
after the sponsoring bank or the Company receives the funds from the card issuer through the card networks, creating a settlement obligation to the
merchant or financial institution on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet. In a limited number of other arrangements, the Sponsoring bank funds the
" merchants before it receives the net settlement funds from the card networks, creating a settlement asset on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet.
Additionally, relative to credit card transactions, certain of the Company’s ‘sponsoring banks collect the gross revenue from the merchants, pay the
interchange fees and assessments to the credit card associations, collect their fees for processing and pay the Company a net residual payment representing
the Company’s fees for the services. In these instances, thé Company does not reflect the related settlement processing assets and obligations in its
Consolidated Balance Sheet. ) - ' . .

Settlement processing assets consist of settlement assets due from customers and receivables from merchants corresponding to the discount fee related to
reimbursement of the interchange expense, our receivables from the processing bank or-Electronic Funds Transfer (“EFT”) network for transactions that
have occurred and have been funded to merchants or financial institutions in advance of receipt of card association funding, restricted cash balances that are
not yet due to merchants or financial institutions, merchant reserves held, sponsoring bank reserves and exception items, such as customer chargeback
amounts receivable from merchants. Settlement processing obligations consist primarily of merchant reserves, our liability to the processing bank or
merchant for transactions for which we have received funding from the members or networks but have not funded merchants or financial institutions as
well as certain exception items. Settlement processing assets other than restricted cash are recorded within Other current assets and settlement processing
liabilities are recorded within Settiement liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Cash related to settlement processing is recorded within Restricted
cash in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, settlement processing assets were $287 million and $33 million, respectively,
and settlement processing liabilities were $263 million and $31 million, respectively. Settlement receivables are generally collected within four busines:

days. Settlement obligations are generally paid within three business days, regardless of when the related settlemént receivables are collected. '
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Capitalized Software Certain direct development costs associated with internal-use software are capitalized within Other assets and- amortized over the
estimated useful lives of the resulting software. NCR typically amortizes capitalized internal-use software on a straight-line basis over four to seven years
beginning when the asset is substantially ready for use, as this is considered to approximate the usage pattern of the software. When it becomes probable
that internal-use software being developed will not be completed or placed into service, the internal-use software is reported at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value. ) . : .
Costs incurred for the development of software that will be sold, leased or otherwise marketed are capitalized when technological feasibility has been

- established. These costs are included within Other assets and are amortized on a’ sum-of-the-years' digits or straight-line basis over the estimated useful
- lives ranging from three to five years, using the method that most closely approximates the sales pattern of the software. Amortization begins when the
product is available for general release. Costs capitalized include direct labor and related overhead costs. Costs incurred prior to technological fea51b1hty or
after general release are expensed as incurred. NCR performs penodlc reviews to ensure that unamortized program costs remain recoverable from future -
revenue: If future revenue does not support the unamortized program costs, the amount by which the unamortized capitalized cost of a software- product
exceeds the net realizable value is written off. . . -

The followidg table identjfies the activity relating to total capitalized software:

In milliosis . : 2021 2020, ) 2019

Beginning balance as of January i N $ M2 8 - - s3 §° " 325
_ Capitalization ) : ] 242 232 238

{Amortization - , . 3 (185) . (171) ] (148)]
Impairment” (24) (32) 2)
Ending balance as of December 31 ) , ] $ - 475§ - - 442 - $ 4131

During-the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, we recorded the write-off of certain internal and external-use software capitalization projects that are
no longer considered strategic and as a result, the projects have been abandoned.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible
assets of-businesses acqmred Goodwill is tested at the reporting unit level for impairment on an annual basis during the fourth quarter.or more frequently if
certain events occur indicating that the carrying value of goodwill may be impaired. A SIgmﬁcant amount of judgment is involved in determining if an
indicator of impairment has occurred. Such indicators may include a decline in expected cash flows, a significant adverse change in legal factors or in the
busmess climate, a decnsnon to sell a business, unanticipated competition, or slower growth rates, among others. .

in the evaluanon of goodwill for impairment, we have the option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether further impairment testing is
necessary or to perform a quantitative assessment by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill. Under the
qualitative assessment, an entity is not required to calculate the fair value of a reporting unit unless.the entity determines that it is more likely than not that

. its fair value is less than its carrying amount. If, under the quantitative assessment, the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, then the
amount of the impairment loss, if any, is determined based on the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value up to the total value of
goodwill assigned to the reporting unit. Fair values of the reporting units ‘are estimated using a weighted methodology considering the output from both the
income and market approaches. The income approach incorporates the use of discounted cash flow (“DCF”) analysis. A number of significant assumptions
and estimates are involved in the application of the DCF model to forecast operating cash ﬂows including revenue growth, operating income margin and
discount rate. Several of these assumptions vary among reporting units. The cash flow forecasts are generally based on approved strategic operating plans.
The market approach is performed using the Guideline Public Companies (“GPC”) method which is based on earnings multiple data. We perfonn a-
reconciliation between our market capitalization and our estimate of the aggregate fair value of the reporting units, including consideration of a control
premium. Refer to Note 2, “Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets”, for further discussion.

Acquired intangible assets other than goodwill are amortized over their weighted average amortization period unless they are determined to be indefinite.
Acquired intangible assets are carried at cost, less accumulated amortization. For intangible assets purchased in a business combination, the estimated fair

. values of the assets received are used to establish the carrying value. The fair value of acquired intangible assets is determined using common techmques
and the Company employs assumptions developed using the perspecnve of a market pamcnpant
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1mpact to the amount of pension, postretirement or- postemployment benefits expense, and the related assets and liabilities, the Company has recorded or
may record. - .

Environmental and Legal Contingencies Tn the normal course of business, NCR is subject to various proceedings, lawsuits, claims and other ‘matters,
including, for example, those that relate to the environment and_health and safety, labor and employment, employee benefits, import/export compliance, .
intellectual property, data privacy and security, product liability, commercial disputes and régulatory compliance, among others. Additionally, NCR'is
subject to diverse and’ complex laws, regulations, and standards including those relating to corporate governance, public disclosure and.reporting,
" environmental safety and the discharge of materials into the environment, product safety, import and export compliance, data privacy and security, antitrust
and competition, government contracting, anti-corruption, and labor and human resources, which are rapidly changing and subject to many possible
changes in the future, Compliance with these laws and regulations, including changes in accounting standards, taxation requirements, and federal securities
laws, among others, may create a substantial burden on, and substantially increase the costs to NCR or could-have an impact on NCR’s future operating
results. NCR believes that the amounts provided in its Consolidated Financial Statements are adequate in light of the probable and estimable liabilities.
However, there can be no assurances that the actual amounts required to satisfy alleged liabilities from various lawsuits, claims, legal proceedings and other
matters, including the Fox River and Kalamazoo River environmental matters discussed in Note 10, “Commitments and Contingencies”, and to comply
with applicable laws and regiilations, will not exceed the amounts reflected in NCR’s Consolidated Financial Statements or will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. Any, costs that may‘be incurred in excess of those amounts
prov1ded as of December 31, 2021 cannot currently be reasonably determined or are not currenLly con51dered probable.

Legal fees and expenses related'to loss contingencies are typically expensed as incurred, except for certain costs associated with NCR'’s environmental
remediation obligations. Costs and fees associated with litigating the extent and type of required remedial actions and the aliocation of remediation costs
among potennally respon51ble parties are typically included in the measurement of the environmental remedlanon liabilities.

Foreign Currency For many NCR international -operations, the local currency is designated as the functional currency. Accordingly, assets and liabilities
are translated into U.S. Dollars at year-end exchange rates, and revenue and expenses are translated at average exchange rates prevailing during the year.
Currency translation adjustments from local functional currency countries resulting from fluctuations in exchange rates are recorded in -Other
comprehenswe income. Remeasurement adjustments are recorded in Other income (expense), net. :

Derivative Instruments In the normal course of business, NCR enters into various financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments. The
Company accounts for derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value and recognizes the resulting gains or losses
as adjustments to earnings or other comprehensive income. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as hedging instruments, the Company
formally documents the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Hedging activities are transacted only with highly rated institutions, reducing exposure to credit risk in the event of
nonperformance. Additionally, the Company completes assessments related to the risk of counterparty nonperformance on a regular basis. -

“The accounting for changes in fair value of a derivative instrurhent depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging
relationship, and further, on the type of hedging relationship. For those derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as hedging instruments, the
Company' has designated the hedging instrument, based on the exposure being hedged, as a fair value hedge, a cash flow hedge ora hedge of a net
‘investment in_a foreign operation. For derivative instruments designated as fair value hedges, the effective portion of the hedge is recorded as an offset to
the change in the fair value of the hedged item, and the ineffective portion of the hedge, if any, is recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. For
derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges and determined to be highly effective, the gains or losses are deferred in Other comprehensive
income and recognized in the determination of income as adjustments of carrying amounts when the underlying hedged transaction is realized, canceled or
otherwise terminated. When hedging certain foreign currency transactions of a long-term investment nature (net investments in foreign operations), gains
and losses are recorded in the currency translation adjustment component of Accumulated other comprehensive loss. Gains and losses on foreign exchange
contracts thatare not used to hedge currency transactions of a long-term investment nature, or that are not designated as cash flow or fair value hedges are
Tecognized in Other income (expense), net as exchange rates change.

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Fair value is defined as an exit price, representing an amount that would be received to sell an asset or the amount’
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 'market participants at the measurement
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date. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
As a basis for considering such assumptions, the accounting guidance prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value into the following three-tier fair
value hierarchy: :

"« Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities St

+ Level 2: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, unadjusted quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active, or inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly

+  Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data

Assets and liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of input that is'significant to the fair value measurements. The Company reviews the fair value
hierarchy classification on a quarterly basis. Changes to the observability of valuation inputs may result in a reclassification of levels for certain securities
:within the fair value hierarchy. ' . ’ ’ :

NCR measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value based on one or more of the following three valuation techniques:

.+ Market approach: Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
.+ Cost approach: Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost). "

*+  Income approach: Techniques to, convert future amounts to a single present amount based upon market expectations (including présent value
_ techniques, option pricing and excess earnings models). . . )

We regularly review our investments to determine whether a decline in fair value, if.any, below the cost basis is other than temporary. If the decline in the
fair value is determined to be other than temporary, the cost basis of the security is written down to fair value and the amount of the write-down is.included
in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. For qualifying investments in debt or equity securities, a temporary impairment charge would be recognized
in Other comprehensive income (loss). . ' :

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting Pronouncements Issued But Not Yet Adoptéd

In August 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an accounting standards update with new guidén’ce for convertible preferred
stock, which eliminates considerations related to. the beneficial conversion feature model. The standard also requires an average stock price when
calculating the denominator for diluted earnings per share to be used for stock units where the settlement of the number of shares is based on the stock
price. The new standard is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2021. Early adoption is
permitted no earlier than fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020 and interim periods within those fiscal 'years. The. adoption of this accounting
standards update is not expected to have a material effect on the Company's net income, cash flows, earnings per share or financial condition. . = -

Tn May 2021, the FASB issued an accounting standards update with new guidance for free'staﬁdi‘ng equity-classified written call options. The new guidance
requires modifications or exchanges of freestanding equity-classified written call options that remain equity classified after the 'modification or exchange-
based on the economic substance of the modification or exchange. The new standard is effective for fiscal years, and interim périods within those fiscal
years, beginning after December 15, 2021, with early adoption permitted. The ‘adoption of this accounting standards update is not expected to- have a
material effect on the Company's net income, cash flows, earnings per share or financial condition. '

In October 2021, the FASB issued an accounting standards update with new guidance for contract assets and coritract liabilities acquired in a business
combination. The new guidance requires contract assets and contract liabilities, such as deferred revenue, acquired i_n a business combination to be
recagnized and measured by the acquirer on the acquisition date in accordance with Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. Prior to the issuance of this guidance, contract assets and contract liabilities were recognized by the acquirer at fair value.on the -
acquisition date. The accounting, standards update is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15,
2022, with early adoption permitted and should be applied prospectively to acquisitions occurring on or after the effective B
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date. The adoption of this accounting standards update is not expected to have a material effect on the Companys net income; cash flows, earnings per
share or financial condition.

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements ’ ) - - N

In July 2021, the FASB issued an accounting standards update with new guidance for lessors with lease contracts that have variable lease payments. Under
the new guidance, ‘a lease.which includes variable lease payments which do not depend on a reference index or rate and would have.resulted in the
recoghition of a selling loss at lease commencement if classified as sales-type or direct financing are now to be classified as operating. The new standard is
effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2021, with early adoption permitted. The accounting
standards update was adopted using the transition guidance of early application and we will apply the ‘standard prospectively to all new hardware
arrangements where NCR is the lessor. The adoption of the accounting standard dld not have a material effect on the Company's net income, cash flows,
- earnings per share or financial condition. :

2. GOODWILL AND PURCHASED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goadwr!l by Segmenl The carrying amounts of goodwrll by segment as of December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019 are mcluded in the tables below. Foreign
currency ﬂuctuatlons are included within other adjustments

. December 31, 2020 : . ’ . December 31,2021 °

. Accumulated : : Accumulated
. . Impairment - . Impairment i
In millions ’ . Goodwill . Losses - Total Additions Impairment Other | Gaodwill Losses Total
‘Banking $_ 1,772 $ (101) $ 1671 _$  1,639_$ — $ — 8 34118 . (101)_$_3,310]
Retail . 643 : (34) 609 37 K -— (2) 678 . (34)- - . 644
Hospility 404 @3) 381 1 — @41z, (@) _389)
T&T . : 187 ) A'(ll) 176 —_ — — 187 ) (11) - 176
ﬁ'otal goodwill' $ 3,006 $ (169) L$. 2,837 $ 1,687 $ — ‘$ 5) $ ‘4,688 ‘$ (169) $ 4,519 | -
December 3i, 2019 . . : R December 31, 2020
Accumulated R . Accumulated
. Impairment . B . Impairment
In millions - Goodwill : Losses Total Additions Impairment Other Goodwill Losses . Total
iBanking $ 1774 8, . (101) $__1673_$ — 3 = %5 (2.8 1,772 $ _~  (101) $ 1,671} .
Retail 638 (34) 604 —_ L = 5 . 643 | (34) 609
ﬂgp_i_t_aﬂty C. 402 ) (23) 379. 1 _ 1 - 404 (2_3) ; 3aﬂ
T&T 187 (11) © 176 0 - — . _ 187 ' (11) - -176
{I‘otal goodwill $ 3,001 ‘$ (169) $ 2,832:‘ $ -1 8 - — 3 4 8 3006 $  ° (169) $ 2,837:!

" As discussed in Note 1, “Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies”, NCR completed the annual goodwill impairment test during the fourth
quarter of 2021. The Company elected to perform a qualitative assessment for the Banking, Retail, Hospitality, and Telecommunications & Technology
(“T&T") reporting units. This assessment included consideration of the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemlc to the current year cash flows, the potential
impacts to future cash flows as well as the.excess of the fair value over the carrying value from the prior year annual assessment. Based on the qualitative .
assessments completed, it was determined that the fair value of the Banking, Retail, Hospitality, and T&T reporting units’ were substantially in excess of the
carrying value. However, if the actual results differ from our expectations for any of our reporting units, there is a possnblhty we would have to perform an
interim impairment test in 2022, which could lead to an impairment of goodwill or other assets.

Ideniifiable Intangible Assets NCR's purchased intangible assets, reported in Intangnbles net in the Consoltdated Balance Sheets, were specifically

identified when acquired, and are deemed to have finite lives. The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for NCR’s identifiable intangible
assets were as set forth in the table below. .

71




Table of Contents
' NCR Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statéements-(Continued)

December 31, 2021 . December 31, 2020

Amortization .

. Period Graoss Carrying Accumulated - Gross Carrying -Accumulated
In millions . (in Years) Amount Amartization Amount Amortization
Identifiable intangible assets . ] R : . i -
Reseller & customer relationships 1-20 $ 1,126 $ ) (391) $ 740 $ (324)
finteliectual property : © 2-8 ‘ 1,008 (474) 531 - - (418)]
Customer contracts ' 8 ’ 89 . (89) .- . 89 (89)
{Tradenames - : ' - 1-10  °© 130 . (83) . - S 77 . A -(74)}
Total identifiable intangible assets .~ , ‘ $ 2,353 §$ - (1,037) § 1,437 $ (805)

Amortization expense related -to identifiable ihlangib}e assets was $132 million and $81 milﬁon for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The aggregate estimated amortization expense for identifiable intangible assets for the following periods is:

. .. For the years ended December 31 (estimated)
In millions 7 ' i 2022 - 2023 2024 2025 2026

fAmortization expense . . __$ 172§, 168 $ ] 159 8 147§ 136§
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3. BUSINESS COMBIN;'\TIONS AND DIVESTITURES

T 2021 Acquisitions ’ ‘ .

Acquisiu’on of Cardtronics plc

On January 25, 2021, 'NCR entered into a definitive agreement to acquire all outstandlng shares of Cardtromcs for $39.00 per share (the “Cardtromcs
Transactlon "). The Iegal closing of the Cardtronics Transaction occurred on June 21, 2021.

Cardtronics is the world's largest non-bank ATM operator and service provider, enabling cash transactidhs by ‘converting digital currency into physical cash
at over 285,000 ATMs across 10 countries in North America, Europe, Asia-Pacific, and Africa. The .Cardtronics Transaction is expected to accelerate our

NCR:as-a-service strategy and enhance our ability to provide technology solutions and capabilities that run our customers’ businesses.

Purchase Price Consideration The purchase consideration Lransférred consisted of the following:

In millions I : ' " Purchase Consideration

{Cash paid to-common stockholders and holders of certain resmc(ed stock and stock.option awards . .8 ) o 1,775
Debt repaid by NCR on behalf of Cardtronics « A o R : . 809
Transaction. costs paid by NCR on behalf of Cardtronics : e : : - : 57]
Fair value of converted Cardtronics awards attributable to pre-comblnatlon services ) ] : 19
[Settlement of pre-existing relationships . : . : ) . .. 14}
Total purchase consideration ‘ - ) $ " 2,674.

Other than certain outstanding restricted stock and stock option awards issued to directors which were paid out in cash at closing, the Company converted

"outstanding unvested Cardtronics awards into NCR awards pursuant to an exchange ratio as defined in the acquisition agreement. Each restricted stock
award that was outstanding, whether performance-based or time-based, was converted into time-based awards, and will continue to be governed by the
same vesting terms as the original Cardtronics awards. Cardtronics stock option awards were converted into NCR stock option awards with an’ exercise
price per share for option awards equal to the exercise price per share of such stock option award immediately prior to the completion of the acquisition
divided by the exchange ratio, and will continue to be govemed generally by the same terms and conditions as were applicable prior to the acquisition. The
_ amounts attributable to services already rendered were included as an, ad]us(ment to the purchase price'and the amounts attributable to future services will
be expensed over the remaining vesting period, net of estimated forfeitures. The fair value of opuons that the Company assumed in connection with the
acquisition of Cardtronics were estimated using the Black-Scholes model.

Recording of Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed The fair value of consideratior Uansferred to acquire Cardtromcs was allocated to the ldenuflable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their estimated falr values as of the date of the acqunsmon as set forth below.

The preliminqry allocation of the purchase price for Cardtronics is as follows: ’
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In millions ’ ' Fair Value

fAssets acquired j ‘- - . I f
. Cash and restricted cash . ' : : $ . 291
{___Trade accounts receivable ’ L . . - e : 85]
Prepaid expenses, other current assets and other assets - ) : . . 194
- {__Property, plant and equipment ) . : 362]
Estimated acquisition-related intangible assets’ . ) . . . 864
Total assets acquired ‘ R ) . T $ 1,796 |
{Liabilities assumed s R . ' ‘ 726 |
Net assets acquired, excluding goodwill . ] o } L 1,070
{Total purchase consideration ] j L - ; - 2,674

Estimated goodwill . _ ’ $ - 1,604

We recorded a preliminary allocation of the purchase price to tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed baged on their

estimated fair.values as of June 21, 2021. In determining the provisional fair value, the Company utilized various methods of the income, cost, and market

approaches depending on the asset or liability being fair valued.. The estimation of fair value required significant judgment related to future net cash flows

(including revenue growth rate, EBITDA margins, and customer attrition), discount rates reflecting the risk inherent in each cash flow stream, competitive
* trends, market comparables, and other factors. Tnputs were generally determined by taking into account historical data (supplemented by current and

anticipated market conditions) and growth rates. : . . ’
Direct customer relationships and technology - software were valued using an excess earnings method. Significant assumptions used in the discounted cash
flow analysis for (i) direct customer relationships were the revenue growth rate, customer attrition rate, and discount rate, and (ii) technology - software
were the revenue growth rate, éarnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (“EBITDA”) margins, and discount rate. The valuation of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed is subject to revision. If additional information becomes available, the company may further revise the purchase
price allocation as soon as practical, but no later than one year from the acquisition date; however, material changes are not excepted. :

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired that ¢ould not be separately recognized. The goodwill arising from the
acquisition consists of revenue and cost synergies expected from combining the operations of NCR and Cardtronics. Tt is expected that approximately $139
million of the goodwill recognized in connection with the acquisition will be deductible for tax purposes. The goodwill arising from the acquisition has
been allocated to our Banking segment. Refer to Note 2, “Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets”, for the carrying amounts of goodwill by segment as
of December 31, 2021. g :

The following table sets forth the components of the intangiﬁlg assets acquired as of the acquisition date: A .
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d Average Amorti

Fair Value - Period
. (In millions) (In years)
Direct customer relationships - . : $ . 373 15|
Technology - Software i ) ’ ) 441 ) 8
Non-compete : ) . : 1 i
Tradenames - B 49 . 4
{Total acquired intangible assets . $ 864 tooL |

~

D Determination of the weighted average period of the individual categories of intangible assnls was based on the nature of lhc applicable intangible asset and the expected futurc cash flows to be derived from the intangible
asset. Amortization of intangible assets with definite lives is recugmzed over the penud of time the assets are expected to contribute to future-cash flows.

In connection with the closing of the acquisition, the Company incurred transaction costs of $46 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, which has
been included within Selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Refer to Note 5, “Debt Obllgatlons for
additional discussion on fees incurred related to the financing for the Cardtromcs Transaction.

- Unaudited Pro forma Information The following unaudited pro -forma information presents the consolidated results of NCR and Cardtronics for the year

ended December 31, 2021 and for the year ended December 31, 2020. The unaudited pro forma information is presented for illustrative purposes only. It is
‘not necessarily indicative of the results of operations of future periods, or the results of operations that actually would have been realized had the entities
been a single company during the periods presented or the results that the combined company will experience after the acquisition.- The unaudited pro
forma' information does not give effect to the potential impact of current financial conditions, regulatory matters or any anticipated synergies, operating
efficiencies or cost savings that may be associated with the acquisition. The unaudited pro forma information also does not include any integration costs or
remaining future transaction costs that the companies may incur related to the acquisition‘as part of combining the operations of the companies.

The Consolidated Statements of Operations includes: Cardtronics revenue of $627 million and income from continuing operations before income taxes of
$39 million, which includes the impact of purchase accouriting adjustments, for the period from June 21, 2021 through December 31, 2021.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations, assuming the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2020, are as follows:

In millians . . . For the year ended December 31

i : i - 2021 - 2020 i
Revenue ) ' . , $ 7,634 $ 7,210
INet income (loss) attributable to NCR . - $ - 286 % _(216)]

The unaudited pro forma results for the year ended December 31, 2021 include:
*  $53 million in eliminated intercompany revenue and cost between NCR and Cardtronics;
+  $25 million, net of tax, in additional amortization expense for acquired intangible assets;-
_*  $87 million, net of tax, in eliminated transaction costs as if those costs were incurred prior to 2021; and
*  $35 million, net of tax, in additional interest expense from the incremental borrowmgs under the senior secured credit facility as well as the
5.125% senior notes. .
The unaudited pro forma results for the year ended December 31, 2020 include:
+  $91 million in eliminated intercompany revenue and cost between NCR and Cardlromcs
+  $51 million, net of tax, in additional amortization expense for acquired intangible assets;
«  $65 million, net of tax, of transaction costs as if those costs were incurred in the period; and
«  $79 million, net of tax, in addmonal interest expense from the incremental borrowmgs under the senior secured credit facnllty as well as the
5. 125% senior notes
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Acqliisilion of Freshop, Terafina, & Dumac

In the first quarter of 2021, NCR completed acquisitions for total cash consideration of $126 million, as outlined below:

*+ On \January 6, 2021, NCR completed its acquisition of Freshop E-Commerce Solution, Inc. (“Freshop”), a leading provider of grocery e-

commerce..The Freshop acquisition further expands NCR’s software and services-led offerings to our retail platform and creates more value for
.our customers and new capabilities for NCR to run the store. As a result of the acquisition, Freshop became a wholly owned subsidiary of NCR.

On February 5, 2021, NCR completed its acquisition of Terafina, Inc. (“Terafina”), a leading solution provider for customer account opening and’
onboarding across digital, branch and call center channels. The Terafina acquisition further expands NCR sales and marketing capabilities in its
industry-leading digital-first-banking platform. to* drive revenue growth across consumer and business market segments. As a result of the
acquisition, Terafina became a wholly owned subsidiary of NCR. . . : ' '

On March 22, 2021 NCR completed'its acquisition of certain assets and liabilities of Dumac Business Systems Inc. (“Dumac”), a leading POS
solution provider for the quick service, table service, and convenient store markets. The Dumac asset acquisition further expands NCR's software
and services-led offerings, creating more value for our customers and driving revenue growth across the Hospitality segment.

Recording of Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed The fair value of consideration transferred was allocated to the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based upon their estimated fair values as of the date of the respective acquisitions as set forth below. The allocation of the purchase price
are provisional as of December 31, 2021 and may be subject to future adjustments-as the Company obtains additional information to finalize the accounting
for the business combinations. The allocation of the'purchase prices is as follows: ' -

In millions . \ Fair Value

iCash acquired . ° j : , - $ 24
Tangible assets acquired ! . . . § Co 7
!Acquired intangible assets other than goodwill - ' ) ' . : o 52}
Acquired goodwill 81
Deferred tax liabilities . i - e (3)]
Liabilities assumed . . o iR (13)
{Total purchase consideration ) ) . . . i o $ 126

Goadwill represents the future ‘economic benefits arising from other assets acquired that could not be individually separately recogni‘zed. The goodwill
arising from the acquisitions consists of revenue and cost synergies expected from combining the operations of NCR and the respective acquisitions. It is
expected that $9 million of the goadwill recognized in connection with the acquisitions will be deductible for tax purposes. The goodwill arising from the
Freshop acquisition has been allocated to our Retail segment. The goodwill arising from the Terafina acquisition has been allocated to our Banking
segment. The goodwill arising from the Dumac acquisition has been allocated to our Hospitality segment. Refer to Note 2, “Goodwill and Purchased
Intangible Assets”, for the carrying amounts of goodwill by segment.

- The following table sets forth the components of the intangible assets acquired as of the acquisition dates:

Weighted Average Amortization
° ' . : Fair Value Period
. (In millions) ' (In years)

Direct customer relatonships ik $ ‘ 11 L j 10}
Technology - Software ) : - T . 36 e 8
'Non-compete s . j IR ; i) il
Tradenames ) . , 9
Total acquired intangible assets . - $ ) 52 ——!
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. Determination of the 'weighted average period of the individual categories of intangible assets was based on the nature of the applicable inmﬁgible asset and the expected future cash flows to be derived from the
intangible asset. Amortization of intangible assets with definite lives is recognized over thé period of time the assets are expected to contribute to future cash flows. '

The operating results of Freshop, “Terafina, and Dumac have been included within NCR's results as of the closing dates of the acquisitions. Supplemental
pro forma information and actual revenue and earnings since the acquisition dates have not been provided as the acquisitions did not have a8 material impact
on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations.

2020 Acquisition
Acquisition of Origami

‘On June 6, 2019, our subsidiary, NCR Brasil Ltda. (“NCR Brasil”) entered intc a definitive agreement with- OKI Electric Industry Co., Ltd. and its
Brazilian subsidiary, OKI Brasil Industria e Comércio de Produtos e Tecnologia em Automagao S.A. (“OKI Brasil™), to purchase OKI Brasil's IT services
and select software assets for use in the banking, retail and other industries. Neither OKI Brasil's manufacturing operations nor its printing business in
Brazil were included in the acquisition. On April 9, 2020, NCR Brasil completed this acquisition through the purchase of 100% of-the quotas of Origami
_ Brasil Tecnologia e Servigos em Automagio Ltda. (“Origami”), which became a wholly-owned subsidiary of NCR Brasil. The purchase price was

approximately $5 million, of which $2 million is payable in cash within two years of the acquisition date, subject to certain conditions, and the remaining
- $3 million is payable in cash within six years of the acquisition date, subject to purchase price adjustments

_The fair value of consideration transferred to acquire Origami was allocated to the identifiable assets-and liabilities assumed based upon their estimated fair

values as of the date of acquisition as set forth below. The acquisition has resulted in a bargain purchase gain based on the purchase price being limited

. mostly to the net assets of the business excluding cash and investments. The bargaln purchase gam has been recorded in Other i lncome (expense) net W1th|n
‘the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

- In millions ) Lo o ] ‘ ’ . Fair Value
[Cash acquired R . 5 . R . j - $ .1l
Investments acquired A : . . : - 9
{Tangible assets acquired - ’ . : . . o . 18}
Bargain purchase gain on business acquisition ) S BRG]
Liabilities assumed s : e - N (16)|
Total pukrchase consideration ' ) ' ) . . $ . 5

The operating results of Origami have been included within NCR's results as of the closing date of the acquisition. Supplemental pro forma information and
actual revenue and earnings since the acquisition date have not been provrded as this acquisition did not have a material impact on the Company's °
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

2019 Acquisitions

Acquisition o;f D3 Technology, Inc. ' 4
On July 1, 2019, NCR completed its acquisition of D3 Technology, Inc. (“D3"), a leading provider' of online and mobile banking for the Large Financial
Institution -market, for approximately $84 million, of which $83 million was paid in cash in 2019. The remaining $1 million was payable within 12 months
from the date of acquisition and paid in 2020. The D3 acquisition further expands our digital banking strategy as we extend our market share in large

domestlc banks and international banks. As a result of the acqmsmon D3 became a wholly-owned subsidiary of NCR.

Recording of Assets Acquired and Liabi{ili_es Assumed-The fair value of consideration transferred to acquire D3 was allocated to the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their estimated fair values as of the date of the acquisition as set forth below. - ’

The final allocation of the purchase pﬁce for D3 is as follows:
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" In millions - Fair Value

" T, F ST .
OBt - o

TR T P MR

o

Deferred tax assets : gy T ; RS .

Liabilities assumed . ' 8
=T - P BRI LN < SR T et Ay e e e~ T T T P

{Total purchase consideration JRp e Par st = o, e SN ot AT 0 S UK ST Wt 384 |

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from other assets .acquired that could not be individually separately recognized. The goodwill
arising from the acquisition consists of revenue synergies expected from combining the operations of NCR and D3. Tt is expected that none of the goodwill
recognized in connection with'the acquisition will be deductible for tax purposes. The goodwill arising from the acquisition has been allocated to our
Banking segment. Refer to Note 2, “Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets”, for the carrying amounts of goodwill by segment. '

.-

The following table sets forth the components of the in'tangib-!e assets acquired as of the acquisition date:

. . . . . Weighted Average Amortization
" Fair Value Period

(In millions)

Ay Sy D
X

TR

e e T T

Total acquired intangil}le_assets_" . .. 2 v e e = s

 Determination of the weighted average periad of the individual ies of i assets was based on the nature of the applicable intangible asset and the expected future cash flows to be derived from the
intangible asset. Amortization of intangible assets with definite lives is recognized-over the period of time the assets are expected ta contribute to future cash flows, .

In connection with fhe closing of the acquisition, the Co'_mpany incurred approximately $1 million of transaction costs, which has been included within
Selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated-Statement of Opetations for the year ended December 31, 2019.

The operating results of D3 have been included within NCR's results as of the closing date of the acquisition. Supplemental pro forma information and
actual revenue and earnings since the acquisition date have not been provided as this acquisition did not have a material impact on the Company's
Consolidated Statements of Operations. : ! ' : : .

Acquisition of Zynstra Ltd. . .

On December 21, 2019, NCR completed its acquisition of Zynstra, Ltd. (“Zynstra”), a leading provider of edge virtualization technology, for approximately
$134 million, of which $112 million was paid in cash. Th 2020, approximately '$20 million was paid and the remaining $2 million was payable as of
December 31, 2021. The Zynstra acquisition_further expands our digital retail strategy as we further enhance our next generation store architecture. As a
- rtesult of the acquisition, Zynstra became a wholly-owned subsidiary of NCR. ' ’ :

’~ . . ‘ ’ - . e
Recording of Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed The fair value of consideration- transferred to acquire Zynstra was allocated to the identifiable assets
" acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their estimated fair values as of the date of the acquisition as set forth below.

The final allocation of‘th'e purchase price for Zynstra is as follows:
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in millians ' ’ ' . ) . Fair Value

" Cash acquired PN . . : 3 1]
Tangible assets acquired ' ) : - S 1
fAcquired intangible assets other than goodwill . ‘ N ’ 761
Acquired goodwill oL 66.
Deferred tax liability - ‘ . N o , [€)
Liabilities assumed : ’ o - 1)
E’i‘otal purchase consideration " : : . L $ e 134 ]

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired that could not be individually separately.recognized. The goodwill
arising from the dcquisition consists of revenue and cost synergies expected from combining the operations of NCR and Zynstra. It'is expected that none of
the goodwill recognized in connection with the acquisition will be deductible for tax purposes. The goodwill arising from the acquisition.has been allocated
to our Retail segment. Refer to Note'2, “Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets”, for the carrying amounts of goodwill by segment.

The following table sets forth the components of the intangible assets acquiréd as of the acquisition date:

Weighted Average Amortization

* Fair Value Period V)

(In millions) (In years)
-Technology - Software___- ’ 3 75 , ~ 8
Tradenames : . : - o1 1
Total acquired intangible assets = - . $ .76 ) {

M Determination of the weighted average period of the individual categories of intangible assets was based on the nature of applicable intangible asset and the expected future cash flows to be derived from the
intangible asset. Amortization of intangible assets with definite lives is recognized over the period of time the assets are.expected to contribute to future cash flows.

In connection with the closing of the acquisition, the Company incurred apprbximately $2 million of transaction costs, which has been included within
Selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2019.

The operating results of Zynstra have been included .within NCR's results as of the closing date of the acquisition. Supplemental pro forma information and
actual revenue and earnings since the acquisition date have not been provided as this acquisition did not have a material impact on the Company's
Consolidated Statemenls of Operauons oL

‘Other 2019 acquisitions

During the year ended December 31, 20189, the Company completed four acquisitions of local resellers in the hospitality industry for an aggregate purchase
consideration of approximately $20 million, plus related acquisition costs. Approximately $2 million was withheld by the Company as a source of recovery
for possible claims and payments: under the related acquisition agreements and will be paid_fo the respective sellers pursuant to the terms of such
agreements. Goodwill recognized: related to these acquisitions was $17 million, all of which is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. The goodwill
“arising from these acquisitions has been. allocated to the Hospitality segment. As a result of these acquisitions, NCR recorded $6 million related to
identifiable lntanglble assets consisting prlmanly of customer relationships, which have a weighted-average amortization period of 8 years. Supplemental
pro forma-information and actual revenue and earnings since the acquisition dates have not been provided as these acquisitions did not have a material
lmpact mdmdually or in the aggregate,-on the Companys Consolldated Statements of Operations.

4. SECMENT INFORMATION AND CONCENTRATIONS.
- The Company manages and reports its business in the following segments:
«  Banking - We offer solunons to customers in the financial services industry that power their digital transfcrmanon through software, services and

hardware to deliver differentiated experiences for their customers and improve' efficiency for the financial institution. NCR's dlgltal bankmg
solutions enable anytime-anywhere convenience for a
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financial institution’s consumer and.business customers. Our account opening software unifies the sales and onboarding experience across digital,
branch and calt center channels for mid-market community banks and credit unions. We also help institutions implement their digital-first platform
strategy by providing solutions for banking channel services, transaction processing, imaging, and branch services. We offer credit unions, banks,
digital banks, Fintechs, stored-value debit card issuers, and other consumer financial services providers access to our Allpoint retail-based ATM
network, providing convenient and fee-free cash withdrawal and deposit access to their customers and cardholders. We also provide branding
opportunities for financial institutions on our extensive ATM network, providing a cost-effective way for banks to expand their presence and
‘customer service and experience. Our managed services and ATM-as-a-Service help banks run their end-to-end ATM channel, including
transaction processing, managing cash and cash.delivery, supplies, and telecommunications as well as routine and technical maintenance,
positioning NCR as a strategic partner. We augment these solutions by offering a full line of software, services and-hardware. :

*  Retail - We offer software-led solutions to customers in the retail industry, leading with ‘digi(al to connect retail operations end to end to integrate
all aspects of a customer’s operations in indeor and outdoor settings from POS, to payments, inventory management, fraud and loss prevention.
applications, loyalty and consumer engagement. These solutions are designed to improve operational efficiency, selling productivity, customer .

« satisfaction.and purchasing decisions; provide secure checkout processes and payment systems; and increase service levels. Solutions include
retail-oriented technologies such as comprehensive API-point of sale retail software platforms and applications, SCO, other hardware terminals
and peripherals, payment processing solutions, consumer engagement solutions like eCommerce and loyalty, along with the necessary consulting,

implementation, support and managed services to meet our customers' needs.
. 5

*  Hospitality - We offer technology solutions to customers in the hospitality industry, including tab]e—sel"yice', quick-service and fast casual
restaurants of all sizes, that are designed to improve operational efficiency, increase customer satisfaction, -streamline order and transaction
processing and reduce operating costs. Our portfolio includes cloud-based and cloud-enabled software applications for point-of-sale, back office,
payment processing, kitchen production, restaurant management, eCommerce and consumer marketing and loyalty. We also provide hospitality-
oriented hardware products such as POS terminals, kitchen display systems, handheld devices, printers and peripherals. Finally, we help reduce the
complexities of running the restaurant through our services capabilities including strategic consulting, technology deployment and

" implementation, support and managed services. . ! :

* " Telecommunications & Technology - We offer managed network and infrastructure services to enterprise clients across all industries via direct
relationships with communications service providers and technology manufacturers. Our customers rely on usas a strategic partner to help them
reduce complexity, improve cost efficiency, and enable global geographical reach. We deliver expert professional,-field, and remote services for
modern network technologies including Software-Defined Wide Area Networking, Network Functions Virtualization, Wireless Local Area
Networks, Optical Networking, and Cloud Computing. : ’

These segments represent components of the Company for which separate financial information is available that is utilized on a regular basis by the chief
operating decision maker in assessing segment performance and in allocating the Company's resources. Management evaluates the performance of the
segments based on revenue and adjusted EBITDA. The Company previously evaluated the performance of the segments -based on segmerit operating

. income. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as GAAP net income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to NCR plus interest expense, net; plus income
tax expense (benefit); plus depreciation and amortization; plus stock-based compensation expense; plus other income (expense); plus pension mark-to-
market adjustments, pension settlements, pension curtailments and pension special termination benefits and other special items, ‘including amortization of
acquisition-related intangibles and restructuring charges, among others. The special items are considered non-operational so are excluded from the adjusted
EBITDA 'metric utilized by our chief operating decision maker in evaluating segment performance and are separately delineated to reconcile back to total
reported GAAP nét income (loss) from operations attributable to NCR. :

Assets are not allocated to segments, and thus are not included in the assessment.of segment performance. Consequently, we do not disclose total assets by
reportable segment. '

The accounting policies used to determine the results of the operating segments are the same as those utilized for the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. Inter-segment sales and transfers are not material. ) :

Corporate and Other reconciles our segment results to adjusted EBITDA, which primari]y includes other income (expense) that are managed only on a total
company basis and are, accordingly, reflected only in consolidated results. ' - . )
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The following table presents revenue and adjusted EBITDA by segment for the years ended December 31: | * =~ A . .
In millions - ) o221 2020 -t 2019

'Corporate and Other e oo .. )
{Total Adjusted EBITDA%;

(12) - (17) ' (39)

R 896 &S AEIAMIL, 0581

S .3

.

_The following lable reconciles net income (loss) from contjnuingjoperadons to adjusted EBITDA for the'years ended December 31

L}
. .

In millions - N
‘Net Income (Loss) from Contmumg Operatrons Attributable to NCR (GAAP) %
Transformation and restructuring costs

fAcquisition-related amortization of mtangrhles ; _W*&Q&@F&Mﬁim TR

. Acquisition-related costs

Stock-based compenséu’on-exene - o 154 R . 108 : 107
‘Adjusted EBITDA (Non:GAAP) 4 e FrY ok A s
/e - , . } L

* The following table presents recumng revenue and aII other products and ‘sérvices that is recogmzed at a ponnt in time for NCR for the years ended
December 31:- . :

" In millions
Recurring revenue () 21580 < ; ; Al DR e e SEs D BRI 3
All other products and services - L ¢ C '2,990 ) 2, 869 : .3,733 y

“’Recurrlng revenue includes all revenue streams.from contracts where there is a predictable revenue pattern that will occur at regular intervals with a relatively high degree of certainty. This includes hardware and software

maintenance revenue, cloud revenue, paymem processing revenue, interchange and network revenue, and certain professional services arrang as well as term-based software Iu:ense arrangements that include *
customer (ermmauon rights. . . - . ;. ) . .
} 81 :
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Revenue is attributed to the geographic area to which the product is dellvered orin whrch the ser\nce is provided. The followmg (able presents revenue by
geographic area for NCR for the years ended December 31: .
* In millions 2021 . % ! 2020 % 2019 %

Revenue by Geographic Area . X ] . . : ' i
United States - . $. 3,632 - 51% § - 3,065 - 49% $ - 3,481 50 %
fAmericas (excluding United States) 723 10 % 617 10% 693 .10 %]
Europe, Middle East and Africa 1,883 26 % 1,679 27% 1,843 27 %
fAsia Pacific T : , 918 13% _ - 846 _ 14% 898 - 13 %]
Total revenue . . ' $ . 7,156 100% $ - 6,207 - 100% $ 6,915 100 %

The followmg table presents property, plant and equipment, by geographlc area as of December 31

In mlllmns ) . ' . 2021 . 2020

Property, plant and eqllipment, net ) ' R ]
United States S » . ) $ 429 % 244
Americas. (excluding United States) . o ; 26 . 141
Europe, Middle East and Africa . A ' ) 197 75
'Asia Pacific : . T R - ; - 3 ’ T
Consolidated property, plant and equipment, net. ) . $ - -703 $ 373 :

Concentrations No single customer accounts for more than 10%.of NCR’s consolidated revenue and accounts receivable ‘as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019. As of December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019, NCR is not aware of any significant concentration of business transacted
with a particular customer that could, if suddenly eliminated, have -a material adverse ‘effect on NCR'’s operations. NCR also lacks a concentration of
. available sources of labor, services, licenses or other rights that could, if suddenly eliminated, have a material adverse effect of its operatlons

A number of NCR’s products, systems and solutions rely pnmanly on specific suppliers for microprocessors and other component products, manufactured
assemblies, operating systems, commercial software and other central components. NCR also utilizes contract manufacturers in order to complete
manufacturing activities. There can be no assurances that any sudden impact to the availability or cost of these technologies or services would not have a
material adverse effect on NCR’s operations. : .

. 5. DEBT OBLIGATIONS

The following table summarizes the Company's short-term borrowings and long-term debt:
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December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
. S . Weighted-Average . Weighted-Average
In millions, except percentages Amount ‘Interest Rate Amount Interest Rate
'Short-Term Borrowings - . ) |
" Current portion of Senior Secured Credit Facility $ 56 2.63% $ 8 2.65%
Other® . i 1 2.13% - L=, —% 1
Total short-term borrowings : $ 57 - $ 8 : .
{Long-Term Debt . . , 1
-Senior Secured Credit Facility: . i i . . : :
[ Term loan facilities - D ’ $ - 1,884 - 2.63% "3 733 265% |
Revolving credit facility ¥ ) -380 2.36% . 75 2.40%
‘Senior-Notes: - : . : : ]
8.125% Senior Notes due 2025 — 400 )
| 5.750% Senior Notes due 2027 500 500 )
5.000% Senior Notes due 2028 650 650
{  5125% Senior Notes due 2029~ . - 1,200 - ] — B
6.125% Senior Notes due 2029 ’ © 500 C 500 - S
{  5.250% Senior Notes due 2030 i . 450 - 450 |
Deferred financing fees o ) (60) R CON ‘
:Other ! ] . 1 6.62% 2 7.68% |

" Total long-term debt = ) » $ - 5,505 $ 3,270

M Interest rates are weighted average interest rates as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Senior Secured Credit Facility On February 4, 2021, the Company entered into a fourth amendment to the Senior Secured Credit Facility, and, on Februéry

16, 2021 the Company entered into (a) an amended and restated commitment letter (the “Commitment Letter”), with certain financial institutions party

_thereto (collectively, the “Commitment Parties”), (b) an incremental term loan A facility agreement (the “Incremental Term Agreement”) with the financial

institutions party thereto as lenders, NCR International; Inc. (the “Guarantor Subsidiary”), and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., as the administrative agent (in_’

such ‘capacity, the “Administrative Agent”) and (c) an incremental revolving facility agreement (the “Incremental Revolving Agreement”) with certain -

financial institutions party thereto as lenders, the Guarantor Sub51d|ary, certain of the subsidiaries of NCR as borrowers (collectively, the “Foreign
Borrowers’ )and the Administrative Agent..

Pursuant to the Commitment Letter, the Company obtained commitments for a senior bridge facility (Wthh was intended.to be secured but a portion of -
which imay have been unsecured) in an aggregate principal amount of $1.0 billion (the “Bridge Facility”). The Bridge Facility would have been available to
the Company for the purpose of financiig the Cardtronics Transaction if, and to the extent, certain securities offerings were not issued on or prior to the
closing of the Cardtronics Transaction. As_noted below, on April 6, 2021, the Company issued $1.2 billion aggregate principal amount of 5.125% senior
notes due 2029 (the “5.125% Notes”) which financed a portion of the purchase price consideration in connection with the Cardtronics Transaction. As a
result, the commltmen(s with respect to the Bridge Facility were (ermlnated

Pursuant to the Incremental Term Agreemenl the Company ob(alned a senior secured mcremen[al term loan A facility under the Semor Secured Credit
. Facility, in an aggregate prmcnpal amount of $1.505 billion (the “TLA Facility”). The senior secured credit facility also includes a senior secured term loan
B facility (the “TLB Facility”) in an aggregate pnncnpal amount of $750 mlllxon

Pursuant to the Incremental Revolvnng Agreement, the lenders party thereto prov1ded the Company and the Forelgn Borrowers with a $1.1 billion révolving
credit facility under the Senior Secured Credit Facility to replace the Company s existing senior secured revolving -credit facility. The revolving credit
facility also allows a sub-facility to be used for letters.of credit, and, as of December 31, 2021, outstanding letters of credit-were $26 million.

On June 24, 2021 (the “Conversion Effective Date”), the Company entered into an-,Increrﬁen(al Revolving Facility Agreement (TLA-2 Conversion) (thé
“Incremental Revolving Conversion Agreement”), with the Guarantor Subsidiary' and the: Foreign Borrowers, the lenders party thereto and the
Administrative Agent. Pursuant to the Incremental Revolving Conversion
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Agreement, $200 million of the TLA Facility was' converted into an equal principal amount of senior secured incremental revolving credit commitments
(the “Incremental Revolving Commitments”). The Incremental Revolving Conversion Agreement also amends -and restates the credit agreement (the
“Amended and Restated Credit Agreement”) to reflect, among other things, the Incremental Revolving Commitments, the TLA Facility and the
Replacement Revolving Facility. .

As a result, the aggregate prlncnpal amount under the TLA Facility is $1.305 billion and under the revolvmg credit facthty is $1.3 billion. As of December
31, 2021, the term loan facilities (the TLA Facility and the TLB Facility) under the Senior Secured Credit Facility have an aggregate prlncnpal amount of
$2.055 billion, of which $1.94 billion was outstanding. Additionally, as of December 31, 2021, there was $380 million outstanding under the revolving
credit facility. Our borrowing capacity under our senior secured credit facility was $894 million at December 31, 2021.

-The terms of the Incremental Revolving Commitments are identical to the terms of the commitments under the Replacement Revolving Facility (together

with the Incremental Revolving Commitments, the “Revolving Credit Facility”). Up to $400 million of the revelving credit facility is available to the
Foreign Borrowers, as long as there is availability under the revolving credit facility. Term loans were made to the Company in U.S. Dollars, and loans
under the revolving credit facility are available in U.S. Dollars, Euros and Pound Sterling.

The outstanding principal balance of the TLB facility is required to be repaid i in equal quarterly installments of 0.25% of the original aggregate principal
amount that began with the fiscal quarter ending December 31, 2019, with the balance belng due at maturity on August 28, 2026 (the “TLB Maturity
S Date”)

The outstanding prmcrpal balance of the TLA Facility is requlred to be repaid in equal quarterly installments of 1.875% of the ongmal aggregate pnncrpal
amount thereof, beginning with the fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2021, with the balance being due at maturity on the earlier of (a) June 21, 2026 and
(b) unless the loans under TLB Facility have been repaid prior to such date, the date that is 91 days prior to the TLB Maturity Date.

Commitments under the Revol\ring Credit Facility are scheduled to terminate on the earlier of (a) June 21, 2026 and (b) unless the loans under TLB Facility
have been repaid prior to such date, the date that is 91 days prior to the TLB Maturity Date. Loans under the Revolvmg Credit Facrlrty may be repaid and
reborrowed prior to such date, subject to the sausfactron of customary conditions.

Amounts covered under the Revolving Credit Facility and the TLA Facrhty bear interest at LIBOR (or, in the case of amounts denominated in Euros
EURIBOR), or, at our option, in the case of amounts denominated in U.S. Dollars at a base rate equal to the highest of (i) the federal funds rate plus
0.50%, (ii) the rate of interest last quoted by the Wall Street Journal as the “prime rate”, (iii) the one-month LIBOR rate plus 1.00%, and (iv) 0.00% per
annum (the “Base Rate”), plus, in each case, a margin ranging from 1.25% to 2.75% per annum for LIBOR-based and EURIBOR-based loans under such
facilities and ranging from 0.25% to 1.75% per annum for Base Rate-based loans under such facilities, in each case, depending on our consolidated
leverage ratio. Prior to the delivery of our financial statements for-the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2021, the applicable margin was 2.50% for
LTBOR-based and EURTBOR-based loans under such facilities and 1.50% for Base Rate-based loans under such facilities. Amounts borrowed under the
TLB Facility bear interest at LIBOR or, at our option, at the Base Rate, plus, in each case, a margin of 2.50% per annum for LIBOR-based loans and 1.50%
per annum for Base Rate-based loans. The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement contains customary LIBOR and EURIBOR replacement provisions.
The daily unused portion of the Revolving Credit Facility is SUbjEC( to a commitment fee ranging from 0.15% to 045% per annum, dependmg on our
consolidated leverage rano

. The obligations under the Senior Secured Credit Facility are guaranteed by certain of the Companys domestic material subsrdtanes mcludlng the
Guarantor Subsidiary and certain domestic subsidiaries acquired through the Cardtronics Transaction- that joined as guarantors on September 30, 2021
(collectively, the “Cardtronics Guarantors” and together with the Guarantor Subsidiary, the “Guarantors”). The obligations under the Senior Secured Credit
Facility and the above described guarantee are secured by a first priority lien-and security interest in certain equity interests owned by the Company and the
Guarantors in certain of their respective domestic and foreign subsidiaries, arid a first priority lien and security interest in substantially all of the assets of
the Company and the Guarantors, subject to certain exclusions. These security interests would be released if the Company achieves an “investment grade”

- rating and will remain released s0 long as the Company maintains that rating. .

The Senior Secured Credit Facility includes affirmative and negative covenants that restrict or limit the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to,
among other things, incur indebtedness; create liens on assets; engage in certain fundamental corporate changes or changes to the Company's business
activities; make investments; sell or otherwise dispose of assets; engage in sale-leaseback or.hedging transactions; repurchase stock; pay dividends or make
snmtlar distributions; repay other 1ndebtedness
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engage in certain affiliate transactions; or enter into’ agreements that restrict the Company's ability to create liens, pay dividends or make loan-repayments. '
The Senior Secured Credit Facility also includes a financial covenant with respect to the Revolvmg Credit Facility and the TLA Facthty The financial
.covenant requires the Company to maintain: :

- A consolidated leverage rat.io on the last day of any ﬁscal quarter, not to exceed (i) in the case of any fiscal quarter ending’on or prior to December
31, 2021, 5.50 to 1.00, (ii) in the case of any fiscal quarter ending on or prior to September 30; 2022, 5.25 to 1. 00 and (iii) in the case of any fiscal
quarter ending on or after December 31 2022, 4 75 to 1.00. . .

The Company has the option to elect to increase the maximum permitted leyerage ratio for the periods described in the foregoing clause (iii) by 0.25 in, '
connection with the consummation of any material acquisition (as defined in'the Senior Secured Credit Facility) for three fiscal quarters.

" "The Senior.Secured Credit Facility also includes provisions for events of default, which are customary for similar financings. Upon the occurrence of an
event of default, the lenders may, among other things, terminate the loan commitments, accelerate all loans and require cash collateral deposits in respect of
‘outstanding letters of credit. If the Company is unable to pay or repay the amounts due, the lenders could, among other thmgs proceed against the collateral -
granted to them to secure such indebtedness.

. For the' year ended December 31, 2021, the Company incurred financing fees of $19 million related to certain structunng and commitment fees as a result.
of the above referenced financing transactions entered into durmg the, first quarter of 2021 :

The Company may request, at any time'and from time to time one or more incrémental term loans and/or revolving credit facilities (subject to the
agreement of existing lenders -or additional financial institutions to provide such term loans and/or revolving credit facilities) and ‘with no requirement that
existing lenders providing such facilities with commitments in an aggregate amount not to exceed the greater of (i) $150 million, and (ii) such amount as
would not cause'the leverage ratio. under the Senior Secured Credit Facility, calculated on a pro forma basis including the incremental facility and assuming
that it and the revolver are fully drawn, to exceed 3.00 to 1.00, and the proceeds of which can be used for working capltal requirements and other general
corporate purposes. : ) -

Senior Unsecured Notes On August 21, 2019, the Company issued $500 million aggregate principal amount of 5.750% senior'unsecured notes due in 2027
(the “5.750% Notes”). The 5.750% Notes were sold at 100% of the principal amount with a maturity date of September 1, 2027. The 5.750% Notes were
issued without registration rights. The Company has the option to redeem the 5.750% Notes, in whole or in part, at any time on or after September 1, 2022,
at a redemption price of 102.875%, 101.438%, and 100% during the 12-month periods commencing on September 1, 2022, 2023 and 2024 and thereafter,
- respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. Prior to September 1, 2022, the Company may redeem the'5.750% Notes, in whole or
in part, at a redemptlon price equal to 100% of the pnnctpal amount plus a make-whole premium and accrued and unpaid interest to the redemptlon date._

On August 21, 2019, the Company issued $500 million aggregate principal amount of 6.125% senior unsecured notes due in 2029 (the “6.125% Notes”).
The 6.125% Notes were sold at 100% of the principal amount with a maturity date of September 1; 2029. The 6.125% Notes were. issued without
registration rights. The Company has the option to redeem the 6.125% Notes; in .whole or in part, at any time on or after September 1, 2024, at a-
'redemptlon price of 103.063%, 102.042%, 101.021% and 100% during the 12-month periods commencing on September 1, 2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027 and
thereafter, respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. Prior to September 1, 2024, the Company may redeem the 6.125% Notes,
in whole or in part, at a redernptlon pnce equal to 100% of the principal amount plus a make-whole. premium and-accrued and unpaid interest to the
redempuon date.

On August 20, 2020, the Company issued $650 million aggregate principal amount of 5.000% senior unsecured notes due in 2028 (the “5.000% Notes”)
and $450 million aggregate principal amount of 5.250% senior unsecured notes due in 2030 (the “5.250% Notes”). Interest is payable on the 5.000% and
~5.250% Notes semi-annually in arrears at interest rates of 5.000% and 5.250%, respectively, on- April 1 and October 1 of each year beginning April 1, 2021.
The 5.000% and 5.250% Notes were sold at 100% of the principal amount and w1th maturity dates of October 1, 2028 and October 1, 2030, respectively.

At any time and from time to tlme prior to Octaber 1, 2023, the Company may redeem up to a maximum of 40% of the orlglnal aggregate principal
amount of either the 5.000%.or 5.250% Notes with the proceeds of one or more equity. offenngs, at a redemption price equal to 105.000%, with respect to
the 5.000% Notes, and 105.250%, with respect to the 5.250% Notes, of the pnncrpal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to,
but not |nclud|ng, the redemptlon date (subject to . .

85




Table of Contents
: NCR Corporation .
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements-(Continued)

: the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment.date); provided that: (i) at least 55% of the
-original aggregate principal amourit of the 5.000% or 5.250% Notes remains outstanding; and (ii) such redemption occurs within' 180 days of the
completion of such equity offering. . oo : Co N

Prior to October 1, 2023, with respect to the 5.000% Notes, or October 1, 2025, with respect to the 5.250% Notes, the Company may redeem some or all of .
such series of Notes by paying a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed plus the Applicable Premium, as
defined-in the Indenture, as of, and accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the redemption-date (subject to the right of holders of record of the Notes
on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date). - '

* The Company has the option to redeem the 5.000% Notes, in ' whole or in part, at any time on or after October 1, 2023, at a redemption price of 102.500%,
101.250%, and 100% during the 12-month periods commencing on October 1, 2023, 2024 ‘and 2025 and thereafter, respectively, plus accrued and unpaid
interest to the redemption date. The Company has the option to redeem the 5.250% Notes, in whole or in part, at any time on or after October'1, 2025, at a
redemption price of 102.625%, 101.750%, 100.875%, and 100% during the 12-month periods commencing on October 1, 2025, 2026, 2027 and 2028 and
thereafter, respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. o ’ :

The senior unsecured notes are guaranteed by certain of the Company's domestic material subsidiaries (including the Guarantor. Subsidiary and the_

Cardtronics Guarantors that joined as guarantors on October 14, 2021), which have guaranteed fully and unconditionally the obligations to pay principal
_ and interest for these.senior unsecured notes. The terms of the indentures for these notes limit the ability of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries to,
. among other things, incur additional debt or issue redeemable preferred stack; pay dividends or make certain other restricted payments or investments;
incur liens; sell assets; incur restrictions on the ability of the Company's subsidiaries to pay dividends to the Company; enter into affiliate transactions;
engage in sale and leaseback transactions; and consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the Company's or such subsidiaries'
assets. These covenants are subject to significant exceptions and qualifications. For example, if these notes are assigned an “investment grade” rating by
Moody's or S&P and no default has occurred or is continuing, certain covenants will be terminated.* - o " .

On April 6, 2021, the Cdmpany isﬁued the 5.125% Notes due 2029. The Cqmbany used the net proceeds from the issuance of the 5.125% Notes, together

with the borrowing under its senior secured credit facilities to finance the consideration paid in-connection with the Cardtronics Transaction.

. The 5.125% Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and.guaranteed by the Guarantors.

Interest is payable on the 5.125% Notes semi-annually in arrears at annual rates of 5.125% on April 15 and October 15 of each year, beginning on October
15, 2021. The 5.125% Notes will mature on April 15, .2029. ' : v

At any time and from time to time, prior to April 15, 2024, the Company may redeem up to a maximum of 40% of the oﬁginal aggregate principal amount
of the 5.125% Notes with the proceeds of one or more equity offerings, at a redemption price equal to 105.125% of ‘the principal amount thereof, plus
accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to, but not including, the redemption date (subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to
receive 'interest due on the relevant interest payment date); provided that: (i) at least 55% of the original aggregate principal amount of the applicable
5.125% Notes remains outstanding; and (ii) such redemption occurs within 180 days of the completion of such equity offering. )

Prior to April 15, 2024, the Company may redeem some or all of the 5.125% Notes by paying a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of

the Notes to be redeemed plus the applicable premium, as defined in the-applicable indenture, as of, and accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the

.- applicable redemption date (subject to the right of holders of record of the applicable 5.125% Notes on the relevant record date to receive interest due on
.the relevant interest payment date). ' - : ’

* On or after April 15 of the relevant year listed below, the Company may redeem some or all of the 5.125% Notes at the prices listed below, plus accrued
and unpaid interest, if any, to, but'not including, the redemption date (subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant.record date to receive interest
due on the relevant interest payment date): 2024 at a redemption price of 102.563%, 2025 at a redemption price of 101.281% and 2026 and thereafter at a
redemption price of 100%. .. - : ' A ' :

Thé 5.125% Notes contains customary events of default, including; among other things, payment default, exchange default, failure to provide certain
notices thereunder and certain provisions related to bankruptcy events. The indenture also contains customary high yield affirmative and negative
covenants, including negative covenants that, among other things, limit the . . : ’ - o

)
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Company and its restricted subsidiaries’ ability to incur additional-indebtedness, create liens on, sell or otherwise dispose of assets, engage in certain-
fundamental corporate changes or changes to lines of business activities, make certain investments or material acquisitions, engage in sale-leaseback or -
. hedging transactions, repurchase common stock, pay dividends or make similar distributions on capital stock, repay certain indebtedness, engage in certain
) afflhate transactions and enter into agreements that restrict their ability to create liens, pay dividends or make Ioan repayments

On August 12, 2021 (the “Redempuon Date”), the $400 mllllon 8.125% Notes were redeemed, at a redemption premium of 109.136% of the aggregate .
principal .amount. As part of the debt extinguishment, we recogmzed a loss of $42 million, which includes the write-off of deferred fmancmg fees of
$S million and a cash redemption premium of $37 million.

On September 19, 2020, the Company redeemed all of its outstanding $600 million aggregate principal amount of 5.000% senior unsecured notes due in
12022 and $700 million aggregate principal amount of 6.375% senior unsecured notes due in 2023. The 5.00% notes were redeemed at 100% plus accrued
and unpaid interest. The 6.375% notes were redeemed at'a premium of 102.125% plus accrued and unpaid interest. As a part of the debt extinguistiment,
we recognized a loss of $20 million, which includes the write-off of deferred financing fees of $5 million and a cash redemption premium of $15 million.

Trade Receivables Securitization Facility In November 2014, the Company established a revolving trade receivables securitization facility (the “T/R
Facility”) with PNC Bank, National Association (“PNC”) as the administrative agent, and various lenders. The T/R Facility, as amended in November
2019, provided for up to $300 million in funding based on the availability of eligible receivables and other customary factors and conditions, of which none
was outstanding as of December 31, 2020. On September 30, 2021, the principal agreements for the T/R Facility were amended and restated to allow the
Company's wholly—owned bankruptcy remote subsidiary NCR Receivables LLC. (the “U.S. SPE”) to sell to PNC and the other financial institutions
participating in the T/R Facility an undivided ‘ownership interest in"a portion of the trade receivables owned by-the U.S."SPE. In connection with this
amendment and restatement, the U.S. SPE repaid in full its outstanding indebtedness under the T/R Facility and agreed to terminate and replace the lending .
commitments of PNC and the other financial institutions thereunder with commitments to purchase the U.S. SPEs trade receivables. Refer to Note 6, -

“Trade Receivables Facility”, for more information.

'

Debt Maturities Maturitjes of debt outstanding, in principal amounts, at December 31, 2021 are summarized below:

For the years ended December 31 .
In millions . ' Total - 2022 . 2023 2024 2025 2026 Thereafter

Debt maturities B $ 5622 $ . . 57 § © 106 $§ . 486 $ 105 $ 1,568 §° 3,300 |

Fair Value of Debt The Company utilized.Level 2 inputs, as defined in Athe fair value'hierarchy, to measure the fair value of the long-term debt, which, as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $5.74 billion and $3.49 billien, respectively. Management's-fair value estimates were based on quoted prices for recent
trades of NCR’s long-term debt, quoted prices for similar instruments, and inquiries with certain investment communities.
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6. TRADE RECEIVABLES_FACILlT.Yl

On September 30, 2021, the Company and its wholly-owned United States bankruptcy-remote special purpose entity (“SPE”) amended and restated the
principal agreements for the T/R Facility. The amended and restated agreements add the trade receivables originated by certain United States and Canadian
subsidiaries of the Company to the T/R Facility. Furthermore, the amendéd and restated agreements enable the U.S. SPE to, from time to time, sell short-
- term trade receivables from certain customer trade accounts to PNC and the other unaffiliated purchasers on a revolving basis. The T/R Facility has a term
of two years, which the Company and the U.S. SPE intend to renew. o : . o

Under the T/R Facility, the Company and the other United States and Canadian subsidiaries continuously sell their trade receivables as they are originated
. to the U.S. SPE and another newly formed Canadian bankruptcy-remote special purpdse entity (collectively, the“SPEs"), as applicable. None of the assets
or credit of either SPE is available to satisfy the debts and obligations owed to the creditors of the Company or any other person until the obligations of the
SPEs under the T/R Facility have been satisfied. The Company controls and therefore consolidates the SPEs in its consolidated financial statements.

As cash is collected on the trade receivables, the U.S. SPE has the ability to continuously transfer ownership and control of new qualifying receivables to
PNC and the other unaffiliated purchasers such that thetotal outstanding balance of trade receivables sold can be up to $300 million at any point in time,
‘which is the maximum purchase commitment of PNC and the other unaffiliated purchasers. The future outsfanding balance of ‘trade receivables that are
sold is expected to vary based on the level of activity and other factors and could be less than the maximum purchase commitment of $300 million. The
total outstanding balance of trade receivables that have been sold and derecognized by the U.S. SPE to PNC and-the other unaffiliated purchasers is
approximately $300 million as of December 31, 2021. The SPEs collectively owned $228 million (excluding the $300 million of trade receivables sold to
PNC and the other unaffiliated purchasers on December 31, 2021) and $428 million of trade receivable as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively, and these amounts are included in Accounts receivable, net in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. ’

Upon the amendment and restatement of the T/R Facility, the Company received a benefit from cash from operations of approximately $300 million in the
year'ended December 31, 2021. Continuous cash activity related to the T/R Facility is reflected in Net cash provided by operating activities in the -
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. The U.S. SPE incurs fees due and payable to PNC and the other unaffiliated purchasers participating in the T/R
Facility. Those fees, which are immaterial, are recorded within Other income (expense), net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. In addition, each
of the SPEs has provided a full recourse guarantee in favor of PNC and the other unaffiliated purchasers of the full and timely payment of all trade
receivables sold to them by the U.S. SPE. The guarantee is collateralized by all the trade receivables owned by each of the SPEs that have not been sold to

. PNC or the other unaffiliateéd purchasers. The reserve recognized for this recourse obligation as of December 31; 2021 is riot material.

The Company, or in the case of any Canadian trade receivables, NCR Canada Corp., continues to be involved with the trade receivables even after they are
transferred to the SPEs (or further transferred to PNC and-the other unaffiliated purchasers) by acting as servicer. In addition to any obligations as servicer,
the Company and each of its subsidiaries acting as an originator under the T/R Facility provide the SPEs with customary re;ourse', in respect of (i) certain
dilutive events with respect to the trade receivables sold to the SPEs that are caused by the Company or another originator and (ii) in the event of certain
violations by the Company or anether originator of their representations and warranties with respect to the trade receivables sold to the SPEs. These

_ servicing and originator liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries (other than the SPEs) under the T/R Facility are not expected to be material, given
the high quality of the customers underlying the receivables and the anticipated short collection period.

The, T/R Facility includes other customary representations and warranties, affirmative and negative covenants and default and termination provisions,
which provide for the acceleration of amounts owed to PNC and the other unaffiliated purchasers thereunder in circumstances including, but not limited to,
failure to pay capital or yield on when due, breach of representation, warranty or covenant, certain insolvency events or failure to maintain the security
interest in the trade receivables, and defaults under other material indebtedness. ’ .

88




Table of Contents

~ . , .
" NCR Corporanon '
Notes to Consollda(ed Fmancnal Statements- (Contmued) .
R ) >
p .. ., ¥ B . - K
‘- . .o . ) : . ) . ‘ . St
. . . . L , i
7.INCOME TAXES . L : L e s .
For'the years ended December 31, income (loss) from conunumg operanons before income taxes con51sted of the followmg . _
In millions . g “ 2021 C 0 .2020 T o019
Income (loss) before income taxes ; e e e S P SR
United Sta[es . : $ ) (142) $ : (391) $ (25)
'AForelgn A, ; : & A LR R e 0 SRR 6 R AT
Total income (Ioss) from continuing operations before mcome taxes 5 284 5 (59) $ 341

. <y
For the years ended December 31 income tax expense (beneflt) consnsted of the followmg

. ¢ N ’ ’ T 5
- In millions ! . L ’ ) -t Lo2021 . 2020 . 2019

'Total income tax expense (beneflt) ‘_ o . S $ 186 $ (53) $ (273)

[N ' 4 . .
The following table presents the pnnc1pal components of the dlfference ‘between the effective tax rate and the'U. S federal statutory income tax rate for the
years ended December 31: .

In mllhons

|

- Foreign i income tax dlfferenual

{Additional U. S‘tax on forelgn income &+

Other.U.s* permanent book/tax dlfferences

Galn/loss on mternal entity reslructunng 55 - 12)

Foréign tax law ¢ changes 572

Valuation allowances
r-mm
{Change in lnablhty for unrecognized tax benef]

Change in tax esumates for prior perlods )
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NCR's tax provisions include a provision for income taxes in-certain tax jurisdictions where its subsidiaries are profitable, but reflect only a portion of the

tax benefits related to certain foreign subsidiaries' tax losses due to the uncertainty of the ultimate realization of future benefits from these losses. During

- 2021; significant matters impacting our tax rate include a $36 million expense from recording a valuation allowance against interest expense deduction

carryforwards in the United States, a $14 million benefit from the deferred tax impact of a tax law change in the United Kingdom and a $40 million non-

cash expense resulting from an internal entity restructuring. During 2020, the tax rate was impacted by a $48 million benefit from the release of a valuation

‘allowance against U.S. foreign tax credits and the re-establishment of expected foreign tax credit offsets to unrecognized tax benefits. During 20189, the tax

rate was impacted by the transfer of certain intangible assets among our wholly-owned subsidiaries, creating a net tax benefit of $264 million. The tax rate
was also impacted by foreign valuation allowance releases of $74 million.

In the fourth quarter of 2021, the Company recorded $9 million of income tax éxpense ($4.7 million of which related to multiple prior annual periods)
related to the correction of the utilization of foreign tax- credits in prior years and an additional valuation .allowance required for interest expense
carryforwards recognized in-interim periods during 2021. The Company determined that the adjustments and corrections recorded in the fourth quartér of
2021 were not material, quantitatively or qualitatively, to the impacted annual and interim financial statements.

NCR did not provide additional U.S. income tax or foreign withholding taxes, if any, on approximately $3.5 billion of undistributed earnings of its foreign
subsidiaries, given the intention continues to be that those earnings are reinvested indefinitely. The amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability associated
with these indefinitely reinvested earnings is approximately $145 million. The unrecognized defeired tax liability is made up of a combination of United
States and state income taxes and foreign withholding taxes. ’

We regularly review our deferred tax assets for recoverability and establish a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax asset will not be realized. The determination as to whether a deferred tax asset will be realized is made on a jurisdictional basis and is based on
the evaluation of positive and negative evidence. This evidence includes historical taxable income/loss, projected future taxable -income, the expected
timing of the reversal of existing temporary differences and the implementation of tax planning strategies. * - :

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 were as follows:

Inmillions o : 2021 2020

Deferred income tax assets : : . . j } i
Tax loss and credit carryforwards $ . 656 § 667
gfg_rllplqy”gg pensions and other benefits ] . 202 . 229]
Other balance sheet reserves and allowances ' : o 233 . 272
{Capitalized research and development A - : : . 39 . 44}
Lease liabilities 101 9
Intangible assets __ - — . 123]°
Property, plant and equipment . . . . 18 11
{Other - . ) . 27 13]°
Total deferred iricome tax assets o ) . ¢ 1,276 1,450
{Valuation allowance e . : (368) - - (341)
Net deferred income tax assets : o : ) 908 1,109
Deferred income tax liabilities i . : . i e j [ |
Intangible assets ) o ' ) : ‘ 73 —
Right of use assets ' - N . 101 . 90}
. Capitalized software -~ ° ) ‘ C : 58 . "~ 78
{Total deferred income tax liabilities i ’ - ) 232 168]
Total net deferred income tax assets - - - . . $ . 676 § ' 941
I -
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" NCR has previously recorded valuation allowances related to certain deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty of the ultimate realization of the future
benefits from those assets. The recorded valuation allowances cover deferred tax assets, primarily tax loss carryforwards and foreign tax credits, in tax
jurisdictions where there is uncertainty as to the ultimate realization ‘of those tax losses and credits. If we are unable togenerate sufficient future taxable
income of thé proper source in the time period within which the temporary differences underlying our deferred tax assets become deductible, or before the,
~expirauon of our loss and credit carryforwards, additional valuauon allowances could be requ1red

As of December 31, 2021, NCR had U.S. federal U.S. state (tax effected), and foreign tax attrlbute carryforwards ‘of approximately $1.7 billion. The net
operating loss carryforwards that are subject to expiration will expire in the years 2022 through 2039. The attributes include U.S. tax credit. carryforwards
- of $233 million, which expire in the years 2022 through 2041. As.a result of stock ownership changes our U.S. tax attributes could be subject to limitations
under Sectlon 382 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, if further material stock ownership changes occur.

The aggregate changes in the balance of our gross unrecognized tax bénefits were as follows for the years ended December 31:

In millions : o 2021 . 2020 ) 2019

Gross unrecognized tax benefits - January 1 . ' .8 103_8 121§ 110 ]
Increases related to tax positions from prior years . L ) 25 . 15 7
Decreases related to tax positions. from prior years . - . C _ @ ] (6)_- (4)J1
Increases related to tax provisions taken dunng the current year . ' ' ‘ 7 . 6 - 14
Settlements with tax authorities : (2) (23) 5)
Lapses of statutes of limitation ) - L . (8) . (10) : (1)
TTotal gross unrecognized tax benefits - December 31 _ - .3 121 § 103 $ 121§

Of the total-amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2021, $73 million would affect NCR’s effective tax rate if realized. The
Company’s liability arising from uncertain tax positions is recorded in Income tax accruals and Other current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

We recognized interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax posnions as part of the provision for income taxes in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations of zero, $5 million of benefit, and $2 million of expense for-the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively. The gross
amount of interest and penalties accrued as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $30 I'[ll“lOl'l in each year. '

In the United States, NCR files consolidated federal and state income tax returns where statutes of limitations generally range from three to five years. U.S.
federal tax ‘years remain open from 2018 forward. Years beginning on or after 2007 are still open to examination by certain foreign taxing authorities,
including India, Egypt, and other major taxing jurisdictions.

During 2022, the Company expects to resolve certain tax matters related to United States and foreign jurisdictions. As of December 31 2021, we estimate
that it is reasonably possible that unrecognized tax benefns may decrease by $3 million to $12 mlllion in the next 12 months due to the resolution of these
tax matters. :
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8. STOCK COMPENSAT[ON PLANS

The Company recognizes all share-based payments as compensation expense in its financial statements based on their fair value. As of December 31, 2021,
the. Company’s stock-based compensation consisted of restricted stock units, employee stock purchase plan and stock -options. The Company recorded
stock-based compensation expense for the years ended December 31 as follows: : )

In millions . ’ : 2021 ) 2020 2019 .

Restricted stock units ' ) . $ 123§ __78°'$ 94|
Employee stock purchase plan 8 - .06 . 4
iStack options - N : , 23 24 7 9]
Stock-based compensation expense o i . ) - 154 -108 107
{Tax benefit_ - " (8). “(13) (12)

Total stock-based compensation (net of tax) - ’ . ' $ 136 $ 95 § - 95

Approximately 30 million shares remain authorized to be issue'd under the 2017 Stock Incentive Plan (“SIP”).’ Details of the Company's stock-based
compensation plans are discussed below. . .o )

Restricted Stock Units

The SIP provides for the grant of several different forms of stock-based compensation, including restricted stock units. Restricted stock units can have
service-based and/or performance-based vesting with performance-goals being established by the Compensation and Human Resource Committee of the
Company’s Board of Directors. Any grant of restricted stock units is generally subject to a vesting period of 12 months to 48 months, to the extent
perrnitted by the SIP. Performance-based grants conditionally vest upon achievement of future performance goals based on performance criteria such as the
Company’s achievement of specific return on capital and/or other financial metrics (as defined in the SIP) during the performance period. Performance-
based grants must be earned, based on performance, before the actual number of shares to be awarded is known. The Compensation and Human Resource
Committee considers the likelihood of meeting the performance criteria based upon estimates and other relevant data, and certifies performance based on
its analysis of achievement against the performance criteria. A recipient of restricted stock units does not have the rights of a stockholder and is subject to
restrictions on transferability and risk of forfeiture. Other terms and conditions applicable to any award of restricted stock units will be determined by the .
Compensation and Human Resource Committee and.set forth in the ‘agreement relating to that award. o )

As discussed in-Note 3, “Business Combinations and Divestitures”; the Company converted certain outstanding unvested Cardtronics awards into NCR
awards pursuant to an exchange ratio as defined in the acquisition agreement. Each restricted stock award that was outstanding, whether performance-based
or time-based, was converted into time-based awards, and will continue to be governed by the same vesting terms as the original Cardtronics awards.

The following table reports restricted stock unit activity during the year ended December 31, 2021:

Weighted Average Grant-Date Fair

Shares in thousands' . ' c . ’ Number of Units Value per Unit "
Unvested shares as of January 1 __._ . i 6,658 _$ s 26.84
Shares granted, ) . : ' ) 4,768 § . 34.00
[Shares converted per acquisition agreement i 1,283 $ 44.30§
Shares vested ) " . ' (4,263) $ .27.89
iShares forfeited j - e . (524) § 35.34}
$ 32.86

Unvested shares as of December 31 . : . . 7,922

" StocK-based compensation expense is reéognized in the financial statements based upon fair value. The total fair value of units vested and-distributed in the

N

form of NCR common stock was $119 million in 2021, $74 million in 2020, and $78 million in 2019. As of December 31, 2021, there was $132 million of
unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested restricted stock unit grants. The unrecognized compensation cost is expected to be recognized over a
remaining weighted-average period of 1.0 year. The weighted average grant date fair value for restricted stock unit awards granted in 2020 and 2019 was
$26.50 and : ’ : ’ ) '
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$24.31, respectively. The welghled average grant date fair value of restricted stock awards assumed through the Cardtronics acquisition is based on the falr .
value on the date assumed -

.

The following table represents the composition of restricted stock unit grants in 2021:

. - Weighted Average Grant-Date Fair
Shares in thousands Number of Units . © Value .

iService-based units : - i : . s 1,708 § ) 36.13]
Performance-based units : . : o ' 3,060 .$ 32.81
{Total restricted stock units . ' . ) . - 4,768 $ . 34.001

‘On February 23, 2021, the Company granted market-based restricted stock units with 50% of the award vesting on December 31, 2022 and 50% of the
" award vesting on December 31, 2023. The number of awards that vest are subject to the performance of the Company's stock price from the date of grant to

December 31, 2022. The fair-value was.determined to be $47.20 based on using a Monte-Carlo simulation model and will be recognized over the requisite

service period. The table below details the assumptions used in determining the falr value of the market-based restricted stock unlts granted on February 23,
. 2021 .

Dividend yield i : ] : B : — %,
Risk-free interest rate - ) ’ . ’ 0.10 %
iExpected volatility -~ ' - ) , 57.20 %]

Expected volatility for the market-based restricted stock units is calculated as the historical volatility of the Company’s stock over a period of three years,
as management believes this is the best representation of prospective trends. The risk-free interest rate was delerrmned based on a blend of the one and two
year U.S. Treasury yield curves in effect at the time of the grant.

On September 22, 2021, the Company granted market-based restricted stock units with the award vesting on September 9, 2024. The number of awards that
vest are subject to the performance of the Company's stock price from the date of grant to September 9, 2024. The fair value was determined to be $51.02
based on using a Morite-Carlo simulation model and will be recognized cver the requisite service period. The table below details. the assumptions used in
determining the fair value of the market-based restricted stock units granted on September 22, 2021.

Dividend yield . , T ) — %)
Risk-free interest rate ' . ’ ’ ‘ 0.47 %
|Expected volatility ’ . R . - . - 58.47 %!

Expected volatility for the imarket-based restricted stock units is calculated as the historical volatility of the Company’s stock over a periad of three years,
. as management believes this is the best representation of prospective trends. The risk-free interest rate was determined-based on a blend of the two years
and three years U.S. Treasury yield curves in effect at the time of the grant.

Stock ‘Options

The SIP also provides for the grant of stock opnons to purchase shares of NCR common stock. The Compensatlon -and Human Resource Committee has
discretion to determine the material terms and conditions of option-awards under the SIP, provided that (i) the exercise price must be no less than the fair
market value of NCR common stock (defined as the closing price) on the date of grant, (ii) the term must be no longer than ten years, and (iii) in no event
shall the normal vesting schedule provide for vesting in less than one year. Other terms and conditions of an award of stock options will be determined by
the Compensation and Human Resource Committee as set forth in the agreement relating to that award.. The Compensation and Human Resource
Committee has authority to administer the SIP, except that the Committee on Directors and ‘Governance of the Company’s Board of Directors will

,administer the SIP with respect to non- employee members of the Board of Directors. New shares of the Company’s .common stock are lSSUEd as a result of
stock option exercises.
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During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company did not grant any stock options. As discussed in Note 3, “Business Combinations and

Divestitures”, the Company converted certain outstanding unvested Cardtronics awards into NCR awards. Cardtronics stock option awards were converted

into NCR stock option awards with an exercise price per share for option awards equal to the exercise price per share of such stock option award

immediately prior to the completion of the acquisition divided by the exchange ratio (as defined in the acquisition agreement) and will continue to be

governed generally by the same terms and conditions as were applicable prior to the acquisition. The fair value .of options that the Company assumed in
" connection with the acquisition of Cardtronics were estimated using the Black-Scholes madel. : ' :

During the year ended December 31, 2020, stock options granted were premium-priced stock options with an‘exercise price equal to either 110% or 115%
of the closing stock price on the date of the grant. The weighted average exercise price of the stock options granted in the year ended. December 31, 2020
was $36.26. The. weighted average fair value of the option grants was $7.64. for the year ended December 31, 2020 based on using a Monte-Carlo
simulation model and will be recognized dver the requisite service period. These option grants have a 7 year contractual term that vest at the end of 36
months. . ’ '

The table below details the assumptions used in determining the fair value of the option grants:

For the year ended December 31, 2020

Dividend yield " ) . s o . — |
Risk-free interest rate . . . ) 1.34 %
[Expected volatility ___ : : - . - . 3463 %)

Expected holding period - years ’ : - .37

Expectéd volatility is calculated as the historical vblatility of.the Company’s stack over a period equal to the expected term of the options, as management
believes this is the best representation of prospectiv'e trends. The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and employee terminations .
within the valuation model. The expected holding period represents the period of time that options are expected to be outstanding. For the options granted -
during the year ended December 31, 2020, the seven-year U.S. Treasury yield curve was used to determine the risk-free interest rate.

The following table summarizes the Conﬁpany’s‘ stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2021:

. Weighted Average .
Weighted Average Remaining - . Aggregate Intrinsic
. . -Exercise Price per Contractual Term (in - alue
Shares in thousands Shares Under Option Share , years) (in millions)
Outstanding as of January 1 . _ 9,798 '$ . 32.82 ) : : |
Granted . ' — e oo :

" .!Assumed through.acquisition . . 192§ - 28.93 |
Exercised . ' (832). $° 30.54 . L
Forfeited or expired - i ~(79) .8 . - +3064 ' N . {
Outstanding as of December 31 } 9,079 § 32.96 454 § - 65.69
Fully vested and expected to vest as of December 31__- ' 4,987 _§ . 3391 _ . 483 % . 31.39]

_Exercisable as of December 31 C . 4074 $ '31.82 . ) - 4.18 $ 34.13

As of December 31, 202;, the total unrecognized compensation cost of $21 million related to unvested stock option’ grants is expected to be recognized
over a weighted average period of approximately 0.6 years.

The total intrinsic value of all options exercised was $9 million in 2021, $1 million in 2020, and $1 million in 2019. Cashreceived from opdbn exercises
under all share-based payment arrangements was $25-million in 2021, $2 million in 2020, and $2 million in 2019. The tax benefit realized from option
exercises was $1 million in 2021. There was no tax benefit realized from stock options exercised in 2020 and 2019.

Employee Stack Purchase Plan
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The Company's amended Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) provides émployees a 15% discount on stock purchases using a three-month look-back
. feature where the discount is applied to the stock price that represents the lower of NCR'’s closing stock price on either the first day or the last day of each
calendar quarter. Participants can contribute between 1% and 10% of their compensation. The amended ESPP was approved by NCR stockholders in 2016
and became effective January 1, 2017.

Employees purchased approximately 0.8 million shares in 2021, 1.3 million shares in 2020, and 0.8 million shares in 2019, for approximately $26 million
in 2021, $21 million in 2020 and $18 million in 2019. A total of 4 million shares were originally authorized to beissued under the ESPP before its -
amendment. Under the amended ESPP, 10 million shares were newly authorized to be issued, plus any shares remaining unissued under the prior ESPP
- after the last 2016 purchase date. Approximately 6.8 million authorized shares remain unissued under our amended ESPP as of December 31, 2021.

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Pension, Postretirement and Postemployment Plans NCR sponsors defined benefit pension plans. NCR’s U.S. pension plan no longer offers additional -
benéfits and is closed to new participants. Internationally, the defined benefit plans are based primarily upon compensation and years of service. Certain
international plan's also no longer offer additional benefits and are closed.to new participants. NCR’s funding policy is to contribute annually no less than
the minimum required by applicable laws and regulations: Assets of NCR’s defined benefit plans are primarily invested in corporate and government debt
securities, common and commmgled trusts, publicly traded common stocks, real estate investments, and cash or cash equivalents.

NCR recognizes the funded status of each applicable plan on.the Consolldated Balance Sheets Each overfunded plan is recognized as an asset and each

- uriderfunded plan is recognized as a liability. For pension plans, changes in the fair value of plan assets and net actuarial gains or losses are recognized
upon remeasurement, which is at least annually in the fourth quarter of each year. For postretirement and postemployment plans, changes to the funded
status are recognized as a component of other comprehensive loss in stockholders' equity.

"NCR sponsors a U.S. postretirement benefit plan that no longer offers benefits to U.S. participants who had not reached a certain age and years of service
with NCR. The plan prowdes medical care benefits to retirees and their eligible dependents. Non-U.S. employees are typically covered under government-
sponsored programs, and NCR generally does not’ provnde postretirement benefits other than pensions to non-U.S. retirees. NCR generally funds’ these
benefits.on a pay-as you-go basis. . -

NCR offers various postemployment benefits to involuntarily terminated and certain inactive employees after employment but before retirement. These
" benefits are paid'in'accordance with NCR’s gstablished postemployment benefit practices and policies. Postemployment benefits include mainly severance

as well as continuation of healthcare benefits and life-insurance coverage while on dlsablhty NCR provides appropriate accruals for these postemployment
" benefits. These postemploymem benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.

Pension Plans Reconciliation of the beginning and ending,balances of the benefit obligations for NCR's pension plaﬁs are as follows:
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1

U.S. Pension Benefits International Pension Benefits Total Pension Benefits

In millions . . 2021 2020 - 2021 _ 2020 2021 2020
73 12, " G RO D D A s N j
Beneflt obllgatlon as of .lanuary 1 $ 2,067 $ $

1 954

INetservice cost, SG & &rs o 2 o wart ‘g" S AR AN 2N W A 2
Interest cost o
fAmendment

Actuarial (gain) loss

 Bipn, 73 e ,—“\J - e T i 1

ISTMNINONESR

Benefits paid =0 1 e s g
Plan | participant conmbunons

Currency translation adjustments a2 - ?’.m PN TN e R SRR NS = ‘@ o 1 (32) g o C BTN ??'-4"}.;';'(32) gu‘”v“k w721
Benefit obligation as of December 31 R $ 1,882 $ 2,067 $ 1,105 $ 1,246 $ 2,987 § 3,313

'Accumulated be beneﬁt obhgauon as of December 31° % a- 8% 21,882 4804 2,05752 ‘$TM1,095 :3$ -+541,235{7$ 3¢ 142,977 ‘}s"l": 33,3021

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the fair value of the plan assets of NCR's pension plans are as follows:

- ) . - " U.S. Pension Benefits International Pension Benefits Total Pension Benefits
In millions - ’ 2021 2020 . 2021 2020 2021 2020

=1y ——— (S " e ap— _— JEr—— e - . . ome % hw-
[Change in plan asset s oy oe g e T e AL e e o eame T e At s i s ey RN S 7 T |

Fair value of plan assets as of January 1 $° 1,528 '$ 1,377 § 1,118 $ 1,058 $ 2,646 $ 2 435
* 'Actual return on plan assets gt “i% o5 & & e —MA ] “‘:r‘?;i(.'S_Z)T#i DB RIBT I A7 Aot E 00 Gy N 815 A

Company contributions ) — 70 o117 ~- 19 < - ~17 % . 89
Benefits paid g% == SECaNy i ‘ & R i . :

Currency translation adjustments . — (fé)
{Plan participant CONMTIDULONS | Gm, vy £ ciw s - i s Sats LT RE o ra et ¥ o F Poer Pida o S e - ] & =
Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 $ 1,379 § 1,528 $ 1,106 $. 1 118 $ 2,485 $° 2,646
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The following table presents lhe funded status_and the reconciliation-of the funded status ta amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and in
Accumulated other comprehenswe loss as of December 31

‘U.S. Pension Benefits . International Pension Benefits' Total Pension Benefits

In millions ' ] - o 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 . 2020
[Funded Status .5 (503) §  (539) § 1§ (128 $ . (502) § - (667)
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets o - ) .
|Noncurrent assets ... 8 — $ —_$ 300__$ - 199 § 300_ 5 1994
. Current liabilities: _ S — . — a3) . (15) ©(13) (15)-
‘INoncurrent liabilities ) X _ (503) _ .(539) - - (286) (312) (789) . (851);
Net amounts recognized ' -8 (503) $ (539) $ 1 3 (128) $ = (502) $. (667)
’f\mounts recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive . o
doss - .
. Prior service cost . . - o - .- — S — 17 24 17 24
{Total ' S i - $. — '3 — 5 178  u$ 17 s . 24

For pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets, the projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair
value of assets were $2,151 million, $2,149 million, and $1,382 million, respecnve]y, as of December 31, 2021, and $2,366 million, $2,363 million and -
- $1,531 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2020. . .

The net periodic beneflt_(lncome) cost of the pension plans for the years ended December 31 was as follows:

International

U.S. Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Total Pension Ben'eﬁ_(s X
In millions ' I . 2021 2020 2018 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019
Net service cost . , $  — 5 — $ — 8 6_$ 6% 7_8% 6 38 6 8 7]
Interest cost - i - 34 51 66 8 13 19 2 . 64 85
Expected return on plan assets GY)___(36)___(43)__ (25 __(28)___(@BL)____(55) ___(64).___(74)
Amortization of priof service cost - . . — — L — . 1 1 1 . 1 1 - 1
" Iactuarial (gain) loss . (40)._ 18 _ 60 (78) _ 16 _ 15 (118) _ 34 -75]
Net periodic benefit (income) cost . ‘ $ (36) $ 33 $ 83 $ (88) $ 8 § 11 § (124) $ 41 °$. 94

Actuarial gains in 2021 were primarily due to an increase in discount rates as well as a-favorable impact from an update to the mortality tables Actuarial
losses in 2020 and 2013 were primarily due to a decrease in the discount rate.

The weighted average rates and assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as of December 31 were as follows:

U.S. Pension Benefits International Pension Benefits Total Pension Bénefits
) 2021 $2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
{Discount rate . ~ 27 % 2.4 % 1.4 % 0.9% . 2.2 % 1.8 %)
. Rate of compensation increase ‘ N/A _-N/A 14% 09% - 1.4 % S 09%

The weighted average rates and assumptions uséd to determine net periodic benefit (income) cost for the years ended December 31 were as follows:
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. International ’
U.S. Pension Benefits : Pension Benefits Total Pension Benefits

. . 2021 2020 2019 - . 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019
Discount rate - Service Cost , N/A N/A N/A - 04% 0.7.% 1.6 % 04%. . 07% _ 16%)
Discount rate - Interest Cost . 1.7 % 27 % 3.8% 0.7 % 1.2% 18% 13% 21% 31%
Expected return on plan assets 21 % 2.8 % 3.6% 22 % 26%  32% 2.1 % 27% 3.4 %]

Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A 0.9 % 0.9 % 1.0% 09% 09% 1.0%

The ‘weighted-average cash balance interest créditing rite for the Company's cash balance defined benefit plans was 1.1% for the years ended Dgcémber
31, 2021 and 2020. : v . :

The discount rate used to determine U.S. benefit obligations as of December 31, 2021 was derived by matching the plans’ expected future cash flows to the
corresponding yields from.the Aon Hewitt AA Bond Universe Curve: This yield curve has been constructed to represent the available yields on high-
quality, fixed-income investments across a broad range of future maturities. International discount rates were determined by examining interest rate levels
and trends within each country, particularly yields on high-quality, long-term corporate bonds, relative to our future expected cash flows.

NCR employs a-building block approach as its primary approach in determining the long-term expected rate of return assumptions for plan assets.
" Historical market returns are studied and long-term relationships between equities and fixed income are preserved consistent with the widely accepted
capital market principle that assets with higher volatilities generate higher returns over the long run. Current market factors, such as inflation and interest
rates are evaluated before long-term capital market assumptions are determined. The expected long-term portfolio return is established for each plan via a
* building block approach with proper rebalancing consideration. The result is then adjusted to reflect additional expected return from active management riet
of plan expenses. Historical plan returns, the expectations of other capital market participants, and peer data may be used to review and assess the results
for reasonableness and appropriateness. - - o

Plan Assets The wéight¢d average asset allocatioqs as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 by asset category are as follows:.

U.S. Pension Fund " International Pension Fund
[ . T 5
Actuat Allocation of Plan Assets . Actual Allocation of Plan Assets
as of December 31 . as of December 31
Target Asset Target Asset
- 2021 - 2020 Allocation 2021 2020 Allocation
Equity securities ' - 14% —%.__10-30% 23 % 19% _10-30%- |
Debt securities e .84 % 94 % 40 - 85% 51 % 58 % 50 - 70%
Real estate : — % — % 0-15% 14 % 14 % 10-20% |
Other - o 2% 6 % 0-30% 12 % 9% 5= 15%
Total ' - 100 % 100 % L 100% 100% B

b The fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 by asset categdry is as follows:
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L4 T
AN ' ’
. u.s. . : - International
. Quoted . . . . ) Quoted
Prices in . . AN . Prices in
\ Active . . Active - .
Markets for . .y, Markets for Significant Significant,
Fair Valueas  Identical  Significant Other Significant Fair Valueas of  Identical Other Ungbservable
. of December Assets (Level Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Not Subject December 31, = Assets (Level Ohservable Inputs Not Subject
In millions . Notes 31, 2021 1) (Leve 2) . (sze 3) to Leveling 2021 R V) lnputs (Level 2) (Level 3) - to Leveling

‘Government securities ¢
Corporate debt

‘Money market funds
Common and _ 7gz 'TL 2 ?
commmgled trusts - :.,e— ;
{Equities x5 v L
Common and .
commingled trusts -
.Bonds
iCommon and 3 7 A8
icommmgled Tusts = g
IShart Term Investments ;.
Common and : . . . . )
commingled trusts - ‘ - S
Balance 4
'Parmershlpljomlventure ‘_ﬂ o “'.,:
‘interests - Other 57 :
ests 2 Other Zatl s il o
Mulual funds
{Insurance products .3
Real estate and other 5

! '*:5" Total gg =) -

.224 .8 70 MAn 953 ST N =T ~Y202F 8950 41,106 83 w26 ST 4l 88 SA;‘ ners 915108 3841]

~
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U.s. International
Quoted
Prices in
Active Quoted Prices  Significant
Markets for  Significant Significant in Active Other Significant
Fair Value as  Identical Other - Uncbservable . Fair Valueas * Markets for Observable Unobservable
of December Assets Observable Inputs Not Subject of December Identical Inputs Inputs Not Subjéct

In millians Notes 31,2020 {Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Level 3) to Leveling 31,2020  Assets (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) to Leveling

IAssets, o - R . s - . R i N b BTt T N 1

Equity securities: ' .

Common stock sy, - 1§ . —§ T g — 5 §_ . —7 "% 578 . 578, o v o g ]

Fixed income securities: .
* Government securities 2 -221; o =221 T My i o= — =L et |

Corporate debt 3 1,011 —_ 1,011 —_ 104 _ 104 —_ —_

(Other types of i | - 2 = o T N KRS Y A |

Money market funds 4 5 — — S 10 — — — 10

'Common and commingled . N v " i N L - R -

‘trusts - Equities 4 Y e — — - * — colag oty Tt — — 149

Common and commingled .

trusts - Bonds 4 167 — — 167 515 — — - 515

{Common and commingled . - v R N R o L —— _— ;

Jrusts - Short Term i ~ - , . . - * . RN . . . ' A

iInvestments, oy 94 = — — 94 & 40 - — - o — ) — 40

Common and commingled .

trusts - Balanced 4 -_— _— p— — 90 —_ — — 90

:Partnership/joint venture . = MR . i N3 i N - . . l

finterests - Other - . . 5 L2 — — 2 . e e — —_ . —_

Mutwal funds 4 28 © 28 — — — — — — —

\Insurance products 4 — — —_ N — T — P o p |

Real estate and other . 5 — — — — 152 — L — 152 -

l Total ¥ * $ 15288 ° 28§ 1,232 8 .7 ¢ $'. 268 ':S <« 1,118 $. --. 57§ 10587 ,  _ 152 § -~ 804}

Notes:

1. Common stocks are valued based on quoted

traded.

market prices at the closing price as reported on the active market on which the individual securities are

Government securities are valued based on yields currently available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings. When quoted
prices are not available for identical or similar securities, the security is valued under a discounted cash flows approach that maximizes observable
inputs, such as current yields on similar instruments but includes adjustments for certain risks that-may not be observable, such as credit and liquidity

risks.

Corporate debt is valued primarily based on observable market quotations for similar bonds at the closing price reported on the active market on which

.the individual securities are traded. When such quoted prices are not available, the bonds are valued using-a discounted cash flows approach, using

current yields on similar instruments of issuers with similar credit ratings. : . :

Common/collective trusts and registered investment companies (“RICs”) such as mutual funds are valued using a Net Asset Value (“NAV”) provided
by the manager of each fund. The NAV is based on the underlying net assets owned by the fund, divided by the number of shares or units outstanding.
The fair value of the underlying securities within the fund, which are generally traded on an active market, are valued at the closing price reported on
the active market-on which those individual securities are traded. For investments not traded on an active market, or for which a quoted price is not
publicly available, a variety of unobservable valuation methodologjes, including discounted cash flow, market multiple and cost valuation approaches,
are employed by the fund manager or independent third party to value investments. . o
Parinership/joint ventures are valued based on the fair value of the underlying securities within the fund, which include investments both traded on an
active market and not traded on an active market. For those investments that are traded on an active market, the values are based on the closing price
reported on the active market on which those individual securities ’
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" -are traded- For investments not traded on an active market, or for which a quoted price is not publicly available, a variety of unobservable valuation
methodologies, including discounted cash flow, market multiples and cost valuation approaches, are employed by the fund manager to value
investments. - ’

The following table presents- the reconciliation of the béginning and ending balances of those plan assets classified within Level 3_of the valuation
hierarchy. When the determination is made to classify the plan assets within Level 3, the determination'is based upon the significance of the unobservable
inputs to the overall fair value measurement.

In mllllons i B . . . International Penéiqﬁ Plans
Balance, December 31, 2019 ’ ' : : ) j . $ . 131
Realized and unrealized gains "and losses, net o . : 21
Purchases, sales and settlements, net I ‘ R ‘ —1
Transfers, net C " ' . : ) : —
.iBalance, December 31, 2020 . ‘ - ‘ . $ L -152]
Realized and unrealized gains and losses, net ) . (1)
iPurchases, sales and settlements, net . . ) : . i - —1.
Transfers, net : . —
Balance, December 31, 2021 ' . ] : . $ © 151]

Investment S[rategy NCR has hls[oncally employed a total return lnveslmem approach, whereby a mix of flxed-lncome equities and real estate investments
are used to maximize the long-term return of plan assets subject to a prudent level of risk. The risk tolerance is established for each plan through a careful

consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded status and corporate financial condition. The asset allocation held by the U.S. pension plan has historically
been and continues to be a portfollo comprising a-substantial portion of fixed income assets as of December 31, 2021. However, we have reviewed the

. plan's funding requirements, and in consultation with an independent advisor on asset allocation strategy investment policy and ob]ectlves we have begun
to diversify and rebalance the asset allocation to cap(ure additional returns to reduce future cash funding requirements.

The investment portfolios comain primarily fixed-income investmems, which are diversified across U.S. and non-U.S. issuers, type of fixed-income
security (i.e., government bonds; corporate bonds, mortgage-backed securities) and credit quality. The investment portfolios also contain a blend of equity .
investments, which are diversified across U.S. and non-U.S. stocks, small and large capitalization stocks, and growth and value stocks, primarily of non-
U.S. issuers. Where applicable, real estate investments are made through real estate securities, partnership interests or direct investment and are diversified
by property type and location. Other assets, such as cash or private equity are used judiciously to improve portfolio diversification and enhance risk-
adjusted portfolio returns, Derivatives may be used to adjust market exposures in an efficient and timely manner. Due to-the timing of security purchases
and sales; cash held by fund managers is classified in the same asset category ds the related investment. Rebalancing algorithms are applied to keep the
asset mix of the plans from’ deviating excessnvely from. their targets. Investment risk is measured and monitored on an ongoing basis Lhrough regular
performance reporting, 1nves[ment manager reviews, actuarial liability measurements and periodic investment strategy reviews.

101




Table Qf Contents,
NCR Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalemems-(Contmued)

Postretiremenit Plans Reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the benefit obligation for NCR's U.S. postretirement plan is as follows:

l’os('retiremeni, Benefits

In millions ' ' o 2021 . 2020
(Change in benefit obligation . e ‘ . N = R L s
Benefit obligation as of January 1 : L $ 16 § 17
Interest cost - I s s ” i . ) L, — - < —|
Actuarial gain ) ' : s ) ) —_
{Plan participant contributions ____- RN T —. bl —1
Benefits paid ) . ' ) : L Q)
Benefit obligation as of December 31~ . - $° T 16

The followmg table presents the funded status and the reconc1llatlon of the funded status to amounts recogmzed in the Consollda[ed Balance Sheets and in
Accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31:

Postretirement Benefits

In millions o ' ) . 2021 2020

‘Benefit obligation i T g DR EE (14) s S (16)
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets ) - : ‘
‘Current liabilities K ] - : , A (1) § B
Noncurrent liabilities . . (13) (14) .
Net amounts recognized: Cut - R $ (14) $ - 16)]

Amounts recognized in Accumulated other comprehenswe loss

Net actuarial loss’ - DA [ RN '$ - 5§ - 6}
Prior service benefit : . . . ) . — ’ _
Total« . - ] N S RN . o $ - _ 58 6]

The net periodic benefit cost of the postretirement plan for the years ended December 3 was:

Postretirement Benefits

_In millions 3 : ) 2021 2020 2019
Interest cost . E R N . PR ™% — s % 1]
. Amortization of: : .
1 Prior service benefit =~ : - : R . - = (3 [B)
Actuarial loss ’ i 1. 1 —
Net periodic benefit cost ) . s e e, ' $ 13 @8- (4

The assumptions ‘utilized in accounting for postretlrement benefit obhganons as of December 31 and for postrenrement benefit income_ for the years ended
December 31 were: - -

Postretirement Benefit Obligations Postretirement Benefit Costs
. X - 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019
Discount rate___~________.___ - ‘ 19%. - - 14%> * 25%  _ 14% __ '25% -~ 3.79%
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Assumed healthcare cost trend rates as of Decembier 31 were: v : .
: ‘ o : . ‘ . 201 E 2020

Pre-65 Coverage Post-65 Coverage Pre-65 Coverage Post-65 Coverage

‘Healthcare cost trend rate assumed for next year,”

Rate to which the cost trend rate is assurned to declme (the ulumate trend
rate)

gYear that the rate reaches the ultimate rate

Postemployment Benef ts Reconcnllauon of the beginning and endmg balances of the benefit obllgann for NCR's poslemployment plan was:

. Poslemploymem Benefits
In millions - v . . J ’ ~ 2021 2020

Benefits paid .
{Foreign currency exchange ¥ e (7 « 43R5 W
Actuarial (gain) loss :

‘Benefit obligation as of December 31 *‘*\a@“ N

or § AL AT EEL 1381 $H W 5,4138]

. :The following table presents the funded status and the reconciliation of the unfunded status to amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and
-in Accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 3L ' : R : .
. . ) . B Postemployment Benefits
In millions . . . X . T . 2021 . 2020
R R S PRI R S 7 3 IS EI ©* (138)]

x‘&‘i,“,,,. b am NG e

o ¥ b o e i g ] ; o pad. % (3_2):_I$ E‘.ﬁ"‘:‘ I3 RN (2)
Noncurrentliabilities ’ o B . . (106) - (106)
SRR T T s T (138) S8 ‘

T A PR PR A 3
iNet amounts recognized* ‘aX e

Amounts recognized in Accumulated other comprehenswe loss
PRI AR NS VL

iNet actuarial gain i i s B>
_Prlor service beneflt e . ) ) ) L .
& LSk ‘ T T RETRS Tael SMX(25) 18 w Y 1(31)

103

’e



Table of Contents . :
) NCR Corporation -
. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements-(Continued)

The net periodic benefit cost of the postemployment plan for the years ended December 31 was:

Postemployment Benefits

In millions ) : 2021 2020 2019 .

IService cost. - ’ ; : $ 24 $ 3 42 3 ' 31]

Interest cost i ’ 2 ' 3 © 3

jAmortization of: __ . . : . . . - - .
Prior service benefit . : ) ' 2 . )] )

L Actuarial gain ' : ' . \ @ @ @)

Net benefit cost . ' ‘ ‘ $ 20 § 39 § . 29 -

The weighted average assumptlons utilized in accounting for poslemploymem benefit obligations as of December 31 and for postemploymenl beneflt costs
for the years ended December 31 were:

ployment Benefit Obligati Postemployment Benefit Costs

- 2021 2020 2021 2020 2019
IDiscount rate - - : - 14% S 14% 23% - 18% C 2.4%)
Salary increase rate ) . 2.0 % T 20% . 26% 1.8 % 1.9 %
Involuntary turnover rate L - : 3.8 % 3.8 % 3.8 % 3.8% 4.3 %,

~

Cash Flows Related to Employee Benefit Plans

Cash Contributions NCR does not plan to contribute to the U.S. qualified pension plan in 2022, and plans to contribute approximately $15 million to the
. international pension plans in 2022. The Company plans to make contributions of approximately $1 million to the U.S. postretirement plan. The Company
- plans to make contributions of $30 million to the U.S. and international postemploymem plans in-2022.

- Estimated Future Benefit Payments NCR expects to make the following beneflt payments reflecting past and future service from its pension, postretlrement
and postemployment plans:

’

" International Pension

In millions : . . U.S. Pension Benefits - . .Benefits - - " Total Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits Postemployment Benefits

{Year - ] . N |
2022 $. 115 § 48 $ -- 163 § 1 3 30

2023 $ 15_$ a7_$ 162_% 1% 18]
2024 $ 115 § 49 3 164 § 1 % 17

2025 $ 115 - $ 48 _$ 163§ . 1_$ 16]
2026 3 115 3 4 8 159 § 1 $ 15

i2027-2031 $ .. 554§ 229_ % 783-_ % 2_ %

6]

Savings Plans U.S. employees and many international emp]oyees participate in defined contribution savings plans. These plans generally prov1de either a
specified percent of pay or a matching contribution on participating employees’. voluntary elections. NCR’s matching contributions typically are subject to
a maximum percentage or level of compensation. Employee contributions can be made pre-tax, after-tax or a combination thereof. The expense under the
U.S. plan was approximately $31 million in 2021,.$32 million in 2020, and $27 milliori in 2019. The expense under international and subsidiary savings
plans was $31 million in 2021, $25 million in 2020, and $25 million in 2019.

Amounts to be Recognized The amounts in Accumulated other comprehenswe loss that are expected to be recognlzed as components of net periodic benefit
cost (income) during 2022 are as follows:
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u.s. International Pension Total .. ’
In millions . Pension Benefits Benefits . " Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits Postemployment Benefits
" {Prior service cost (benefit)  $ - % - .—=8 . — % )
Actuarial loss (gain) $ . — 8 o — $ — 3 1 % . n

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal c_ourse of buéiness, NCR is subject to various proceedings, lawsuits, claims and other matters, including, for example, those that relate to the

environment and health and safety, labor and employment, employee benefits, import/export compliance, intellectual property, data privacy and security,

product liability, commercial disputes and regulatory compliance, among others. Additionally, NCR is subject to diverse and complex laws and regulations,

including those relating to cerporate governance, public disclosure and reporting, environmental safety and the discharge of materials into the environment, -
product safety, import and export compliance, data privacy and security, antitrust and competition, government contracting, anti-corruption, and labor and

human resources, which are rapidly changing and subject to many possible changes in the future. Compliance with these laws and regulations, including

changes in accounung standards, taxation requirements, and federal securities laws among others, may create a substantial burden on, and substanual.ly

increase costs to NCR or could have an impact on NCR’s ‘future operating results. The Company has reflected all liabilities when a loss is considered

probable and reasonably estimable in the Consolidated Financial Statements. We do not believe there is a reasonable possibility that losses exceeding

amounts already recognized have been incurred, but there can be no assurances that the amounts required to satisfy alleged liabilities from such matters will

not impact future operating results. Other than as stated below, the Company does not currently expect to incur material'capit,al expenditures related to such

matters. However, there can be no assurances that the actual amounts required to satisfy alleged liabilities from various lawsuits, claims, legal proceedings
and other matters, inchiding, but not limited to the Fox River and Kalamazoo River environmental matters and other matters discussed below, and to

comply with applicable laws and regulauons will not exceed the amounts reflected in NCR’s Consolidated Financial Statements or will not have a material

adverse effect-on its consolidated results of operanons capital expendltures competmve posmon fmanclal condition or cash flows

Envu'onmental Matters NCR's facilities and operations are subject to a w1de range of environmental protection laws, and NCR has investigatory and
remedlal activities underway at a number of facilities that it currently owns or operates, or formerly owned or operated, to comply, or to determine
comphance with such laws. Also, NCR has been identified, either by a government agency or by a private party seeking contribution to site clean- -up costs,’
‘as a potentially responsible party (“PRP”) at a number of sites pursuant to various state and federal laws, including the Federal Water.Pollution Control Act,
the Comprehensive Environmental Response;” Compensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA”) and comparable state statutes. Other than the Fox River.
- matter, the Kalamazoo River matter and the Ebina matter discussed below, we currently do not anticipate material expenses and- liabilities from these
envuonmental matters. : :

Fox River NCR is one of eight entities that were formally notified by governmental and other éntities, such as iocal Native American trlbes that they are
PRPs for environmental claims (under CERCLA and other statutes) arising out of the presence of polychlorinated biphenyls (“PCBs”) in sediments in the
lower Fox River and in the Bay of Green Bay in Wisconsin. Such notice was provided on September 30, 2003. The other Fox River PRPs that received
notices include Appleton Papers Inc. (“API”; now known as Appvion, Inc.), PH. Glatfelter Company (“Glatfeller”_), Georgia-Pacific Consumer Products - .
LP (“GP”, successor to Fort James Operating Company), and others. NCR was id,en'tified as a PRP because of alleged PCB discharges from two carbonless
copy paper manufacturing facilities it previously owned, which were located along the Fox River. NCR sold its. facilities in 1978 to APL The parties have
also contended that NCR is responsible for PCB discharges from paper mills owned by other companies because NCR carbonless copy paper "broke” was
allegedly purchased by those other mills as araw material. . . .

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“USEPA”) and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (together, “the Governments”) developed clean-
up plans for the upper and lower parts of the Fox River and for portions of the Bay of Green Bay. On November 13, 2007, the Governments issued a
unilateral administrative order (the “2007 Order”) under CERCLA to the eight original PRPs, requiring them to perform remedial work under the
Governments”. clean-up plan for the lower parts of the river (operable units 2 through 5). In April 2008, NCR and API formed a limited liability company
(the “LLC"), which entered into an agreement with an environmental remediation contractor to perform-the work at the Fox River site. In-water dredgmg
and remediation under the clean-up plan commenced shortly thereafter. :
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NCR and API, along with B.A.T Industries p.l.c. (“BAT”), share among themselves a portion of the cost of the Fox River clean-up and natural resource-
damages (“NRD”) based upon a 1998 agreement (the “Cost Sharing Agreement”), a 2005 arbitration award (subsequently confirmed as a judgment), and a

September 30, 2014 Funding Agreement (the “Funding Agreement”). The Cost Sharing Agreement and the arbitration resolved disputes that arose out of

the Company's 1978 sale of its Fox River facilities to API. The Cost Sharing Agreement and arbitration award resulted in a 45% share for NCR of the first

$75 million of such costs (a threshold that was reached in 2008), and a 40% share for amounts in excess of $75 million. The Funding Agreement.arose out

.of a 2012 to 2014 arbitration dispute between NCR and API, and provides for regular, ongoing funding of NCR incurred Fox. River-remediation costs via -
contributions, made to a new limited liability corporation created by the Funding Agreement, by BAT, API and, for 2014, API's indemnitor, Windward

Prospects. The Funding Agreement creates .an obligation on BAT and API to fund 50% of NCR’s Fox River remediation costs from October 1, 2014

forward (API's Fox River-related obligations under the Funding Agreement were fully satisfied in 2016); the Funding Agreement also provides NCR

contractual avenues for payment of, via direct and third-party sources, (1) the difference between BAT’s and API's 60% obligation under the Cost Sharing

Agreement and arbitration award on the one hand and their ongoing ($ince September 2014) 50% payments under the Funding Agreement on the other, as

well as (2) the difference between the amount NCR received under the Funding Agreement and the amount owed to it under the Cost Sharing Agreement

and arbitration award for the period from April 2012 through September 2014. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the receivable under the Funding

Agreement- was approximately $54 million and was included in Other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company anticipates that it will-
collect sums related to the receivable after 2021, subject and pursuant to the terms of the Funding Agreement and related agreements. This. receivable is hot

taken into account in calculating the Company’s Fox River net reserve. . . o : : '

The Company'’s litigations relating to contribution and enforcement claims concerning the Fox River have been concluded. A proposed consent decree

setdement (the “CD settlement”’) with respect to the contribution action (a case originally filed by NCR and API) and the government enforcement action €]

case originally filed by the federal and state governments against several PRPs, including the Company) was successfully negotiated by NCR and the

federal and state governments and was approved on August 22, 2017 by the federal district court in Wisconsin that had been presiding over those cases. A
" final order of dismissal as to the Company in the contribution and government enforcement actions was subsequently entered; one party, Glatfelter, had
- appealed the approval of the CD settlement. On January 3, 2019, the United States lodged a proposed consent decree with the Wisconsin court, reflecting a
settlement reached by the United States, Wisconsin and Glatfelter with respect to Glatfelter’s Fox River liability under the government enforcement action;
a component of that settlement was withdrawal of Glatfelter’s appeal opposing the Company’s CD settlement. On March 14, 2019, the ‘Wisconsin court
approved the Glatfelter consent decree, and on April 3, 2019, Glatfelter's appeal was dismissed. ’ ) : '

The CD settlement has now resolved the remaining Fox River-related coritribution and enforcement claims against the Company. The key companents of

" the approved CD settlement include (1) the Company’s commitment to complete the remediation of the Fox River; which has now been completed; (2) the
Company’s conditional agreement to waive its contribution claims against the two remaining defendants in the case, GP and Glatfelter; (3) the Company’s
agreement not to ‘appeal the trial court’s decision on divisibility -of harm; (4) the Governments’ agreement to include.in the settlement so-called
“contribution protection” in the Company’s favor as to GP’s and Glatfelter’s contribution claims against the Company, the effect of which will be to
extinguish those claims; (5) the Governments’ agreement not to pursue thie'Company for the'Governments’ past oversight costs; and (6) the Governments’
agreement to exercise proéecutorial discretion in pursuing other parties for future oversight costs and long-term monitoring and maintenance, with the
Company retaining so-called “backstop” liability in the event that the other parties fail to pay future oversight costs or to perform long-term monitoring and
maintenance. Additionally, although certain state law claims by GP and Glatfelter against the Company may not be affected directly by the CD settlement,
the CD settlement provi‘des that the Company’s contribution claims against those two parties will revive if those parties attempt to assert any claims against
the Company relating to the Fox River, including any state law claims. ' :

In the quarter ending September 30, 2017, the remediation general contractor'commenced -an arbitration against the LLC, in a dispute over contract
interpretation. The hearing on this matter was completed in June 2019, and the parties submitted post-trial briefs in. August 2019.. The amounts claimed by
the contractor range from approximately $46 million to approximately $53 million; the Company disputed the claims and contested them vigorously during
the hearing. Tn November 2019, having rejected substantial portions of the claims, the arbitration panel awarded the contractor approximately $10 million.
The Company’s indemnitors and co-obligors, described below, weré responsible for the majority of the award, with the Company’s share being
approximately 25% of the award. i -

With respect to the Company’s prior dispute with API, which was generally superseded by the Funding Agreement,'lhe Company received timely payments
as they came due under the Funding Agreement. Although API filed for bankruptcy protection'in October 2017, it had made all of the payments to the
Company in connection with thé Fox River that are required of it by the Funding Agreement.
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NCR's eventual remediation liability, followed by long-term monitoring. expected to be performed by others, will depend on a number of factors. In
establishing the reserve, NCR attempts to estimate a range of reasonably possible outcomes for-each of these factors, although each range is itself uncertain.

NCR uses its best estimate within the range, if that is possible. Where there is a range of equally possible outcomes, and there is no amount within that
range that is considered to be a better estimate than any other amount, NCR uses the.low end of the range. The significant factors include: (1) the total
remaining site costs, including the costs associated with decommissioning the site, the expected cost impact of which is expected .to be neutral or non-
material to the Company, including long-term monitoring following completion of the clean-up, and what parties are assigned to discharge the post-clean-.
up tasks (as noted, the Company no longer expects to bear long-term monitoring costs); (2) total NRD for the site and the share that NCR will bear (which

is now resolved as to the Company); (3) the share of clean-up costs that NCR will bear (which is resolved under the CD settlement) (4) NCR's transaction

and litigation costs to defend itself to the extent additional litigation is required with respect to claims brought by the general contractor; and (5) the share
. of NCR's payments that BAT will bear (which is governed by the Cost Sharing Agreement and the Funding Agreement, BAT has made all of the payments
‘requested of it, and as-discussed above; API is in bankruptcy and is not presumed likely to bear further shares of NCR's payments). With respect to NRD, in
connection with a certain settltement entered into by other PRPs in 2015, the Government wrthdrew the NRD claims it had prosecuted on behalf of NRD
trustees, including those NRD claims asserted against the Company :

While it is possible there could be additional changes to some e]ements of the reserve over upcoming periods, all in river-remediation, site demolition and
- site decommissioning have been completed. Final reporting and site-completion certification is expected this year. Nonetheless, there can be no assurance
that unexpected expenditures and liabilities will not have a material effect on NCR's capital expenditures, earnings, financial condition, cash flows, or
competitive position. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the gross reserve for the Fox River matter was approximately $4 million and $6 million,
respectively. As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the net reserve for the Fox River matter was approximately $26 million and-$28 million, respectively.
NCR contributes to'the LLC to fund remediation activities and generally, by contract, has funded certain amounts of remediation expenses in advance. As
of December 31, 2021 and 2020, approximately zero remained from this funding. NCR's reserve for the Fox River ‘matter is reduced as the LLC makes
payments to the remediation contractor and other vendors with respect to remediation activities. :

Under a 1996 agreement, AT&T Corp. (“AT&T”) and Nokia (as the successor to Lucent Technologies and. Alcatel-Lucent USA) are responsible severally
" (not jointly) for indemnifying NCR for certain portions of the amounts paid by NCR for the Fox River matter over a defined threshold and subject to

certain offsets. (The agreement governs certain aspects of AT&T's divestiture of NCR and of what was then known as Lucent Technologles) Those
' compames have made the payments requested of them by the Company on an ongoing basis. .

Kalamazoo River In November 2010, USEPA issued a “general notice letter” to NCR with respect to the Allied Paper, Inc./Portage Creek/Kalamazoo River
Superfund Site (“Kalamazoo River site”) in Michigan. Three other companies - International Paper, Mead Corporation, and Consumers Energy - also
received general notice letters at or about the same time. USEPA asserts that the site is contarminated by various substances, primarily PCBs, as a result of
discharges by various paper mllls located along the river. USEPA does not claim that the Company made direct discharges into the Kalamazoo River, ‘and
_NCR never had facilities at or near the Kalamazoo River site, but USEPA indicated that “NCR may be liable under Section 107 of CERCLA ... as an
arranger who by contract or agreement, arranged for the disposal, treatment and/or transportation of hazardous substances at the Site.” USEPA stated that it-
“may issue special notice letters to [NCR] and other PRPs for future RI/FS [remedial investigation / feasibility studres] and RD/RA [remedial design -/
remedial acu0n] negotiations.” .

In connection with the Kalamazoo River site, in December 2010 the Company, along with two. other defendants, was sued in federal court by three GP
affiliate corporations in a private-party contribution and cost recovery action for alleged pollution. The suit, pending in Michigan, asks that the Company
and other defendants pay. a “fair portion” of these companies’ costs. Various removal and remedial actions remain to be decided upon and performed at the
‘Kalamazoo River site, the total costs for which generally remain undetermined; in 2017, Records of -Decisions were issued for two parts of the river, and in
2018 such a decision was issued for another part of the river, but such decisions for the majority of the work are expected to be made only over the next
several years. The suit alleges that the Company is liable to the GP entities as an “arranger” under CERCLA. The initial phase of the case was tried in a.
Michigan federal court in February 2013; on September 26, 2013 the court issued a decision that held NCR was liable as an “arranger” as of at least March
1969. (PCB-containing carbonless copy paper.was produced from approximately 1954 to April 1971, and the majority of contamination at the Kalamazoo
River site had occurred prror to 1969) NCR preserved its right to appeal the September 2013 decision.

-In the 2013 decision the Court did not determine NCR’s share of the overall liability. Relative shares of liability for the four companies were tned to the
courtina subsequent phase of the case in December 2015. In a ruling rssued on March 29, 2018,
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the court addressed responsibility for the costs that GP had incurred in the past, tolaliﬁg to approximately $50 million (GP had sought approximately $105

* million, but $55 million of those claims were removed by the court upon motions filed by the Company and other parties); NCR ‘and GP were each .

- pursuant to the judgment; those proceedings were stayed pending the appeal referenced below.

0

assigned a 40% share of those costs, and the other two companies were assigned 15% and 5% as their allocations. The court entered a judgment in the case
on June 18, 2018, in which it indicated that it would not allocate future costs, but would enter a declaratory judgment that the four companies together had
responsibility for futire costs, in amounts and shares to be determined. Cross-proceedings have been commenced to obtain recoveries from the other parties

o

In July 2018, the Company appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit both the 2013 court decision, which it believes is in conflict
with a decision from the Fox River trial court as to Operable Unit 1. of that site and an affirmance of that decision from the Court of Appeals for the
Seventh Circuit, and the 2018 court decision, on- various legal grounds. The Company filed a bond to stay any execution of the judgment pending the
appeal, and its application for a stay was approved by the court and remains stayed until the Company filed its dismissal of the appeal on December 31,
2020 pursuant to a Consent Decree, noted below. ' ' '

During the.pendency of the Sixth Circuit stay, the Company negotiated a settlement of the Kalamazoo River matter with the USEPA and other government
agencies having oversight over the river. On December S, 2019, the Company entered into a Consent Decree, filed with the District Court on December 11,
2019, and on December 2, 2020, the District Court approved the Consent Decree, which has now resolved all litigation associated with the river clean-up,
including the Sixth Circuit appeal. The Consent Deciee requires the Company to pay GP its 40% share of past costs, to pay the USEPA and state agencies " -
their past and future administrative costs, and to dismiss its Sixth Circuit appeal. The Consent Decree further requires the Company to take responsibility
for the remediation of a portion, but not all, of the Kalamazoo River. The Consent Decree further provides the Company protection from other PRPs,
including GP, seeking contribution for their costs associated with the clean-up anywhere on the river, thereby resolving the allocation of future costs left
unresolved by the June 19, 2019 judgment. . o

NCR expects to have claims against BAT and API under the Funding Agreement discussed above for the Kalamazoo, River remediation expenses. API filed
for bankruptcy protection in October 2017, and thus payment of its potential share under the Funding Agreement for so-called “futyre sites,” which would
include the Kalamazoo River site, may be at risk, but as liability under the Cost Sharing Agreement and the Funding Agreement is joint and several, the
bankruptcy is not anticipated to affect the Company’s ability to seek that amount. from BAT. The Company will also have indemnity or reimbursement -
claims against AT&T and Nokia under the arrangement discussed above in connection with the Fox River matter after expenses have met a contractual
threshold set out in the 1996 agreement referenced above in the Fox River discussion. o

As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the total reserve for Kalamazoo was $39 million and $164 million, respectively. The reserve is reported
on a basis that is net of expected contributions from the Company's co-obligors and indemnitors, subject to when the applicable threshold is reached. While
the Company believes its co-obligors' and indemnitors' obligations are as previously reported, the reserve reflects changes in positions taken by some of
those co-obligors and indemnitors with respect to'the Kalamazoo River. The contributions from its co-obligors and indemnitors are expected to range from
$70 million to $150 million and the' Company will continue to pursue such contribution: '

As many aspects of the costs of remediation will not be determined for several years (and thus the high end of a range of possible costs for many areas of
the site cannot be quantified at this time), the Company has made what it considers to be reasonable estimates of the low end of a range for such costs
where remedies are identified, and/or of the costs of investigations and studies for areas of the river where remedies have not yet been determined, and the
reserve is informed by those estimates. The extent of NCR’s potential liability remains subject to many uncertainties, notwithstanding the settlement of this
matter and related Consent Decree noted above, particularly in as much as remedy decisions and cost estimates will not be generated until times in the
future and as most of the work to be performed will take place through the 2030s. Under other assumptions or estimates for possible costs of remediation,
which the Company does not at this point consider to be reasonably estimable or verifiable, it is possible that the reserve the Company has taken to
discontinued operations reflected in this paragraph could more than approximately double the reflected reserve. ’

Ebina The Company is engaged in cooperative regulatory compliance activities with the government of Japan-in connection with certain environmental
contaminants generated in its past operations in that country. The Company has quantities of PCB and other wastes primarily from its former plant at Oiso,
Japan, including capsulated undiluted solutions manufactured in the past, capacitors, light ballasts and PCB-affected soil from the Oiso plant that was
excavated and placed in steel drums. These wastes are stored in a facility at Ebina, Japan in accordance with Japanese regulations governing such materials.
Over the past several years, Japan has enacted and amended legislation governing such wastes, and has set a current deadline for treating and disposing of
(at government-constructed disposal facilities) the highest-conceritration wagteé by 2027. Lower-concentrati_'on ' :
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v

other specified triggering event, in each case as defined by t}'le applicable guarantee. NCR believes the likelihood of having to perform under any such
guarantee is remote. As.of December 31, 2021 and 2020, NCR had no material obligations related to such guarantees, and therefore its Consolidated )
Financial Statements do not have any associated liability-balance. - ’ ' :

NCR provides its customers a standard manufacturer’s warranty and records, at the time of the sale, a corresponding estimated liability for potential -
warranty costs. Estimated future obligations due to warranty claims are based upon historical factors, such as labor rates, average repair time, travel time,
number of service calls per machine and cost of replacement parts. When a sale is consummated, the total customer revenue is recognized, provided that all
revenue recognition criteria-are otherwise satisfied, and the associated warranty liability is recorded using pre-established warranty percentages for the
respective product classes. : : . ‘

From time to time, product design or quality corrections are accomplished through modification programs: When identified, associated costs of labor and
paits for such programs are estimated and accrued as part of the warranty reserve. a i

The Company recorded the activity related to the warranty reserve for the years ended December 31 as follows;

In millions . . . ) . 2021 2020 . 2019
{Warranty reserve liability : . M ] .|
Beginning balance as of January 1 ) . $ 18 $ 21§ 26
fAccruals for warranties issued. ) L . -, j . 28 30 - 37]
Settlements (in cash or in kind) ’ ’ ’ 27) . (33) - ) (42)
{Ending balance-as of December 31 i - . $ .19 § 18 $ w21

In addition, NCR provides its customers with certain indemnification rights. In general, NCR agrees to indemnify the customer if a third-party asserts
patent or other infringement on the part of its customers for its use of the Company’s products subject to certain conditions that are generally standard
within the Company’s industries. On limited occasicns, the Company will undertake additional indemnification obligations for business reasons. From time
to time, NCR also enters into agreements in connection with its acquisition and divestiture activities that include indemnification obligations by the
Company. The fair value of these indemnification obligations is not readily determinable due to the conditional nature of the Company’s potential
obligations and the specific facts and circumstances involved-with each particular agreement. The Company has not recorded aliability in connection with
these indemnifications, and no current indemnification instanée is material to the Company’s financial position. Historically, payments ‘made by the
Company under these types of agreements have not had a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial condition, results of operation$ or cash
flows. ) o : ’

Purchase Commitments The Company has purchase commitments for materials, supplies, services, and property, plant and equipment as part of the
normal course of business. This includes a long-term service agreement with Accenture, under which many of NCR's key transaction processing activities
and functions are performed. - ' : v

11. LEASING

The following table presents our lease balances as of December 31:°
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In mxllmns T ’ . ' : : Locauan in the Consulldaled Balance Sheet December 31, 2021 Decemher 31, 2020
Operating lease assets . . ) . Operating Iease assets $ 419 $ 344
E;’} Finance lease assets s <o % T TR ~”~'~7’5Property, plant and equipment, nel&a,‘l&fﬁ;“’ - :

‘

Accumulated Amortization-of Finance lease assets . Pro:)erty, plam and equnpment net - @35 . - (18)
M 5 W RS ~‘$“"“*f; 5446 838 o e & 3811

{I‘otall eased assets g{ - Lo =
Liabilities

R RGTEk

. Operating Iease liabilities - Other current liabilities P $ 97 $ 85
E¥Finance lease liabilities x:-. 30, RS OLher current liabilities &3 4 xz:7 it L Yoo 116 g U RU e 115]
Noncurrent . * :
E%-Opérating lease liabilities .z, i ; )

- Finance lease liabilities Other liabilities < . 13 23
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The following table piesents our lease costs for operatmg and fmance leases: . : S : L
For the year ended December  For the year ended December For the year ended December
In millions 31, 2021 Lo 31, 2020 . ) 31,2019 .

Operatmg lease COSt P g ot pode s 3":\- G T P TR T ..--Aw:.rg!'» -‘“1131”; $ i g,

R BRI 5 N T m o

' Interest on lease liabjlities L : . 1

R mﬁ»; A 1,]3 7
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The following table presents the supplemental cash flow information: . ~- oo .

. .For the year ended ﬁecemher For the year ended December For the year ended December
In millians ’ 31, 2021 . . 31, 2020 31 2019 -

‘Cash pa paid for amounts included in the measurement oflease habllmes Zar e S gl S T
Operating cash flows from opérating leases

[ ’*; :: Operating cash flows from finance leases R

Financing cash flows from finance leases $ . 170§ ) "~ .13 % - 4

ICease Assets Obtained in EXChange for. Lease Obligations PP s s ohs ot S st d a0 e is 2 S dr g i T e ey o kent oo ]

Operating Leases _ . . $ N 163 $ . B o 31% R 45

¥ E7 Finance Leases ;% v L e o

The following table reconciles the undiscounted cash flows for each of the first five years and total of the remalmng years to-the fmance lease liabilities and
operating lease liabilities recorded on the Consolldated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2021:
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In millions s Operating Leases Finance Leases

12022 ‘ : S $ i 120§ . 174
2023 . ' , _ _ , - 81 1
12024 i L - - v 65 . 2]
2025° - ) ‘ ; . " 52 A : —
2026 i . - » 45 —]
Thereafter ' . . 258 ) —
{Total lease payments i i f . T 621 ) L . 30]
Less: Amount representing interest ) . ) (136) ] )
Present value of lease liabilities , 8 ‘ 485 3 ' 291

As of December 31, 2021, all material operating leases had commencéd.‘

The following table presents the weighted average remaining lease term and interest rates:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Weighted average lease term: . , ~ i

Operating leases : ) ) 8.4 years 8.7 years
[ _Finance leases - - A ’ " 2.0years - 2.7 years|
Weighted average interest rates: : :
{__ Operating leases . : . ._570%__ 6.45 %;

Finance leases ] ’ : B ,378% . 459 %
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12. SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK

On December 4, 2015, NCR issued 820,000 shares of Series A Convemble Preferred Stock to certain entities affiliated with the Blackstone Group L.P.
(collectively, “Blackstone”) for an aggregate purchase price of $820 million, or $1,000 per share, pursuant to an-Investment Agreement between the
Company and Blackstone dated November 11, 2015. In connection with the issuance of the Series. A Convertible Preferred Stock, the Company incurred
direct and increimental expenses-of $26 million, including financial advisory fees, closing costs, legal expenses and other offering-related expenses. These
direct and incremental expenses originally reduced the Series A -Convertible Preferred Stock, and will be accreted through retained earnings as a deemed
dividend from the date of issuance through the first possible known redemption date, March 16, 2024. - C

In 2017 in connection with the early release of the lock -up included in the, Investment Agreement, ‘Blackstone offered for sale 342,000 shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock in an underwritten public offering. In addmon Blackstone converted 90,000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

- into shares of our-common stock and we repurchased those shares of common stock for $48.47 per share The underwritten offenng and the stock
repurchase were consummated on March 17, 2017. '

On September 18, 2019, NCR entered into an agreement to repurchase and convert the outstanding 512,221 shares of Series A Convertrble Preferred Stock

"owned by Blackstone. NCR repurchased 237,673 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock for total cash consideration of $302 million. The
remaining shares of Blackstone's Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, including accrued dividends, were converted to approxrmately 9. 16 million shares
of common stock at a conversion price of $30.00 per share.

For the repurchase of Series A Convertrble Preferred Stock, the excess of the fair value of consideration transferred ‘over the carrying value. '

was approximately $67 million, and has been included as a deemed dividend in adjusting the income from common stockholders in calculating earnings per

share. In this analysis, we determined the fair value of the.consideration transferred was not in excess of the fair value of the redeemed Seriés A

Convertible Preferred Stock. As a result, there was no inducement provrded to. Blackstone for the conversion of the remaining preferred shares into

common stock. .

- On October 6, 2020; NCR entered into a definitive agreement to, repurchase 67,000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock from two affiliated
_shareholders for a total cash consideration of $72 million. The transaction closed on October 7, 2020. On October 12, 2020, NCR entered into a definitive
agreement to repurchase 65,365 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock owned by two Aaffiliated sharehiolders for a total cash consideration of $72
million. The transaction closed on October 13, 2020. The excess of the fair value of consideration transferred over the carrying value was approximately
'$12 million, and has been‘included as a deemed dividend in adjusting the income from common stockholders in calculating earnings per share.

Dividend Rights The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock ranks senior to the shares of the Company’s common stock, with respect to. dividend rights and. .
rights on the distribution of assets on any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Company. The Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share. Holders of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to a cumulative
dividend at the rate of 5.5% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears. Beginning in the first quarter of 2020, dividends are payable in cash or in-kind at the
option of the Comipany. If the Company does not declare and pay a dividend; the dividend rate wil] increase to 8.0% per annum until all accrued but uripaid

dividends .have been paid in full. During the year ended December 31, 2021 the Company did not pay dividends-in-kind associated with the Series A

Convertible Preferred Stock. During the years ended December 31 2020 and 2019, the Company paid dividends-in-kind of $10 million and $43 million .
respectively, assoctated with the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. Cash dividends of $15 million and $9 million were declared during the years ended -
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively, ; and there were no cash dividends during the year ended December 31, 2019..

Conversion Features The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of the holders at any time into shares of common stock at a’
conversion price of $30.00 per share, or a conversion rate of 33.333 shares of common stock per share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020; the maximum number of common shares that could be requnred to be issued upon conversion of the outstanding shares of
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock was 9.2 million shares, respectively. The conversion rate is subject to the fo]lowmg customary anti-dilution and other
adjustments:

+ the issuance of common stock as a d1v1dend or the subdrvrsron combmatron or reclassification of common stock into a greater or lesser number
of shares of. common stock;
+ the dividend, distribution or other issuance of rrghts optrons or warrants to holders of Common Stock entitling them to subscrrbe for or purchase
" shares of common stock at a price per share that is less than the volume- welghted average price per share of common stock;
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*  the completion of a tender offer or exchange offer of shares of common stock at a premium-to the volume-weighted average price per share of
common stack and certain other above-market purchases of common stock; ' ) ) S
*+ the issuance of a dividend -or similar distribution in-kind, which can include shares of any class of capital stock, evidences of the Company's
indebtedness, assets or other propérty or securities, to holders of common stock; ’ o
*  atransaction in which a subsidiary of the Company ceases to be a subsidiary of the Company as a result of the distribution of the equity interests
. of the subsidiary to the holders of the Company’s common stock; and C ’ ’
+  the payment of a cash.dividend to the holders of common stock.

At any time after December 4, 2018, all outstanding shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible at the option of the Company if the
volume-weighted average price of the common stock exceeds $54.00 for at least 30 trading days in any period of 45 consecutive trading days. The $54.00
may be adjusted pursuant to the anti-dilution provisions above. .

The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, and the associated dividends for the first sixteen payments, did not generate a beneficial conversion feature
(“BCF”) upon issuance as the fair value of the Company's common stack was greater than the conversion price. The Company will determine ‘and, if
required, measure a BCF based on the fair value of our stock price on the date dividends are declared subsequent to the sixteenth dividend. If a BCF is
recognized, a reduction to retained eamings and the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock wiil be recorded, and then subsequently accreted through the first
redemption date. . ) ’ )

Additionally, the Company determined that the nature of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock was more akin to an equity instrument and that_the
economic characteristics and risks of the embedded conversion options were clearly and closely related to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. As °
“such, the conversion options were not réquired to be bifurcated from the host under ASC 81 5, Derivatives and Hedging. :

Redemption Rights On any date during the three months commencing on and immediately following March 16, 2024 and the three months commencing
on and immediately following every third anniversary of March 16, 2024, holders of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock have the right to require the
Company to repurchase all or any portion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at 100% of the liquidation preference thereof plus all accrued but
unpaid dividends. Upon certain change of control events involving the Company, holders of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock can require the Company
to repurchase, subject to certain exceptions, all or any portion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at the greater of (1) an amount in cash equal to
100% of the liquidation preference thereof plus all accrued but unpaid dividends and, (2) the consideration the holders would have received if they had
converted their shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock into common stack immediately prior to the change-of control event.

The Company has the right, upon certain change of control events involving the Company, to redeem the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at the
greater of (1) an amount in cash equal to the sum of the liquidation preference of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, all accrued but unpaid dividends
and the present value, discounted at a rate of 10%, of any remaining scheduled dividends through.the fifth anniversary of the first dividend payment date,
:assuming the Company chdse to pay such dividends in cash (the “make-whole provision”) and (2).the consideration the holders would have received if they -

had converted their shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock into common siock immediately prior to the change of control event.

Since the redemption of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock is contingently or optionally redeemable and therefore not certain to occur, the Series A
. Convertible Preferred Stock is not required_to be classified as a liability under ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity. As ‘the Series A
. Convertible Preferred Stock is redeemable in certain circumstances at the option of the holder and is redeemable. in certain circumstances upon the
. occurrence of an event that is mot solely within our control, we have classified the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock in mezzanine equity in the
.Consolidated Balance Sheets. . :
As noted above, the Company determined that the nature of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock was more akin to an equity instrument. However, the
"Company determined that the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded put options, call option and make-whole provision were riot clearly and
closely related to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. Therefore, thie Company assessed the put and call options further, and determined they did not
meet the definition of a derivative under ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging. Under the same analysis, the Company determined the make-whole provision -
did meet the definition of a derivative, but that the value of the derivative was minimal due to the expectations surrounding the scenarios under which the
call option and make-whole provision would be exercised. - : : .

Voting Rights Holders of Series A Convertible Preferred Stack are entitled to vote with the holders of the common stock on an as-converted basis. Holders
of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to a'separate class vote with respect to ’ :
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amendments to the Company’s organizational documents that have an adverse effect on the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and lssuances by the
- Company of securities that are senior to, or equal in priority with, the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.

13. DERTVATIVES AND H.EDGTNG INSTRUMENTS

NCRis exposed to certain risks arising from both our business operations and economic conditions. We principally manage exposures to a wide variety of
business and operational risk through management of core business activities. We manage interest rate risk associated with our vault cash rental obligations
and floating rate-debt by managing the amount, sources, and duration of debt funding -and the use of derivative financial instruments. To manage . -
differences in the amount, timing and duration of known or expected cash payments related to our existing Term Loan A and vault cash agreements, we
_ entered .in(o interest rate cap agreements in the third quarter of 2021. '

Further, a substantial portion of our operations and revenue occur outside the United States and, as such, NCR has exposure to approxrma[ely 50 functional

currencies. Our results.can be significantly impacted, both positively and negatively, by changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company seeks to

mitigate such impact by hedging its foreign currency rransacnon exposure using forelgn currency forward and opnon contracts. We do not enter into hedges
for speculanve purposes. .

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk The accounting guidance for derivatives and hedging requires companies to recognize all derivative instruments as
either assets or liabilities at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company’ desrgna(es foreign exchange contracts as cash flow hedges of
forecasted transactions when they are determined to be hrghly effective at mcepuon

Our risk managemem strategy includes hedging, on behalf of certain subsrdrarles a portion of our forecasted, non- funcuonal currency denominated cash
flows for a period of up to 15 months. As a result, some of the impact of currency fluctuations on non-functional currency denominated transactions (and
hence on subsidiary operating income, as stated in"the functional currency), is mitigated in the near term. In the longer term (greater than 15 months), the
subsidiaries are still subject to'the effect of translating the functional currency results to United States Dollars. To manage our exposures and mitigate the
impact of currency fluctuations on the operations of our foreign subsidiaries, we hedge our main transactional exposures through the use of foreign
exchange forward and option contracts. This is primarily done through the hedging of foreign currency denominated inter-company inventory purchases by
NCR’s marketing units and the foreign currency denominated inputs to our manufacturing units. If the -hedge is designated as a highly effective cash flow
hedge, the gains or losses are deferred into accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI”). The gains or losses from derivative contracts that are
designated as highly effective cash flow hedges related to inventory purchases are recorded in cost of products when the inventory is sold to an unrelated
third party. Otherwise, they are recorded in eamrngs when the exchange rates change. As of December 31, 2021, the balance in AOCI related to foreign
exchange derlvatlve coritracts was zero.

We also utilize foreign exchange contracts to hedge .our exposure of assets and liabilities denommated in non-funcuonal currencies. We recogmze the gams
and losses on these types-of hedges in earnings as exchange rates change

~ Interest Rate RlSk The Company designates interest rate contracts as cash flow hedges of forecasted Lransacuons when they are determmed to be hlghly
v effectlve at inception. .

We utilize interest rate cap agreements to add stability to interest expense and to manage exposure to interest rate movements as part of our interest rate nsk
management strategy. Interest rate cap contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2021 mature in July 2024. Payments and receipts related to interest rate
cap agreements are included 1n,cash flows from operating activities in the Consolrdated Statéments of Cash Flows. :

At December 31, 2021, each of our outstanding interest rate. cap agreements were determined to be highly effective. Amounts reponed in. Accumulated -
" other comprehenswe income related to these derivatives will be reclassified to Interest expense and Cost of products as payments are made on. the
Company’s variable-rate debt and vault cash rental obligations, respectively. As of -December 31, 2021, the balance in AOCI related to interest rate
derivatives was $8 million. We elected to amortize the premium paid for the interest rate cap agreements straight-line over the life of the interest rate
contracts. : .
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The following tables provide information on the ldcation and amounts of derivative fair values in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments

. : December 31, 2021
. Balance Sheet . Notional Fair Balance Sheet Notional Fair *
In millions ‘ Location Amount Value * Lacation Amount Value
Wm“.w Ty RTEERC . .
Denvauyes_deslgnated as hedging s § iz - AR RN

Anstruments %y oo £ e o e CE TR g IR I
Interest rate contracts Other assets

e T 3 T T g Py "
Total denvauves desngnated as hedgmgl AN
iinstruments >T8%; "2 i, 7 A T o A7 T

Derivatives not desngnated as hedglng
instruments

{Foreign exchange contracts Sho By ke Other current assets '

Total derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments . ) . 3 ‘1 $ 1
Pmoud Y T —— T i ) - L P> i Sy o -
[I‘otal derivativesi 2 73 % SRV gLt s PR AN S L9 < 5, * ??F.%&".‘x'll
. - ] N . .
Fair Values of Derivative Instruments . .
. December 31, 2020
) . Balance Sheet Notional Fair . Balance Sheet . Notional Fair

In millions - : Location Amount Value Location Amount Value
Derivatives designated as hedgmg % - B SR Y , - A 1. ,*,j BT e ‘ i vI

. R ‘ L : ) p x*x‘r .-
instruments ¢ ¥ 5 70X SR e R B At ‘*%{ 2 PACK P ““u.,_. “”ﬁ Nl 'yaw.x A

Othercurrenthabllltles oo $ T = $"‘ —

TR —" "N & S
;‘ e Xgia‘i- ~5% “’E-eJ* ¢ ‘\\"_);F

"
k Gl

{Total denvauves de51

ignated as hedging .~

i, o n‘,.'

Derivatives not demgnated as hedging ] . . .
instruments -

[Foreign exchange contracts '3 ™ ""d r gen "’Other current assets = .2 7" § 4
Total derivatives not designated as
hedgmg instruments

{Total derivatives aprlt el S M e T T -5}_»- ‘

$ 1
e %52 &? 2h8 LT 1 ;fl]j
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The effects of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

- Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Other . Amount of (Gain) Loss Reclassified from AOCI into the
Comprehensive Income (OCI) on Derivative . : Cansolidated Statements of Operations
In millions (Effective Portion) . . . . (Effective Portion)
- . Location of (Gain) Lass
Derivatives in Cash " Reclassified from AOCI into the
Flow. Hedging For the year ended -For the year ended For the year ended - Consolidated Statements of For-the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
Relationships December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 Operallnns {Effective Pornon) December 31 2021 December 31,2020 December 31, 2019
fInterestrate " - . . - S . . L :
‘contracts $ 95 : —.'§ ‘— Cost of product ” $ i 183 i —3 —
Foreign exchange . : . : .
contracts - $ — 95 (OE] 6 Cost of products .8 . T — % - 78 (8)
.o ) Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in the
In millions ’ . Consolidated Statements of Operations
- Location of Gain (Loss) Recognized in the . For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
Derivatives not Designated as Hedging Instr . - Consolidated Statements of Operations December 31, 2021 December 31,2020 December 31, 2019
Mgn exchange contracts " Otherincome (g)_:pehse), net - $ . (29) 8 22 8. . (8)]

Refer to Note 14, “Fair Value of Assets and Llabllmes” for further lnformanon on derivative assets and habllmes recorded. at fair value on a recurrlng
basis. * .

‘Concentration of Credit Risk

NCR is potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk on accounts receivable and financial instruments such as hedging instruments and cash and cash
equivalents. Credit risk includes the risk of nonperformance by counterparties. The maximum potential loss may exceed the amount recognized on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Exposure to credit risk is managed through credit approvals, credit limits, selecting major international financial institutions
as counterparties to hedging transactions and monitoring procedures. NCR'’s business often involves large transactions with customers, and if one or more
of those customers were to default on its obligations under applicable contractual arrangements, the Company could be exposed to potentially significam
losses. However, management believes that the reserves for potential losses are adequate. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, NCR dld not have any major
concen[rauon of credit risk related to financial instruments.
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14. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES . -
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis .

Assets and liabilities recorded at falr value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are set forth as folJows

December 31, 2021 . December 31, 2020

Fair Value Measurements Using N . . Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices” : Quoted Prices
in Active , Significant . ' in-Active
B Markets Significant Other  Uncbservable . Markets Significant Other Significant
. December for Identical Assets Observable Inputs-, Inputs December for Identical Assets Observable lnputs Unabservable Inputs
In millions . . 31, 2021 (Level1l) - (Level 2) (Level 3) 31, 2020 (Level 1) - (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets:

rDeposnts held in mone;/
‘market mutiial funds (O

Foreign Investments
tgprelgn exchange contracts
. o~

T ?;g'f‘:'

"$ti"."?f. 24 5% S22, $LE . v 1228 0 T ]

LlabllltleS'

\"J‘ ?‘ ‘ 5, # [ TR T T2
gpretgn exchange con\t_racts ‘ CEES 2 fi: & 2% ’,.." 3 B, gﬂg*.t~‘
Total $8 18 - - — % 1 $ . — §
e e s e e e e e D — -
@ Included in Cash and cash equivalents in the Consotidated Balance Sheets,  +. ° .- . . ' N

@
[ON
“

Included in Other current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Included in Other current assets and Other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Included in Other current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

N

Deposits Held in Money Market Mutual Funds A portion of the Company s excess cash is held in money market mutual funds that generate interest income
based on prevailing market rates. Money market mutual fund holdings are measured at fair value using quoted market prices and are classnﬁed within Level
1 of the valuation hlerarchy \ : -

Forelgn Investments As a result of our acqulsmon of Origami, as noted within Nate 3, “Business Combinations and Dlvestltures we acqunred investments
held in Brazil. The investments include an investment fund similar to.a mutual fund. The investments are valued using observable either directly or
mdlrectly, inputs for substantially the full term of the assets and are classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. -~ . :

“ ~
. .

Foreign Exchange Contracts As-a resuit of our global operating activities, we are exposed to risks from changes in foretgn currency exchange rates, which
may adversely affect our financial condition. To manage our exposures and mitigate the impact of currency fluctuations on our financial results, we hedge
our primary transactional exposures through the use of-foreign exchange forward and option contracts. The foreign exchange contracts are valued using the
market approach based on observable market transactions of forward rates and are classified within Level"2 of the valuauon hlerarchy
Interest Rate Cap Agreements In order to add stability to interest expense and operating costs and to manage exposure to interest rate movements, the
Company utilizes interest rate cap agreements as part of its interest rate risk management strategy. The interest rate cap agreements are valued using the
market standard methodology of discounting the future expected cash receipts that would occur if variable -interest rates rise above the strike rate of the
caps. The variable interest rates used in the calculation of projected receipts on the cap are based on an expectation of future interest rates derived from
"observable market interest rate curves and volaulmes. As such, the interest rate cap agreements are classified in Level 2 of the.fair value hierarchy.
We lncorporate credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both our own nonperformance risk and the respective counterparty s nonperformance )
risk in the fair value measurements. In adjusting the fair value of our derivative contracts for. the effect of nonperformance risk, we consider the impact of
. netting and any applicable credit enhancements. We measure the
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N

: credit risk of our derivaLive financial instruments that are subject to master netting agreements on a net basis by counterparty portfolio.

Although we have determined that the majority of the inputs used to value our derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the credit valuation
adjustments utilize Level 3 inputs to evaluate the likelihood of both our own default and counterparty default. As of December 31, 2021, we determined
‘that the credit valuation adjustments are not SIgmflcant to the overall valuation of our derivatives and therefore, the valuations are classified in Level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy. -

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis

From time to time, certain assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). NCR measures certain
assets, including intangible assets and cost and equity method investments, at fair value on a non-recurring basis. These assets are recognized at fair value
-when initially valued and when deemed to be impaired. Additionally, NCR reviews the carrying values of investments when events and circumstances
warrant and considers all available evidence in evaluating when declines in fair'value are other-than-temporary declines. NCR carries equity investments in
privately-held companies-at cost or at fair value when NCR recognizes an other-than-temporary impairment charge. In the year ended December 31, 2020,
we recorded an other-than-temporary impairment charge of $7 million in Other income (expense), net within the Consolidated Statements of Operations .
related to the write-off of an equity method investment. No material impairment charges or non-recurring fair value adjustments were recorded during the
years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2019.

15. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (“AOCI”) by Component L .

The-changes in AOCI for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Changes in Falr Value

o, Currency Translati Changes in Employ of Effective Cash Flow

In millions Adjustments Benefit Plans Hedges . Total
‘Balance at December 31, 2018 $ ) (234) _$ (14) $ 2 % "(246)|
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassifications (26) 10 5 (11)
"Amounts reclassified from AQCI - » - L = [ON ) ) (6) _ (12)!
Net current period other comprehensive (loss) income - -+ (26) ' 4 (1) (23)
1Balance at December 31, 2019 ) . $ "~ (260) _$ (10) _$ 1 $ -(269)|
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassnflcatlons 15 . ) an - (7) - (3)
fAmounts reclassified from AOCI___ : . — ' (5) 6 _ 1|
Net current period other comprehensive (ldss) income 15 .+ (18) 1~ - )
{Balance at December 31, 2020 . $ ©(245) _$ (26) _$ - — $ (271)|
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassuflcatlons (30) - 4 7 L (19)
‘Amounts reclassified. from AOCI — ) 1 D)
Net current period other comprehensive (loss) income (30) -2 8 (20)
{Balance at December 31, 2021 _ $ (275 _§- (23) _$ 8 % C o (291)]

Reciassifications Out of AOCI

The reclassifications out of AOCI for -the years ended December 31 are as follows:
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For the year ended December 31, 2021

Employee Benefit Plans
Actuarial Losses Amortization of Effective Cash Flow
In millions Recognized Prior Service Benefit Hedges Total
TAffected line in Consohdated Statement of Operations: y : ] . |
Cost of products $ — 8 — $ ! 1
1_Cost of services — 2) — )]
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1) — . — (1)
{ Research and development expenses — _ - 1 — 1]
Total before tax $ Q) s M s 1 ) -
|_Tax expense ‘ : |
Total reclassifications, net of tax 1)
. For the year ended December 31, 2020
Employee Benefit Plans .
Actuarial Losses Amoartization of Effective Cash Flow .
In millions . Recognized  °  Prior Service Benefit Hedges . Total
{Affected line in Consolidated Statement of Operations: i :
Cost of products ' $. — $ . — § 7 7
1 Cost of services @ __ 2y — " )
Selling, general and administrative expenses ) (2) . — 3)
{Research and development expenses — — — —
Total-before tax $ 3 S @ s -7 —
Tax expense ) . 1]
Total reclassifications, net of tax 1
Far the year ended December 31, 2019
Employee Benefit Plans N
Actuarial Losses Amortization of Effective Cash Flow
In millions Recognized Prior Service Benefit Hedges Total
fAffected line in Consohdated Statement of Operations:. ) . ) f
Cost of products $ — § — $ - (8) (8)
{__Cost of services j 2 (3) I (5))
. Selling, general and administrative expenses (1) 3) . — (4)
[ Research and development expenses — — — —|
Total before tax $ B)s - 6) $ | $ a7
[ Tax expense : : 5]
Total reclassifications, net of tax (12)
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16. SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION L S ) . . !

o

"The components of other income (expense), net are summarized as follows for the years ended December 31:

In millions S - ' 021 a0 2019 .
iOther income (expense), R o e ot 3 LR R A Y & {5 o il et

Interest income o - . $ . 8 8 8 § 5
{Foreign currency fluctuations and foreign exchange contracts p.b 5 TR - RN
Employee beneflt plans(!) !

- Gain on equity hquxdau0ns
{Impairment of equity investment PE g o
Bargain purchase gain on acquisition

e pp——— e - s ‘ v vy mr -y
Other, net A S RS S G BT ;i“.'m; N N A T A L O N SR ST S 7 *(3)]
Total other income (expense), net * . ’ . . $ 90 5 42) $ (73)

M Actuarial gain related to the remeasurement of our pension plan assets and liabilities was $118 millien for the fourth quarter ended and year ended December 31, 2021.

The components of accounts receivable are summarized as follows:

In millions

gy - W
'Accounts receivable Mﬂ T ,..‘-'@" R

December 31,2021  December 31, 2020

B gt
Trade . . :
Other S e o e s o T E et fif PN ; T

' Accounts receivable, gross - . . . ’ ) 983 . " . 1,168
ILe5s: allowance for Credit [05Ses i, 2 g a0 ot TRt e or Py Gr o L g Tep P T o XY B (24) e o w L (1))
Total accounts receivable, net L0 ) ’ . $ - 959 $ 1,117

The components of inventory are summarized as follows:

In millions : - : ' December 31, 2021 December 31A2020
Inventories ;Lxs m AR Sl o T R ST FEARN SSbeg R A R T R o T IR L e e e |

Work in process and raw materials
Finished goods 7 #&%. - f‘t_—""&%*’;- o @i‘»;‘&.{n }}C’v e o )
Service parts’ ' ) ) 385 :

Total inventories BALeT v 3e Ty oy s RN AL PR A T T RT5AM § iy

A~ ity S,

’

The components of property, plant and equnpment net are summarized as fo[lows :

In millions ’ i ) ) . December él, 2021 December 31, 2020
iProperty, plant and equipment ,’;g, TR R ; i . o L |
Land and improvements )

- ‘;Bu'lldmgs and improvements oz £ 3 S D P s S, T =7, §s,& RETI S SEN
Machinery and other equipment :
[Finance lease assets ¢ & o Y b N TARET ,.' R R
"Property, plant and equipment, gross- .

'[Less accumulated depreciation 3_;&"’—"’"

; . : T2 (802) 5 weins
" Total property, plant and equipment, net . ‘ - 8 ) 703 % 373
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Item9. CHANGES IN'AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE ,

None.
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Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

NCR has established disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”)) to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by NCR in the reports that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that information requiréd to be disclosed by NCR
in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to NCR’s management, including its Chief Executive and
Chief Financial Officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Based on their evaluation as_of December 31, 2021,
conducted under their supervision and with the participation of management, the Company’s Chief Executive and Chief-Financial Officers have concluded
.that NCR’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective to meet such objectives and that NCR’s disclosure controls and procedures adequately alert .
.them on a timely basis to material mformatmn relaung to the Company (including its consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in NCR s Exchange
Act filings.

We completed the Cardtronics acquisition on June 21, 2021 (see Note 3, “Business Combinations and Divestitures”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements). The scope of management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures did not include the internal
controls over financial reporting of Cardtronics. This exclusion is in accordance with the SEC Staff’s general guidance that an assessment of. a'recently
acquired business may be omitted from the.scope of management’s assessment for one year following the acquisition. Cardtronics represented
approximately 9% of our-gross revenue for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021. Total asséts of the acqu1red business-as of December 31, 2021
represented approx1mately 8% of total consolldated assets, excluding goodwill and other intangible assets. L p

. |

Changes in Intern'al Confrol over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our mtemal con[rol over financial reporting that occurred dunng the last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to matenally affect, our internal control over financial repomng

a

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)
under the Exchange Act. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain.to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
. receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) -
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely de(ecuon of unauthorized acquisition, use, or “disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations due to, for example, the potentiaf for human error or circumvention of controls, internal control over financial reporting
may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any-evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the efféctiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021. In making this

" assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of ‘the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in the 2013 Internal

. Control-Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment, we determined that, as of December 31, 2021, the Company s internal control over- fmanCIal
reporting was effecuve based on those cmena

In June 2021, we completed our acqunsmon of Cardtronlcs plc (“Cardtronics”). Based upon Securities and Exchange Commission staff guidance,
companies are permitted to exclude acquisitions from their assessment of internal control over financial reporting for the first year of acquisition. We have
excluded Cardtronics from our assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021. Cardtronics is a wholly-owned subsidiary

whose total revenue and assets, excluding goodwill and intangibles, represented approximately 9% of our total consolidated revenue and 8% of our -
" consolidated asséts for the year endéd and as of December 31, 2021. ’
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PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent registered public accountlng firm, has audited the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2021 as stated in their report which appears.in [tem 8 of this Report.

"Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATIQN

~ None. )
Item 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS

_None.
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- PART III

Item 10. Dnu-:'cirdns, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORA’I’E GOVERNANCE

Except as set forth in the following paragraphs of this Item 10, the information required by this Ttem 10 will be set forth under the headings “Election of
Directors,” “Dellnquem Section 16(a) Reports” (if apphcable) and “Committees of the Board” in the Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2022 ‘Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal 2021 Jyear, and is. incorporated herein by reference. The
information requ1red by this Item 10 regarding our executive officers is set forth under the heading “Executive Officers of the Reglstram” in Part I of this
" Form 10 K and is mcorporated herein by reference. . :

We have not mat_erially changed the pro;edures by which siockholaers 'may>recomvmend nominees to the Company’s Board of Diréctors.

We have a Code of Conduct that sets the standard for ethics and compliance for all of our directors and employees, including our principal executive
officer, our principal financial officer and our principal accounting officer. Qur Code of Conduct is available on the Corporate Governance page at our ’
website ‘at http://www.ncr. com/company/corporate-governance/code-of-conduct under the heading “Code of Conduct.” ‘We intend to disclose any
amendments to or waivers of the Code of Conduct with respect to any director as well as our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, and
. principal accounting officer; on the Corporate Governance page of our website promptly following the date of such amendment or waiver.

"Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMP.ENSATIQN

‘The information required by this Item- 11 will be set forth under the headings “Executive Compensation -. Compensation Discussion & Analysis,”
“Compensation.and Human Resource Committee,” “Director Compensation,” and “Board and Compensation and Human Resouice Committee Report 'on'
Executive Compensation” in the Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after
the end of our fiscal 2021 year, and is'incorporated herein by reference. ’ © '

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIPS OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMEN‘I‘ AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The information required by this Ttem 12 will be set forth under the headings “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and- Manageinent and
. “Equity Compensation Plan Informanon Table” in the Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual Meeung of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC
within 120 days after-the end of our fiscal 2021 year, and i is incorporated herein by 1 reference. y - .

Item i3. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information requ1red by this Item 13 will be set forth under the headlngs “Related Person Transactions” and “Corporate Gévemance in the Definitive
Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal 2021 year, and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14.4 'PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information fequnred by this Item 14 will be set forth under the heading “Fees Paid to Indeperident Registered Public Accountlng Firm” in the
Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual Meeung of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal 2021 year
- andis mcorporated hereln by reference. ! .
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PART IV

Item 15. -EXHIBITS AND FINANClAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE .

@Q)F inancial Statements: The following is an mdex of the consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Report of Independent Reglstered

Public Accountmg Firm filed as part of this Form 10-K:

’ Page of Form

10-K

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountmg Firm 51
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019 54
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)_for the years ended December 31, 2021 2020, and 2019 55
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2021 and 2020 56
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2021 2020 and 2019 57
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31 __Q__ 2020, and 2019 58
59

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedule: Financial Statement Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and
“2019 is included in this Form 10-K on page 131. ANl other schedules are not required under the related instructions or are not applicable

(3).Exhibits: See Index of Exhibits below for a listing of all exhibits to this Form 10-K. The management contracts and compensatory plans or
arrangements required to be filed as‘an exhibit to this Form 10-K are identified in the Index of Exhibits by an asterisk (*).

1 -

(b) The followmg is an index of all exhxblts to this Form 10-K. Exhibits identified in paremheses in the mdex below, on file wath the SEC, are incorporated
herein by reference as exhibits hereto. :

2.1

41’

4.2

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as.of October 19, 2018, among JetPay Corporatlon NCR Corporation and Orwell Acquisition
Corporation (Exhibit 2.1 to'the Current Repon on Form 8-K of NCR Corporation dated October 22, 2018).

“Acquisition Agreement dated as of January 25, 2021 among Cardtromcs plc NCR Corporatlon and Cardtronics USA Tnc. (Exhtblt 2.1

to the Current Report on Form 8-K of NCR Corporauon dated January 25, 2021).

t

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of NCR Corporatlon (Exhibit 3.1.to the NCR Corporation Quarterly Report on Form 10- -Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2019 (the “Second Quarter 2019 Quarterly Report”)).

Bylaws of NCR Corporation, amended and restated effectlve July 21, 2021 (Exhibit 3 1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of NCR
Corporation dated July 21, 2021)

N

© Common Stock Certificate of NCR Corporatlon (Exhibit 4.1 ‘to the NCR Corporatton Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 1999).

Indenture, dated as of August 21, 2019, amorig NCR Corporation, NCR International, Inc. and Wells Fargo-Bank, National Association
(Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of NCR Corporation dated August 21, 2019 (the “August 21, 2019 Form 8-K”)).

Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 14, 2021 (relating to the Indenture dated as of August 21, 2019) among ATM National,
LLC, Cardtronics  Holdings,” LLC, Cardtronics, Inc., Cardtronics USA, Inc., CATM - Holdings LLC, NCR Corporation, NCR

_International, Inc., and Wells Fargo Bank, National Assocxatlon
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Indenture, dated as of August 21, 2019 among NCR Corporatlon NCR Internattona] Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, Nanonal Association
(Exhlbl[ 43to the August 21, 2019 Form 8- K)

‘ Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 14, 2021 (relating to.the Indenture dated as of August 21, 2019) among -ATM National,

LLC, Cardwronics Holdings, LLC, Cardwonics, Inc, Cardtronics USA, Inc, CATM Holdings LLC, NCR Corporation, NCR
International, Inc., and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association. .o o

Indenture, dated as of August 2.0,.2020, among NCR Corporation, NCR International, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
(Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K of NCR Corporation dated August 20, 2020 (the “August 20, 2020 Form 8-K”)).

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 14, 2021 (relating to the Indentdre dated as-of August 20, 2020), .among ATM National,

" LLC, Cardtronics Holdings, LLC, Cardtronics, Inc., Cardironics USA, Inc., CATM Holdings LLC, NCR Corporation, NCR -

International, Inc and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee

) Indenture dated as of August 20, 2020, among NCR Corporation, NCR International, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, Nauonal Assocnauon

(Exhibit 4.3 to the August 20 2020 Form 8- K)

Supplemental lndenture, dated as of October 14, 2021 (relatlng to the lndenture dated as of August 20, 2020), among ATM National,

- LLC, Cardtronics Holdings, LLC, Cardtronics, Inc., Cardtronics USA, Inc., CATM Holdmgs LLC, NCR Corporation, NCR
lntemattonal Inc., and Wells Fargo Bank, Natlonal Association, as trustee. : '

Indenture, dated as of April 6, 2021, among NCR Corporatlon NCR International, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Assoc1at|on (Exhlbl[ 4.1

‘to Cur_rent Report on Form 8-K of NCR Corporation dated April 6, 2021).

) Supplernentai Tndenture, dated as of October 14; 2021 (relating to the Indenture dated as of April 6, 2021), among ATM National, LLC, ‘

Cardrronics Holdings, LLC, Cardtronics, Inc., Cardtronics USA, Inc., CATM Holdings LLC, NCR International, Inc., and U.S. Bank

. National Assocratron as trustee.

Description of NCR Corporatlon Securities Reglstered Under Section 12 of the Exchange Act.

NCR Corporatlon 2011 Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan (formerly the NCR 2006 ‘Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and
restated effective as of December 31, 2008) (the “2011 Stock Incentive Plan”) (Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of NCR
Corporation dated Aprt] 27,2011). *>

Form of 2011 Stock Optlon Agreement under the 2011 Stock Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.1 to'the NCR Corporatton Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011) *o .

Amended and Restated NCR Change.in Control Severance Plan effectlve December 31, 2008 (Exhibit 10.24.2 to the NCR Corporatton ;

Annual Report-on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 (the “2008 Annual Report”)) *

First Amendment to the Amended and Restated NCR Change in Control Severance Plan (Exhtbtt 10 6 to the NCR Corporauon Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011). * :

Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated NCR Change in Control Séverance Plan (Exhibit 10.11.2 to the 2017 Annual Report).

. ~Employment Agreement w1th William Nuti; dated July 29, 2005 (Exhrbtt 10.1 to the Current Report on ,Fon'n 8-K of NCR Corporauon

dated July 27, 2005). *

Letter Agreement dated July 26, 2006 with William Nuti (Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8 K of NCR Corporation dated
July 25, 2006). * .
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.Compensation Program”) (Exhibit 10.42 to the 2014 Annual Report). *

Second Amendment, effective asAof b_ecember 12, 2008, to Letter Agreement with William Nuti dated July 29, 2005, as amended July
26, 2006 (Exhibit 10.30.2 to the 2008 Annual Report). * :

Letter Agreement, dated March 11, 2015, between NCR Corporation and William Nuti (Exhibit 10.5 to the NCR Corporation Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2015). * .

NCR Corporation 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2013 Stock Incentive Plan”) (Appendix A to the NCR Corporatioh Proxy Statement
on Schedule 14A for the NCR Corporation 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders).* : : . :

Agreement between NCR and the Trustees of the NCR Pension Plan (UK), dated November 14, 2013 (Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Repoﬁ :
on Form 8-K of NCR Corporation dated November 14, 2013). . . ’ .

Amended‘ and Restated NCR Executive Severance Plan (Exhibit 10.1 to the NCR Corporation Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2015 (the “Second Quarter 2015 Quarterly Report™)). * : '

First Amendment to the Amended and Restated NCR Executive Severance Plan (Exhibil 10.21.1 to the 2017 Annual Report). *

NCR Director Compensation Program effective April 23, 2013, as amended effective February 24, 2014 (the “2013 NCR Director .

2014 Director Réstricted Stock Unit Grant Statement under the 2013 NCR Director Compensation Program (Exhibit 10:42.1 to the 2014
Annual Report). * : .

<

2015 Director Restricted Stack Unit Grant Statement under the 2013 NCR Director Compensation Program (Exhibit 10.3 to the Second
Quarter 2015 Quarterly Report). *- ' N ’ .

2016 Director Restricted Stock Unit Grant, Statement under the 2013 NCR Director Compensation Program (Exhibit 10.2 to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of NCR Corporation for the quarter énded June 30, 2016 (the “Second Quarter 2016 Quarterly Report™)).

NCR Employee Stock Purchasé Plan, as amended and rgsta(ed effective January 1, 2017 (Appendix Ato thé NCR Corporation Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A for the NCR Corporation 2016 Annual Meeting of Stackholders). * .

Incremental Revolving Facility Agreement (TLA-2 Conversion), dated as of June 24, 2021, among NCR Corporation, the Foreign
Borrowers thereto, the Subsidiary Loan Parties thereto, the Incremental Revolving Lenders thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A,, as
Administrative Agent, including, as Exhibit A thereto, the Amended Credit Agreement, dated as of June 24, 2021, among NCR
Corporation, the Foreign Borrowers party thereto, the Lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chasé Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent
(Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K of NCR Corporation dated June 21, 2021 (the “June 21, 2021 Form 8-K")). ’

Réaffirmation Agreement, dated as of June 21, 2021, among NCR 'Corporation, certain foréign and domestic subsidiaries of NCR
Corporation party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (Exhibit 10.2 to the June 21, 2021 Form 8-K).

Amended and Restated Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, dated as of August 22; 2011, as amended and restated as of January 6,
2014, as further amended and restated as of March 31, 2016, by and among NCR Corporation, the Foreign Borrowers party thereto, the
subsidiaries of NCR Corporation identified therein and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (Exhibit 10.2 to the April
4, 2016 Form 8-K). . . . :

Supplement No. 1, dated as of September 30, 2021, to the Amended and Restated Guarantee and Collateral Agreemenl, dated as of

" August 22, 2011, as amended and restated as of January 6, 2014, as further amended and restated as of March 31, 2016, among NCR

Corporation, the Foreign Borrowers from time to time party thereto, the Subsidiary Loan Parties from time to time-party thereto and -
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (Exhibit 10.5 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of NCR Corporation for the
quarter ended September 30, 2021). ’ ’ ' . o
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10.11.10
10.11.11
10.11.12

10.11.13

B

Annex A to Credit Agreement dated as of August 22, 2011, as amended and restated as of July 25, 2013, as further amended and restated
as of March 31, 2016, among NCR Corporation, the Foreign Borrowers; party thereto ‘the Lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase

Bank, N.A. (Exhlblt 10.1to the Second Quarter 2016 Quarterly Repon)

Second Amended and Restated NCR Management Incentive Plan (Appendix A to'the NCR Corporatlon Proxy Statement on Schedule
14A for the NCR Corporauan 2017 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “2017 Proxy Statement™). *

NCR Corporation 2017 Stock Incenuve Plan (the "2017 Stock Incentive Plan”) (Appendix B to the 2017 Proxy Statement) *

" Form of 2017 Director Restricted Stock Unit Grant Statement under the 2013 Stock Incenuve Plan and 2017 Stock Incentive Plan

(Exhlblt 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q of NCR Corporation for the quarter ended June 30, 2017) >

Form of 2018 Director Restricted.Stock Umt Grant Statement under the 2017 Stack Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.3 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q of NCR Corporatmn for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 (the “Second Quarter 2018 Quarterly Report”)) *

Form of 2018 Stock Option Award Agreement under the NCR’ Corporauon 2017 Stock Incenuve Plan (the “2017 Stock Incenuve Plan")
(Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of NCR Corporation for the quarter ended March 31, 2018) * -

Form "of 2019, Director Restncted Stock Unit Grant Statement under the NCR Corporation 2017 Stock Incentive Plan (Exhlblt 10.1 to the

) Second Quarter 2019 Quarterly Report). *

Form of 2019 Stock Option Award Agreement under the 2017 Stock Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10 Q

- of NCR Corporation for the quarter ended March 31, 2019 (the “First Quarter 2019 Quarterly Report”)). *

Form of 2019 Performance- Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2017 Stock Incentive Plan {(Exhibit 10.3 to the First
Quarter 2019 Quarterly Report) * .

Form of 2020 Premlum-Prlced Optlon Award Agreement under the 2017 Stock Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on

. Form 10- Q of NCRCorporation for the quarter ended March 31, 2020 (the “First Quarter 2020 Quarterly Report”)) *

Form of 2020 Premium-Priced Option Award Agreement under the 2017 Stock Incentive Plan (Executlve Chairman; President and Chief

" Executive Officer) (Exhlblt 10.2 to the First Quarter 2020 Quarterly Report). *

" Form of 2020 Semor Executive Team Performance- Based Resmcted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2017 Stock Incentive Plan

(Exhlblt 10.3 to the First Quarter 2020 Quarterly.Report). *

Form of 2020 Senior Executive Team Perfon‘nance Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2017 Stock Incentive Plan

(Executive Chairman; Presrdent and Chief Executlve Offlcer) (Exhibit 10 4.t0 the First Quarter 2020 Quarterly Report). *

Form of 2020 Key Employee Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2017 Stock Incentwe Plan (Exhlblt
10.5 to the First ‘Quarter 2020 Quarterly Report). * .

Form of 2020 Time-Based Restncted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2017 Stock. Incenuve Plan (Exhibit 10.6 to the First .
Quarter 2020 Quarter]y Report). * ’

Form of 2020 Dtrector Restricted Stock Unit Grant. Statement under the 2017 Stock Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly. Report
on Form 10-Q of NCR Corporatton for the quarter ended June 30, 2020 (the “Second Quarter 2020 Quarterly Report™)). * .
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10.11.14 . Form of Senior Executive Team Performance Share Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2017 Stock Incentive Plan
(Exhibit 10.13.19 to the NCR' Corporation Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2020 (the "2020 Annual
Report™)). * .

. 10.11.14.1 Amendment.to 2020 Senior Executive Team Market Stock Unit Award Agreement under the NCR Corporauon 2017 Stock Incentive
Plan (Exhrblt 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of NCR Corporation dated August 1 2021) *

10.11.15 Ftrst Amendment to the 2017 Stock Incentive Plan (Appendtx A to the NCR Corporatmn Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A for the NCR
: Corporatron 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders). *

10.11.16 Form of Senior Executlve Team Fitness Plan Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the NCR Corporation 2017 Stock Incentive
Plan. (Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of NCR Corporation for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 (the “First Quarter
2021 Quarterly Report”)) > ' . . .

=

¢ 1012 NCR Dtrector Compensation Program effective May 1, 2017 (Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10- -Q of NCR Corporation
-+ for the quarter ended September 30, 2017). *
10.13

10.13 Master Manufacturing Agreement dated Apnl 23, 2018, by and between Jabil lnc and NCR Corporation (Exhlblt 10.1 to the Second
: Quarter 2018 Quarterly Report). .

10.14 Master Hardware Supply "Agreement, dated June 28, 2018, between Universal Global Scientific Industr1a1 Co., Lid. and NCR
Corporation (Exhibit 10.2 to the Second Quarter 2018 Quarterly Report). . .

10.15 Employment Agreement, dated April 27, 2018 between Michael Hayford and NCR Corporat|on (Exhlbrt 10.4 to the Second Quarter
2018 Quarterly Report). * . ) :

1016 Employment Agreement dated Apnl 27 2018, between Frank Martire and NCR Corporation (EXhlbI[ 10.5 to the Second Quarter.2018 -

) Quarterly Report) >

10.17 Letter Agreement, dated April 30, 2018 between William R. Nuti and NCR Corporation (Exhibit 10:6 to the Second Quarter 2018.
Quarterly Report). * . .

10.18 Employment Agreement, dated July 18, 2018, between Owen Sullivan and NCR Corporatlon (Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q of NCR Corporatlon for the quarter ended September 30, 2018 (the “Third’ Quarter 2018 Quarterly Report”)). *

1019 - Employment Agreement, dated August 27, 2018, between Andre J. Fernandez and NCR Corporation (Exhibit 10.3 to the Third Quarter

' 2018 Quarterly Report). *

10.20 Employment Agreement, dated June 15, 2020 between Tlmothy Oliver and NCR Corporation (Exhibit 10.4 to the Second Quarter 2020
Quarterly Report) * .

-10.21 Separatlon Agreement, dated July 8, 2020, between Andre J. Fernandez and NCR Corporatton (Exhibit 10:1 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q of NCR Corporatlon for the.t quarter ended September 30, 2020). *

10.22 . NCR Corporatron Deferred Compensatton Plan (Exhibit 10.30 to 2020 Annual Report) *

10.23 Letter Agreement, dated December 28, 2017 between Daniel W, Campbell and NCR Corporation (Exhlblt 10.2 to the First Quarter 2021
Quarterly Report). * '

10.24 _ Letter Agreement, dated January 8 2018, between Adrian Button and NCR Corporation (Exhtbtt 10.3 to the First Quarter 2021 Quarterly

Report) *
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'Re'cei\‘lablﬂes Purchase. Agreement, dated aé of Sépteﬁber 30, 2021, by a/nd.arn‘ong NCR Receivables LLC, aé seller, NCR Canada

Receivables LP, as guarantor, NCR Corporation, as servicer, NCR Canada Corp., as servicer, PNC Bank, National Association, as

- administrative agent, and PNC Bank, National Association, MUFG Bank, Ltd., Victory Receivables Corporation and the other purchasers

from time to time party thereto, as purchasers (Exhibit 10 1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of NCR Corporation dated September 30,
2021 (the “September 30, 2021 Form 8-K”)). , )

Amended and Restated Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2021 among NCR Receivables LLC, as buyer, and
NCR Corporation, Cardtronics USA, Inc., ATM National, LLC and the other originators from time to time party thereto, as originators

) (Exhlblt 10.2 to the September-30, 2021 Form 8-K).

Canadian Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of September 30, 2021, among NCR Canada Receivables LP, as buyer, and NCR
Canada Corp. and the other originator ongmators from time to time party thereto, as originators (Exhibit 10.3 to the September 30,2021
Form 8-K). .

Performance Guaranty, dated as of ‘September 30, 2021, by NCR Corporation, as perfonnance guarantor and PNC Bank Nanonal
Assoc1anon as administrative agent (Exhibit 10.4 to (he September 30, 2021 Form 8-K). '

Subsidiaries of NCR Corporarl_on.

Consent of Independent Reglstered Public Accounnng Firm.

Certification pursuant to Ru]e ISa -14(a) and Rule 15d- 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Certificat@on‘pursuanl to Rule 13a-14(§) and Rule ‘15d-1f1(a.) of the SecuriLies Exchange Act of 1934. .

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S:C. Section 1350 as adopted punéuant to Section 906 of.the Sa‘rber'x_e;-Ox]ey Act of 2002.

The following materials from NCR Corporation’ s Annual Report on Form 10-K. for the year ended December.31, 2021, formatted in
iXBRL (Inline Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) consolidated statements of:operations for the fiscal years ended December
31, 2021, 2020 and 2013; (ii) consolidated statements of comprehensive income for 'the fiscal years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and .

. 2019; (iii) consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020; (iv) consolidated statements of cash flows for the fiscal year

ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019; (v) consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’. equnty for fiscal years ended

* December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019; and (vi) the notes to'the consohdated financial statements.

t

Cover Page Interactive Data File, formatted in inline XBRL and c_ontained in Exhibit 101.

* Management contracts or compensatory plans/arrangements.
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Ttem16. - FORM 10-K SUMMARY

'I -

None.
NCR Corporation
SCHEDULE II--VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(In millions)
. Column A e . Column B ' Column C Column D~ Calumn E
: Additions
Balance at - . ’ - .
. Beginning of Charged to Costs Charged to Other . Balance at End of
Description . %’e_riocF & %xpenses . Accounts Deductions Period
- {Year Ended December 31, 2021 R i , . i ~ -
Allowance for doubtful accounts . $51 $2 $— $29 $24
[ Deferred tax asset valuation allowance . - $341 $45 $21 $39 - $368 ]
iYear Ended December 31, 2020 - ] ] R 1
Allowance for doubtful accounts $44 $33 5 $26 $51
t  Deferred tax asset valuation allowance . $352 . $26_ - $10 $47, $341
Year Ended December 31, 2019 . . . .
Allowance for doubtful accounts . $31 . $24 $— $11 $44
|__Deferred tax asset valuation allowance : $485 -, $23 $— $156 $352 |
132 -
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' . ] ’ ‘SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities- Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. :

NCR CORPORATION

Date: February 25,2022 - o o By: ' /s/ Timothy C. Oliver .
<o : o o Timothy C. Oliver .
Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the followmg persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacmes and on'the date indicated. :
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Signature .

/s/' Frank R. Martire

- Frank R. Martire .

/s/ Michael D. I;Iayford',

Michael D. Hayford

_ /s/ Timothy C. Oliver

" Timothy C. Oliver

/s/ Beth A. Potter .

Beth A. Potter

~ /s/ Mark W. Begor

Mark W. Begor

s/ Gregofy Blank

Gregory Blank

- /s/ Catherine L. Burke

Catherine L. Burke

/s/ Deborah A. Farringion

Deborah A. Farrington

- /s/ Georgette D. Kiser

Georgette D. Kiser

/s/ Kirk T. Larsen

Kirk T. Larsen

/s/ Martin Mucci

Martin Mucci-

Date: . ’ February 25, 2022

"Title
Executive Chairman
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Senior Executive Vice Pregident and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer) R '

Chief Accounting Officer’
(Principal Accounting Officer)
Director

Dirgctof

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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' o ' R Exhibit 4.7°
DESCRIPTION OF THE REGISTRANT’S SECURITIES '
REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE SECURITIES

: EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

NCR Corporanon has one class of securities reglstered under Section 12 of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934 as amended:
our Common Stock :

General

Our authorized capital stock consists of 500,000,000 shares of common stock, 0.01 par value per share (the “Common Stock™),
- and 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Preferred Stock™), of which 2,265,207 shares are
" classified and designated as Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, liquidation preference $1,000 per share (the ‘Series A
" Preferred Stock”). The rights of our Preferred Stock may be set by our Board of Directors from time to time. As of February 11,

2022, 135,863,432 shares of Common Stock were issued -and outstanding (and no shares of Common Stock subject to forfeiture o

conditions were issued and outstanding) and 275,685 shares of Preferred Stock, consisting entirely of Series A Preferred Stock
were issued and outstanding. .

* Our Common Stock is traded-on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) under the trading symbol “NCR”. The following -
description of our. capital stock does not purport to be complete and is subject to and qualified by our charter (the “Charter”), our
Amended and Restated Bylaws (the “Bylaws”) and the provisions of applicable Maryland law. The Charter and Bylaws are filed
as exhibits to our Annual Report on Form 10-K, of which this Exhibit i$ a part, and are mcorporated by reférence. As used herein,
-unless otherwise expressly stated or the context otherwise requires, the terms “NCR” “we”, “our” and “us” refer to NCR
Corporatlon a Maryland corporation. -

Common Stock,
Voting Rights

The holders of the Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share on all matters voted. on by stockholders, including
elections of directors, and, except as otherwise required by law or provided in any resolution adopted by the Board of Directors
with respect to any series of Preferred Stock, the holders of such shares will possess all. voting power. The holders of shares of
Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to vote with the holders of the Common Stock as a single-class on all matters submitted to a
vote of the holders of Common Stock, with holders of Series A Preferred Stock voting on an as-converted basis, and-certain
matters will be voted on exclusively by the holders of Series A Preferred Stock as a separate class. The holders of the Common .
. Stock do not have any conversion, redernption or preemptive rights to subscribe to any securities of NCR and generally do not
have appraisal rights. .

’ Election and Removal of Directors

The Charter and Bylaws provide that the number of our dlrectors may be established only by our Board of Du‘ectors but may not

_ be more than 20 or fewer than the minimum number permitted by the Maryland General Corporation Law (the “MGCL”), which
- is one. There will be no cumulative voting in the election of directors, and a director will be elected by a majority of the total
votes cast for and against-such director at a duly called special or annual meeting of 'stockholders at which a quorum is present;
provided, however, that directors will be elected by a plurality of the votes cast at a meetmg of stockholders duly called and at
- which a quorum is _



present for which the number of nominees is greater than the number of directors to be elected at the meeting.

- Except as may be provided by the terms of any class or series of preferred stock, any director may be removed for cause, by the’
affirmative vote of the holders of not less than 80% of the voting power of all shares of our stock entitled to vote generally in the

election of directors. T g :

Extraordinary Actions; Amendment to Charter and Bylaws

As permitted by Maryland law, the Charter provides that we may amend the Charter, consolidate, merge, convert into another
form of entity, séll all or substantially all of our assets, engage in a statutory share exchange or dissolve if such action is approved .
by the affirmative vote of stockholders entitled to cast a majority of all of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter. In addition,
our Bylaws may be altered or repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of the total number
of directors that we would have if there were no vacancies on the Board. :

The Bylaws may also be amended, without Board action, by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power
_of all shares of our stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a singlé class. Notwithstanding
 the foregoing, the affirmative vote of 80% of the voting power of all shares of.our stock entitled to vote generally in the election

of directors, voting together as a single class, is required to amerid the provisions of the Charter relating to (i) stockholder actions
. generally (Article V); (i) our Board of Directors (Article VII); (iii) the rights of our stockholders to amend the Bylaws (Section
8.2); and (iv) the voting requirements relating to amendments to the Charter (Article IX). In addition, the affirmative vote of 80%
of the voting power of all shares of our stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single
class, is required for the stockholders, without Board action, to amend the provisions of our Bylaws relating to (i) the calling of
special meetings of stockholders (Article I, Section 2); (ii) the advance notice procedures for stockholder proposals (Article I,.
Section 8); (iii) the opt-out from the Control Share Acquisition Act (Article I, Section 11); (iv) the general powers, tenure and
number of directors (Article II, Sections 1, 2 and 3); and (v) the approval of amendments to the Bylaws (Article X).

Proxy Access

The Bylaws include provisions permitting, subject to certain eligibility, procedural and disclosure requirements, qualifying
stockholders, or a qualifying group of no more than 20 stockholders, that have maintained continuous ownership of at least three
_percent of our outstanding shares of Common Stock for at least the three prior years to require us to include in our Proxy
materials for an annual meeting of stockholders a number of director nominees not to exceed the greater of two nominees or 25
percent of the number of directors up for election. - :

3 . ct
Business Combination Act and Control Share Acquisition. Act

Certain provisions of the MGCL may have the effect of delaying, deferring or pfevénting a third party fr;)m making a proposal to
acquire us or of implementing a change in control under ' ,



c1rcumstances that ‘otherwise could provide our stockholders w1th the opportunity to reahze a premium over the then-prevallmg
market price of their shares of Common Stock, including:.

. “business combination” provisions that, subject to certain exceptions and limitations, prohibit certain business
' - - combinations between a Maryland corporation and an “interested stockholder” (defined generally as any person who
beneficially. owns 10% or more of the voting power of our outstandmg voting stock oran affiliate or associate of ours
" who, at any time within the two-year period immediately prior to the date in question, was the beneficial owner of 10%
or more of the voting power of our then outstanding shares of stock) or an affiliate of any interested stockholdet for
five years after the most recent date on which the stockholder becomes an interested stockholder, and thereafter
imposes two super-majority stockholder voting requirements on these combinations, unless, among other conditions,
our common stockholders receive a minimum price; as defined .in the MGCL, for their shares of stock and the
_consideration is received in cash or in the same form as previously paid by the interested stockholder for its shares of

stock; and

.« “control share” provisions providing that, subject to certain exceptions, holders of “control shares” (defined as voting
. shares that, when aggregated with all other shares controlled by the stockholder, entitle the stockholder to exercise one
of three increasing ranges of voting power in electing directors) acquired in a “control share acquisition” (defined as’
the direct or indirect acquisition of ownership or control of issued and outstanding “control shares”) have no voting
rights except to the extent approved by our stockholders by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of all the votes
entitled to bé cast on the matter, excluding shares owned by the acquirer, by our officers, or by our employees who are
" also directors of our company. .

We have opted out of the business combination provisions of the MGCL w1th regard to transaction with certain affiliates of The
'Blackstone Group L.P, and any business combination between us such persons are exempt from the business combination
provisions of the MGCL In addition, pursuant to a provision in the Bylaws, . we opted out of the control share provisions of the
MGCL. : .

Subtitle 8 of the MGCL

The “unsolicited takeover” provisions of Title 3, Subtitle 8, of the MGCL permlt our Board of Dlrectors without stockholder
approval-and regardless of what is provided in the Charter or the Bylaws, to implement certain takeover defenses, including
.adopting a classified board. Such takeover defenses may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a third party from
making an acquisition proposal for us or of delaying, deferring, or preventing a change in control of us under the circumstances
that otherwise could provide our common stockholders with the opportunity to reallze a premium over the then-prevailing market
prlce of their shares of Common Stock.

Special Meetings of Stockholders

Our Board of Dlrectors the chairman of our Board of Dlrectors our pre51dent or our chlef executive offlcer may call a special
meeung of our stockholders. In addltlon the Bylaws provide .



that a special meeting of our stockholders to act on any-mdtter that may properly be considered at a meeting of our stockholders
must be called by our secretary upon the written request of stockholders entitled to cast 25 percent of all the votes entitled to be
cast on such ‘matter at the meeting and containing the information required by the Bylaws. '

~Advance Notice of Director Nomindtions and New Business Proposals

The Bylaws provide that nominations of individuals for election as directors and proposals of business to be considered by .
stockholders at any annual meeting may be made only (1) pursuant to our notice of the meeting, (2) by or at the direction of our
Board of Directors or (3) by any stockholder who was a stockholder of record both at the time of provision of notice and at the i
time of the meeting, who is entitled to vote at the meeting in the election of each individual so nominated or on such other
proposed business and who has complied with the advarice notice procedures of the Bylaws. : i '

The Bylaws provide that only the business specified in the notice of the meeting may be brought before a special meeting of our
* stockholders. Nominations of individuals for election as directors at a special meeting of stockholders at-which directors are to be
“elected may be made only (1) by or at the direction. of our Board of Directors or (2)-if the special meeting has been called in
accerdance. with the Bylaws for the purpose of electing directors, by a stockholder who is a stockholder of record both at the time
of provision of notice and at the time. of the special meeting, who is entitled to vote at the mieeting in thé election of .each
individual so nominated and who has complied with the advance notice procedures of the Bylaws. : :

A stockholder’s notice must’ contain certain information specified by the Bylaws about the étockholder, its affiliates and any
proposed business or nominee for election as a director, including information about the economic interest of the stockholder, its
-affiliates and any proposed nominee in us. - C

Dividend and Liquidation Rights

Subject to any preferential rights of any outstanding series of Preferred  Stock created by the Board of Directors from time to

time, including the Series A Preferred Stock, the holders of the Common Stock will be entitled to such dividends as may be

authorized from time to time by the Board of Directors and declared by us’ from assets legally available therefor; and upon
liquidation will be entitled to receive pro rata all assets of NCR available for distribution to such holders. -

Other Matters
The Board of Direcfors may, without the consent of holders of the Common Stock, classify additional shares of stock as Series A
Preferred Stock or create one or more new series of Preferred Stock. In"any such event, the rights of the holders of the Common
Stock will be subject to the preferential rights of the holders of Preferred Stock, including the Series A Preferred Stock. ’
Préferred Stock
Limitations on Rights of Holders éf Common- Stock
The Charter authorizes'the,Board of Directors to establish one or more classes or series of Preferred Stock and to determine, with
respect to. any class or series of Preferred Stock, the preferences, ‘conversion or other rights, voting powers, restrictions,

. limitations as to dividends or other distributions, qualifications or terms or conditions of redemption of such class or series. We
believe that the power of the Board of Directors to issue one or more classes or series of



o

Preferred Stock provides us . with ﬂexnblhty in structuring possuble future flnancmgs and acquisitions and in meeting other
corporate needs that might arise. The authorized shares of Preferred Stock, as well as shares of Common Stack, are available for
_issuance without further action by our stackholders, unless such action is required by applicable law or the rules of any stock
exchange or automated quotation system on which ‘our securities may be listed or traded. The NYSE currently requires
stockholder approval as a prerequisite to listing shares in several instances, including where the present or potential issuance of
shares could result in an increase in the number of shares of Common Stock, or in the amount of voting securities, outstanding of .
at least 20%. If the approval of our stockholders is not required for the issuance of shares of Preferred Stock or Common Stock
the Board of Dlrectors may determlne not to seek stockholder approval.

Ann-Takeover Protecnons

: A dec151on by our Board of Directors to elect to be subject to the provisions of Subutle 8, the supermajority vote required to
remove directors and the advance notice provisions of our Bylaws could delay, defer or- prevent a transaction or a change. of -
control of our company. In addition, although the Board of Directors has no intention at the present time of doing so, it could
issue an_additional class or series of-Preferred Stock that could, depending on the terms of such class or series, impede the
completion of a merger, tender offer or other takeover attempt. The Board of Directors will make any determination to-issue such
shares based on its judgment as to the best interests of NCR. The Board of Directors, in so acting, could issue Preferred Stock
having terms that could discourage an acquisition attempt through which an acquiror may be able to change the composition of
the Board of Directors, mcludmg a tender offer or other transaction that some,-or a majority, of our stockholders might believe to
be in their best interests or in which stockholders might receive a premlum “for their stock over the then-current market price of
such stock. . : . _



Exhibit 4.1

Execution Version

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE (this “Supplemental Indenture”) dated as of October 14, 2021, among ATM
National, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“ATM National”), Cardtronics Holdings, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company (“Cardironics Holdings”), Cardtronics, Inc.,.a Delaware corporation (“Cardtronics”),
Cardtronics USA, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Cardtronics USA”), CATM Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company. (“CATM Holdings” and, collectively with ATM National, Cardtronics Holdings, Cardtronics
and Cardtronics USA, the “New Guarantors”), each a subsidiary of NCR Corporation (or its successor), a ;
Maryland corporation (the “Company”), NCR International, Inc., a Déelaware corporation, and WELLS FARGO
BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association, as trustee under the indenture referred to ~
below (the “Trustee™). ‘ . . : :

WITNESSETH:

A - WHEREAS the Company and the existing Subsidiary Guarantors (as defined in the Indenture referred to below)
have heretofore executed and delivered to the Trustee an Indenture (as amended, restated, or otherwise modified from time to
time, the “Indenture”) dated as of August 21, 2019, providing for the issuance of 5.750% Senior Notes due 2027 (the"
“Securities”); . .

WHEREAS Section 4.11 of the Indenture provides that under certain circumstances the Company is required to
. cause the New: Guarantors to execute and deliver to the Trustee a supplemental indenture pursuant to which the New Guarantors
shall unconditionally guarantee all the Company’s obligations under the Securities pursuant to a Subsidiary Guarantee on the
terms and conditions set forth herein; and . ' . :

o .. WHEREAS pursuant to Section 9.01 of the Indenture, the Trustee, the Company and the Existing Guarantors are
authorized to execute and deliver this Supplemental Indenture; : : .

) .NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
of which is hereby acknowledged, the New Guarantors, the Company, the Existing Guarantors and the Trustee mutually covenant
and agree for the equal and ratable benefit of the holders of the Securities as follows: :

, 1. Agreement to Guarantee. Each New Guarantor hereby agrees, jointly and severally with all the Existing -
Guarantors, to unconditionally guarantee the Company’s obligations under the Securities on the terms and subject to the
conditions set forth in Article 10 of the Indenture and to be bound by all other applicable provisions of the Indenture and the
Securities. . ' :

. - 2. Ratification of Indenture; Supplemental Indentures Part of Indenture. Except as expressly amended hereby, the

Indenture is in all respects ratified and confirmed and all the terms; conditions and provisions thereof shall remain in full force
and effect. This Supplemental Indenture shall form a part of the Indenture for all purposes, and every Holder of Securities
heretofore or hereafter authenticated and delivered shall be bound hereby.

. ‘ 3. Governing Law, THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK. .



. 4 ‘Trustee Makes No Representauon The Trustee makes no representanon as to the vahdlty or suff1c1ency of ths
Supplemental Indenture

- 5. Counterparts. The pames may 51gn any number of coples of this Supplemental Indenture Each 51gned copy
shall be an original, but all of them together represent the same agreement. :

: 6. Effect of Headlngs The Section headmgs herein are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction
- thereof. -



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Supplemental Indenture to be duly executed as of .
the date first above written. S ' S ) :

ATM NATIONAL, LLC,
by - .
/s/ Brad Conrad

Name: Brad Conrad-
Title: Treasurer

‘CARDTRONICS .HOLDINGS, LLC,
- /s/ Brad Conrad_-

Name: Brad Conrad

Title: President

CARDTRONICS, INC. -
. by ‘ :
/s/ Brad Conrad

- - Name: Brad Conrad
.. Title: President

" CARDTRONICS USA, INC.,
by
/s/ Brad Conrad _

' : : Name: Brad Conrad
- : Title: Treasurer

CATM HOLDINGS LLC,

by . C
/s/ Brad Conrad
Name: Brad Conrad -
Title: President

NCR CORPORATION,
by ’ o ‘ L
/s/ Michael Nelson

Name: Michael Nelson
-Title: Treasurer _

* [Signature Pagé to Supplemental Indéntﬁre].



. NCR INTERNATIONAL, INC,,

by . .

. /s/ Farzad Jalil

. Name: Farzad Jalil
Title: Treasurer

'WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,as Trustee,
by Lo o S ' -
/s/ Tina D, Gonzalez -
Name: Tina D. Gonzalez
Title: Vice President -

- [Signature Page to Shpplemental Indenture] .



Exhibit 4.3

Execution Version -

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE (this “Supplemental Indenture”) dated as of October 14, 2021, among ATM
National, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“ATM National”), Cardtronics Holdings, LL.C, a Delaware
limited liability company (“Cardtronics Holdings”), Cardtronics, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Cardtronics™),
Cardtronics USA, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Cardtronics USA”), CATM Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company (“CATM Holdings” and, collectively with ATM National, Cardtronics Holdings, Cardtronics
and Cardtronics USA, the “New Guarantors”), each a subsidiary of NCR Corporation (or its successor),a - .
Maryland corporation (the “Company”), NCR International, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and WELLS FARGO
BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association, as trustee under the indenture referred to
below (the “Trustee”). . , - , :

WITNESSETH:

o WHEREAS the Company and the existing Subsidiary Guarantors (as defined in the Indenture referred to below)
have heretofore executed and delivered to the Trustee an Indenture {(@s amended, restated, or otherwise modified from time to
time, the “Indenture”) dated as of August 21, 2019, providing for the issuance of 6.125% Senior Notes diie 2029 (the
“Securities™); S C S . ‘ . R

"~ WHEREAS Section 4.11 of the Indenture provides that under certain'circumstances the Company is required to -
cause the New Guarantors to execute and deliver to the Trustee a supplemental indénture pursuant to which the New Guarantors
shall unconditionally guarantee all the Company’s obligations under the Securities pursuant to a Subsidiary Guarantee on the
terms and conditions set forth herein; and : ‘

‘WHEREAS pursuant to Section 9.01 of the Indenture, the Trustee, the Company and the Existing Guarantors are
authorized to execute and deliver this Supplemental Indenture; :

: NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt

. of which is hereby acknowledged, the New Guarantors, the Company, the Existing Guarantors and the Trustee mutually covenant:
and agree for the equal and ratable benefit of the holders of the Securities as follows: ‘

- 1. Agreement to Guarantee. Each New Guarantor hereby agrees, jointly and severally with all the Existing
Guarantors, to unconditionally.guarantee the Company’s obligations under the Securities on the terms and subject to the
conditions set forth in Article 10 of the Indenture and to be bound by all other applicable provisions of the Indenture and the
Securities. o : . - PR

. _Supplemental Indentures Part of Indenture, Except as expressly amended hereby, the
Indenture is in all respects ratified and confirmed and all the terms, conditions and provisions thereof shall remain in full force
and effect. This Supplemental Indenture shall form a part of the Indenture for all purposes, and every Holder of Securities
heretofore or hereafter authenticated and delivered shall be bound hereby. :

2. Ratification. of Indenture; Su

3. Goverﬁing'Law. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK. ’



4. Tiustee Makes No’ Renresentatlon The Trustee makes no representanon as to the valldlty or sufﬁcnency of this
Supplemental Indenture. :

5. Counterparts. The parties may sign any number of copies of this Supplemental Indenture. Each 51gned copy
-shall be an-original, but all of them together represent the same agreement _

6. Effect of Headings. The Section headings herein are for convénience‘ only and shall not affect the construction
thereof. . . : .

]



) IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have caused this Supplemental Indenture to be duly executed as of -
the date fll’St above written.

ATM NATIONAL, LLC,' :

[s/Brad Conrad -
Name: Brad Conrad
- -Title: Treasurer

CARDTRONICS HOLDINGS, LLC,

by o

/s/ Brad Conrad
Name: Brad Conrad
Title: President

* CARDTRONICS, INC.
/s/ Brad Conrad - :

" Name: Brad Conrad
Title: President

CARDTRONICS USA, IN(;.,- ‘
"~ by D
/s/ Brad Conrad .

~ Name: Brad Conrad
- Title: Treasurer

.

CATM HOLDINGS LLC,
[s/Brad Conrad _

Name:. Brad Conrad
Title: President

NCR CORPORATION, A
by ' e
- /s/ Michael Nelson ‘ : .

Name: Michael Nelson
Title: Treasurer.

[Signature Page to Sdpplemental Indenture]



NCR INTERNATIONAL, INC.,‘
'by. E i
/s/ Farzad Jalil

Name: Farzad Jalil
Title: Treasurer

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee, -
by ; | - :
/s/ Tina D. Gonzalez

Name: Tina D. Gonzalez -
Title:_\ﬁce President

[Signature Page to Supplemental Indenture]



Exhibit 4.1

Execution Version

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE (this “Supplemental Indenture”) dated as of October 14, 2021, among ATM
National, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“ATM National”), Cardtronics Holdings, LLC, a Delaware .
limited liability company (“Cardtronics Holdings”), Cardtronics, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Cardtronics™), o
Cardtronics USA, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Cardtronics USA”), CATM Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company (“CATM Holdings” and, collectively with ATM National, Cardtronics Holdings, Cardtronics
and Cardtronics USA, the “New Guarantors”), each a subsidiary of NCR Corporation (or its successor), a o
Maryland corporation (the “Company”), NCR International, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and WELLS FARGO
BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association, as trustee under the indenture referred to -
below (the “Trustee”). . ' — . : . .

r
A

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS the Company and the existing Subsidiary Guarantors (as defined in the Indenture referred to below) '
have heretofore executed and delivered to the Trustee an Indenture (as amended, restated, or otherwise modified from time to
time, the “Indenture”) dated as of August 20, 2020, providing for the issuance of 5.000% Senior Notes due 2028 (the
“Securities”); - ’ . E :

WHEREAS Section 4.11 of the Indenture provides that under certain circumstances the Company is required to
cause the New Guarantors to execute and deliver to the Trustee a supplemental indenture pursuant to-which the New Guarantors
shall unconditionally guarantee all the Company’s obligations under the Securities pursuant to a Subsidiary Guarantee on the
terms and conditions set forth herein; and . :

WHEREAS pursuant to Section 9.01 of-the Indenture, the Trdétee, the Company and the Existing Guarantors are - '

authorized to execute and deliver this Supplemental Indenture;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for.other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
of which is hereby acknowledged, the New Guarantors, the Company, the Existing Guarantors and the Trustee mutually covenant -
and agree for the equal and ratable benefit of the holders of the Securities as follows: : .

- 1. Agreement to Guarantee. Each New Guarantor hereby agreés, jointly and severally with all the Existing
Guarantors, to unconditionally guarantee the Company’s obligations under the Securities on the terms and-subject to the
conditions set forth in Article 10 of the Indenture and to be bound by all other applicable provisions of the Indenture and the
Securities. , : e : : '

- 2. Ratification of Indenture; Supplemental Indentures Part of Indenture. Except as expressly amended hereby, the -
Indenture is in all respects ratified and confirmed and all the terms, conditions and provisions thereof shall remain in full force
and effect. This Supplemental Indenture shall form a part of the Indenture for all purposes, and every Holder of Securities
heretofore or hereafter authenticated and delivered shall be bound hereby. I :

: 3. Governing Law, THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK. - :



4, Trustee Makes No Representanon The Trustee makes no representanon asto the vahdlty or suff1c1er1cy of this
'Supplemental Indenture. ;

5. Counterparts The parties may 51gn any number of copies of thlS Supplemental Indenture Each signed copy
. shall be an orlgmal but all of them together represent the same agreement.

6. Effect of Headings. The SectJon headmgs herein are for convenience only and shall not- affect the-construction "
thereof, - . ' A . ' ) .

v



b

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have caused this Supplemental I'nde'nturé to be duly executed as of the date first
above written. . . o . o . ,

ATM NATIONAL, LLC,

by -
{s/ Brad Conrad
Name: Brad Conrad
Title: Treasurer -

CARDTRONICS HOLDINGS, LLC, o - -

by : ’ -
./s/ Brad Conrad ‘
Name: Brad Conrad
Title: President

CARDTRONICS, INC.

by
/s/ Brad Conrad
Name: Brad Conrad
Title: President

" CARDTRONICS USA, INC.,

by .

/s/ Brad Conrad
Name: Brad Conrad
Title: Treasurer

CATM HOLDINGS LLC,

by
/s/ Brad Conrad .
Name: Brad Conrad

- Title: President

-NCR CORPORATION,

by :
/s/ Michael Nelson -
Name: Michael Nelson
Title: Treasurer

[Signature Page to Supplementai Indenture]



NCR INTERNATIONAL, INC,, )
by - ' '
/s/ Farzad Jalil

Name: Farzad Jalil
Title:. Treasurer

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as ITrusfee,‘
. by A i .
/s/ Tina D. Gonzalez

. Name: Tina D. Gonzalez
. Title: Vice President

[Signatﬁre Page to Supplemen;al Indenture]



Exhibit 4.3

Execution Version

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE (this “Supplemental Indenture”) dated as of October 14, 2021, among ATM
National, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“ATM National”), Cardtronics Holdings, LLC,.a Delaware ~
limited liability company (“Cardtronics Holdings"), Cardtronics, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Cardtronics™),
Cardtronics USA, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Cardtronics USA”), CATM Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company (“CATM Holdings” and, collectively with ATM National, Cardtronics Holdings, Cardtronics
and Cardtronics USA, the “New Guarantors”), each a subsidiary-of NCR Corporation (or its successor), a
Maryland corporation (the “Company”), NCR International, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and WELLS FARGO
BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association,.as trustee under the indenture referred to
below (the “Trustee”). ’ S ’ ’ . .

WITNESSETH:

- "WHEREAS the Company and the existing Subsidiary Guarantors (as defined in the Indenture referred to beiow)
have heretofore executed and delivered to the Trustee an Indenture (as amended, restated, or otherwise modified from time to
time, the “Indenture”) dated as of August 20, 2020, providing for the issuance of 5.250% Senior.Notes due 2030 (the
“Securities”); . R . ' . .

. WHEREAS Section 4.11 of the Indenture provides that under-certain circumstances the Company is.required to .
cause the New Guarantors to execute and deliver to the Trustee a supplemental indenture pursuant to which the New Guarantors . -
shall unconditionally guarantee all the Company’s obligations under the Securities pursuant to a Subsidiary Guarantee on the
terms and conditions set forth herein; and ' ' : ‘

oo ‘ WHEREAS pursuant to Section 9.01 of the Indenture, the Trustee, the Company and the Existing Guarantors are -
authorized to execute and deliver this Supplemental Indenture; ) ’ - :

NOW'THER-EFORE, in consideration of the fbregojng and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
of which is hereby acknowledged, the New Guarantors, the Company, the Existing Guarantors and the Trustee mutually covenant -.
and agree for the equal and ratable benéfit of the holders of the Securities as follows: ' :

A "1. Agreement to Guarantee, Each New Guarantor hereby agrees, jointly and severally with all the Existing

" .Guarantors, to unconditionally guarantee the Company’s obligations under the Securities on the terms and subject to the
conditions set forth in Article 10 of the Indenture and to be bound by all other applicable provisions of the Indenture and the

Securities. . , : _ :

2. Ratification of Indenture; Supplemental Indentures Part of Indenture. Except as expressly amended hereby, the
Indenture is in all respects ratified and confirmed and all the terms, conditions and provisions thereof shall remain in full force.
and effect. This Supplemental Indenture shall form a part of the Indenture for all purposes, and every Holder of Securities
heretofore or hereafter authenticated and delivered shall be bound hereby. ’ o

’ 3. Governing Law. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE SHALL BE _GOVERNED BY,AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK. - .



4. Trustee Makes No Representation.. The Trustee makes no representann as to the valldlty or sufficiency of this
Supplemental Indenture. . . o

5. Counterparts. The parties may sign any number of copies of this Supplemental Indenture Each signed copy
~ shall be an orlgmal but all of them together represent the same agreement. .

. 6. Effect of Headmg; The Section headings herein are for convenien‘c'e only and shall not affect the construction -
thereof. S : T . '



. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Suﬁplemental Indenture to be duly executed as of .
the date first above written. ' ) . ' c , :

ATM NATIONAL, LLC,

by
/s/ Brad Conrad ' .
Name: Brad Conrad
Title: Treasurer

CARDTRONICS HOLDINGS, LLC,
by . . A
~ /s/ Brad Conrad -

Name: Brad Corirad .
. Title: President

' CARDTRONIGS, INC.

by
/s/ Brad Conrad

" Name: Brad Conrad
Title: President

' . CARDTRONICS USA, INC.,
N ! » : ) N . by .
: , ‘/s/ Brad Conrad

" Name: Brad Conrad
Title: Treasurer.

CATM HOLDINGS LLC,

by A

/s/ Brad Conrad .-
Name: Brad Conrad
Title: President -

NCR CORPORATION,
- by . ) -
/s/ Michael Nelson

Name: Michael Nelson
Title: Treasurer - .

[Signature Page: to Supplemental Tndenture)



- NCR INTERNATIONAL, INC, .

by - 7 .
/s/ Farzad Jalil
" Name: Farzad Jalil
Title: Treasurer

" WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee, ™

(s/ Tina D. Gonzalez - ..
Name: Tina D. Gonzalez
Title: Vice President

" [Signature Page to Supplementai Indenture]



Exhibit 4.1

Execution Version

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE (this “Supplemental Indenture”) dated as of October 14, 2021, among ATM
National, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“ATM National”), Cardtronics Holdings, LLC,-a Delaware -
limited liability company (“Cardtronics Holdings”), Cardtronics, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Cardtronics™),
Cardtronics USA, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Cardtronics USA”), CATM Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company (“CATM Holdings” and, collectively with ATM National, Cardtronics Holdings, Cardtronics

and Cardtronics USA, the “New Guarantors”), each a subsidiary of NCR Corporation (or its successor), a

Maryland corporation (the “Company”), NCR International, Inc.; a Delaware corporation, and U.S. BANK .
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association, as trustee under the indenture referred to below (the
“Trustee”). . C ’ " : . :

WITNESSETH:

- WHEREAS the Company and the existing Subsidiary Guarantors (as defined in the Indenture referred to below) '
have heretofore executed and delivered to the Trustee an Indenture (as amended, restated, or otherwise modified from time to
time, the “Indenture”) dated as of April 6, 2021, providing for the issuance of 5.125% Senior Notes due 2029 (the “Securities”); -

WHEREAS Section 4.11 of the Indenture provides that.under certain circumstances the Company is required to
cause the New Guarantors to execute and deliver to the Trustee a supplemental indenture pursuant to which the New Guarantors
shall unconditionally guarantee all the Company’s obligations under the Securities pursuant to a Subsidiary Guarantee on the ‘
terms and conditions set forth herein; and A o :

. ' 'WHEREAS pursuant to Section 9.01 of the Indenture, the Trustee, the Company and the Existing Guarantors are '
- authorized to execute and deliver this Supplemental Indenture; . : ' :

NOwW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for other good and valuable consideration, fhe recéipt
of which is hereby acknowledged, the New Guarantors, the Company, the Existing Guarantors and the Trustee mutually covenant .
and agree for the equal and ratable benefit of the holders of the Securities as follows: . =~

. 1. Agreefnent to Guarantee. Each New Guarantor hereby agrees, jointly and severally with all the Existing
Guarantors, to unconditionally guarantee the Company’s obligations under the Securities on the terms and subject to the
conditions set forth in Article 10 of the Indenture and to be bound by all other applicable provisions of the Indenture and the
Securities. ’ : . ‘ - : . ) .

' 2. Ratification of Indentiire; Supplemental Indentures Part of Indenture. Except as.expressly-amended hereby, the ’
Indenture is in all respects ratified and confirmed and all the terms, conditions and provisions.thereof shall remain in full force

and effect. This Supplemental Indenture shall form a part of the Indenture for all purposes, and every Holder of Securities

* - heretofore or hereafter authenticated and delivered shall be bound hereby.

) . 3..Governing L.aw. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK. . oo



4. Trustee Makes No ReDresentatlon The Tmstee makes no representation asto the validity or suff1c1ency of this
Supplemental Indenture. .

5. Counterparts The pames may sign any number of copies of this. Supplemental Indenture Each 51gned copy
shall be an original, but all of them together represent the same agreement.

o 6. Effect of Headings. The Section headings herein are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction ..
. thereof. - . : : . o ’



IN WiTNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have caused-this SUpplemehtéi Indenture to be duly executed. as of
the date first above written. . - C o : ' T

" ATM NATIONAL,LLC,

by .
/s/ Brad Conrad
Name: Brad Conrad
Title: Treasurer ..

CARDTRONICS HOLDINGS, LLC,

by . .
/s/ Brad Conrad
Name: Brad Conrad
Title: President -

CARDTRONICS, INC.. "~

by .
/s/ Brad Conrad
Name: Brad Conrad
Title: President

CARDTRONICS USA, INC;,

/s/ Brad Conrad .

. Name: Brad Conrad
Title: Treasurer.

"CATM HOLDINGS LLC,
y
(s/ Brad Conrad

Name: Brad Conrad
Title: President-

b

NCR CORPORATION,

by .
/s/ Michael Nelson -
Name: Michael Nelson -
Title: Treasurer

[Signatﬁrg Page to Supplemental Indenture]



NCR INTERNATIONAL, INC.,

by
[s/ Farzad Jalil
Name: Farzad Jalil
Title: Treasurer

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,; as Trustee,

by -~ )

[s/ David Ferrell
Name: David Ferrell
Title: Vice President .

[Signature Paqge to Supplemental Indenfure] :



SUBSIDIARIES OF NCR CORPORATION .

Name of Subsidiary .

as of December 31, 2021

ATM Deployer Services LLC
ATM National, LLC

" Cardtronics Holdings, LLC
Cardtronics USA, Inc.
Cardtronics, Inc.
CATM Holdings LLC
Columbus Merchant Services, LLC
USA Payment System, Inc.
Data Pathing Holdings LLC -
Freshop, Inc.

Kalamazoo River Areas 2, 3 and 4 Remedlatlon LLC '

. Lion Acqwsmon Sub Inc.

NCR EasyPoint LLC -
. NCR-European and South American Holdlngs LLC
‘NCR Foreign Investco 1, LLC

NCR Government Systems LLC

NCR Indonesia LLC

NCR International, Inc.

NCR ltalia Holdings LLC _

NCR Latin American Holdings LLC

EXHIBIT 21

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

- Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware: -
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware.
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
‘Delaware
Delaware



SUBSIDIARIES OF NCR CORPORATION

Name of Subsidiary’

as of December 31, 2021

NCR Middle East Holdings, LLC

NCR Payment Solutions Corporation
NCR Payment Solutions, FL, LLC
NCR Poland LLC

NCR Receivables LLC -
NCR Solutions (Middle East) LLC
North American Research Corporation
Quantor Holdings LLC

StoplLift,.Inc. -

Térafina, Inc. '

" Zynstra Holdings, Inc. -

Zynstra, .Inc.

* Radiant Payment Services, LLC

The National Cash Register Company
NCR Payroll & HR Solutions, Inc.
NCR Payment Solutions, PA, LLC
Payroll Tax Filing Services, Inc.

NCR Payment Solutions, LLC

TCR Business Systems, Inc. '

Texas Digital Systems, Inc.

EXHIBIT 21

Jurisdiction of Incorporation -

Delaware
Delaware .
-Delaware
Delaware
- Delaware
Delaware
‘Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware .
-Delaware
Delaware
Georgia
- Maryland
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania .
- . Pennsylvania
-~ Texas
Texas
Texas



' SUBSIDIARIES OF NCR CORPORATION .

Name of Subsidiary

as of December 31, 2021°

Cardtronics Canada Armoured Cak Inc.
Cardtronics Canada ATM Management Partnership
Cardtronics Canada ATM Processing Pannershnp
Cardtronics Canada Holdings Inc.
Cardtronics Canada Limited Partnership
* Cardtronics Canada Operatlons Inc.

‘Cardtronics Canada, Ltd. -

NCR Argentina S.R.L.
_Cardtronics ATM Pty Ltd

Cardtronics Australasia Pty Ltd- -

Cardtronics Australia Pty Ltd.

Cardtronics Holdings Australia Pty Ltd

- Cardtronics Prepaid Pty Ltd

Cardtronics Pty Ltd.
Cardtronics Services Pty Ltd

- Customers Operations Pty Ltd
Firstpoint Payments Pty Ltd
NCR Australia Pty Limited

" Retalix Australia Pty Ltd

EXHIBIT 21.

Jurisdiction of Incorporation -

_ Alberta
Alberta .
Alberta
Alberta
Alberta -
Alberta
Alberta.
Argentina
Australia
Australia
Australia’
Australia

- Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia



" SUBSIDIARIES OF NCR CORPORATION

D

Name of ,'Subsi_diiary

as of December 31, 2021

'NCR Oesterreich Ges.m.b.H.
Orderman GmbH B
Radiant Systems GmbH
NCR (Bahrain) W.L.L:

NCR Hospitality Bahrain SPC
NCR Belgium.& Co. SNC
Global-Assurance Limited
NCR d.o.0. Banja Luka

-NCR Brasil - Industria de Eqmpamentos para Automacao Ltda.

NCR Brasil Ltda

. Wyse Sistemas de Informatica Ltda

NCR Canada Corp.
NCR Canada Receivables GP Corp. :
NCR Canada Receivables LP
NCR Chile Industrial y Comercial Limitada .
NCR Comercial E Inversiones Limitada - '
NCR (Bejing) Financial Equipment System Co., Ltd
- NCR (Guangzhou) Technology Co., Ltd.
NCR (Shanghai) Technology Services Ltd.
Retalix Technology (Bejing) Co. Ltd.

EXHIBIT 21 -

Junsdlctlon of Incorporatlon

Austria
Austria
Austria
Bahrain
Bahrain -
Belgium -
Bermuda
Bosnia
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Canada
‘Canada
Canada
'Chile
Chile
China
China
China
China



. SUBSIDIARIES OF NCR CORPORATION -

Name of Subsidiary

-as of December 31, 2021

NCR Colombia Ltda

Papeles y Suministros del Cuaca S.A. (Joint Venture)
-GHS Medtech Lid. : : '
‘NCR (Cyprus) Limited )
- NCR (Middle.East) Limited -

NCR (North Africa) Limited

"NCR Global Financing Limited

NCR Ceska Republika spol. S.r.o.

NCR Danmark A/S -

NCR Dominicana SRL -

Cardtronics Limited

Cardpoint Limited

Cardtronics Creative UK Linited
Cardtronics Holdings Limited
- Cardtronics UK Limited

CATM Africa Holdings Limited

CATM Australasia Holdings Limited
CATM Europe Holdings Limited '
“CATM North America Holdings Limited -

EXHIBIT 21

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

- Colombia -

_ Colombia

"~ Cyprus
Cyprus
- Cyprus
“Cyprus’
Cyprus

Czech Republic
Denmark .

A Dominican Republic
England and Wales -

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales



" SUBSIDIARIES OF NCR CORPORATION

Name of Subsidiary

as of December 31, 2021

New.Wave ATM Installations lelted

" OmniCash lelted

Sunwin Services Group (2010) Limited
.Cardtronics Management Services Limited
NCR. Financial Squtlons Group Limited
NCR Limited

NCR UK Group Limited ) o
NCR.UK Group Financing Limited

Zynstra Limited

NCR Finland OY

4Front Technologies SA France

- 'NCR France, SNC

" NCR Antilleé SAARL.

Cardpoint GmbH

" NCRGmMbH =

NCR Ghana Limited

NCR (Hellas) Single Member SA
"~ NCR (Hong Kong) Limited

g NCR Magyarorszag lnformacnlo Teéhnologlal Kft.

EXHIBIT 21

N

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

England and Wales’
~England and Wales
- . England and Wales
England and Wales
" England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales -
* England and Wales
Finland
" France
France
French W.I..
Germany -
Germany
Ghana
. Greece
Hong Kong
" Hungary



SUBSIDIARIES OF NCR CORPORATION

Name of Sub’éidiary .

- as of Decembér 31, 2021

Cardtronics India LLP

Digital insight India Products Private Limited

" NCR Corporation India Private Limited

" StoplLift Infotech Private Limited -

" Terafina Software Solutions Private Limited
PT. NCR Indonesia o ‘ i
NCR Global Holdings Limited
NCR Global Solutions Limited

Cardtronics Ireland Limited

Cardtronics Services Limited
Moon Holdings S.P.V. Ltd.
 NCR Global Ltd.. .- ’
NCR Israel Ltd.

Tamar Industries M.R. Electronics (1985) Ltd.

~_NCR ltalia S.rl, -

 NCR Japan Ltd.

. NCR (Kenya) Limited -
NCR Korea Co. Ltd.
CATM Luxembourg | Sarl
CATM’Luxembourg il Sarl

- EXHIBIT 21

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

India- -
India
india .
India -
india
.Indonesia
" lreland
Ireland

‘Ireland
Ireland
Israel
Israel
Israel

"< Israel
ltaly
- Japan -
Kenya
Korea
Luxembourg
Luxembourg

1l



. SUBSIDIARIES OF NCR CORPORATION

" Name of Subsidiary

as of Decembeér 31, 2021

RADS International SARL
NCR (Macau) Limited
NCR Payments and Services Malaysia Sdn Bhd
NCR (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd .
Radiant Systems Retail Solutions Sdn Bhd
Cardtronics Mexico, S.A. de C.V.
DC Payments Mexico, S.A. de CV. -
DSM Services S.A. de C.V.
" NCR de Mexico S. de R.L. deC V.
Global Acquisition C.V. )
NCR Dutch Holdings B.V.
NCR Nederland B.V. - )
- Cardtronics New Zealand (Holdings) lelted
Cardtronics NZ Limited - o
NCR (NZ) Corporation ‘
N.C.R. (Nigeria) PLC
NCR Norge AS N
NCR Corporatlon de Centroamerlca SA.
NCR del Peru S.A.

EXHIBIT 21

" Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Luxembourg -
Macau
Malaysia
Malaysia
Malaysia '
Mexico

. Mexico
Mexico
Mexico

Nethérlands

Netherlands

Netherlands

New Zealand

New Zealand

New Zealand"

- Nigeria
Norway."
Panama-
Peru



SUBSIDIARIES OF NCR CORPORATION

Name of Subsidiary

as of Decemﬁer 3.1.', 2021

NCR Cebu Development Center tnc.’
NCR Corporation (Philippines)

NCR Polska sp.z.0.0. -

NCR Iberia Unipessoal, Lda.

NCR Qatar LLC

" NCRA/O

. Cardtronics Creative UK Limited Partnershlp.

i-Design Group ‘Limited

I-Design Multi Media Limited

NCR d.o0.0. Beograd

NCR Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd

NCR Singapore Pte Ltd

. NCR International (South Africa) (Pty) Ltd.
Spark ATM Systems (Pty) Ltd. ’

Cardtronics Spain, Sociedad leltada

NCR Espana, S.L.

National Registrierkassen AG

- NCR (Switzerland) GmbH-

NCR Systems Taiwan Ltd.

EXHIBIT 21

Jurisdiction of Incorporation
Phitippines
Phifippines

Poland
Portugal
Qatar
Russia
"Scotland
Scotland
Scotland
Serbia
Singapore
Singapore
South Africa
South Africa
Spain
Spain

Switzerland -
Switzerland
- Taiwan




A SUBSIDIARIES OF NCR CORPORATION -

.Name of Subsidiary

as of December 31, 2021

‘NCR (Thailand) Limited
Radiant Systems Co. Ltd.

. NCR Bilisim.Sistemleri, L.S.
NCR Ukraine Limited

N. Timms & Co. (Private) Ltd
NCR Zimbabwe (Private) Ltd .

EXHIBIT 21

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Thailand
Thailand

" Turkey -
Ukraine .
Zimbabwe .-
Zimbabwe



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM *

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form'S-3 (No. 333-231034) and S-8 (Nos. 333-257203, 333-18797,
- 333-139553, 333-215248,'333-217574, and 333-249798) of NCR Corpgration of our report dated February 25, 2022 relating to the financial statements and
financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K. )

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Atlanta, Georgia -
‘February 25, 2022



, Exhibit 31.1
- CERTIFICATION

1, Michael D. Hayford, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10- K of NCR Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, m light of the circumstances under which such statements were fade, not mlsleadmg wrth respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the reglstrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in’
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d 15(e)) and internal control over fmanclal repomng (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

‘a) Designed such disclosure controls and proc‘edures or caused such disclosure contrals and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
‘that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subSIdlanes is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report 1s being prepared;

" b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial.reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with genera].ly accepted accounting principles; : :

¢) Evaluated the effectlveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and|procedures, as of the end of the-period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrarit’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect the .
registrant’s mternal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have dlsclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equnvalent functions):

a) All'significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal contral over financial reporting which are reasonably
llkely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud whether or not matenal that 1nvo|ves management or other employees who have a mgmftcant role in the regtstrant S tnternal com.rol over
financial reporting. '

Date: Febru}a’ry 25, 2022 . R - o . /sl Michael D. Hayford
i ) Michael D. Hayford o ) . -
Chief Executive Officer o : ‘



' Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Timothy C. Olivef, certify that: - ' L ' o : .,
1. 1 have reviewed this.Annual Report on Form 1~0 K of NCR Corporation;

2. Based on my kiowledge, this report does not contam any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, falrly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The regrstrant s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsrble for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d 15(e)) and mternal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15(0 and 15d- 15(f)) for.
" the registrant and have:

«

a) Designedsuch disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
* that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be desrgned under our
supervision, to provide reasanable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evalyation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to matenal]y affect, the
registrant’s internal control over fmancnal reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying offlcer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluauon of rnternal control over financial repomng, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the reglstranl s board of directors (or persons performing the equnvalem functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operauon of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not materlal that involves management or olher employees who have a 51gn1ﬁcanl role in the registrant’s internal conu-ol over
financial repomng
Date: February 25, 2022 - . : ’ sl Timothy C. Oliver
’ Timothy C. Oliver -
Senior Executive Vice Presidént and Chlef Financial Officer -

.



. Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT- TO-
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection wnh the Annual Report on Fonn 10-K of NCR Corporation (the “Company”) for the penod ending December 31, 2021 as filed with the u.s.
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), each of the undersigned officers of the Company does hereby certify, pursuant to -
18 U.S.C. § 1350 (section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002); that: E .

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condmon and result of operations of the Company

- The foregoing certification (i) is given to such officers’ knowledge, based upon such officers’ investigation as such officers reasonably deem appropriate;
and (ii) is being furnished solely pursuant to-18 U.S.C. § 1350 (section 306 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002) and is not being filed as part of the Reporl
or as a separate disclosure document.

Dated: February 25, 2022 . : . . ) /s/ Michael D. Hayford
: - Michael D. Hayford .
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: February 25,.2022 i o L ’ : /sl Timothy C. Oliver
Co T Tlmothy C. Oliver.
Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Flnanaa] Offxcer

- A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signatures

that appear in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to NCR Corporation and will |

be retained by NCR’ Corporatlon and furmshed to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission orits staff upon request



